City Council Meeting
Agenda of Business
November 8, 2021
The Lord's Prayer
Pledge of Allegiance to the flag
Item no.
A.

Roll call

B.

Approval of minutes dated October 25, 2021

C.

Communications, reports, and resolutions
1. Communication from Mayor Don Mason- South East Area Transit BoardMayor Mason hereby recommends the reappointment of Ms. Ellen Rucker to
the South East Area Transit Board. Ms. Rucker's term will be extended for
another three years and will expire December 31 , 2024.
2. Communication from Mayor Don Mason- Muskingum County Convention
Facilities-Mayor Mason hereby recommends the reappointment of Mr. Mike
Bennett to the Muskingum County Convention Facilities Authority. Mr.
Bennett's term will expire 12/14/2025.

D.

Proposed ordinances
1. Ordinance No. 2021-129-lntroduced by Council - An Ordinance authorizing
a Maximum Schedule of Positions for the City of Zanesville's Workforce. (First
Reading)
2. Ordinance No. 2021-130-lntroduced by Council-An Ordinance approving a
Labor Agreement with the Fraternal Order of Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc.
(Police Captains) and declaring an emergency. (Emergency or First Reading)
3. Ordinance No. 2021-131-lntroduced by Council-An Ordinance ratifying the
Memorandum of Understanding with Fraternal Order of Police, Ohio Labor
Council, Inc. (Police Captains) regarding a one-time lump sum payment to be
paid following the ratification and execution of the 2021-2023 Collective
Bargaining Agreement, and declaring an emergency. (Emergency or First
Reading)
4. Ordinance No. 2021-132 - Introduced by Council -An Ordinance authorizing
the proper city official to submit a revised Combined Sewer Overflow Long
Term Control Plan to the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency. (First
Reading)

5. Ordinance No. 2021-133 - Introduced by Council -An Ordinance authorizing
the proper City official to execute a Pre-Annexation Agreement with Meridian
Realty Capital LLC and declaring an emergency. (Emergency or First
Reading)

E.

Ordinances for action

6. Ordinance No. 2021-122-lntroduced by Council - An Ordinance amending
Appropriation Ordinance No. 2021-27 and declaring an emergency.
(Emergency or Second Reading)
7. Ordinance No. 2021-123-lntroduced by Council-An Ordinance to amend
Employee Handbook setting forth policies and procedures for Public
Employees of the City of Zanesville. (Second Reading)
8. Ordinance No. 2021-125 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance to amend
and revise Chapters 1109.01, 1137.04, and 1141.05 of the City of Zanesville's
Planning and Zoning Code. (Second Reading)
9. Ordinance No. 2021-126 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance authorizing
the Mayor to enter into an agreement with Sunday Creek Horizons (SCH) for
Revitalization and Redevelopment Consulting Services. (Second Reading)
10. Ordinance No. 2021-127 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance authorizing
the proper city official to grant an easement to Columbia Gas for a gas main
on city property east of Maysville Avenue. (Second Reading)
11. Ordinance No. 2021-128 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance authorizing
the Mayor to enter into an agreement with the Muskingum County
Commissioners, for the reimbursement of fees paid to attorneys who represent
indigent defendants in Municipal Court. (Second Reading)
12. Ordinance No. 2021-114 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance allowing a
moral claim from Jason Dalton. (Third Reading)
13. Ordinance No. 2021-121 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance authorizing
the proper city official to dispose of City property. (Third Reading)
14.Ordinance No. 2021-110 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance to amend
and revise the Zoning Map and make permanent zoning in the City of
Zanesville, Ohio as herein provided. (Third Reading)

Traffic orders
Traffic Order 2021-09
SECTION ONE:
Central Alley is hereby closed from Graham Street 250' east toward
East Alley.

F.

SECTION TWO:

The appropriate signs shall be installed in accordance with
O.R.C. 4511.09.

G.

Miscellaneous and unfinished business

H.

Private petitions and communications
No Non-agenda item petitions were filed

The next regular meeting is scheduled for November 22, 2021.
This meeting is an open meeting and the public is invited to attend by telephonic
means to join by phone below or see the coz.org website for other options to
view the meeting:
+1-415-655-0001 U.S. Toll
1-844-621-3956 United States Toll Free
Access Code: 126 750 8098
Join from a video conferencing system or application. Open up a web browser
and type: zanesvillecity.webex.com Then type in the meeting number where it
says Join Meeting 126 750 8098

ZANESVILLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MONDAY, OCTOBER 25, 2021

Public Hearing
Mr. Vincent: A Public Hearing scheduled for 6:00 p.m., Monday, October 25, 2021 in the
City of Zanesville's Council Chambers, 401 Market Street, Zanesville, Ohio to hear a
request to amend and revise the zoning map and make permanent zoning in the City of
Zanesville, Ohio from RS-5 High Density Single-Family to RM-2 High Density MultiFamily Residential which pertains to parcel 81-71-02-18-000 in vicinity of Sharon
Avenue, the old McKinley School and that property. All testimony for and against will be
heard. With that, I will turn it over to Matthew Schley.
Matthew Schley: Thank you, Mr. Vincent. So, yes this is a request by Jason Jarvis to
rezone the property known as the McKinley School from RS-5 to RM-2 to allow for
multi-family housing to be redeveloped inside the school building. The building has set
vacant for fifteen odd years or so with no end user. Mr. Jarvis purchased the property
last October from one of the sales either the Auditor or Sheriff and I am not entirely
certain which one. It was his intention to rezone the property and use it for apartments.
Under the existing zoning classification as single family that is not a permitted use. So,
in order to do that it has to be rezoned to multi-family. Mr. Jarvis came before the
Planning Commission in September in a regularly scheduled Planning Commission
meeting and during that meeting the Planning Commission recommended this to City
Council with recommendation of approval. That same month during the Community
Development Committee meeting on September 27 this was also recommended to City
Council with a recommendation of approval.
It's a fairly simple rezoning. I will remind City Council a few little tidbits about zoning.
Zoning doesn't talk about people. Zoning is simply about land use. The decisions
cannot be made on whether person A is a good landowner or person Bis a bad
landowner. It is simply what is the best use of the property. This did get recommended
by the Planning Commission. Are there any questions?
Mr. Vincent: Yes, just expand on that a little bit more if you would as far as not about
people and as far as about development. If you could just expand on it a little bit more
and maybe some examples.
Matthew Schley: So here is a great example that they taught me in school. So, if you
have a barber shop and you don't like the person who cuts the hair at the barber shop.
You don't think they do a good job. That doesn't change whether or not they can
operate a barber shop. If they can operate a barber shop, they are allowed to operate a
barber shop. Same likewise, you cannot say well this person is a good barber, so we
are going to allow them to operate the barber shop, but not this person because I don't
think they are a good barber. The same thing goes with there was some discussion
about income levels and housing. We cannot as a city zoning say this is an income
bracket for this zoning district or we allow a low-income housing and a high-income and
we don't have that because that would be discriminatory on our part. So, we simply
have a RM-1 and a RM-2 and they are both two different densities, but that's simply
what we have because we can't discriminate. Again, zoning talks about land use and
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not people. So, we talk about density. We talk about traffic. We talk about a number of
different pieces with that, but what we can't do is talk about whether the person who
wishes to do this is a good person, a bad person, is good at his job or is bad at his job.
That has no bearing on whether the property should be zoned one way or the other.
Simply the Comprehensive Plan, I will say the rezoning request fits and meets a number
of our Comprehensive Plan objectives all the way from we need additional housing
options for residents of Zanesville to taking slum and blighted properties, which this
qualifies as, and offering a positive redevelopment opportunity. So, our staff had
recommended this for approval and the Planning Commission took it and the CD
Committee also recommended it as well.
Mr. Vincent: With that, if you think of some other things while I am talking here please
add them in. With that, I will caution Council to keep in mind it is kind of along the same
lines as we are looking for rezoning. We are not looking at specifics of what this person
is planning to build. We need to look long term for future owners. That can be a positive
and a negative when you look at it. I had another point here and it just left me. Is there
anything else you want to say right now?
Matthew Schley: Nope, I am good. Does anyone have any questions? I will answer
them the best that I can.
Ms. Gildow: Matt, is this another one of those things where every property owner within
200 feet or however many feet will be sent a letter relative to this change or is that not
this scenario?
Matthew Schley: Ms. Gildow that has actually already happened twice. Prior to the
Planning Commission meeting property owners within 200 feet were sent letters. Then
prior to this public hearing Ms. Culbertson sent those as well and additionally both prior
to the Planning Commission and tonight's public hearing it was advertised in a paper of
local circulation which is the Times Recorder.
Ms. Gildow: Were there any negatives.
Matthew Schley: Not initially prior to, but after the Planning Commission meeting
occurred there were negative comments that came out. I believe some people had
concerns with it becoming low-income housing. As I said it is not pertaining to zoning.
Ms. Gildow: We're good. Thank you.
Mr. Vincent: That is one call I had was on low-income housing. There were a lot of
discussions with that on how market value is and the influence on housing right now is
at a shortage because landlords are switching from Section 8 over to market value
pricing and getting more out of their property.
Matthew Schley: And Section 8 Housing is a highly regulated industry where every year
you are getting inspections from the health department and a number of different pieces
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that go into that sometimes create hassles for landlords and we've seen a number of
traditional Section 8 housing options go away in the past two to five years.
Mr. Vincent: I know a few years ago when I was in the rental business, and I walked
away from Section 8 Housing due to regulations and it just wasn't worth it. The other
thing I thought of then too. You kind of touched on it a little bit. Things we also regulate
with this. So, in this scenario, as far as, this working out. I know we have regulations for
parking. We talked about that a little bit. Can you kind of run through all the different
things that the city has the rules in place right now as far as to make sure whether it is
this project or a business going in from storm water to screening to parking and things
like that.
Matthew Schley: Yes, so we have very robust landscaping code. Any new
developments will require upgraded and updated landscaping to meet that standard.
For this type of unit for parking it is one and a half spaces per bedroom per unit.
Requirements of that comes out in this situation. I typically round up to make it easier on
myself, so it comes to 22 spaces. That parking area would have screening around it.
We regulate signs. We regulate noise. We regulate the lights. We regulate a number of
other different things like storm water, utilities that will most likely come to play on this
site as well. So, this isn't the last step in the process. This is more of the first step in the
process, if you will. On top of that, this would also, all of any improvements Mr. Jarvis
would make would all go through the Mid-East Ohio Building Department. It is a multifamily unit of more than three units so this would go to Mid-East Ohio Building
Department for their approval of all the interior renovations as well.
Mr. Vincent: Safe Structure and all these things. I know we have an issue in our
community with a lot of rental properties that are simply not safe.
Matthew Schley: This would be under a much higher level of scrutiny than somebody
just fixing up a house and renting it out.
Mr. Vincent: Is there anything else from Council? I guess if I could go back for just a
second. These regulations have been in place and not just related to Multi-Family
Housing. Businesses as we have learned over time that if they don't control storm water
it creates a lot of problems with streams and things like that. It is beneficial and we are a
little behind as far as getting these implemented. Other communities have done that for
years. It is a benefit for the entire community. Is there anything else from Council?
Mr. Baker: Yeah, just speaking as the Ward Representative in which this project is
going to take place and just to summarize some of the ideas that were talked about
prior to this meeting with some of the constituents. I think you have before you
something like fifty or so letters (Mr. Vincent said 23) or a big stack of people who have
some concerns about this. The very fact is that you mentioned. I think we can all agree
that the good that this can do, I think is fairly obvious. Right? We don't want a building to
stand another 20 years with nothing done to it with all of the potential, you know, safety
concerns and the attraction to vandalism , crime, drug use, etc. We certainly don't want
Page 3 of 26

ZANESVILLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING MONDAY, OCTOBER 25, 2021
that. We certainly want the tax base to be increased with that area of Zanesville to
attract of more affluent people that make for more stable neighborhoods. I think we all
want that. We know there is a housing crunch in Zanesville that this would help to
alleviate. So, you have that on one side of the ledger. The other side of the ledger is a
very real concern that these folks have as they have seen their property values go up
pretty briskly over the course of the last several years and they don't want to see
anything retard or stop that. I can't say that I blame them. I know that we can't speak to
people and that this is a rezoning issue only, but of course they are related, and we
hope that moderate to high income folks move into there. I suspect they would with the
amount of money that it is going to take to bring that place up to code. I don't think that
those folks are going to, or the owners, are going to stop and say now I am going to
take a government voucher for Section 8 and that will clear enough to make my
investment worth it.
Mr. Baker continues: On the other hand, there are no guarantees. I get that too because
once this is done, it is done for good, and there is no recourse for these folks if it does in
fact not pan out as we say being good for the community with increased housing values
etc. Perhaps it's going to become the opposite of that. We just don't know and once we
do this we can't go back. That I think more or less sums up the argument, somewhat, I
think. I wouldn't mind hearing myself and I don't know if this is appropriate, but if the
folks want to talk at this hearing before the City Council meeting. Just, I would suggest
that we've got six of us coming to this meeting tonight, is that right? As far as we know?
Which is not enough to overrule the Planning Commission. So, there is really nothing at
this meeting that we could do that would actually make it worth their time to give their
grievances and their position before City Council. I would suggest that we delay this for
one meeting and table (postpone) it for a meeting so if they want to bring more people,
they want to bring more arguments, if they want to twist some arms, God bless them,
and I would be all for that, in fact. Then at the next meeting when we have; hopefully, a
full ship so to speak, then if it is voted up or down it is voted on by enough people to
affect what they are after. It might not turn out that way, but at least they have a shot to
be able to do that. Which is the democratic process.
Mr. Vincent: You will have an opportunity to make that motion then. Is there anything
else from Council? Mayor, did you want to speak?
Mayor Mason: Well, Mr. Chairman, as you know procedurally once a motion to table is
made and seconded there is no further discussion other than the tabling motion. So, at
the Planning Commission meeting at one point in time I actually moved to table this and
seconded it as there was a lot of bickering in the audience. I wish we had had the
residents of the area speak prior to the tabling. They are here now, and I feel that we
would be seriously slighting them if they didn't have their opportunity to speak now.
Mr. Vincent: I would encourage Council to not vote ... They have the opportunity to
speak now at this meeting and then later on for those that filled out a petition wanted to
speak during Council they could speak then, unless someone actually moves to
postpone, which is the correct term, as table is just for within the meeting. To move to
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postpone to our next meeting or whatever future date, then that would stop that
discussion right then.
Mr. Sharrer: Yeah, I would like to also point out that they are here so we would like to
hear from them tonight; obviously, at both this meeting and at a full Council meeting.
What they would be missing out on is Mr. Roberts, Mr. Foreman, and Mrs. Gentry that
would not be here to hear their concerns. The other issue is with only six of us here
tonight we cannot waive anything so this will go, and this would be just the first reading
for this.
Mr. Vincent: This is the final reading , I believe.
It was agreed by several this is the third reading .
Mr. Sharrer: Then I would move also and concur with Mr. Baker if we put off a third
reading for this so that we would have our colleagues here so we could have a full
council meeting. I was thinking this was just down for first reading . So, I apologize.
Mr. Vincent: That is no problem .
Mr. Baker: Just so that I understand personally. So, when this comes up, we will discuss
it and let the good folks out in the audience give their piece if they obviously signed up
to do so, and then that is when it would be appropriate to postpone this for two weeks,
is that correct?
Mr. Vincent: Yes, it would need to be moved for Third Reading to get it on the table.
Then we would have the discussion with Council, the Administration, those who signed
up to speak and then if we are voting it could be moved to postpone which would
override that third reading , as long as it had the support of Council.
Mr. Baker: Thank you, Dan.
Mr. Vincent: Otherwise, it would go to vote then at that time. Yeah, I would hope that the
people who made it down here that we would her them speak, and we can find out their
concerns so we can figure out a solution .
Mr. Baker: Thank you.
Mr. Vincent: Is there anything else from Council? Administration? Is there anything
else?
Mr. Scott Brown: Just that it seems like we are talking about two separate items. So, I
just wanted to weigh in as somebody that is on the Planning Commission . Just briefly is
that we are talking about a rezoning , but the negative impacts would really be a result of
Code Enforcement and so not so much the parking, but so much as worrying about
whether or not the property is maintained or who the people are and the way that it is
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taking place and that sort of thing wouldn't really pertain to any matters of zoning . It
would be once the property is established ; it would then fall to Code Enforcement to
make sure the property was maintained properly. So that is all, I just didn't want there to
be confusion that one as there are two separate jobs, two separate divisions. One
would be from a Community Development standpoint, and one is actually the Code
Enforcement. I just don't want us to, and hopefully; the public can understand they are
two separate processes as one is zoning which is what we are talking about now for the
maintenance of the facility would be up to the Code Enforcement Division.
Mr. Vincent: Yes, and the reason I addressed that was just so many concerns I have
heard so far and they do kind of go hand in hand, as far as, what we have in place here
at the city to make sure there are the best outcomes for the city. So, yes, good point.
Mr. Sharrer: Mr. Schley, does it detrimentally harm anything if we would put this third
reading off? I guess I should ask that too. I understand that this has already passed
through the planning and zoning, and it has come through Community Development,
and we've not heard any complaints up to that or after it is done, but if we can, I guess if
it is not causing any undue harm to put if off is what I guess what I am asking or looking
for.
Matthew Schley: I would defer that to the property owner. From a procedural standpoint
no, but from a development standpoint, from a moving forward standpoint that I cannot
say on that.
Mr. Vincent: Not to overly simplify it is either going to pass or it is not going to pass, and
I think for the chance for it passing with keeping it for another two weeks. I think if I were
the property owner I would want to put another two weeks into it to get questions
answered for Council.
Mr. Sharrer: Is the property owner here today or tonight?
The response was yes from the audience.
Mayor Mason: I would just like to hear from the applicant and representative as well as
the residents. I would also like to hear what more the residents would like to see done in
the area. In the 1980's this area had no sanitary sewer system so we did the East End
Sewer project we put around 900 various grinder pumps in and home sewer systems in
order to make the properties worth more money. Scott Brown has spent a lot of time on
various streets in the area making improvements. I would like to hear more of what all
because one of the ladies has and she is solid in her understanding on what it takes to
improve the area. She is talking about having owner occupied structures which I think is
exactly where we have to go with it.
Mr. Vincent: For the whole city.
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Mayor Mason: If we need more Code Enforcement in the area, we can work on that
also. I would just like to hear more.
Mr. Vincent: With that, I would just like to hear concerns first from those who are
against. I would like to hear from them first for conciseness of time and then to the
representative of the property owners then after that so maybe some questions could be
addressed there. If you could come up and give me your name and address, please.
My name is Michelle Huber: Thank you, Mr. Mayor, thank you, Councilmembers. My
name is Michelle Huber and I live at 416 Jessamine Street, which is just down the street
from the school you are referring to. We have started to see an influx of young
professionals move into the neighborhood. They are paying top dollar for their homes.
Anywhere from $120,000 to $150,000 . There is a house over there by WHIZ that is
selling for $400,000 currently. Okay, so we are concerned about a family living complex.
Obviously, because these are renters, they have no vested stake in the neighborhood .
We work very hard and are blue collar for the most part. We put our time, our sweat, our
money into our property. We don 't want to see this building eventually comes in.
Economics are economics as we all know. If you are not getting the renters and you
need the money for your building and your upkeep and your taxes, you just might
change the way you do business and start renting to Section 8. We have seen it before
in different places in town.
Traffic is an issue. We have a very narrow street on Jessamine. Two cars passing each
other is very difficult because there is a big ditch on one side and then a sidewalk in
people's yards on the other side. So that is something that should be looked at,
definitely!
We have a forty-minute response time when we call the police. Apartment buildings
bring with them families who have problems. Spousal abuse, child abuse, people who
don't pay their rent are getting evicted and causing problems. Children unsupervised,
vandalizing which are issues that we worry about, and we think about as single-family
dwellings. I think anybody who owns a home thinks about that stuff and has mowers,
cars, and property.
I understand that it does take time, but theft and vandalisms when you work hard for
your money; you take it personally. You know! Vermin and where will the trash
dumpsters be? That is something else we need to think about. Rats and mice, we
already have a black buzzard problem over there. They break into our trash cans; they
have scratched up our cars. l have a brand-new car and I have big deep scratches on
my car from those buzzards' talons.
Parking, where is the parking going to be? If you take a drive over there and you look at
the school yard , it really isn't all that big. Once this is done and you say yes, it is all over
with for us. We want our voices to be heard and we want our concerns to be heard. We
don't want to stop progress. We understand the need for housing, but we also know that
we are homeowners and we need to be considered in this decision. We need to be
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heard by you and I respectfully ask that you take the time to listen to our concerns.
Thank you.
Mr. Vincent: Thank you very much. I will give a summary here then. The points I got
from this are:
1. Concerns with low-income housing and who it attracts to the area.
2. Narrow streets, and I immediately thought that is quite a few streets in Zanesville
unfortunately, and that is an issue to work on.
Ms. Huber: This Street is really extremely narrow. If you had a school bus, because we
do have a school bus that comes up that way after school. No other cars will fit on that
street when that school bus is on that street. That is how narrow it is.
Mr. Vincent: I am sorry, and I am not discounting it.
Ms. Huber: I turn my mirror in when I am passing a vehicle because I don't want them to
take my mirror off.
Mr. Vincent: So, narrow streets
3. Police response times
4. Vermin, buzzards and Code issues
5. Parking and where will parking be
Ms. Huber: Also, loss of property values. I mean, as I said, if you read the comps for our
area and I am big into real estate. I like to know what is going for what. You know, our
houses are selling for top dollar. We have young families moving in. We are resurrecting
our neighborhood. It is not just retirees or people who are ready to go to nursing homes
or whatever. I mean, professional families: teachers, we have a day care center on
Jordan. She services people who work in the police department, the hospital, and the
city police. We have a family on Sharon Avenue that is mentoring young children by
teaching them because they come from homes that probably may not fit this, but they
are teaching them basic living skills like balancing their checkbook, doing their laundry,
writing a grocery list, preparing food, selling, so we are a community over here. We
work together and we talk to one another. I feel safe walking in my neighborhood,
believe it or not, with my dog at night. I do frequently walk with Storm through the
neighborhood.
Mr. Vincent: Thank you. I just wanted to summarize to make sure I caught all of your
points with that. Thank you so much.
Ms. Huber: Thank you.
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Mr. Vincent: With that and I don't know names, so if you want to come up and just give
us your name and address.
Julie Campbell: I live at 334 Jessamine Street. I live right across from the old McKinley
School, would be on Sharon, but then when you turn onto Sharon Avenue, we are the
house right across the street. It is like a little tan house. We moved up there just before
the school exited out and went to the new school or when they built the new schools.
So, we have had the problem then as far as our mailbox and our driveway. We could
not get in and out and we were always having to call, you know the school; and say hey,
we can't get out of our driveway. Of course, then that didn't do much good for the
mailbox, but we didn't always have problems with that. I mean, I don't know what we
should have done with it for that area, but I think in the beginning when it was after the
school had vacated and now with all the birds and stuff. I could not imagine with all the
windows that's busted out. I have called the police several times. I mean people
sleeping in the parking lot, there is like as you go up to that building there is like a
doorway. It looks to me like this area would be and people are actually sleeping inside
that doorway, several times. Over the winter they would be parked in the lot with their
vehicles on. Sorry, I mean we have a dog too, but I mean, it is kind of scary. You don't
know what is going on. You don't know who is going to do what. It is just kind of scary to
me having that right across the street even though they are just in the lot. I mean there
have been plenty of times where kids have been inside the school, and I have called.
Now, I just don't know what would be a really good fit. Yes, I would like, and I get that
Zanesville needs more housing. We need more industry. I get that, but I just don't feel
that's a big enough property area for something like that. I really don't. The traffic, you
know, very little and we just have one driveway, and our garages are out back in an
alley. We park in our driveway. We double park. I will even park in our grass because
you know the parking can be a problem.
Like I said, I don't know what would be a good fit, but I just don't really and would rather
not see, you know, something like that. I feel there are plenty other areas in Zanesville
that do have empty properties that, you know, could be other housing put up or
whatever in other areas. Like I said, I don't know what would be a good fit for that.
Mr. Vincent: Okay, alright, thank you so very much. So, with that just as a summary.
1. You talked about as far as blocking your driveway in the past when the school
was there.
2. Then people parking illegally in yards.
3. You are not sure what is a good fit, as far as, with that property.
4. You also talked about currently with the land being vacant that there is vermin,
homeless people sleeping there.
5. Crime from kids breaking in.
6. Our investments in our properties
Mr. Vincent: So, the things that are not good right now because of the way it is right now
with the vermin and the homeless sleeping there and the crime and the kids breaking in
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and stuff. So, okay the blocked driveway has been resolved with the property being
vacant and parking legally with no one parking there. So that to me is kind of like a
police issue then. It should have been back when it was occurring with the school, so I
am not sure why that wasn't resolved. I didn't know about that at the time.
Is there anyone else to speak against this? Okay, alright. So, with that, Mr. Brown, do I
turn it to you? Are you willing to speak? (Referring to Attorney James Brown)
Mr. Vincent: If you would also introduce yourself and give us your address.
Attorney James Brown: Thank you. My name is James P. Brown, Jim Brown, with the
law firm of Cultice and Brown. I am here on behalf of the Jarvis's. Absolutely, first and
foremost, one, on behalf of the Jarvis's we want to apologize for emotions. It was an
emotional meeting that I think some of you were involved in the other room for that.
There is no reason for that. We are a community, and we need to stand together
regardless of what side of the fence we are on. I would very much like to address some
of the issues that have already been made known tonight. The question I have Mr.
Schley, is Council or you all provided with the staff reports or not?
Matthew Schley: They are not.
Attorney James Brown: Okay, so rather than reiterate, can we make that as part of the
record or is that not because we agree with the outlets set forth consistent with the
zoning code as set forth in the staff report as it relates to the Comprehensive Plan. The
accountability in zoning. The public interest and gathering of the public interest so with
that said if I could at least make the record with that. We can do that.
Mr. Vincent: Can you get that to Sue (Clerk of Council) so she can get it out to Council?
Matthew Schley: Yes.
Mr. Vincent: Okay. Thank you.
Attorney James Brown: Thank you. In terms of one issue very quickly and then I do
want to present a document on behalf of my clients that they really want to have you all
hear, particularly the community. That is on parking , and I think there has been some
discussion . First and foremost, the plans are in an infant stage, but as far as parking I
think the intention is and the Jarvis's can speak to this, is to have onsite parking. I think
as well is I believe Mr. Scott Brown said zoning is one thing and then there is a Planning
Commission vacation of an alley is another. Then there are many other things that
come into play in terms of code enforcement, design, and things in that regard . With
that said, if you will give me a few seconds or a few minutes, I would like to present this
position paper or presentation I will call it. That was really penned by our clients. So,
speaking as them. Attorney James Brown then read the letter below from his clients.
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October 25 , 2021
Subject:
Zanesville City Council
Public Hearing Request to Rezone
1428 Sharon Avenue from RS-5 to RM-2
Ladies and Gentlemen:
As the property owners of 1428 Sharon Ave., more commonly known as
McKinley Elementary School, recently, it came to our attention that community
concerns exist in regard to the development of the property. We would like to
begin by apologizing that more detailed and pertinent information about
development plans has not been shared directly with the neighboring and
affected community. We were very surprised to learn about rumors that have
been or are being circulated that are not true. The rumors of which we are aware
and that are false include:
1.
Low-income Section 8 housing
2.
Low-income Section 8 housing after 1 year
3.
Clear cutting trees
4.
Opening a women's shelter
5.
Opening homeless shelter
6.
Opening a shelter of any kind
Our vision is to transform this 91-year-old piece of Zanesville's history into a 1011-unit, moderate income level apartment building. Our design theme is to merge
the already historical elements with modern day influence. At some point during
this process, we will be reaching out to the Zanesville community in hopes of
acquiring photos and media periodicals dating back to the construction date of
1930. We would like to incorporate the collected media into the decor of the
corridors, stairwells and common areas allowing the building the opportunity to
tell its own story. Our vision also includes creating a beautiful outdoor space and
partaking in seasonal decorative festivities. William McKinley once said
"Character is the foundation upon which we must build if our institutions are to
endure" . It is through good character we offer you assurances that we will not be
clear cutting trees but rather only plan to remove fallen or dead vegetation while
maintaining the tree line that surrounds the property. We will not be accepting
any kind of Section 8 voucher or any other government subsidy. We will not be
putting in a homeless shelter, a women's shelter or a shelter of any kind.
Additional concerns that have been brought to our attention include:
1.
Black vultures
2.
Spraying of "Green Stuff'
Black Vultures - Presently, black vultures are a protected species. Mayor Mason
has addressed this issue indicating that applications for financial assistance have
been submitted along with requests for legislative changes for the City of
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Zanesville to remove this nuisance from three locations in Zanesville.
Spraying of "Green Stuff'' - It has been reported that we have been spraying
"green stuff'' which is creating potential health and safety concerns for various
residents. This "green stuff'' is actually water that collected on the roof of the
structure as a result of restricted or plugged roof drains. Drain locations were
several feet under water and required removal with a submersible sump pump.
Once drain locations became visible, the restrictions were removed allowing
collected water to disperse into the drainage system . The "green stuff' was
merely stagnated water with traces of algae and not a toxic environmental
concern.
In conclusion, we appreciate the community's concerns and Council's
consideration. We welcome the opportunity to answer questions and discuss our
plans. Again , we want to allay fears and concerns that we intend to disrupt or
interrupt the surrounding properties. We want to improve and uplift this
community and the neighborhood to peacefully co-exist and foster the respectful,
responsible , and environmentally friendly development of the residential
community. At the same time, while so many are tearing down our historical
landmarks, we wish to restore, preserve, maintain and protect them! Thank you
again for your time and consideration.
Respectfully,
Jason and Stephanie Jarvis
Mr. Vincent: Thank you , Attorney Brown.
Mr. Sharrer: Attorney Brown, thank you guys for coming too to state your positions.
Going back to my question to Mr. Schley. Is it a detriment to your clients' project to have
it delayed the extra two weeks?
Attorney James Brown: Excellent question and good point. Actually, I would say that our
preference would certainly be to proceed for the reason that it has been tabled once
and has been delayed, and of course; I am here tonight and based on the minutes
before and again absolutely a proponent of the community being heard. I do understand
that, but we have been before the Planning Commission . I think a neighbor who is very,
very adverse, I think to what we are doing was at that Planning Commission meeting
and no one spoke against the zoning ordinance or request. Again, I think your staff has
done a wonderful job in summarizing the elements that I think the ordinance addressed.
I think it really, really is a very good point and I will have to say to the Jarvis's once this
happens it is going to be difficult to unwind. We take that very seriously and that is why
this part was so important. It didn't need a talking head or a lawyer to make this
statement. Though my clients really did put a lot of time into this, and they take it very
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seriously, but what we do not want is we definitely want to take and keep emotion out of
this. So, with that said , Mr. Sharrer, I can't say that we are on a very short timeframe.
but we have discussed 18 months and we have many, many challenges before this.
Once we, hopefully, get an approved ordinance then we have to go before the Planning
Commission . It was my understanding it was tabled until I think the third or whenever
the Planning Commission meets, I think the third week of November.
Mr. Schley: Yes .
Attorney James Brown : We already have schematics; the survey has been done and
has been submitted with the packet for the alley vacation and the zoning. I guess, Matt,
it would be for the alley. The survey is there, and dollars are being spent. There is an
engineer involved . So, the sooner the better and certainly as cost effectively as
possible. But I can't say on behalf of our clients that it is not appropriate to hear from the
community. It is important to do that, and I understand that. I am sorry, that was a long
answer.
Mr. Vincent: Thank you Attorney Brown . Is there anything else from Council? Is there
anyone else to speak for this? Alright, if that's it from everyone we will call this public
hearing to a close. We will have additional discussion then at our Council meeting, so
this comes up again in the meeting.
This hearing ended about 6:40 p.m.

Susan Culbertson
Clerk of Council

Daniel M. Vincent
President of Zanesville City Council

Public Hearing

Mr. Vincent: With that, we are running a little behind, but our second public hearing
tonight is to hear a request to amend Chapter 1137. This Public Hearing was held (a
little later than 6:15 p.m., as the first public hearing ran very long) at 6:40 p.m. on
Monday, October 25 , 2021, in the City of Zanesville's Council Chambers, 401 Market
Street, Zanesville, Ohio. This hearing is to hear a request to amend Chapter 1137,
Residential Districts. of the Planning and Zoning Code of The Community Development
Department of the City of Zanesville's Codified Ordinances. All testimony for and
against will be heard. With that, I will turn it over to Matthew Schley.
Matthew Schley: Yes, I will be brief. So, this ordinance comes before City Council to
allow for administrative reductions in our housing setback standard. Currently, and we
have had discussion more recently with a number of developers on housing, single
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family, multi-family variety, but one thing that has been a constant is that our set back
standard can create issues for somebody to actually develop on certain lots within the
City of Zanesville, particularly because the City of Zanesville was platted much earlier
than other communities. The development for housing was we are going to build
property line to property line up to probably the road and that's we are going to build
them all in a line. Well, now with our current zoning standard that's not necessarily how
it works, but 20-foot front yard, ten-foot interior side yard and 30-foot rear yard. Well,
that can be prohibited to somebody building a house. So, in order to encourage that we
have set up this code to allow us, my staff, to review on a case-by-case basis reducing
the minimum setback requirement to encourage housing development inside the City of
Zanesville. This was heard by the Planning Commission, and it was unanimously
approved. It was heard by the Community Development Committee, as well and it was
also approved and recommended to Council for approval. Are there any questions?
Mr. Vincent: Okay, thank you, Mr. Schley. Are there any questions from Council? I have
commented on this before, but I think the way things are currently now, I have not liked
them and am glad this is finally being put in place because one it doesn't look right. In
some areas you have houses that are up against the street, and you have this one
house setting way back in that looks like a mistake. We have them around the city. It is
like the houses are sitting in the back yard and you have this huge front yard. If you
have children playing in the front yard on a busy street it is not good. You really want
them in the back close to hopefully not a busy alley. So, this has concerned me for
years so thank you and your staff for taking this on. Second then is, I have seen this
with the Greenwood project as far as housing put in. We have houses with garages
squeezed in the very back of the property. Still no back yard for kids to play in again, but
paly in the front yard, not good . Then you can barely get turned in to get into the garage
because you are in a narrow alley and the garage is so close. So, this fixes a lot of
things, but I guess one of the most noticeable things to the public, as far as, driving
around is it will make sense if it fits with other houses, so the fronts of houses match up.
I am not sure what you call that, but the property frontage all lines up then.
Matthew Schley: One other thing, and you did jog my memory, Mr. Vincent. The other
thing that is very important with this is it allows us to increase density. It allows us to
increase housing density. So, in a city like Zanesville, we are not necessarily growing
out, it is not every day are we get annexation requests and such so, one way to fix our
population problems that we have at times is to increase the density. So, a great
example is on Mead Street. The Habitat for Humanity has done a fantastic job on Mead
Street. There were and you can see when you look at Mead Street you are exactly right.
There are houses across the street that look one way and the houses they have been
required to build per our code look another way. Another piece of that is it separates
them out and makes bigger yards. Some people like that, however; in this situation
you've taken a section of street that may have held eight houses and now you are down
to four. So, this will allow us to increase density and promote infill housing.
Mr. Vincent: So, with that less side requirements beside or between the homes.
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Matthew Schley: If you would think about it under our current code and you built two
homes side by side, they are twenty feet apart. That is a fairly substantial distance to
cover.
Mr. Vincent: So, this will allow for infill housing on lots that are older, too narrow of lots,
to meet the standards of today.
Matthew Schley: Absolutely.
Mr. Vincent: With that, I imagine most of us and probably maybe still live in
neighborhoods where our house and the neighbor's house are pretty close. I was on St.
Louis Avenue, and I am thinking of in my mind right now that we had great neighbors.
So, I enjoyed them, and it was not an issue. Okay, is there anything else from Council?
Is anyone here to speak for or against this? No one to speak for or against this? Is there
anything else from Council? Okay, we will call this public hearing to a close. Council will
be on in about fifteen minutes. Thank you all. This hearing ended about 6:45 p.m.

Susan Culbertson
Clerk of Council

Daniel M. Vincent
President of Zanesville City Council

ZANESVILLE CITY COUNCIL MEETING - MONDAY, OCTOBER 25, 2021
The Zanesville City Council met in regular session at 7:00 p.m. on Monday,
October 25, 2021, in the City Council Chambers, 401 Market Street, Zanesville, Ohio.
Mr. Vincent led those present in the Lord's Prayer and the Pledge of Allegiance to the
Flag.
The following members of Council answered roll call in person: Mr. Ware, Miss
Bradshaw, Ms. Gildow, Mrs. Osborn, Mr. Sharrer, Mr. Baker, and Mr. Vincent.
Mrs. Gentry, Mr. Foreman and Mr. Roberts were absent.
Mrs. Osborn moved to excuse Councilperson Sandy Gentry, Councilmen Andy Roberts
and Steven Foreman. It was seconded by Miss Bradshaw. A voice vote was taken with
all members present voting in favor except Mr. Sharrer who voted nay. Motion carries.
APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF OCTOBER 12, 2021
Miss Bradshaw moved to accept the minutes as printed , seconded by Mr. Ware. A voice
vote was taken with all members present voting in favor. Motion carried. Councilpersons
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Sandy Gentry, Andy Roberts and Steven Foreman were absent. The minutes stand
approved.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING ON OCTOBER 19, 2021
Miss Bradshaw moved to accept the minutes of as printed, seconded by Mr. Ware.
Motion carried. Councilperson Sandy Gentry, Councilmen Andy Roberts and
Steven Foreman were absent. The minutes stand approved.

COMMUNICATIONS, REPORTS, AND RESOLUTIONS
None
PROPOSED ORDINANCES
Ordinance No. 2021-122-lntroduced by Council -An Ordinance amending
Appropriation Ordinance No. 2021-27 and declaring an emergency.
Mr. Sharrer moved for first reading , seconded by Miss Bradshaw.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? These were part of the Ways & Means Committee
meeting and discussed in great detail by our Budget and Finance Director Mr. Haddox.
We are at first reading. Is there any discussion? Okay, all in favor of first reading signify
by saying aye.
All were in favor. None were opposed . Councilperson Sandy Gentry, Councilmen Andy
Roberts and Steven Foreman were absent.
Motion carries.

Ordinance No. 2021-123-lntroduced by Council-An Ordinance to amend Employee
Handbook setting forth policies and procedures for Public Employees of the City of
Zanesville.
Mr. Sharrer moved for first reading , seconded by Miss Bradshaw.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? Hearing none, all in favor of first reading signify by
saying aye.
All were in favor. None were opposed. Councilperson Sandy Gentry, Councilmen Andy
Roberts and Steven Foreman were absent.
Motion carries.

Ordinance No. 2021-125-lntroduced by Council- An Ordinance to amend and revise
Chapters 1109.01 , 1137.04, and 1141 .05 of the City of Zanesville's Planning and
Zoning Code.
Miss. Bradshaw moved for first reading, seconded by Mr. Sharrer.
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Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion?
Mr. Baker: This was looked at by the Community Development Committee and
recommended this for approval.
Mr. Vincent: Okay, thank you, sir. Is there anything else from Council? Okay we are at
first reading so all in favor of first reading signify by saying aye . Those opposed nay.
All were in favor. None were opposed . Councilperson Sandy Gentry, Councilmen Andy
Roberts and Steven Foreman were absent.
Motion carries.
Ordinance No. 2021-126 - Introduced by Council -An Ordinance authorizing the
Mayor to enter into an agreement with Sunday Creek Horizons (SCH) for Revitalization
and Redevelopment Consulting Services.
Miss. Bradshaw moved for first reading, seconded by Mr. Ware.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? This was discussed in the Community
Development meeting earlier this evening . With that, the Mayor and the Administration
has had great success using this company and wanted to extend this out to help out
with the Lear property. Is that correct on the summary?
Mayor Mason: With many items,
Mr. Vincent: With many items, yes. Quite detailed over a seven-month period. Alright,
we are at first reading so all in favor of first reading signify by saying aye. Those
opposed nay.
All were in favor. None were opposed . Councilperson Sandy Gentry, Councilmen Andy
Roberts and Steven Foreman were absent.
Motion carries.
Ordinance No. 2021-127 - Introduced by Council -An Ordinance authorizing the
proper city official to grant an easement to Columbia Gas for a gas main on city property
east of Maysville Avenue.
Miss. Bradshaw moved for first reading, seconded by Mrs. Osborn.
Mr. Vincent: With this, it will come up at the next Public Service Committee meeting . We
will discuss it more there and have more information.
Mr. Vincent: With that, is there any other discussion? Okay, all in favor of first reading
signify by saying aye.
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All present were in favor. None were opposed . Councilperson Sandy Gentry,
Councilmen Andy Roberts and Steven Foreman were absent.
Motion carries.
Ordinance No. 2021-128 - Introduced by Council -An Ordinance authorizing the
Mayor to enter into an agreement with the Muskingum County Commissioners, for the
reimbursement of fees paid to attorneys who represent indigent defendants in Municipal
Court.

Miss Bradshaw moved for first reading, seconded by Ms. Gildow.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? This is pretty routine. We do this every year. If no
other discussion, so all in favor of first reading signify by saying aye.
All present were in favor. None were opposed. Councilperson Sandy Gentry,
Councilmen Andy Roberts and Steven Foreman were absent.
Motion carries.
ORDINANCES FOR ACTION
Ordinance No. 2021-114- Introduced by Council -An Ordinance allowing a moral claim
from Jason Dalton.

Mr. Sharrer moved for second reading, seconded by Mr. Baker.
-

Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? Is there any additional information to add on this
that anyone is aware of?
Mrs. Osborn: Mr. President, is this going to committee?
Mr. Sharrer: It's been there. We didn't make a recommendation. We sent it to Council
as a whole.
Mrs. Osborn: Alright, thank you.
Mayor Mason: Mr. President, this is the claim where we had no solid evidence as to
what caused the dent on a vehicle which is alleged that it was the city street sweeper,
but the evidence we reviewed shows that it is extremely unlikely that a rock would have
been thrown that direction because that is not the way the street sweepers work. So
that's literally because no one knows because there were no witnesses.
Mrs. Osborn: Thank you.
Mr. Vincent: Thank you, Mayor. I think the photos are helpful. You saw the color one, I
can see it right now. Okay. Is there anything else from Council? Okay, we are at second
reading so all _in favor of second reading signify by saying aye. Those opposed nay.
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All were in favor. None were opposed . Councilperson Sandy Gentry, Councilmen Andy
Roberts and Steven Foreman were absent.
Motion carries.
Ordinance No. 2021-121 - Introduced by Council -An Ordinance authorizing the proper
city official to dispose of City property.

Miss Bradshaw moved for second reading, seconded by Mr. Ware.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? This is pretty routine. So, we are at second
reading so all in favor of second reading signify by saying aye.
All present were in favor. None were opposed. Councilperson Sandy Gentry,
Councilmen Andy Roberts and Steven Foreman were absent.
Motion carries.
Ordinance No. 2021-109 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance to Amend Chapter 1137
of the City of Zanesville's Planning and Zoning Code.

Mr. Vincent: We are at third reading .
Ms. Gildow moved for third reading and passage, seconded by Miss Bradshaw.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion? Hearing none, we will have roll call vote for
passage.
Roll call vote for passage.
6Ayes
0 Nays
3 Absent Councilpersons Sandy Gentry, Andy Roberts and Steven Foreman were
absent.
Motion carries. Ordinance is passed.
Ordinance No. 2021-110 - Introduced by Council - An Ordinance to amend and revise
the Zoning Map and make permanent zoning in the City of Zanesville, Ohio as herein
provided.

Mr. Vincent: We are at Third Reading .
Mr. Baker moved to postpone until the next meeting, it was seconded by Miss
Bradshaw.
Mr. Vincent: With that, Mr. Baker, I will remind you as far as if you do postpone no one
can speak here at this point.
Mr. Baker: l will rescind that, my apologies.
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Miss Bradshaw agreed with a nod of her head.
Mr. Vincent: The motion to postpone is rescinded . So again, we are at third reading to
get it on the floor.
Mr. Sharrer moved for third reading and passage. It was seconded by Mr. Ware.
Mr. Vincent: Okay, it is on the floor now. So, discussion of anything from Council?
Mr. Baker: Yeah, we have had an opportunity to hear from some of the residence who
were concerned enough about this to come and let us hear their piece about how it will
affect property values, and how there are no guarantees through the rezoning that it
wouldn't eventually be used for Section 8 housing. We also heard from Mr. (James)
Brown who represented the two investors or two owners now that would want to go
ahead and move forward with this. I think that I am going to move, as soon as we hear
from anyone in the audience that wants to give their piece. Is there anybody left?
Mr. Vincent: We do have one person who signed up to speak tonight so we will get to
that then.
Mark Baker: I will just say it now, I would urge all of us to postpone this for two weeks. If
for no other reason than they came and try to stop this from taking effect we need to
have enough votes present here in Council Chambers to be able to affect that change if
we deem necessary, but right now we don't have those votes. So, it is a matter of
community concern, shall we say?
Mr. Vincent: Thank you , Mr. Baker, we appreciate that. I think this is maybe a little
surprise to us. I got one call on this property. The concern was low-income housing and
not managed so that person questioned, and their concern was relieved, so we learned
an awful lot tonight then . It was very important on what we heard on the project or the
plans. As always, I caution Council, as we are voting on this it has to do with strictly
zoning. Not just this project, which we tend to focus on, because that is what is before
us, and the stimulus as far as to make this process happen, but we need to look long
term as far as zoning and what could happen in the future. Along that line, Mr. Schley, I
have a thought here. What could go on that property right now the way it sits without
changing any zoning?
Matthew Schley: Hospitals, clinics, technically a group home could go in there.
Changing the zoning ups the restrictions, and surprisingly the multi-family district is a
more restrictive zoning classification. So, a group home could not actually be allowed in
the multi-family district. Hospitals and clinics wo uld be, but they would be a conditional
use that we would review through our Board of Zoning Appeals process. It really is a
more restrictive zoning classification.
Mr. Vincent: Changing it is more restrictive?
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Matthew Schley: Yes, changing it from RS-5.
Mr. Vincent: I doubt if a hospital would want to go into that old of a building, but so good
to know.
Mr. Sharrer: Yes, I would like to, and I did mention that to one of the constituents that
was here tonight to speak in opposition I did let her know that according to zoning right
now that is a possibility that it could be a group home. They obviously don't want a
group home. So, I did let them know. I would also like to reiterate to my colleagues that
we are talking about zoning. It is not whether or not we like their plan for the building.
Whether we agree with it or anything. All we are talking about is zoning and I will say
that I think we have at that point in time we all have to look at our administration and
trust our administration has gone through with the zoning or the Board of Zoning
Appeals which is made up of constituents of all of us and made up of well-respected
people that we think or at least the administration feels that they can make a good
decision and it was voted unanimously from them and from our own Community
Development Committee to approve this. So, I didn't want as I am in agreement with Mr.
Baker and that is why I asked my question tonight. Will delaying it two weeks affect our
administration or will it affect the owners? I believe I heard back, no it would not affect to
delay it for those two weeks.
Mr. Vincent: Thank you, Mr. Sharrer. I think we have lived through, and the concerns of
buildings that are let go. Many times, then it comes back on the taxpayers back as far
as the city having to step in and tear them down or finish where they have collapsed
and they had to finish off tearing them down and it has been fifteen or twenty years now
I think, I am really concerned about this building and where it ends up. So, I have said I
didn't know details like we learned tonight at the public hearing, but it is interesting that
someone who is interested in bringing this building back and honoring its historic
features and they had a lot of things that really interest me, as far as, sounds like the
type of people we need to be interested in old buildings and saving them. We hear that,
we all hear that all the time. 'We want to keep the history". "Don't tear down the
buildings", but if we don't' or if something is not done to them nature will bring them
down in time. We have seen that. We are dealing with that on Main Street, right down
here. "Vandals" and the points they had were and some of that fits with vacant building.
Certain "low-income housing coming in there", "narrow streets", we have that throughout
the city and that is a separate issue. "Police response time" is a separate issue.
"Vermin" "buzzards" that's a separate issue, too. "Parking", that was talked about tonight
and I think some good information . "Blocked driveways" in the past when it was a school
and talking to Mr. Schley, he had a good point that school traffic he suffers everyday
coming to work. It is a lot heavier than eleven or twelve apartments. "Not sure it is a
good fit" and another comment is 'vacant land, vermin" which is a current situation,
"crime" currently, as "kids are breaking in" and we have seen that over at Munson as
they have taken perfectly good windows and pretty much destroyed every last one of
them which is really unfortunate. That makes it harder for someone to actually buy that
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property and invest to bring it back to make it look good and meanwhile the poor
neighbors having to look at that and it just looks horrible. It looks like a war zone.
Ms. Gildow: To add to that, my background in residential lending in banking and also
being on the Board of Directors of Habitat for Humanity for longer than I really want to
remember. I just think that it is ironic that we have a situation where we have a building
like this in a location like this and you have people who are willing to invest their money
to make it better because they're going to have play by a lot of rules. They're going to
have to jump through the hoops. They're going to have to do the right thing . I think that
it's unfortunate that we aren't doing whatever we can to be supportive of that knowing
that they can't make the neighborhood worse. There is no way that I see the potential
for what they are doing to the property making this neighborhood worse. I think that as
time goes on the neighbors will feel much more comfortable with this because it sounds
like a very good situation. I know that may not be the popular view point, but based on
my background and the fact that I am on the Land Bank now and I know this isn't the
only school building that is falling down on a monthly basis I just think that we need to
do some soul searching and say okay let's look at the bigger picture here because this
has the potential to be an excellent thing for Zanesville and it's residents .
Mayor Mason: Mr. President, I would say the four properties I heard the most about
when I was going door to door were of course Lear on Linden Avenue, McKinley,
Munson, and then Mosaic. I believe that the Land Bank is controlling the future of two of
those and I mean that in a positive way because I think something will happen. This
gentleman has wined of course, City Council last week voted to move forward on Lear.
Tackling the tough issues of this city and the reason they are tough issues is if they
were easy, they would have been done a long time ago. Right? These are tough issues.
One of the recommended uses Senior Citizen Housing . Well , guess what, we still have
to rezone it if it is going to be senior citizen housing. What I am going to try to do is get
with Scott and our staff and see what we can do to answer some of the neighborhood
questions and complaints. If that is widening the street, lowering the embankment, we
will take a look at these things.
Like I mentioned in the hearing thirty some years ago USEPA did not want to lend or
give us the money to put sewers in this area because they said the property isn't worth
it. Well , guess what, EPA was wrong . The sewers went into this area, and she just
mentioned that some of the properties were going in the $140,000 range. I think that is
a wonderful thing. I do believe that we have to do something . This goes to you point
Councilwoman Gildow. We have to do something because otherwise at some point in
time it is just going to be a pile of rubble and debris. We are working to try to get the
buzzards and black vultures; trying to get a permit for three locations and that was one
location. We have already successfully worked with the Zanesville Museum of Art on
Military. The third is along Linden Avenue. So, we are trying to take care of those
issues.
Again , we are dealing with tough issues because the easy ones or the low hanging fruit
is gone. Thank you.
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Mr. Vincent: Thank you , Mayor. With that, some other thoughts I had too, as I kind of
summarized some different things tonight and hopefully that is helpful. As you had
shared, and we heard earlier, it sounds like this neighborhood is coming back. People
are investing in it and getting young couples. That excites me that these things are
happening. On the house, I believe I heard they said, and it is a big one up by WHIZ
was going for $400,000 is what they are looking to sell if for. So, I mean this is exciting.
The east end is coming to the point they are starting a turn around. So that is exciting.
They had concerns as far as low incoming housing coming in and it becoming a
problem property as far as activity and police needed. I thought of this, we had , it was a
couple of years ago, issue, over off of Adair, lower Adair.
Mayor Mason: Seaton Housing? Are you looking on Euclid and Sheridan?
Mr. Vincent: No, the other way. Just past the Duke Station . The apartments up there.
Doug Merry: Edwards Lane.
Mr. Vincent: Edwards Lane, that's it. Thank you, sir. So, with that, we had problems
over there. The property owner was not aware. Steve Foreman of the Crime and
Violence Committee talked about that and got it turned around. The Law Director and
others have worked on getting a nuisance property ordinance put in place as a way to
deal with it and that worked in this situation. So, if there are problems with properties, I
think our Law Director is doing an excellent job with chasing after these to make
corrections that Mr. Landlord or Mrs. Landlord whoever, the property owner is, if you
have a problem property and you are not addressing it you are not going to continue. So
that worked there, and I think it will work other places. So, just some additional thoughts
as far as again trying to summarize here to give information. I fully understand their
concerns. This is something new and different and they value their property. They have
a lifetime investment in their homes. So, we cannot take that lightly and we are not, I
don't believe. We want them to be successful and we want the east end to thrive. So, is
there anything else?
Mr. Sharrer: Yes, I would like again , once again, to throw out to anybody on Council,
Matt, and the Mayor, does anybody foresee any issues with delaying this for another
two weeks? That is all. If nobody sees an issue with it, I don't think we can go wrong by
doing that. I mean, Mr. (Jim) Brown said, and I understand you want to move the project
and one of the things I know Matt, you and I are working on one for me personally that
has been delayed due to working through ordinances and that kind of thing. Does two
weeks, is it going to kill the project? Is it going to hurt anything, you know, are we, I
guess I am just looking for answers as to whether or not I am looking to postpone it for
two weeks or whether I am looking to pass it?
Mr. Vincent: Mr. Sharrer, I would think based on previous conversations and things that
you and Mr. Baker had you almost have to do that to be respectful of them . Mr. Brown,
you wanted to speak?
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Scott Brown: I just wanted to be clear and point out on the record that since I spoke and
attorney Jim Brown spoke at the public hearing, I just want to point out that Scott Brown,
Public Service Director, is not the person representing the Jarvis's so when the
Councilmembers say Mr. Brown , they are not referring to a Public Service Director.
(Laughter broke out)
Mr. Ware: Mr. President, I would like to say that there is not enough housing in that
price point for young families . I think it would improve the value of the homes that
surround it. If they have plans to keep the historical integrity of the building and also put
in ten units and it would be nothing but a win-win situation for all of us. To get moderate
housing that would cost let's say a brand-new apartment would cost you per unit would
cost you maybe $800 bucks that is really, really reasonable and that is good . I think it
will do nothing but bring a positive effect to that area.
Mr. Vincent: Thank you, sir. I appreciate it. Is there anything else from Council?
Mrs. Osborn: Mr. President, to your point the housing is needed, definitely. I mean that
is what we have been trying to work on is finding some ways to provide that for the
community. I don't think it is every day that we find someone that is interested in
investing and making that kind of an investment in our community that can solve such a
problem. So, I think sure the low hanging fruit may be gone, but we need to maybe
allow it to happen so that folks have a place to live. I do want to note that Bonifield Court
is very close to that and all the amenities for the same sort of population are made
available there like the busing, they are within walking distance to Eastside, and so I do
think it is a win-win.
Mr. Vincent: Thank you, Mrs. Osborn. Is there anything else from Council?
Mr. Baker: Mr. President, I would like to move to postpone this piece of legislation until
the next Council meeting.
Miss Bradshaw: I second.
Mr. Vincent: With that, all in favor of postponement signify by saying aye. Those
opposed nay. A voice vote was taken with all present being in favor except Mr. Ware
who voted nay. Mrs. Gentry, Mr. Roberts, and Mr. Foreman were absent. Motion carries
as there are five in favor, so it passes. It is postponed until our next meeting .
Mr. Vincent: Let me make a comment. We talked earlier about a petitioner to speak.
She did fill out a petition, but she has left. So that is why I didn't have a speaker. So, I
am sorry.
Ordinance No. 2021-113- Introduced by Council-An Ordinance allowing a moral claim
for Kathy J. Marinelli.
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We are at Third Reading.
Mr. Baker moved for third reading and passage, seconded by Mr. Sharrer.
Mr. Vincent: Is there any discussion?
Mrs. Osborn : Mr. President, this went to committee, didn't it?
Mr. Vincent: Yes, I believe so.
Mr. Sharrer: There was no recommendation.
Mr. Vincent: Is there anything from Council? Okay, we will have roll call vote.
Roll call vote for passage.
0Ayes
6 Nays
3 Absent
Mrs. Gentry, Mr. Roberts and Mr. Foreman
Motion carries. Ordinance is defeated.
TRAFFIC ORDERS-None
MISCELLANEOUS AND UNFINISHED BUSINESS

Mayor Mason : Actually, Councilman Sharrer and Baker and I were talking. We are
going to try to set up the time for an update on where we are with the ODOT scheduled
construction on 1-70. I mentioned even as of this morning there are still a lot of parts that
are moving around. So even a briefing two weeks ago would not have been accurate in
today's life. So, I am hoping everything has settled down. They are still being, basically,
let's just realize this, as traffic evolves and changes this is over a six-year period. We
will be coming to you with temporary traffic orders and things like that for restricted
turning, taking parking off the service streets to allow for more width and things like that,
but I will try to schedule for the, is it the Traffic Committee that is meeting on the first or
the Safety Committee?
Different ones stated the Safety Committee.
Mayor Mason: I will try to schedule for the Safety Committee sort of an update either by
Chip Saunders or by ODOT.
Mr. Vincent: Thank you and I hope we will have ODOT representatives there and Chip
at that meeting. Okay, Mr. Brown do you have something?
Scott Brown: Just simply that leaf season is upon us and that the crews have begun
picking up leaves. I sent out a public notice to try to help the public understand and
know when we will be in their area to pick up the leaves. If there are any questions,
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please feel free to contact the Public Service Office directly and we can further or better
explain when you can expect to see crews in your area. When it is light like it is right
now they probably will be able to cover the entire city, as it becomes heavier and
heavier in a days' time then it may be restricted to that ward just because it will take the
whole time to get through that area.
Mr. Vincent: So, we are having participation?
Scott Brown: Yes, we've already started to see people putting their leaves out and we
have been actively out collecting them .
Mr. Vincent: Do we have that on our website?
Mr. Baker: It is actually.
PRIVATE PETITIONS AND COMMUNICATIONS
Mr. Vincent: Good. Is there anything else from the administration or Council? We have
no private petitions or communications. Is there anything else?
Mr. Sharrer: Mr. President, I move we adjourn.
Mrs. Osborn: I second.
Mr. Vincent: All in favor of adjournment signify by saying aye. Those opposed nay. A
voice vote was taken with all present being in favor. None were opposed. The meeting
was adjourned about 7:35 p.m. Mrs. Gentry, Mr. Roberts, and Mr. Foreman were
absent.

Susan Culbertson
Clerk of Council

Daniel M. Vincent
President of Zanesville City Council
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THE

CITY

OF

Zanesville
401 Market Street
Zanesville, Ohio 43701
Phone (740) 617-4908

Fax (740) 455-0744
E-mail: don@coz.org

Council-Mayor Government
Donald L. Meson, Mayor

MEMORANDUM
TO:

Members of City C o ~

A

FROM:

Mayor Don Mason

(\j V

\

DATE:

October 25, 2021

SUBJECT:

:

.- . ...
..

South East Area Transit Board
I hereby recommend the reappointment of Ms. Ellen Rucker to the South East Area Transit
Board. Ms. Rucker's term will be extended for another three years and will expire December
31, 2024.
Thank you/
DM/pke

THE

CITY

OF

Zanesville
401 Market Street
Zanesville, Ohio 43701

Phone(740)617-4908
Fax (740) 455-0744

RECEIVED
OCT 2 7 2021

E-mail: don@coz.org

Council-Mayor Government
Donald L. Mason, Mayor

CLERK OF CO~l. CIL

MEMORANDUM
TO:
FROM:
DATE:

October 27, 2021

SUBJECT:

Board Appointment

Muskingum County Convention Facilities Authority
I hereby reappointment of Mr. Mike Bennett to the Muskingum County Convention Facilities
Authority. Mr. Bennett's term will expire 12114/25.
His public service can be traced back to the 1978 ZHS Football team where he served as the
Co-Captain of AM State semi-finals team and was an All-State Honorable Mention defensive
back. Thereafter, he attended Muskingum College where he served as president of his
fraternity. Thereafter, he served the people of Ohio as the Reading Clerk to the Honorable
Vem Riffe, the longest serving Speaker the Ohio House.
Ever so humble, he came back to Zanesville where he headed the Zanesville-Muskingum
Chamber of Commerce. Amongst his successes on that role was establishing the July 4th
Fireworks in Downtown Zanesville, which has since become a family tradition.
He subsequently was Vice President of the Longaberger Company until he retired.
Presently, he manages a consulting company which emphasizes on serving the local
healthcare community. The balance of his time, not devoted to golf, is spent on volunteer
boards.
Thank you!

DM/pke

Mayor
Donald L. Mason

ORDINANCE 2021-129
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING A MAXIMUM SCHEDULE OF POSITIONS FOR THE
CITY OF ZANESVILLE'S WORKFORCE

WHEREAS, Ordinance #2021-92 presently governs authorized workforce
positions for the various City offices and departments; and
WHEREAS, a periodic update of the Maximum Strength Ordinance is necessary to
incorporate changes made necessary by the operational needs of the City; and
WHEREAS, the City would not be permitted to pay its employees without Council
amending the authorized workforce positions.
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville,
State of Ohio; that:
SECTION ONE: The following maximum schedule of positions for the various
city offices and departments, effective with the passage of this ordinance, be and hereby is
authorized. Each of the following sections, numbered 101-1021, etc., is hereby declared to be a
separate and distinct section for the purposes of this ordinance.
NUMBER OF
CLASSIFICATIONS
BY DIVISION

SECTION
101-1121

101-3281

PUBLIC SAFETY:
Parking Enforcement Officer (Seasonal)
Public Safety Director
PARKS:
Crew Supervisor (Recreation)
Crew Supervisor (Recreation) (upgrade only)
Maintenance Worker
Maintenance Worker (Seasonal)
Maintenance Worker Trainee

Ord 2021-129
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1
1

1

1
4
7
1

SECTION
101-4381

101-7661

101-7681

101-7682

101-7691

101-7705,-7791

Ord 2021-129

NUMBER OF
CLASSIFICATIONS
BY DIVISION
BUILDING & CODE ENFORCEMENT:
Administrative Secretary to the Safety Director
Building Inspector
City Architect
Code Enforcement Officer/Building Inspector
Code Enforcement Officer
Code Enforcement Officer/ Weed, Litter and Property
Preservation Manager
Crew Supervisor (Seasonal)
Maintenance Worker (Seasonal)

1
1
1
1
12
1
2
6

MAYOR:
Executive Secretary

1

AUDITOR:
Accounting Specialist
Auditing Specialist
Deputy Auditor

1
1
1

TREASURER:
Deputy Income Tax Administrator
Deputy Treasurer
Income Tax Administrator
Income Tax Auditor/Investigations
Income Tax Clerk II
Income Tax Clerk III
Payroll Manager full-time

1
1
1
1
2
1
1

LEGAL DEPARTMENT:
Assistant Law Directors (80% of wages paid by City):
Civil
Prosecutions
Paralegal (70% of wages paid by City)
Victim/Witness Coordinator (100% paid by City)

1
1
1
1

PUBLIC SERVICE ADMINISTRATION:
Administrative Secretary to Public Service Director
City Engineer
Deputy Director/Public Service
Engineering Technician
GIS Specialist
Public Service Director

1
1
1
1
1
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NUMBER OF
CLASSIFICATIONS
BY DIVISION

SECTION
101-7712

101-7721

101-7771

CITY COUNCIL:
Clerk of Council

1

MUNICIPAL COURT:
Court Bailiff (60% of wages paid by City)
Deputy Court Bailiff
Deputy Court Clerk
Municipal Court Clerk (60% of wages paid by City)
Municipal Court Book.keeper (part-time)
CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION:
Civil Service Employment Coordinator

1
1
,.,
.J

1
1

1

101-7781

CITY HALL:
Custodial or Maintenance Worker

101-7782

CITY MAINTENANCE:
City Maintenance Supervisor
General Service Worker
HVAC Technician/Plumber

1
3
1

CITY TRAFFIC
Traffic Signal Supervisor/Programmer
. •~
Traffic Signal Crew Leader
,
, 1ft•
1
Traffic Signal Technician I
• - 1 ...
Master Electrician
•
•

1
1
2
1

HUMAN RESOURCE DEPARTMENT:
Human Resource Manager

1

IT DEPARTMENT:
Information Technology Administrator
IT Network Engineer

1
1

BUDGET & FINANCE:
Budget & Finance Director

1

PURCHASING:
Purchasing Coordinator

1

101-1021

101-7861

101-7862

101-7863

101-7864

Ord 2021-129
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NUMBER OF
CLASSIFICATIONS
BY DIVISION

SECTION
201-1111 to 201-1115

POLICE:
Communications Operator
General Police Secretary
Custodial or Maintenance Worker
Police Captain
Police Chief
Police Lieutenant
Police Officer
Police Officer (6-month training, Max 13 pay periods)
Police Records Clerk
Police Sergeant
Secretary to Police Chief

202-6541,-6571,-665 l ,-6991 STREETS:
Maintenance Worker
Maintenance Worker (Seasonal)
Maintenance Worker Trainee
Secretary to the Street and Refuse Superintendent
Sign Painter
Sign Painter (upgrade only)
Street Maintenance Supervisor
S1reet and Refuse Superintendent
Vehicle Operator
Vehicle Operator (upgrade only)
250-1191

260-1161

JAIL:
Assistant Jail Administrator
Conections Officer
Corrections Officer (6 month training)
Jail Administrator
Senior Corrections Officer (upgrade only)
PROBATi ON:
Cruef Probation Officer
Secretary to Probation Officer .

Ord2021-129

11
2
1
2
1
3
49
2
4
4
1

8

7
1
1
2
1
1
1
5
2

1
23
1
1
1 per shift

1
1
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NUMBER OF
CLASSIFICATIONS
BYDNISION

SECTION
270-1041

FIRE:
Assistant Fire Chief (56 hr.)
Assistant Fire Chief (40 hr.)
Fire Chief

3
1

1

~B~~

~

Fire Fi~ter (6-month training, Max 13 pay periods)
Fire Fighter/EMT - Basic (Upgrade Position)
Fire Fighter/EMT - Intermediate (Upgrade Position)
Fire Fighter - Paramedic (Upgrade Position)
Fire Lieutenant
Fire Lieutenant/EMT - Basic (upgrade Position)
Fire Lieutenant/EMT - Intermediate (Upgrade Position)
Fire Lieutenant - Paramedic (Upgrade Position)
Secretary to the Fire Chief
304-4361

2
2
2
2

9
2
2
2

1

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT:
1

Administrative Secretary to CD Director
Associate Planner
Community Development Director
Fair Housing Coordinator (Upgrade Position)
Planning & Zoning Administrator
Redevelopment Administrator
601-6611

602-2171

AIRPORT:
Airport Anendant
Airport Manager (part-time)
Maintenance Worker (Seasonal)
Maintenance Worker Trainee

2

1
I
1
2

~

1
1
1
1

CEMETERY:
Cemetery & Parks Superintendent
Maintenance Worker
Maintenan~e Worker (Seasonal)
Maintenance Worker Trainee
Secretary 1o Parks & Cemeteries Superintendent
Vehicle Operator
Vehicle Operator (upgrade only)
Ord 202l - 129
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1
2

6
I
I
I
I

NUMBER OF
CLASSIFICATIONS
BY DIVISION

SECTION
603-5470,-5471,-5472,-5473 WATER:
Maintenance Worker
Maintenance Worker (Seasonal)
Maintenance Worker Trainee
Plant Maintenance Mechanic
Public Service Auditor
Secretary to the Water Superintendent
Utilities Billing Clerk I
Utilities Billing Clerk I (Part-Time)
Utilities Billing Clerk II
Utilities Billing Clerk III
Utilities Billing Supervisor
Vehicle Operator
Vehicle Operator (upgrade only)
Water Lab Analyst
Water Crew Leader
Water Supervisor
Water Plant Operator
Lead Water Plant Operator
Wai:er Superintendent
604-5451,-5452

SEWER:
Deputy Wastewater Superintendent
En vironmemal Coordinator
Industrial Wastewater Technician I
Industrial Wastewater Technician I (upgrade position)
Industrial Wastewater Technician II
Industrial Wastewater Technician II (upgrade position)
Maintenance Worker
Maintenance Worker (Seasonal)
Maintenance Worker Trainee
Piant Maintenance Mechanic
Piant Maintenance Mechanic (upgrade position)
Plant Maincenance Mechanic Foreman

Ord 2021-129
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10
3
1
1

1
1
3
1
1
1

1
6
6
1
2
1
4
1
1

1
1

1
1
1
1

5
5
1
4
4

I

NUMBER OF
CLASSIFICATIONS
BYDIVlSlON

SECTION
604-5451,-5452

608-5462

620-3261

650-5481

SEWER CON'T:
Secretary to the Wastewater Superintendent
Sewer /Drainage Maintenance Crew Leader
Sewer/Drainage Maintenance Supervisor
Sewer/Drainage Technician
Vehicle Operator
Vehicle Operator (upgrade position)
Wastewater Field Technician
Wastewater Field Technician (upgrade position)
Wastewater Laboratory Analyst
Wastewater Laboratory Supervisor
Wastewater Plant Operator
Lead Wastewater Plant Operator
Wastewater Superintendent

STORM SEWER:
Storm Water Program Manager

4
2

I
1
I
1

5
I
1

1

SECREST AUDITORIUM:
Maintenance Worker (Seasonal)
Secrest Auditorium and Entertainment Director
Administrative Assistant to Auditorium Manager
Stage Technician
Technical Director
Stage HandiCustodian

REFUSE:
Litter/Recycling Coordinator (upgrade only)
Maintenam:e Worker (Seasonal)
Maintenance Worker Trainee
Refuse Collection Crew Leader
Rc:fuse Collection Crew Leader (upgrade only)
Rduse Coliection Supervisor
Refuse Collect0r

Ord 202> ~29

I
1
I
1
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1
1

1
15

I
30

I
4

1
5

4
1
10

NUMBER OF
CLASSIFICATIONS
BY DIVISION

SECTION

VEIIlCLE AND EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE:
Fleet Manager
Maintenance Garage Coordinator
Maintenance Worker (Seasonal)
Maintenance Worker Trainee
Vehicle Mechanic
Vehicle Mechanic (upgrade only)
Vehicle Service Worker

700-7631

1
1
2

I
4
I

1

SECTION TWO: Ordinance #2021-92 and any other ordinances or resolutions or any part
of an ordinance or resolution inconsistent herewith is hereby repealed.
SECTION THREE: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after
the earliest period allowed by law.
PASSED: _ _ __ _ __ ,2021

Susan Culbertson,
Clerk of Council

Daniel M. Vincent,
President of Council

APPROVED: - - - --

, 2021

Donald L. Mason,
Mayor

This legislation approved as to form:

Law Director's Office

Ord 2021-129
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Doug Merry,
Public Safety Director

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-130
INTRODUCED BY COUNCil.,
APPROVING A LABOR AGREEMENT WITH THE FRATERNAL ORDER OF
POLICE, omo LABOR COUNCIL, INC. (POLICE CAPTAINS) AND DECLARING
AN EMERGENCY.
WHEREAS, the Fraternal Order of Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc. (Police Captains)
has been recognized as the exclusive bargaining agent for permanent City employees occupying
the ranks of Police Captains under the present classification system; and
WHEREAS, the City and Fraternal Order of Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc. (Police
Captains) have reached a tentative agreement which has subsequently been approved by the
members of the bargaining unit; and
WHEREAS, City Council must adopt the terms of the agreement in order for it to go into
effect; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 4117 .10 (B), City Council must
approve or reject the proposed agreement within 3 0 days of its introduction or the agreement will
be deemed approved, making it necessary for this ordinance to be declared an emergency
measure so as to not jeopardize the health, safety, and welfare of our citizens by threatening the
efficient service of the Zanesville Police Department.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville,
State of Ohio, that:

SECTION ONE: The labor agreement between the City of Zanesville and Fraternal
Order of Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc. (Police Captains) (attached hereto and incorporated as
though fully rewritten herein), and on file in the office of the Clerk of Council, is hereby
approved.
SECTION TWO: The agreement authorized by this ordinance is intended to take effect
retroactively starting January 1, 2021. If necessary due to delays in implementation, the pay
provisions within the agreemeni shall be retroactive to the first day of the first full pay period of
2021. If necessary due to delays in implementation, the Mayor is authorized to determine the
date other provisions of the agreement shall take effect.
SECTION THREE: For the reasons stated above, upon the affirmative votes of six (6)
or more members of Council, this ordinance shall be deemed an emergency and take effect and
be in force immediately upon its passage and approval by the Mayor. Otherwise, it shall take
effect and be in force from an::l after the earliest period allowed by law.

Ordinance No. 2021-130

PASSED:

_________

_,

2021

Susan Culbertson
Clerk of Council

Daniel Vincent

APPROVED:

This legislation approved as to form:

---------~ 2021

President of Council

,I

Donald Mason, Mayor

David Tarbert, City Law Director

Zanesville andFOP/OLC, Inc. 2021-2023 Agreement-Police Captains FINAL-10.29.21

AGREEMENT BETWEEN
FRATERNAL ORDER OF POLICE, OHIO
LABOR COUNCIL, INC.
(POLICE CAPTAINS)
AND
THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE, OHIO
Date of Execution through December 31, 2023
Case No. 2020-MED-07-0736
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ARTICLE 1
AGREEMENT
Section 1.1 Agreement
This Agreement is entered into by the City of Zanesville, Ohio
hereinafter referred to as the "City" or "Employer" and the Fraternal Order of Police, Ohio Labor
Council, Inc., hereinafter referred to as the "Labor Council".

6
7

Section 1.2 Purpose

2
3
4

8
9
10
11
12
13
14

A.

To comply with the requirements of Chapter 4117 of the Ohio Revised Code and
to set forth the full and complete understandings and agreements between the
parties governing the wages, hours, terms, and other conditions of employment
for those employees included in the bargaining unit as defined herein.

B.

To promote cooperation and orderly, constructive, and harmonious relations
between the City, its employees, and the Labor Council.

C.

To prevent interruptions of work and interference with the efficient operation of
the Police Department.

D.

To establish a procedure for the peaceful resolution of grievances.

15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22
23

This Agreement has as its purpose the following:

This Agreement supersedes all previous Agreements (either written or oral) between the
City, its employees, and the Labor Council.

24
25

26
27

28
29
30
31
32

33
34
35

Section 1.3 Modification of Agreement
The express provisions of this Agreement may be
changed only by mutual agreement between the parties reduced to writing, dated, and signed by
the parties to this Agreement.
Section 1.4 Saving Clause
Should any portion of this Agreement contained herein be declared
invalid by operation of law or by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidation of said part
or provision shall not invalidate the remaining portions hereof and they shall remain in full force
and effect. In addition, within twenty (20) calendar days following the effective date of such
declaration of invalidity, the parties shall meet in an attempt to modify such provision to comply
with the applicable law.

36
37

ARTICLE 2
RECOGNITION

38
39

40
41

42
43
44
45

The City hereby recognizes the Fraternal Order of Police, Ohio
Section 2.1 Recognition
Labor Council as the sole and exclusive bargaining agent for the purpose of collective bargaining
of all wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment for all full-time employees
that have been certified by the State Employment Relations Board:
All Full-Time Police Captains

46
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3
4
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6
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9
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33
34
35
36

Section 2.2 Exclusions
All positions and classifications not specifically established herein
as being included in the bargaining unit shall be excluded.
Section 2.3 New Positions In the event that a new position is created above the rank of Police
Officer, the City shall determine whether the new positions will be included in or excluded from
the bargaining unit and shall so advise the Labor Council. If there is any dispute as to the City's
determination of bargaining unit status, the parties will meet to attempt to resolve their
disagreement. If the parties agree on the determination, it shall be implemented as proposed by
the City. If the parties still do not agree, the City may implement its determination subject to
challenge by the Labor Council via a petition for unit clarification to the State Employment
Relations Board.
The City shall not attempt to abridge this Agreement by changing the rank structure or
classification designation of any employee during the length of this Agreement with the purpose
to eliminate such employees from the bargaining unit.
Section 2.4 Recognition Clause Applies to Employees
This recogmt10n clause shall be
construed to apply to employees and not to work. Unless otherwise provided in this Agreement
it shall not limit the City's right to transfer work to other employees not included within the
above described bargaining unit when the nature or amount of work changes; it shall not be
construed to mean that any employee or classification of employees has an exclusive right to any
work.

ARTICLE 3
LABOR COUNCIL SECURJTY
Section 3.1 Labor Council Dues Deductions
The Labor Council will notify the City in
writing of the dues it charges and its current membership and will update this information as
needed to be accurate.
The Employer agrees to deduct membership dues at the rate certified by the Ohio Labor
Council. One month's advance notice must be given to the City prior to making any changes in
the rate. The Employer agrees to deduct membership dues during the last pay period of each
month from the pay of any employee in the bargaining unit who has authorized the same in
writing to the City Treasurer.
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Section 3.2 Preference Over Dues
It is understood and agreed that other legally
required deductions shall have preference over the aforesaid Labor Council dues.
Section 3.3 Payment/Labor Council
All dues collected under this Article shall be paid
by the Employer within thirty (30) days, together with a listing of the members for whom
deductions were made, to the Treasurer ofF.O.P. Zanesville Lodge #5.
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Section 3 .4 Membership Cancellation

2

3

A.

4
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7

Dues deduction shall cease upon the happening of any of the following events:
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A member may withdraw authorization for dues deduction by the City by
directing his request in writing to the City Treasurer.

1.
2.
3.

Resignation or discharge of the employee;
Transfer of the employee from the bargaining unit;
Revocation of the dues deduction authorization.

B.

No other employee organization's dues shall be deducted from the pay of any
bargaining unit member during the life of this Agreement.

C.

The Labor Council hereby agrees that they will indemnify and hold the Employer
harmless from any claims, actions, or proceedings by an employee or the Labor
Council arising from deductions made by the Employer pursuant to this Article
except the non-payment of funds deducted from the employee's pay.

Section 3.5 Fair Share Fee
The parties acknowledge the previous language of this
Section has been superseded by Janus vs. AFSCME (2018), 585 U.S. _ _. If fair share fees, or
similar, are authorized or required in the future by legislative or judicial action, the parties agree
to open discussion about amending this Section as required by law.
Section 3 .6 Refunds
The Labor Council agrees to refund to the City any amounts paid
to it in error on account of these check off provisions upon presentation of proper evidence
thereof.
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Section 3.7 Bulletin Board
The City shall provide, at the Department, a bulletin board
for the use of the Labor Council. Labor Council officials shall be responsible for posting and/or
approving the posting of notices thereon which employees may read when reporting to or leaving
their work stations or during their free time. All notices or literature posted does not first have to
be approved by the City or the Chief of Police.
The Labor Council agrees that no notices will be placed on the bulletin board which contains:
A.

Personal attacks upon any City employee;

B.

Scandalous, scurrilous, or derogatory attacks upon the Administration;

C.

Attacks on any other employee organizations;

D.

Any obscene material;

E.

Ethnic material.
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Section 3.8 Ballot Box
The Labor Council shall be permitted, upon prior written
notification to the Chief of Police, to place a ballot box at Department Headquarters for the
purpose of collecting member's ballots on all Labor Council issues subject to ballot. Such box
shall be the property of the Labor Council, and neither the box nor its contents shall be subject to
the City's review. Such balloting shall not interfere with work activities.
Section 3.9 Use of Departmental Mail System
The Labor Council shall be permitted to
utilize, at no cost or loss of time to the City, the Departmental Mail System for the purpose of
providing information pertaining to Labor Council business to bargaining unit employees. The
Labor Council agrees that the use of the mail system will be reasonable and limited to providing
information that is necessary for the normal conduct of Labor Council bargaining unit business
or bargaining unit representation. All mail placed into the mail system by the Labor Council
shall be the property of the bargaining unit members to whom it is addressed, and such mail shall
not be subject to review by the City.
Section 3.10 Place for Meetings
Meetings of the Committees of the Labor Council
will be permitted on City property when and where work is not interrupted by such meetings and
when such meetings are not held during the regularly scheduled duty hours of the participants on
the day in question. Committees shall not consist of more than three (3) members and may meet
as necessary to administer this Agreement.
Section 3.11 Contracting Out Bargaining Unit Work
If the City contracts out a service, the
successor shall honor the Agreement and retain the City's employees for the duration of this
Agreement.

ARTICLE4
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS
Section 4.1 Management's Rights
Except to the extent expressly abridged by a
specific provision of this Agreement, the city reserves and retains, solely and exclusively, all of
its rights as such rights existed prior to the execution of this Agreement.
The Employer is not required to bargain on subjects reserved to the management and
direction of the governmental unit except as they affect wages, hours, terms and conditions of
employment, and continuation, modification, and/or deletion of an existing provision of this
Agreement.
Section 4.2 Legal Authority
Nothing contained in this Agreement shall illegally alter the
authority conferred by state and federal laws, Zanesville ordinances, or resolutions upon any city
official or to, in any way, abridge or reduce such authority. This Agreement shall be construed
as requiring city officials to follow the procedures, agreements, and policies prescribed herein to
the extent they are applicable in the exercise of the authority conferred upon them by law.
If there is a conflict between any part of this Agreement and local laws or ordinances of
the City of Zanesville, the Agreement provisions shall prevail.
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Section 4.3 Specified Rights

Management retains the right to:

3

4

A.

Direct the work of its employees;

5

6

B.

To hire, promote, transfer, assign, and retain employees in City positions;

7
8

C.

To suspend, demote, or discharge employees for proper and just cause;

9
10

D.

To maintain the efficiency of governmental operations;

11
12

E.

To relieve employees from duties because oflack of work;

F.

To take actions as may be necessary to carry out the mission of the agency in
emergencies; and

G.

To determine the methods, means, and personnel by which operations are to be
carried on subject to the provisions as are expressly provided herein.
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Section 4.4 Reserved Powers of the City
The listing of specific rights in this
Agreement is not intended to be, nor shall it be restrictive of, a waiver of the rights of
management not listed and specifically surrendered herein whether or not such rights have been
exercised by the City in the past.
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The Labor Council
hereby
Section 4.5 Recognition of Management Rights
recognizes the prerogative of the City to operate and manage its affairs in all respects in
accordance with its responsibilities; and the powers of authority which the City has not officially
abridged, delegated, or modified by this Agreement are retained by the City. The Labor Council
further recognizes and agrees that the City has complete authority over the policies and
administration of the municipal Service which it exercises under the provision of law and in
fulfilling its responsibilities under this Agreement.
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Section 4.6 Duties Not Covered by Job Descriptions
Published job descriptions and
requirements shall not be construed as limiting or restricting an employee from performing all
duties incidental to or required by this job.

38

ARTICLE 5
JOINT COOPERATION

39
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In recognition of the mutual interests of both parties in
Section 5.1 Joint Cooperation
maintaining efficient and economical public services, the Labor Council agrees that it will
support the City's efforts to achieve the following objectives:

44
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A.

Elimination of waste and inefficiency in the provision of services.
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B.

Improvement of the quality of services rendered.

C.

Combating stalling on the job.

D.

Combating absenteeism.

E.

Elimination of restrictions on work output.

F.

Conservation of materials and supplies.

2

3
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9
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G.

Prevention of accidents.

12
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H.

Improvement of working conditions.

15

I.

Installation of labor-saving devices and machinery and technical changes.

J.

Protection of property and machinery.

K.

Cleanliness of facilities.

L.

Incentive pay plans or systems.
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Section 5.2 No Misrepresentation
It is mutually agreed that neither party, its agents,
nor its members will initiate, sanction, or participate in any display, advertisement, or any other
publicity misrepresenting the position of the other party. This shall not prohibit either party to
this Agreement from making the general public aware of the issues which may be causing an
impasse or disagreement.

ARTICLE6
NON-DISCRIMINATION
Both parties agree that they will cooperate in the
Section 6.1 No Discrimination
implementation of an affirmative action program for City employees.
Section 6.2 Labor Council Affiliation

A

Both parties agree that they will not discriminate between Labor Council and nonLabor Council employees in fulfilling their responsibilities under this Agreement.
The Labor Council further agrees that neither it nor any of its officers or members
will intimidate or coerce employees into membership in the Labor Council or for
any other reason.

B.

The Labor Council shall accept and make available the right to join the Labor
Council and also provide representation, if requested, to all employees covered by
this Agreement on a nondiscriminatory basis.
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C.

4

Labor Council members agree that they shall not allow membership or
nonmembership in the Labor Council to affect their on-the-job relationship with
their fellow employees.
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Whenever the context so requires, the use of
Section 6.3 Singular and Gender Clause
words herein in the singular shall be construed to include the plural, and words in the plural, the
singular. Words whether in masculine, feminine, or neuter gender shall be construed to include
all of said genders. By the use of either the masculine or feminine gender, it is understood that
said use is for convenience purposes only and is not to be interpreted to be discriminatory by
reason of sex.

ARTICLE?
LABOR COUNCIL REPRESENTATION
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24

Section 7.1 Labor Council Representatives
The Employer shall recognize no more than
one (1) employee who shall be Chief Steward selected by members of the Labor Council to act
as representative for the purpose of this Agreement. The employee so designated shall be
recognized as the representative provided herein.
Section 7.2 Roster of Labor Council Representatives
The Labor Council shall provide to
the Employer an official roster of its representatives which is to be kept current at all times and
shall include the following:
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1.
2.
3.
4.

Name
Address
Home Telephone Number
Labor Council Position Held

Section 7.3 Activities of Labor Council Representatives
A steward will investigate
and process grievances during non-working hours whenever possible. When this is not possible,
a steward will be permitted leave with pay during working hours provided the steward first
obtains the permission of his immediate supervisor and the permission of the supervisor of any
employee with which the steward intends to speak. Such permission shall not be unreasonably
withheld.
The Labor Council agrees that no representative of the Labor Council, either employee or
non-employee, shall unduly interfere, interrupt, or disrupt the normal work duties of employees.
Further, the Labor Council agrees not to conduct meetings (bargaining unit, grievance, or
committee meetings) involving on-duty employees except to the extent specifically authorized
by the Employer.
The Labor Council agrees that the Labor Council and its members, collectively and
individually, will assume financial liability for any and all damages to City property and
equipment incurred and/or arising from Labor Council meetings conducted on City premises.
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The Labor Council employees shall be allowed on
Section 7.4 Access to City Premises
City premises and work areas. Such visits must be prearranged with and authorized by the
Police Chief (or authorized representative) as to time and place so as to avoid interference with
the operations of the City.
Section 7.5 Delegates
One (1) Labor Council representative may attend as a
representative the Annual Conference and/or seminars for a maximum of two (2) work days.
Such attendance on scheduled work days will be considered "time worked", and the employee
will attend without loss of pay or benefits.
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ARTICLE 8
NO STRIKE/NO LOCKOUT
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Section 8.1 No Strike - No Lockout
Inasmuch as this Agreement provides procedures
for the orderly resolution of grievances including resolution by an impartial third party, the City
and the Labor Council recognize their mutual responsibility to provide for uninterrupted services
to the citizens of Zanesville. Therefore:
The Labor Council agrees that neither it, its officers, agents, representatives, nor any
employees covered by this Agreement will authorize, instigate, cause, aid, condone, or
participate in any strike or work stoppage for the duration of this Agreement. The City agrees
that it will not lockout or prevent employees from performing their regularly assigned duties.
Informational picketing, except during duty hours, shall not be considered to be illegal
picketing.
Section 8.2 Affirmative Action
Labor Council officers and representatives are required to
take affirmative action to try to prevent a violation of this article.
Section 8.3 Crossing Picket Lines
Employees may be required to go through picket
lines when an emergency requires them to do so to protect the public health, safety, and welfare.

ARTICLE9
PROBATIONARY PERIOD

38
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Section 9.1 Length of Probationary Period
All promotional probationary periods shall
be for a period of one (1) year. Work days from two (2) different probationary periods shall not
be combined for purposes of computing the required time for the current probationary period.
Section 9.2 Right to Reduce
The City retains the right to reduce any employee during
the probationary period for good reason which is not arbitrary or capricious. Any employee who
fails to complete the probationary period for a promotion shall be returned to their original rank
without loss in prior pay position.
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Section 9 .3 Voluntary Reduction
Members who voluntarily reduce themselves in
rank shall be returned to their previous rank without loss in prior pay position only if the
previous position is open. This voluntary reduction is only allowed within two (2) years from
date of promotion.
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ARTICLE 10
SENIORITY
Seniority shall be defined as an employee's
Section l 0.1 Definition of Seniority
uninterrupted length of continuous full-time employment as a sworn police officer with the City
of Zanesville. Seniority in rank shall be defined as an employee's uninterrupted length of
continuous full-time employment in that rank with the City of Zanesville. Seniority will only
accrue while on paid status.
No Break In Service. The following situations shall not constitute a break in continuous service.
Employees shall continue to accumulate seniority in these situations:
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A.
B.
C.
D.

Absence while on approved leave of absence;
Absence while on approved sick leave or disability;
Military leave;
A layoff of three (3) years' duration or less;

Break In Service.
seniority is lost:

The following situations constitute a break in continuous service for which
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A. Discharge for just cause;
B. Retirement;
C. Layoff for more than three (3) years;
D. Failure to return to work upon recall from layoff pursuant to section 11.3 (b);
E. Failure to return to work upon expiration of a leave of absence;
F. Resignation
Section 10.2 Seniority List
Seniority shall be brought up to date by the City each
January 4th showing the employee's name, title, date of hire, department working in, and order of
seniority. Any objection to the seniority list as posted must be reported to the employer within
ten (10) days from the date posted or it shall stand as posted.
Section 10.3 Application of Seniority
situations:
•
•
•

Seniority shall be applicable m the following

Annual vacation preference
Layoff and recall
Demotion for lack of work

46
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Section 10.4 Equal Seniority
In the event two (2) or more employees have equal
seniority, it shall be determined from the records of the appointing authority as to the order of
appointment.
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ARTICLE 11
LAYOFF AND RECALL
Section 11.1 Layoff Notification
When the City determines that a layoff or job
abolishment is necessary, they shall notify the affected employees at least fourteen (14) calendar
days in advance of the effective date of the layoff or job abolishment. The City, upon request
from the Labor Council, agrees to discuss with representatives of the Labor Council the impact
of the layoff on bargaining unit employees.
Section 11.2 Layoff
Whenever, for any reason, it becomes necessary or expedient to
reduce the workforce within a position classification, all emergency, provisional, temporary,
part-time, seasonal, and probationary employees in the bargaining unit shall be laid off first
before any reduction is made in the permanent work forces. Permanent employees shall be laid
off in order of their seniority with that employee having the least seniority being laid off first
then continuing in like manner until the required reduction in the workforce has been
accomplished. Bargaining unit employees will have the right to bump into a lower rank if their
seniority qualifies. Employees shall be paid for all accumulated vacation and compensatory time
at the time of layoff.
Section 11.3 Recall
A.

Permanent employees who are on layoff shall be recalled in reverse order of their
layoff with the last employee laid off being the first to be called back and
continuing in like manner until the required number of employees have been
recalled.
If an employee has bumped into a lower rank, he shall be reinstated to a vacancy
in his prior rank before any employee is installed to a position in that rank.

B.

The City shall notify the employee of his recall at his last address on record with
the City by certified letter with return receipt requested and employ him if he
reports and is available for work within ten (10) days after notice of recall. If said
employee fails to report for work within ten (10) days after notice of recall, he
shall be considered as having voluntarily resigned.
However, illness
incapacitating the employee for work or extended absence from home at the time
of recall shall be sufficient excuse for not reporting for work. The City must be
informed of the excuse within twenty-four (24) hours after receipt of notice of
recall. An employee loses his right to recall and is considered to have voluntarily
resigned if his address on file with the City is not accurate.
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Section 11.4 Layoff Beyond Three Years
An employee who is on layoff for a period
of three (3) years is automatically terminated and loses all seniority.
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Section 11.5 Probationary Period
Recalled employees shall not serve a probationary
period upon reinstatement except that employees serving a probationary period at layoff shall be
required to finish such probationary period.
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ARTICLE 12
LABOR/MANAGEMENT MEETINGS
Section 12.1 Meetings
In the interest of sound Labor/Management relations, the Labor
Council and the City will meet at agreeable dates and times for the purpose of discussing those
matters outlined in Section 12.2 below. Normally, no more than three (3) employee
representatives of the Labor Council and one (1) non-employee representative of the Labor
Council shall be permitted to attend such meetings.
Section 12.2 Agenda
The party requesting the meeting shall furnish an agenda when
possible. This does not prevent the discussion of other topics that may come up during the
meeting. The Labor Council will furnish the names of the Labor Council employees who will be
attending. Subjects that may be discussed at these meetings shall include (but not limited to) the
items listed below.
A.

Discuss the administration of this Agreement;

B.

Notify the Labor Council of changes made by the City which may affect
bargaining unit members;

C.

Discuss the grievances which have not been processed beyond the final step of the
grievance procedure when such discussions are mutually agreed to by the parties;

D.

Disseminate general information of interest to the parties;

E.

Give the Labor Council representatives the opportunity to share the view of their
members and/or make suggestions on subjects of interest to their members;

F.

Discuss ways to improve efficiency and work performance; and

G.

Consider and discuss health, safety, and training matters.
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Section 12.3 Reports
Labor
Council
employee
representatives
attending
Labor/Management meetings shall not suffer a loss in pay for hours spent in such meetings if
held during the employee's regular scheduled hours or work. The number of on duty employee
representatives will be limited to one whenever possible. Any changes in work orders will be
issued as soon as possible after the conclusion of the meeting. The Labor Council may submit a
written report as a result of such meetings. If minutes of a meeting are desired, an employee
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representative will take such minutes. These minutes will be reviewed by the City and employee
representatives prior to dissemination to other employees.
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ARTICLE 13
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE
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Section 13 .1 Definition of a Grievance
A grievance is defined as a dispute or
difference involving the interpretation, application, or enforcement of the terms of this
Agreement or of the work rules.
No management prerogative reserved solely to the discretion of the City shall be made
the subject of a grievance.
Section 13 .2 Purpose of the Grievance Procedure
The purpose of the grievance
procedure is to resolve disputes peacefully and amicably without impeding the provisions of
essential public services. Therefore, should a grievance arise, there shall be no interruption or
impeding of work on account of such differences, but an earnest effort shall be made to settle the
matter promptly in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement. The grievance procedure
herein and the arbitration procedure outlined in Article 14 shall constitute the sole recourse for
the settlement of disputes involving the interpretation, application, or enforcement of the terms
of this Agreement except as provided for in Section 13 .16.
Section 13 .3 Grievance to Be Settled Expeditiously
Both parties agree that they shall
endeavor to make every effort to anticipate and dimini:;h the causes of grievances, and when they
arise, to settle them (informally if possible) expeditiously at the lowest practicable level of the
grievance procedure.
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Section 13 .4 Qualifications
An employee may file only his own personal grievance.
The aggrieved employee should personally sign his written grievance ifhe is capable of signing.
Otherwise, no grievance will be processed without the aggrieved employee's signature.
A grievance can be initiated by an aggrieved bargaining unit member. Where a group of
bargaining unit members desire to file a grievance involving a situation affecting each bargaining
unit member in the same or similar manner, the Labor Council or grievance chairman shall file a
class action grievance on behalf of all those affected.
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The City or the Labor Council shall have the right to put its grievances through the
established grievance procedure. Initiation of any such grievance shall be undertaken at Step 2
of the Grievance Procedure for the Labor Council and Step 3 for the City.
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Section 13.5 Grievances of Non-Member Employees
When a grievance proceeding
is held on an individually filed grievance by a bargaining unit employee who is not a member of
the Labor Council, the Labor Council shall receive notification when the grievance is filed. The
final resolution must be consistent with the terms of this agreement and the Labor Council
representative may be present at the final resolution.
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Section 13.6 Pre-Existing Grievances
Grievances which arose prior to the signing of this
Agreement shall be processed under the terms of the Agreement in effect at the time of the
alleged grievance.
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Section 13.7 Limit on Applicability of Grievance Decision
A final decision reached in
either of the first two steps of the grievance procedure shall be applicable to that grievance only.
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Section 13.8 Right to Withdraw Grievances
When the Labor Council is used, the Labor
Council has the sole discretion to refuse to process, abandon, or settle grievances jointly with the
City, prior to binding arbitration, irrespective of the aggrieved employee's wishes. The employee
must sign a waiver to remove the Labor Council from the grievance process at any time after the
Labor Council has been requested to provide assistance.
Section 13.9 Time Limits
If the Labor Council or a member fails to exhaust its
remedies under the grievance procedure or to abide by the time limits with respect to each step of
the procedure, the grievance shall be deemed as resolved. Such failure/neglect to follow the
procedure and/or adhere to the prescribed time limits shall act as a bar to the filing of any future
grievances arising out of the same set of facts or circumstances.
If the City fails to exhaust its remedies under the Grievance Procedure or to abide by the
time limits with respect to each step of the procedure, the grievance shall automatically advance
to the next step. Arbitration may be requested within 21 calendar days from any missed deadline
in the third step procedures.
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The time limits expressed in the Grievance and Arbitration Articles may be extended at
any step by written mutual consent. However, if the time limits are not mutually extended, the
last timely position shall prevail. The parties may agree by written mutual consent to skip
certain steps in the grievance procedure.
Section 13.10 Soliciting of Grievances
Labor Council members are prohibited from
soliciting grievances. Any Labor Council member who is found to have solicited a grievance
shall be subject to disciplinary action. This does not limit the Labor Council Representative or a
member of the grievance committee from making an initial inquiry.
Section 13 .11 Processing and Investigation of Grievances
The
processing
and
investigation of grievances shall take place outside of regular working hours whenever possible.
When this is not possible, the grievant or Labor Council representative, if one is involved, shall
be permitted leave with pay during working hours provided the grievant or Labor Council
representative first obtains the permission of his immediate supervisor. Such permission shall
not be unreasonably withheld.
Section 13 .12 Presentation of Witnesses
Either party may present witnesses.
Employees who are appearing as witnesses for the Labor Council must receive permission to
take time off with pay if the hearing occurs during their normal work hours. If permission is
withheld, any applicable time limits shall thereby be extended for the period of time necessary to
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allow the grievant and/or representative, if one is involved, time off to attend such meetings.
Witnesses may be subject to cross examination.
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Section 13 .13 Labor Council to Investigate Grievances
When a Labor Council
representation is being used, the Labor Council shall make a reasonable investigation of any
grievance before it is submitted to the steps of the grievance procedure. All cases shall be
investigated before being submitted to binding arbitration, in order to ascertain that the compliant
is justified and there is reasonable grounds to believe that the claim is true in fact. The Labor
Council shall submit a written report to the City upon filing for the next step in the grievance
procedure if their investigation reveals any new or different information regarding the grievance.
Section 13.14 Proper Language and Publicity
The grievance complaint shall set
forth all the facts necessary to understand the issues involved. It shall be free from charges or
language not germane to the real issue or conducive to subsequent calm deliberation. So far as
possible, the City and the Labor Council shall avoid publicizing any grievance or complaint prior
to the final determination of the issue.
Section 13.15 Grievance Steps Eliminated
If the subject matter involves an employee
discharge or if both parties agree that any other subject is of an emergency nature, with respect to
an immediate necessity to move ahead, grievance Steps 1 and 2 shall be bypassed and the
grievance taken up directly at Step 3.
In any case, the hearing for such a set of circumstances shall be held within fifteen (15)
work days of the date of the receipt of the grievance by the Safety Director or his designee.
In the case of a dismissal or a situation where the parties agree in writing that a grievance
should bypass Steps 1 and 2, the time limit that such a grievance must be filed at Step 3 shall be
five (5) work days.
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38
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Section 13 .16 Employee's Right
Where applicable in discipline cases, the employee must
first choose whether he wants to process his appeal through the Grievance/Arbitration
Procedures or through the Civil Service Commission. The initiation of any phase and/or of any
step of either of the two appeal systems shall be considered to be a waiver of the right to utilize
the other system. Both the Civil Service Commission and any duly appointed arbitrator must
honor the requirements of this section.
It is understood that this Agreement shall not in any way abridge the right of individual
employees to seek their own redress of grievances or to refrain from using the Labor Council in
the process. It is the employee's responsibility to notify the Labor Council or local union
representation if they wish to have representation present during any hearings or procedures.

44
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Section 13 .17 Steps in the Grievance Procedure

2
3
4
5
6

STEP 1

Police Chief

A.

An employee who feels that his rights and privileges under this Agreement have
been violated shall make verbal contact with the Police Chief within five (5)
calendar days from date of the occurrence of the action giving rise to the
grievance or five (5) calendar days from when the grievant first knew of the
occurrence that gave rise to the grievance. A waiver form must be presented by
the grievant at this step.

B.

The Police Chief will give a written reply to the grievance within five (5) calendar
days from the date the grievance was verbally submitted.

C.

The object of this step is to informally resolve the complaint before it becomes a
formal grievance; therefore, unless mutually agreed to by the parties, any other
parties shall be excluded from the meeting between the employee and the Police
Chief.

D.

A grievance which is not satisfactorily settled at Step 1 of the Grievance
Procedure shall be taken to Step 2.

E.

The day of submission or response is not counted as a day of this step or any
succeeding step.

7
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STEP2

Safety Director

27

28
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A.

An employee who is not satisfied with the reply at Step 1 of the Grievance
Procedure shall file a written grievance on the form provided with the Safety
Director (or designee). The grievant may use a Labor Council representative. If
he does so choose to involve the Labor Council, then the Labor Council shall
investigate the grievance before proceeding to the next step. A waiver form must
be presented by the grievant at this step.

B.

The employee must file his grievance within five (5) calendar days after the reply
at Step 1has been given.

C.

The Safety Director (or designee) shall sign and date stamp the grievance form
and return a signed copy to the grievant or his representative if one is involved.

D.

The City has the right to seek out and require additional information, if it exists,
to that presented in the Grievance Notice in order to amicably handle the matter as
expeditiously as possible.

36
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E.

3

The Safety Director shall have fifteen (15) calendar days to submit his answer in
writing to the grievant or his representative if one is involved. Said grievant or his
representative shall sign and date the form upon receipt.

4
5

6
7

STEP 3

Budget Director

A.

Should the grievant or the Labor Council representative, if one is involved, decide
that the reply of the, Safety Director is unsatisfactory, the grievant or
representative of the Labor Council, if one is involved, shall, within five (5)
calendar days, forward a copy of the grievance and all other pertinent information
to the City's Budget Director or his designated representative. The Budget
Director or his designee shall sign and date the form upon receipt and return a
signed copy to the grievant or his representative if one is involved. A waiver
form must be presented by the grievant at this step.

B.

The Budget Director or his designated representative shall arrange a hearing
between the grievant and, if the grievant so desires, the Labor Council
representative and the City within fifteen (15) calendar days unless otherwise
mutually agreed to. The Budget Director or his designee shall answer the
grievance within ten ( 10) calendar days after the hearing.

C.

The City may require the hearing to be held outside normal working hours.
Meetings and/or conferences by the Labor Council and the grievant with respect
to discussion of the various actions associated with resolving such a matter shall
be scheduled for the off duty hours of the participants. No compensation will be
provided by the City for the participants in such meetings and/or conferences. A
hearing scheduled for a time period during which the grievant and his
representative would normally be on duty will proceed as scheduled. The
grievant and his representative shall be released from duty during the time period
of the hearing and shall not suffer any loss of pay or benefits.

D.

If a decision of the Budget Director or his designee is not satisfactory to the Labor
Council, arbitration must be requested in writing within twenty-one (21) calendar
days from the date the decision was rendered at the last step of the grievance
procedure.
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ARTICLE 14
ARBITRATION
Section 14.1 Time Limit for Requesting Arbitration
Unless both parties agree to bypass
one or more of the steps, the entire grievance procedure must be exhausted before going to
arbitration.
Arbitration must be requested in writing within twenty-one (21) calendar days from the
date the decision was rendered at the last step of the grievance procedure.
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Section 14.2 Delivery of Demand for Arbitration
Should the Labor Council demand
arbitration, it shall give written notice to the City of Zanesville's Safety Director. Such demand
shall be signed by the grievant and/or the authorized representative of the Labor Council. Should
the City of Zanesville demand arbitration, it shall give written notice to the authorized
representative of the Labor Council or his designee. Such demand shall be signed by the
authorized representative of the City of Zanesville.
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Section 14.3 Selecting the Arbitrator
Within twenty-one days of the demand for
arbitration, a joint written request instigated by the party demanding arbitration shall be made to
the Federal Mediation Conciliation Services (District 15, Ohio) to submit the names of seven (7)
qualified arbitrators including personal history and arbitration experience of each. Upon receipt
of such list of arbitrators, the parties shall attempt to select one from the list. Upon failure to do
so, the parties shall then proceed to alternately strike names from the list until one (1) name
remains.
Determination as to which party shall have the privilege of striking a name from the list
first shall be resolved by the toss of a coin. The individual whose name remains on the list after
the other six (6) names have been removed shall be the arbitrator. The Federal Mediation
Conciliation Services shall be informed of the individual selected and request that such arbitrator
be assigned to the grievance.
Section 14.4 Submission Agreement
The Labor Council and the City shall agree in
writing upon the precise issues to be decided and submit the Statement to the arbitrator. Such
agreed upon issues shall then be submitted to the arbitrator. If the parties cannot agree on the
issues to be decided, each party shall state in writing the issue as he sees it and submit it to the
arbitrator and other party. Included in its statement of issues, the appealing party shall cite the
section or sections of the Agreement it claims have been violated and the redress it expects from
arbitration.
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If one of the parties is of the opinion that a grievance concerning the interpretation or
application of the contract is not arbitrable, it shall notify the other party prior to the arbitration
hearing of its challenge and intent to raise the issue of arbitrability at the arbitration hearing. At
the hearing, the first question to be placed before the arbitrator shall be whether or not the issue
is arbitrable and within his/her jurisdiction to decide. The arbitrator will take the question of
arbitrability under advisement, and the same arbitrator will hear the grievance on its merits.

Section 14.5 Arbitrator Shall Arrange Hearings
The arbitrator shall arrange for any hearings
or investigations he deems to be necessary as soon as possible after he is notified of his selection.

40
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Section 14.6 Procedures
Arbitration proceedings shall be conducted under the Voluntary
Labor Arbitration Rules of the Federal Mediation Conciliation Services except as modified by
the provisions of this Agreement.

44
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Section 14.7 Limits on Arbitrator's Authority
A.

No decision by an arbitrator shall infringe upon:

4
5
6
7

1.

The obligation of the City as expressed or intended by the provisions of
Ohio Law.

8

2.

The statutory obligations of the City.

3.

The legal principles expressed by an Ohio Supreme Court determination
or by any other court of competent jurisdiction or in the general body of
legal principles which are applicable to municipalities and their municipal
functions.

4.

Any federal, state, or municipal law.
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B.

The arbitrator may affirm, disaffirm, or modify disciplinary penalties imposed by
the City.

20

C.

The arbitrator shall not change wage rates already in effect within the Agreement.

21
22
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D.

The arbitrator's award shall not be retroactive for a period prior to the period
covered by the grievance.

E.

The arbitrator shall conduct a fair and impartial hearing on the grievances, hearing
and recording testimony from both parties and applying the rules of the F.M.C.S.
or the S.E.R.B. The arbitrator shall not have the authority to add to, delete from,
or modify any provisions of this Agreement.

F.

Toe arbitrator shall expressly confine himself to the precise issues cited in the
submissions as per Section 14.4 and shall have no authority or privilege to
determine any other issue not so submitted to him. Nor shall the arbitrator have
the authority or privilege to submit observations or declarations of opinion which
are not directly essential in reaching a decision on the precise subject matter.

G.

The arbitrator may not make an award which in effect grants either party that
which it was unable clearly to secure during past collective bargaining
negotiations.

40

H.

41
42
43
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An arbitration award shall not be used as a precedent for any subsequent case but
may be cited in support of the parties' position.

I.

The arbitrator shall not grant relief that extends beyond the termination date of
this Agreement.
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J.

2
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The arbitrator's decision and award will be in writing and will specifically state
the rationale for the decision. Said decision shall be mailed to the Labor Council
and the Mayor of the City or his designee within thirty (30) days from the date the
record is closed. When post-hearing briefs from the parties are requested, the
record is not closed until the parties have submitted such briefs.

Section 14.8 Number of Grievances to Be Heard at One Time
The arbitrator shall hear only
one grievance at a time unless both parties agree to consolidate two or more grievances.
Section 14.9 Withdrawal of a Dispute
After a dispute on which the arbitrator is
empowered to rule hereunder has been referred to him, such dispute may be withdrawn by either
party.
Section 14.10 Arbitration Limited to Life of Contract
arbitration that arose during the life of the contract.

Disputes may only be submitted to
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Section 14.11 Damages
types of monetary relief.

The arbitrator shall have the authority to grant damages and other

Section 14.12 Decision Final and Binding
The arbitrator's award shall be final and
binding on both parties and may be enforced in any court of competent jurisdiction except as
otherwise herein specified.
Section 14.13 Cost of Arbitration
The fees of the arbitrator and the rent, if any, for the
hearing room shall be borne equally by the parties. The expenses of any non-employee
witnesses shall be borne, if at all, by the party calling them. The fees of a court reporter shall be
paid by the party asking for one; however, such fees shall be split equally if both parties desire a
reporter or request a copy of the transcript.
Section 14.14 Employees Attending Arbitration Hearing
The grievant, the Labor
Council Representative, and employee witnesses, called by either party, who appear at an
arbitration hearing during their working hours shall not suffer any loss in pay. Member
witnesses, other than the grievant and grievant representative, called by the Labor Council will
be permitted time off with pay, if such time off is during regularly assigned work hours, provided
that the needs of the City, the Department, and the safety of the citizenry are not compromised.
The Labor Council shall provide to the City a list of member witnesses to be called.
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ARTICLE 15
PERSONNEL FILES
Section 15 .1 Personnel Files
A.

Every member shall be allowed to review his personnel file at any reasonable
time upon written request. A member may also authorize his attorney to review
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the personnel file. Such request shall be made to the Chief, and review of the file
shall be made in the presence of the Chief or designated representative.

2
3
4

B.

Any member may copy documents in his file. The City may levy a charge for
such copying. Such charge shall bear a reasonable relationship to actual costs.

C.

If upon examining his personnel file any member has reason to believe that there

5

6
7
8

are inaccuracies in documents contained therein, the member may write a
memorandum to the Chief with a copy to the Safety Director, explaining the
alleged inaccuracy. The Chief shall attach the memorandum to the document in
the file and shall note thereon his agreement or disagreement with the
memorandum's contents.
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D.

Any employee's signature on a document shall mean he has seen the document
and not that they agree with its content unless it is so stated on the document.

E.

Records of discipline shall cease to have force and effect according to the
following schedule:

19
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21

Suspensions
Written Reprimands

36 months
12 months

22
23
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Upon request of the employee, outdated records shall be removed from the
employee's personnel file and shall be stored in a separate area to await
destruction by the proper method as prescribed in the Ohio Revised Code.

25
26

Records of commendations and awards shall not have force and effect for appeals
of discipline after a period of 24 months and shall remain in the employee's
personnel file.

27
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F.

In any case in which an action of record is disaffirmed through the Grievance
Procedure, the member's personnel file shall clearly reflect such disaffirmance.

Section 15 .2 Public Review of Records
public requests to review personnel files:

The following guidelines shall be followed for

A.

The employer will request, but cannot require, that the person requesting the
records provide their name and address.

B.

Prior to release of information an employee, or if an employee is not available the
union representative, will be notified about the request.

C.

Prior to release of the public records, the employer may review the personnel file
with the Law Director' s office to ensure that it contains no confidential matter
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exempted from release. No information which is not required by law to be
disclosed shall be disclosed in response to a public request.

3
4
5
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D.

The employee may request copies of any documents in his personnel file that
were provided to the person reviewing the file.

E.

A city employee must remain with the personnel files during the time the files are
reviewed so that nothing can be added or removed from the file.

8
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ARTICLE 16
RIGHTS OF EMPLOYEES/DISCIPLINE

12
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20

The City and the Labor Council agree that a clearly written
Section 16.1 Policy
discipline policy will serve to promote fairness and equality in the work place and will minimize
potential misunderstanding among employees in disciplinary matters. Furthermore, the City and
the Labor Council agree that the procedures, set forth below, shall be consistently applied in
order to effectively and fairly correct unsatisfactory employee behavior.
Section 16.2 Classification of Complaints

21

22

A.

23
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26
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B.

Administrative: Complaints initiated internally against members of the
department.
Personnel: Complaints made by the public against members of the department.

Section 16.3 Complaints

A.

Complaints - General

29
30
31
32

1.

complaints regarding misconduct by departmental employees and that
such will be received courteously and handled efficiently by all concerned.
In addition, both the Labor Council and the City agree that all personnel
will assist and cooperate in the processing of citizen complaints consistent
with established procedures.

33
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2.

Complaints shall be accepted from any source whether made in person, by
mail, or over the telephone as long as the complaint contains sufficient
factual information to warrant an investigation.
Complaints from
anonymous sources without corroborative evidence after due inquiry shall
be deemed unfounded.

3.

Citizens alleging misconduct on the part of a division member will be
requested to sign the complaint form.
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It is agreed that citizens will be encouraged to bring forward legitimate
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Section 16.4 Internal Investigation

A.

Procedure - General

4
5

1.

Questioning or interviewing of an employee accused of misconduct will
be conducted or scheduled at a reasonable time, preferably while the
member is on duty.

2.

The length of the interview or interrogation session(s) will be reasonable
with interruptions provided for personal necessities, meals, telephone
calls, and rest.

3.

Interrogations/interviews will normally be conducted at the Zanesville
Safety Center or other appropriate location.

16
17
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4.

An accused employee who refuses to answer questions or participate in an
investigation shall be advised that such conduct, if continued, will be the
basis for a charge of insubordination.

20

5.

Prior to the commencement of any interrogation/interview of an employee
accused of misconduct, said employee shall be advised of the nature of the
investigation and the allegations made against him.

6.

Prior to questioning and upon request, an accused employee will be
provided a reasonable opportunity to review any documents previously
submitted by him that are specifically related and narrowly confined to the
circumstances surrounding the allegations made against him.

7.

Prior to an employee being asked questions during an internal noncriminal
investigation which may lead to suspension without pay or termination of
the employee questioned, that employee shall be informed of his right to
have Labor Council representation. The Labor Council representative shall
be the union steward for the employee's bargaining unit or the steward's
designee. If after a reasonable time (2 hours) to acquire the services of a
Labor Council representative, the grievant fails and/or neglects to do so,
the investigation by the City will proceed without a Labor Council
representative.
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a.

A bargaining unit member who is called upon to serve as a
representative to an accused employee while both are on duty shall
be released from the requirements and responsibilities of such duty
while he is assisting such employee.

b.

Such representative shall not suffer the loss of any compensation
and/or benefits.
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c.

Such relief from duty is contingent upon the approval of his
immediate supervisor which will not be unreasonably withheld.

d.

Bargaining unit members who are not on duty and are summoned
to act as representatives of accused employees shall be
compensated as provided for in the call-in section of the contract.

e.

Off duty bargaining unit members who are summoned to represent
an accused employee are not relieved from reporting to their
regularly assigned duties except as specified in this Article.
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8.
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The Chief of Police, based upon a substantial objective basis to believe
that an officer who is subject to an investigation may be withholding
information relevant to the matter being investigated, may request an
officer to submit to a polygraph.
If the officer refuses to submit to the polygraph or to cooperate with the
operator, an adverse inference may be taken from the refusal. However,
the refusal of the officer to submit shall not be the sole basis for
disciplinary action either in the initial investigation or any subsequent
charge of insubordination based upon the refusal.
The member shall be entitled to a union representative during the preinterview and post-interview of the polygraph examination. Any such
polygraph examination shall only be conducted by a certified operator that
is not an employee of the City. No disciplinary action shall be taken by
the employer based solely on the results of such tests.

B.

Formal Statements (Administrate and Non-Criminal)
1.

Formal Statements, other than the initial interview/inquiry of employees
accused of misconduct, shall be recorded.

2.

With reasonable notice to the Police Chief (or designee), the accused
employee will be provided the opportunity to listen to and/or review the
results of such recorded statement and prepare personal notes with respect
to such recording.

3.

With reasonable notice, copies of the accused employee's formal recorded
statement, either tape recorded or transcribed if such is made, will be
provided to the accused employee if so requested by the affected
employee. Costs incurred with respect to preparation, duplication,
copying, etc. shall be absorbed by the employee so requesting.

4.

Under those circumstances in which an attorney from or assigned by the
City Law Director's office is a participant in the investigation of an

44
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accused employee complaint, said accused employee shall have the right
to be accompanied by an attorney of his own choosing. The cost incurred
for representation by the personal attorney must be borne by the
bargaining unit or the employee so hiring. Acquiring representation by a
personal attorney shall not disrupt or cause unreasonable delay of such
proceedings.
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5.

A bargaining unit member who is the subject of a criminal investigation
shall be advised of his constitutional rights as provided by law.

6.

A bargaining unit member who is the subject of a criminal investigation
and who chooses, after being so advised of his constitutional rights, to
exercise them, will not be charged with insubordination for refusing or
declining to answer questions with respect to the alleged criminal conduct.

7.

Evidence obtained as a result of unlawful pressure exerted on the
immediate subject of a criminal investigation shall not be admissible in
any subsequent criminal proceeding.

20
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a.
C.

Miscellaneous Provisions
1.

Complaints lodged against a bargaining unit member, when determined by
the Chief of Police (or designee) to be unfounded, shall not be made a
part of the employee's personnel file and shall not be used in any
subsequent disciplinary procedure.

2.

Compensation for employees participating in a disciplinary investigation
during their off-time shall be as specified in the call-in section of this
contract.

26
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33

A lawful order shall not be construed as unlawful pressure.

Section 16.5 Disciplinary Procedure

34

35
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A.

No employee shall be disciplined except for just cause. Warnings or reprimands
that do not involve a reduction in pay, position, suspension, or discharge are not
appealable to the Arbitration Procedure.

B.

The principles of progressive disciplinary action will be followed with respect to
minor offenses. It shall be corrective and applied in a uniform manner. Normal
progressive discipline shall consist of an oral warning, written reprimand, short
term suspension, and either a long term suspension, demotion, or discharge.

C.

The City shall take corrective action deemed necessary by the circumstances on a
case-by-case basis.
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D.

The City agrees not to suspend, demote, or discharge an employee without first
conducting a hearing. This hearing is to be held between the City, the employee,
and a Labor Council representative if the employee so desires. Hearings where
practical shall be conducted at hours reasonable related to the employee's shift,
preferably during his work hours.

E.

The City agrees that all disciplinary procedures shall be carried out in private and
in a businesslike manner.

F.

In cases where a suspension of thirty (30) days or less has been imposed on a
bargaining unit employee, the Employer may offer the employee the option to
forfeit accrued leave time (vacation or compensatory time). The forfeiture shall
be one (1) hour of leave for each hour of proposed suspension. The type ofleave
shall be the employee's choice. The forfeiture of leave shall constitute corrective
action of record and shall be placed in the employee's personnel file. The
forfeiture of leave shall constitute the final resolution of the departmental charges.
Once accepted by the employee, forfeiture of leave is not subject to appeal.

G.

The City shall not initiate the public disclosure of any disciplinary action taken or
proposed against any employee unless and until criminal charges have also been
filed.

H.

In disciplinary matters involving the imposition of a specified time period of
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suspension, the effective date for the commencement of the time limits that
govern the appeal of that suspension shall be as specified in Section 124.34 of the
Ohio Revised Code and the City of Zanesville Civil Service Commission Rule IX
or the provisions of this Agreement whichever is applicable.

28
29

I.

30
31
32

An appeal of an imposed suspension shall act as a stay of that suspension until
such time as a decision is rendered with respect to the appeal.

J.

Actions contrary to the procedures detailed herein shall be subject to the
grievance procedure unless the employee chooses to appeal to Civil Service.

K.

The City shall within a reasonable time, given the circumstances of an alleged
infraction, complete its investigation and file charges for disciplinary action
against an employee. In the case of traffic accidents, the City shall have sixty
(60) days. In instances where the investigation cannot be completed within the
time limits stated above, an additional fifteen (15) day period may be granted by
mutual agreement of the City and the affected employee or Labor Council
Representative except that in no case shall the City have more than sixty (60) days
to investigate and file charges. The Labor Council and its members agree to assist
in the expediting of investigations of alleged actions, incidents, and occurrences.
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ARTICLE 17
DRUG/ALCOHOL TESTING

2
3

4
5
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11
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Drug/alcohol testing may be conducted on employees at
Section 17 .1 Employees Tested
random, post-incident, or for reasonable suspicion.
For random testing, the City shall contract with an approved testing facility, meeting the
requirements of Section 17.2. Random tests will be conducted no more than four times per
calendar year.
Four times per year, at its choosing, the testing facility will randomly select one name for
alcohol testing and one name for drug testing from among the department's Police Sergeants,
Lieutenants, and Captains.

14

15
16
17

The testing facility will provide the names of those selected for testing to the Police
Chief. The Police Chief will notify the testing facility of the day and times when those
employees selected will be transported to the facility for testing.
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On the day selected for testing, the employees to be tested will be transported to the
testing facility for testing. No employee will be called in for testing.
A bargaining unit employee may of his own volition, even if not ordered to do so,
undergo a drug and/or alcohol screening test if he is involved in an on duty incident or accident
involving bodily injury, extensive property damage, or death. Testing done under these
circumstances will be treated in the same manner as if the employee had been ordered to undergo
screening.
Section 17.2 Test Requirements
All drug screening tests shall be conducted by
medical laboratories meeting the standards of the National Institute of Drug Abuse and the
National Institutes of Health. No test shall be considered positive until it has been confirmed by
a gas Chromatography/Mass Spectrometry full scan test or its equivalent. The procedures
utilized by the Employer and testing laboratory shall include an evidentiary chain of custody
control. All samples collected shall be contained in two (2) separate containers for use in the
prescribed testing procedures. All procedures shall be outlined in writing, and this outline shall
be followed in all situations arising under this Article.
Section 17.3 Alcohol Tests
Alcohol testing shall be done in the same manner as to
detect drivers operating a motor vehicle under the influence. A positive result of a blood alcohol
concentration of .03% or above shall entitle the Employer to proceed with sanctions as set forth
in this Article.
Section 17.4 Test Results
A.

The results of the testing shall be delivered to the Employer and the employee
tested. An employee whose confirmatory test result is positive shall have the
right to request a certified copy of the testing results in which the vendor shall
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affirm that the test results were obtained using the approved protocol methods.
The employee shall provide a signed release for disclosure of the testing results.
Refusal to submit to the testing provided for under this Agreement may be
grounds for discipline.

2
3
4
5

6
7

B.

8
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Section 17.5 Confirmatory Tests
A.

If a drug screening test is positive, a confirmatory test shall be conducted utilizing
the fluid from no more than two of the three containers collected in the manner
prescribed above.

B.

In the event the second test confirms the results of the first test, the Employer may

20
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The Employer may suspend the employee without loss of pay before the time the
confinnatory test results are complete. If the screening test and confirmatory test
are positive, the Employer may discipline the employee. The use of illegal
substances, on or off duty, will ordinarily result in termination. The improper use
of prescription drugs and/or alcohol may result in a lesser discipline depending
upon the relevant circumstances.

proceed with the sanctions as set forth in this Article.
C.

In the event that the second test contradicts the result of the first test, the
Employer may request a third test in accordance with the procedures prescribed
above. The results of this test, if positive, shall allow the Employer to proceed
with sanctions as set forth in this Article. If the results are negative, the employee
shall be given the benefit of the doubt and no sanctions shall be imposed.

Section 17.6 Laboratories
A list of two (2) testing laboratories shall be maintained by
the Employer. These laboratories shall conduct any testing directed by the Employer.
Section 17.7 Rehabilitation
If the testing required above has produced a positive result,
the Employer may take disciplinary action and/or require the employee to participate in any
rehabilitation or detoxification program that is covered by the employee's health insurance. An
employee who participates in a rehabilitation or detoxification program shall be allowed to use
sick time, compensatory days, vacation leave, and personal leave days for a period of the
rehabilitation or detoxification program.

If no such leave credits are available, the employee shall be placed on medical leave of
absence without pay for the period of the rehabilitation or detoxification program. Upon
completion of such program, and upon receiving results from a retest demonstrating that the
employee is no longer abusing a controlled substance, the employee may be returned to his
former position. Such employee may be subject to periodic retesting upon his return to his
position for a period of one (1) year from the date of his return to work. Any employee in a
rehabilitation or detoxification program in accordance with this Article will not lose any
seniority or benefits should it be necessary for the employee to be placed on medical leave of
absence without pay for a period not to exceed ninety (90) days.
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Section 17 .8 Discipline
If the employee refuses to undergo rehabilitation or detoxification,
or if he tests positive during a retesting within one (1) year after his return to work from such a
program, the employee shall be subject to disciplinary action up to and including termination of
his employment.
Section 17.9 Testing Cost
Costs of all drug screening tests and confirmatory tests
shall be borne by the Employer except that any test initiated at the request of the employee shall
be at the employee's expense.
Section 17 .10 Confidentiality
All tests results and actions taken under or pursuant to this
Article shall be kept confidential in accordance with and subject to state and federal law.
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ARTICLE 18
ORDINANCES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
Section 18.1 Ordinances
The City agrees, upon request, to furnish the Labor Council with a
copy of any ordinance pertaining to the Department which is pending before the City Council.
Section 18.2 Rules and Regulations
The City agrees that Rules and Regulations of the
Department shall be furnished to all members of the bargaining unit in written form.
To the extent possible the City agrees that amendments to the Rules and Regulations shall
be provided to the Labor Council in advance of their implementation. The Labor Council or any
member of the bargaining unit may request a meeting of the Labor/Management Committee to
seek clarification or to present alternative viewpoints with respect to such amendments.

28
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The Rules and Regulations shall be applied and interpreted consistently by the City and
may not violate any provision of this Agreement.
Nothing herein shall be construed in any manner as a limitation of the City's right to alter
its work rules, policies, or directives.
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ARTICLE 19
REPORTING FOR WORK
Section 19 .1 Lateness
A.

Police officers are to be punctual at all times.

B.

No monetary penalty will be given an employee who reports for work less than
six (6) minutes late. For tardiness at or beyond six (6) minutes, the regular
procedure of six (6) minutes intervals will apply, i.e., up to twelve (12) minutes,
minus 2/10 of an hour; up to eighteen (18) minutes, minus 3/10 of an hour; up to
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2

twenty-four (24) minutes, minus 4/10 of an hour; up to thirty (30) minutes, minus
5/10 of an hour, etc.

3

4

C.

5
6
7

Police officers who are late three (3) work days within a 30-day period shall
receive a written reprimand.

D.

Police officers who are late four ( 4) work days within a 30-day period shall
receive a two-day suspension without pay.

E.

Police officers who are late five (5) work days within a 30-day period shall
receive a five-day suspension.

F.

Patterned use of lateness, even though it may not fall within the parameters
outlined, shall result in progressive disciplinary action.

G.

Instances of tardiness of less than six (6) minutes shall be considered m
determining chronic lateness.

H.

In cases where the disciplinary action described above fails to correct an
employee's chronic lateness, additional disciplinary action may be taken.
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Section 19.2 Notice of Absence

23

24

A.

Any employee who is unable to report for work at his assigned time for any
reason shall notify the proper designated authority no sooner than (8) hours before
his assigned starting time and no later than one (1) hour before his starting time.
Notice of absence may be given through another person only if the employee is
physically unable to provide the proper notice. When notice is not provided, the
employee will not be paid for his time off unless he can furnish compelling
evidence that circumstances beyond his control preventing giving proper notice.
An employee who is absent three (3) consecutive work days without notifying the
City, or without valid reason for failure to so notify the City, will be considered to
have voluntarily resigned.

B.

An employee who is absent from the job without prior notice to the City and/or
failure to give the City a legitimate reason for his absence within three (3) days
after returning to work shall be subject to the following penalties:

25
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First Offense - 2 days suspension without pay
Second Offense - 5 days suspension without pay
Third Offense - Dismissal

42
43

44

For purposes of computing the number of offenses, each offense will remain in
effect for a period of twelve (12) months.
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ARTICLE20
WORKING CONDITIONS

3

4
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Section 20.1 Protection of Employees Safety and Health
The City will continue to
make reasonable provisions for the safety and health of its employees. The Labor Council agrees
that it will direct its members to use the protective devices, wearing apparel, and other equipment
provided by the City for the protection of employees from injury. The Labor Council also agrees
that it will encourage its members to promptly report conditions in the City's facilities that might
be dangerous to employees and the public and to do all in their power to make City property and
equipment safe, sanitary, and dependable. Any injury or accident, however minor, shall be
immediately reported to the Police Chief or his authorized representative.

12

13
14
15

One member of the Supervisor's Bargaining Unit shall be a member of the Safety
Committee. This committee will have the responsibility to meet with the Police Chief and
discuss matters concerning personnel and safety of equipment.

16
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Section 20.2 Protective Equipment
Protective devices, when provided and required,
must be used. Failure to use such devices shall be deemed cause for disciplinary action.
Any employee who removes or impedes the efficiency of a protective device without the
prior approval of the Police Chief (or authorized representative) shall be subject to disciplinary
action.

23

24
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Section 20.3 Improper Use and Care of City Property
An employee who willfully or
negligently loses or destroys protective equipment, devices, or articles of wearing apparel shall
be requested to reimburse the City for the cost of such items. Employees are responsible and
liable for the proper use and care of the facilities, supplies, and equipment provided by the City.

28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37

Section 20.4 Return of City Property
An employee leaving the service of the City
whether through resignation, retirement, layoff, or discharge is responsible for returning any City
property which he may have in his possession except that a member who honorably retires from
active duty with five (5) or more years of continuous service with the department may purchase
his/her service weapon at cost less 10% depreciation per year of the life of the weapon. For
purpose of this section, City property shall include equipment purchased with uniform allowance
and listed by the Labor/Management Committee. Failure to return City property may result in
the employee's final check being held until such return is made, or deductions may be made for
the value of the property.
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ARTICLE 21
HOURS OF WORK AND OVERTIME
Section 21.1 Intent
This Article is intended to define the hours of a work day, hours of
a work week, and to define the basis for the calculation of overtime.

46
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Section 21.2 Work Day and Work Week

2
3

A.

A work day shall consist of eight (8) hours during a scheduled work shift. Except
to accommodate change of shifts or days off, a work week shall consist of five (5)
work days followed by two (2) consecutive days off.

B.

Should the Chief of Police decide to implement a four-ten schedule, such
schedule will consist of four (4) ten-hour days, or eight (8) such days per pay
period.
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Section 21.3 Overtime
A.

All hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours in one (1) week shall be paid at
one and one-half (1 ½) times the employee's regular straight-time hourly rate.

B.

For purposes of this section, "hours worked" is defined as hours actually worked
plus paid leave time except that sick leave shall not be counted as "hours
worked."

C.

For purposes of computing overtime, the work week shall begin Friday at 12:00
a.m. and end the following Thursday at 11 :59 p.m. This workweek shall be used
for payroll purposes only and shall not be construed as establishing the actual
days of work for any employee or group of employees.

D.

Overtime work shall include only that work performed by an employee at the
direction of the Police Chief (or designee).

E.

If an emergency is declared by someone with authority to do so, and a bargaining
unit member is ordered to work before or after his normal hours of work, he shall
be paid double-time for all such hours. In any other case, the employee so
ordered to work shall be compensated at the appropriate rate of pay.

F.

Overtime shall be based on 1/10 of an hour increments.

G.

Time worked on the first or second consecutive regular days off due to work
schedules being changed at the request of the member, trading days off by mutual
consent of members, or time worked as a result of changing shifts where there is a
continuous twenty-four (24) hours per day operation and/or a continuous seven
(7) day per week operation is not subject to premium rates.
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If an individual employee is to be transferred to another shift, he shall be provided
with a minimum of seventy-two (72) hours notice except in the case of
emergencies, manpower shortages, or by mutual agreement.
Section 21.4 Compensatory Time Bank
An employee, at his option, may elect to
accrue compensatory time at the rate of one-and-one-half (1-1/2) hours off for each hour of
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overtime work and place such time in a comp-time bank. Once the employee has placed such
time in the bank, he must give a twenty-four (24) hour advance notice to the Chief of Police for
comp time leave except that such comp time would be permissible with a one (1) hour notice if
the supervisor so granting such leave is of the opinion that doing so would not unduly disrupt the
operations of the Department. The Employer shall have the sole discretion for granting such
leave, but such denial should be for just cause and not mere inconvenience. The maximum
accrual of compensatory time shall be 200 hours. During the first year of this contract, current
employees with more than 200 hours of accrued compensatory time will be paid for their accrued
hours above 200.
Upon separation for any reason, the employee shall be paid for any
Section 21.5 Pay Out
accumulation of accrued compensatory time.
Section 21.6 Pyramiding
There shall be no pyramiding of overtime or other rates of pay or other compensation
with any other pay rates unless specifically required by the terms of this Agreement.
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ARTICLE22
WAGES

21
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Section 22.1 Salaries, Wages, and Salary Ranges
A.

Upon promotion, the pay rate for Captains shall be twelve percent (12%) above
the Lieutenants hourly rate of pay.

Section 22.2 Automatic Pay Increments
the first full pay period in January.

Pay increases shall be effective on the first day of

Section 22.3 Longevity Pay
A.

34

The City of Zanesville will grant longevity pay each year to permanent full-time
employees covered by this Agreement in accordance with the following schedule:

35
36
37
38

Years of Service
As of September 30
5

39

9

40

13
16
22

41

42

Longevity Pay
2% of Previous Annual Payroll Earnings
3% of Previous Annual Payroll Earnings
4% of Previous Annual Payroll Earnings
5% of Previous Annual Payroll Earnings
6% of Previous Annual Payroll Earnings

43
44
45

B.

Payment is to be calculated on the previous annual payroll earnings.

46

C.

September 30 of each year in which the payment is to be made shall be used in
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calculating years of service for longevity pay.
D.

Payment shall be made in a lump sum during October of each year and shall be
separate from the employee's regular paycheck. Longevity pay shall be taxed as
if earned over the entire payroll year (26 pay periods).

E.

Upon termination under honorable circumstance, employees who are eligible for
longevity pay will be paid as part of their terminal pay the final partial year's
longevity pay on a prorated basis. The prorated pay shall be based on the number
of completed pay periods in the final year of service divided by twenty-six (26)
and multiplied by the longevity pay due for the entire year.
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Section 22.4 Call-In Pay/ Court Pay
A.

16
17

18
19

B.

20
21

Call-in pay shall be provided when an employee is required to report for work or
to report for scheduled or ordered court appearances at times other than his
regular shift or hours of work regardless of whether or not work is available or the
court case is actually conducted.
An employee called in under Section A shall receive three (3) hours pay at his
base rate (straight time) or pay for time actually worked at the applicable rate
whichever is greater.

22
23
24

C.

Call-in pay shall not be provided for: (1) work extending beyond the end of an
employee's scheduled shift, (2) work before and continuing into his scheduled
shift, (3) scheduled training period, (4) scheduled departmental meetings, (5)
situations in which employees are summoned back to work to correct errors or
incomplete task during his assigned duty hours.

D.

Employees who fall under Section C only shall be paid at the applicable hourly
rate, except that for scheduled training periods and scheduled department
meetings employees shall receive one (1) hour's pay at his base rate (straight
time) or pay for time actually worked at the applicable rate, whichever is greater.

E.

"Scheduled" as listed in Section C only shall mean a minimum of 48 hours'
notice.

F.

An employee may, at his option, receive compensatory time off in lieu of pay for
call-in or court appearances.

G.

Call-in time for which payment is rendered shall not be used for computing the
forty ( 40) hour work week for premium pay. Any time actually worked under
each call-in that exceeds two (2) hours shall be used in computing the forty (40)
hour week for premium pay. Hours worked as defined in Section 21.3(8) shall be
used to compute the forty ( 40) hour work week for premium pay.
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Section 22.5 Temporary Transfer Compensation
When the Police Chief is on leave or
at school and, as a result, an employee is temporarily assigned to serve as Police Chief for a
minimwn of four (4) hours or more, the employee shall be paid a rate that is 5% higher than his
regular rate of pay.
Section 22.6 Pyramiding
There shall be no pyramiding of overtime or other rates of pay or other compensation
with any other pay rates unless specifically required by the tenns of this Agreement.

11

12
ARTICLE23
13
VACATION/HOLIDAYS/PERSONAL LEAVE
14
15
Section 23 .1 Accrual of Vacation
16
17
A.
Permanent full-time employees covered by this Agreement shall accumulate
18
vacation leave with pay at the rate of9.89 hours per pay period.
19
20
B.
Each employee shall be required to take vacation during each year except that
21
upon written approval of the Chief Executive Officer, vacation may be
accumulated up to a maximum of 600 hours. Under no circumstances will an
22
employee be allowed to take vacation in advance.
23
24
All vacations shall be taken with the prior approval
25 Section 23.2 Vacation Preference
26 of the Police Chief. Whenever possible, vacation preference will be based on seniority. Vacation
27 shall be scheduled so as to meet the operating requirements of the City and the preference of the
28 employees. Denial of vacation leave shall be for just cause and not mere inconvenience.
29 Beginning February 1st of each year, annual vacations ofup to four (4) consecutive weeks may be
30 requested and shall be by seniority. Once each covered employee has the opportunity to choose a
31 vacation, the vacation list shall be rotated in the same manner two (2) more times. Each
32 employee may choose a maximum of two (2) additional weeks during each rotation. A maximum
33 of six (6) weeks vacation may be requested in the three sign-up rotations. Annual vacations shall
34 be scheduled by March 31 of each year. No more than three (3) separate blocks of time may be
35 used as annual vacation. After March 31, there shall be no bumping of scheduled vacations. The
36 vacation period for scheduling will be from April 1 to March 31 of the next year. Requested time
37 off for other than annual vacations shall be submitted no sooner than 30 d,ays prior to the day
38 requested and will be on a first come, first served basis.
39
40 Section 23 .3 Other Considerations
41
A.
An employee requesting vacation time use must give a 24 hour advance notice to
42
43
the Chief of Police except that vacation usage would be permissible with a one (1)
44
hour notice if the Police Chief is of the opinion that doing so would not unduly
45
disrupt the operations of the Police Department. The Employer shall have the
sole discretion for granting such leave, but denial should be for a valid reason and
46
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not mere inconvenience.

2
3

B.

Vacation time may be charged out in one (1) hour increments.

C.

Vacation hours shall be compensated at the employee's current base pay rate.
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Employees not on the active payroll
Section 23.4 Employees Not on the Active Payroll
are not entitled to accrue vacation leave unless such absence is caused by an injury sustained
while acting in their capacity as a Bargaining unit employee.
Section 23.5 Court Interruption of Vacation
In the event an employee finds his annually
scheduled vacation interrupted by scheduled court appearances, management will compensate
with a minimum of five (5) hours compensatory time or a minimum of eight (8) hours regular
pay. The term annually scheduled vacation is defined as any vacation scheduled during the
scheduling rotation described in Section 24.2 herein.
Section 23.6 Vacation Pay-Out
Upon separation, an employee shall be paid for his unused
accumulation of vacation leave up to a maximum of 600 hours. Upon retirement after 19 years
of service, an employee may cash in such unused accumulation of vacation.
Section 23.7 Personal Day
Employees shall be granted three (3) personal days with
pay per year. Personal days may not be carried over into the next year. Personal days shall be
scheduled off in accordance with Section 23.3 above.
Section 23.8 Working on National Holidays
A.

Employees who are required to work on a day observed as a holiday shall be paid
at a rate of one and one half (1 ½) their regular hourly rate for all hours worked on
the listed holidays. Additionally, any employee who is held over to work on
another shift on a holiday shall be paid two times their normal rate of pay for the
second shift. The following holidays shall apply: New Year's Day, Martin
Luther King Day, President's Day, Memorial Day, Juneteenth, Independence
Day, Labor Day, Columbus Day, Veterans' Day, Thanksgiving Day and
Christmas Day, and any additional Holiday(s) declared by the President of the
United States, by the Governor of the State of Ohio, or by the Mayor or Council
of the City of Zanesville.

B.

When one of the holidays listed above falls on a Sunday, the next following
Monday shall be observed as a holiday. When one of the holidays listed above
falls on a Saturday, the preceding Friday shall be observed as a holiday.
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ARTICLE 24
INSURANCE SCHEDULE
Section 24 .1 Insurance

A.

Insurance Plan:
The City of Zanesville will offer the same group medical,
prescription, dental, and vision plan for the employee and eligible family
members that it provides to the elected and unaffiliated employees of the City of
Zanesville. It is agreed that the schedule of benefits shall be the same as for all
other City employees.

B.

Spouse:
If the spouse of a city employee is employed and is eligible for
employer-sponsored health coverage with said employer, he or she must enroll in
that particular health plan. If the spouse cannot obtain coverage through his or
her employer until a certain date or open enrollment period, the spouse will be
covered under the City's plan until he or she can obtain coverage through his or
her employer. The spouse must provide documentation to the City that he or she
is not eligible for coverage. Employees whose spouse has health insurance
coverage through an employer shall receive up to one thousand five hundred
dollars ($1,500) per year stipend. If an employee's spouse would be required to
pay more than 50% of the insurance premium through their employer, he or she
would be allowed to remain on the City's plan. Spouses may also remain on the
City's plan under secondary coverage.

C.

Health Insurance Committee: The City shall establish a health care committee
comprised of the Budget and Finance Director, the Human Resource Manager, the
Mayor, the Law Director, one (1) representative from City Council, two (2)
representatives from A.F.S.C.M.E., two (2) representatives from the F.O.P/O.L.C.
bargaining unit, one (1) representative from the I.A.F.F., and one (1)
representative from the unaffiliated employees. This committee shall meet
regularly to review the content of the health care plan for the City and shall
explore alternative health care plans, cost saving measures, and proposed changes
to current coverage before changes are made.

D.

Employee Contribution to Premiums: Employee contribution for health care
coverage shall not exceed in 2021 12%, 2022 13%, 2023 14% of the fully funded
rates provided to the City by the plan's third-party administrator at the annual
plan renewal with a premium caps per pay period contributions by employees of:
1. 2021 single $44.58 and family $124.64
11. 2022 single $55 and family $145
111. 2023 single $65 and family $165.
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Section 24.2 Paid Insurance While on Workers' Compensation
While an officer is on
workers compensation as a direct result of his employment with the City, the City of Zanesville
agrees to continue paying his insurance premiums for up to six months provided that the
employee continues paying his or her share of the insurance cost established in Section 24.1.D.
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Section 24.3 Life Insurance Clause
The City will continue to provide the forty
thousand dollar ($40,000) life insurance policy currently in effect. It is the employee's
responsibility to notify the City of a change in the policy's beneficiary.
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Section 24.4 Insurance Grievances
A grievance alleging violation of the terms of this
Article shall proceed immediately to Step 3 in the grievance procedure pursuant to Section 13.15.
While decisions made by the city's insurance provider while processing claims in accordance
with the city's health plan are not grievable, issues involving whether or not the city changed its
plan in violation of Section 24.1 are grievable.
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ARTICLE25
CLOTHING ALLOWANCE
Section 25.1 Amount of Allowance
A.

Employees shall receive a one thousand dollar ($1,000.00) annual uniform
maintenance allowance to be paid out semi-annually in January and July to the
employee. Any new clothing changes required by the Chief, independent of the
uniform committee recommendation, shall be provided by the City at no cost to
the employee.

B.

The City will provide at no cost to the employee an III A Protection (under
current NU Standards) "THOR" or equivalent protection (Taser Protection) Vest;
two vest carriers with choice of extended coverage.

22
23
24
25
26
27
28

29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41

42
43

ARTICLE26
SICK LEAVE
Section 26.1 Accwnulation of Sick Leave
Each employee shall accumulate sick leave
with pay at the rate of 4.6 hours for each eighty (80) hours in paid status except that the
maximum accrual of sick leave shall not exceed 4.6 hours per period. Accumulation of sick leave
shall be unlimited.
Section 26.2 Uses of Sick Leave
A.

An employee may use sick leave:
1.

2.
3.

44
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4.

In case of his own illness or exposure to contagious disease;
Injury (on duty injuries after injury leave is used up);
For attendance to members of his household whose illness or injury
requires the care of the employee.
In the event of death in the employee's immediate family, a maximum of
five days of bereavement leave may be used for this purpose per
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occurrence. Bereavement leave will not be taken from sick leave. In
certain circumstances the Police Chief may authorize more than five (5)
days of bereavement leave except that only one occurrence of
bereavement leave shall be granted per year. Sick leave will be used for
additional occurrences. Employees may use up to (5) days for
bereavement leave for one time each calendar year for another individual
with whom the employee has a relationship.
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B.

As used in this section, the term "household" shall mean two or more persons
living together in a single dwelling unit and the term "immediate family" shall
mean husband, wife, child, stepchild, parent, stepparent, grandparent, spouse's
grandparent, mother-in-law, father-in-law, brother or sister of the employee, and
shall also mean brother or sister of the employee's spouse.

C.

All sick leave shall be charged in multiples of one (1) hour.
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Section 26.3 Request for Sick Leave Pay
Employees who are absent must request sick leave
pay in writing upon returning to work. In the written request, the employee must state his reason
for being absent. A doctor's certificate may be required, at the discretion of the Employer stating
the nature of the illness and the period of confinement after the employee is absent for more than
two (2) work days. The Police Chief may require an employee to furnish a doctor's certificate for
a lesser absence if there is reason to believe that the use of sick leave is being abused.
Section 26.4 Minimum Service for Sick Leaves
There shall be no minimum service
required prior to using sick leave. An employee may use sick leave as soon as sick leave hours
are accrued.
Section 26.5 Sick Leave Paid at Base Rate
current base rate of pay.

Pay for sick leave shall be at the employee's

Section 26.6 Unpaid Leave
When an employee receives his last check for sickness or
non-duty disability, he will be placed on leave without pay for a period not to exceed six months.
If at the end of that time, said employee is still unable to return to work, his employment shall be
terminated.
Section 26.7 Outside Employment While on Sick Leave
An employee, who is
self-employed or works for another Employer while on sick leave within sixteen (16) hours after
the start of their shift, shall be subject to disciplinary action including dismissal. However, if the
reasons for the sick leave usage are due to an injury, and the employee is capable of performing
limited or light duty assignments for the employer, the employee may perform other outside
work under the same restrictions.
Both parties are in agreement that after a proper
Section 26.8 Abuse of Sick Leave
investigation is conducted and the facts established that an employee did, in fact, abuse sick
leave, disciplinary action should be taken against such employee. An employee found to be
abusing the sick leave privilege by falsifying information will be subject to disciplinary action
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including dismissal. Abuse of sick leave shall also include overuse, which shall be defined as
more than five occurrences of sick leave use in a twelve-month period not counting approved
sick leave taken in the event of death in the employee's immediate family.
Section 26.9 Sick Leave Reciprocity
Each full-time employee with more than one (I)
year of service who works a forty (40) hour work schedule shall have the option of receiving
payment in cash for unused sick leave hours at the end of each payroll year, provided such
employee was entitled to sick leave benefits during said payroll year and provided further that
the employee was in paid status, based on the following calculation table.
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Sick Leave Used
During Payroll Year (Hours)

0-8
9 - 16
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34
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Sick Leave Reciprocity
Cash Payment (Hours)
48
32

17 - 24

24

25 - 32
33 or more

16

0

Each eligible full-time employee may elect to receive the Sick Leave Reciprocity Cash
Payment, or they may retain their accrued sick leave hours. The number of reciprocity hours
paid each employee will be subtracted from their total accrued sick leave. The remainder of the
employee's unused sick leave shall be carried forward each year. The payment shall be made at
the employee's base hourly rate. Payment shall be rendered during the first week of each year
and shall be separate from regular payroll.
Section 26.10 Termination of Employment Pay-Out
A.

No payment shall be made for accumulated sick leave at the time of termination
of employment except that a permanent employee with ten ( 10) or more years of
continuous service with the City may elect at the time of retirement from the City
to be paid in cash for one-third (1/3) of the value of his accrued but unused sick
leave credit. Such payment shall be based on the employee's rate of pay at the
time of retirement. Payment for sick leave on this basis shall be considered to
eliminate all sick leave credit accrued by the employee at that time. Such
payment shall be made only once to any employee. The maximum payment shall
be one-third of 1,500 hours.

B.

In the event an employee dies or is permanently disabled: (1) the ten (10) year
service requirement shall be waived, and (2) in the case of death, payment shall be
made to the estate of the deceased.
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ARTICLE27
INJURY LEAVE

4

Section 27 .1 Injury Leave
Seven (7) consecutive eight (8) hour days of injury leave
for each new injury (limit of three (3) such leaves per year) will be allowed with pay if an
employee is injured while working in the capacity of a police officer for the City of Zanesville.
Injury leave days do not accumulate year after year. The employee must make written request
for injury leave and provide a doctor's certificate stating the nature of the injury. However,
serious injuries that are a result of bona fide police work (i.e. assault from an aggressor or traffic
accident) shall be eligible for up to twenty-four (24) weeks of special injury leave. Additional
leave may be granted at the City's discretion. Injury leave is fully paid by the Employer and is in
lieu of Workers' Compensation. An employee who applies for special injury leave will apply to
BWC for medical benefits only and not lost income benefits.
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ARTICLE28
TRAINING AND EDUCATION
Section 28.1 Department Related Training
Employees attending approved trammg
sessions will be reimbursed for meals and other expenses when authorized. Employees who use
their private vehicle to attend approved training sessions will be reimbursed for travel mileage
when authorized. Reimbursements at the current rates established by City Council. Approved
training and education related to the Police Department's activities shall be paid for by the City
of Zanesville. Employees will be required to take appropriate police-related training or
retraining as deemed appropriate by the Police Chief.
Section 28.2 Tuition Reimbursement Program
The City shall share tuition reimbursement
expenses with employees interested in attaining a higher level of technical or general
competence through advanced education in such courses as may be determined by the Chief
Executive Officer upon prior approval to relate to the employee's job with the City and based on
the City policy.
Section 28.3 Reimbursement Amount
approved course shall be based on the City policy.

The City's share of the tuition cost of any

ARTICLE29
FILLING OF POSITIONS
A.

This section specifically covers appointments to the rank of Police Chief.
Promotions shall be administered through the Zanesville Civil Service
Commission Office. This article may be waived by the City in cases where the
position of Police Chief demands singularly exacting qualifications and
circumstances dictate that a competitive exam would be impractical (pursuant to
the case of Moore vs. Agin).
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B.

Whenever the Employer determines that a permanent vacancy exists, a notice of
such vacancy shall be posted on the bulletin board for fourteen (14) calendar days.
During the posting period, anyone wishing to apply for the vacant position shall
do so by submitting a written application to the Civil Service Commission. The
Civil Service Commission shall not be obligated to consider any applications
submitted after the posting period or received from applicants who do not meet
the minimum qualifications for the job. Employees may submit a bid on behalf of
other employees in their absence.

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

C.

Nothing in this section shall be construed to limit or prevent the Employer from
temporarily filling a vacant position with the member determined to be most
qualified in the opinion of the City's Administration. This temporary position may
be filled with any current member of the next lower rank pending the Employer's
determination to fill the vacancy on a permanent basis. Such temporary
assignments shall not exceed one hundred eighty (180) days. Temporary
assignments will not be used to fill a vacant position if an eligibility list exists.

D.

All timely filed applications shall be reviewed by the Civil Service Commission.
No employee shall be eligible to take the promotional exam until he has at least
one year in the next lower rank.

22

E.
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For promotional examinations, the Employer shall use a validated assessment
center.

F.

The assessment process shall be administered by a validated assessment provider
agreed upon by the parties. The assessment process shall consist of three
assessors one of whom shall be appointed by the Labor Council, one by the City
and shall be headed by a person provided by the provider. The Labor Council
appointed and City appointed assessors shall be persons who are neutral, not City
residents, and who are not associated or affiliated with the City and shall be
subject to approval by the provider. The Labor Council and the City will be
responsible for the qualifications of the assessors they appoint. The provider will
be responsible to indicate the qualifications necessary to be an assessor.

G.

The assessment center will make available to the City, the Labor Council, and the
candidates an eligibility list of all persons who passed the assessment process and
ranking them in order from the highest to lowest. There shall be a five (5)
calendar day appeal period of the eligibility list. The appeal must be filed with
the provider. The City shall appoint the highest-listed person to the vacant
position. Should that person refuse or be no longer eligible (through retirement,
disability, etc.), the next highest shall be appointed, and so on. The list is good
for twenty-four (24) months from the date of the final posted list.

H.

An employee who, without good cause, fails to appear for a scheduled exam shall
reimburse the City for the individual's cost of the exam up to a maximum of
$500. If the employee fails to do so within two weeks, the City may deduct the
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amount owed from the employee's pay.
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ARTICLE30
MISCELLANEOUS ECONOMIC
With prior approval, the City shall
Section 30.1 Expense Reimbursement
reimburse employees for all job related expenses, including meals, while working on required
special assignments. The employees must submit necessary receipts along with the request for
payment.
Section 30.2 Copies of Agreement
The Labor Council shall furnish each employee in
the bargaining unit a copy of the Agreement within thirty (30) days of the signing date of the
Agreement.
Section 30.3 Fitness Center
The City will contribute two hundred dollars ($200.00) per
participating employee each calendar year towards memberships in a mutually agreed fitness
center. The following is the procedure for obtaining this benefit:
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4.

Annually, beginning the first week of January, a notice will be placed on the
FOP/OLC Bulletin Board and the "pass around" to remind employees it is time
for the annual sign up.
Employees will personally go to the health club establishment and sign up. The
employee will advise the health club that the City of Zanesville will pay $200.00
toward annual membership.
The health club or employee will be responsible for turning an invoice into the
Zanesville Finance Director's Office by February 10.
Payment will normally be made to the "health club" by the City after the February
10 deadline.

ALTERNATIVELY, each participating employee may use his annual $200.00 fitness
contribution to purchase, either individually or in conjunction with one or more participating
employees, exercise equipment for exclusive use in the city gym. The employee expressly
understands and acknowledges that any equipment purchased under this provision must be
donated to the city gym, and such equipment becomes the sole property of the city. The
employee waives all rights of ownership in the donated equipment. Prior to purchasing any such
equipment, the employee(s) must have the choice of equipment approved in writing by the Chief
of Police or his designee. Payment of this fitness contribution to the employee shall be on a
reimbursement basis upon showing proof of a valid receipt, along with the Chiefs approval of
such purchase, to the Finance Director on or before February 10 of each year.
Section 30.4 City Legislation
The City agrees that it will adopt the necessary ordinances
to confirm and authorize the negotiated items in this Agreement.
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ARTICLE 31
WAIVER IN CASE OF EMERGENCY
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Section 31.1
In cases of emergency declared by the President of the United States, the
Governor of the State of Ohio, the Muskingum County Sheriff, the Mayor of Zanesville, or any
other authorized governmental official for acts of God or civil disorder, the following conditions
of this Agreement may be temporarily suspended by the Employer:
A.

Time Limits for the processing of grievances; and

B.

Selected work rules and/or agreements and practices relating to the assignment of
employees.
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Upon the termination of the emergency should valid grievances exist, they
Section 31.2
shall be processed in accordance with the provisions outlined in the grievance procedure of the
Agreement and shall proceed from the point in the grievance procedure to which they, the
grievance(s), had properly progressed prior to the emergency.
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ARTICLE 32
MID-TERM BARGAINING
Section 32.1 Bargaining
A.

Except where immediate action is required due to (1) exigent circumstances that
were unforeseen at the time of negotiations or (2) legislative action taken by a
higher level legislative body after the agreement became effective and requires a
change to conform to the statute, if the Employer finds it necessary to implement
a change during the term of this contract to a mandatory subject of bargaining,
and such change is not specifically addressed in this contract, the Employer shall
notify the OLC of the proposed change. The OLC may, within 10 calendar days
of such notice, submit a written demand to bargain the mandatory subject, in
which case the parties shall meet within 10 days of the OLC's demand.

B.

If the Employer takes immediate action due to "exigent circumstances" or
"legislative action" as noted in section (A) above, this article does not limit the
OLC's rights before the State Employment Relations Board.
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Section 32.2 Mediation
A.

If the parties have not reached agreement within 30 days of the OLC's demand to
bargain, the parties will engage in mediation until resolution is reached or impasse
is declared by either party. The mediator shall be assigned by the State
Employment Relations Board.
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Section 32.3 Arbitration
A.

4

If the parties have not reached agreement after mediation pursuant to Section 32.2
above, the parties shall submit the disputed issue(s) to arbitration. Arbitration will
be held under the regulations in ORC Chapter 4117 and rules promulgated by the
State Employment Relations Board for conciliation except as modified herein.
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B.

Within 30 days of receipt of the arbitrator's decision, the Employer shall either:
(1) implement the modifications in the conditions of employment in accordance
with the arbitrator' s decision, or (2) abandon the proposed changes in the
conditions of employment and maintain the status quo.
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C.

The cost of arbitration shall be paid equally by the parties, except each party shall
be responsible for its own attorney's and/or consultant's fees.
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Section 32.4 Employer May Abandon Proposed Changes

A.

The Employer may abandon the proposed changes in the conditions of
employment at any time during the process described herein and maintain the
status quo.
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ARTICLE 33
DURATION
A.

The effective date of this Agreement shall be the date of execution. This
Agreement shall remain in effect through December 31, 2023.

B.

If either party desires to modify or change this Agreement, it shall give electronic
notice to such effect not later than September 1, of the year the contract expires.
Negotiations shall then proceed as specified in The Ohio Revised Code. Upon the
delivery of such notice, the parties shall meet with respect to a new Agreement
sufficiently in advance of the expiration date so as to enable the parties in their
attempts to reach an agreement prior to expiration.

C.

This Agreement constitutes the sole and entire existing written Agreement
between the parties.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hand this _ _ day of
- - - - - ~ 2021.

FOR THE CITY:

FORTHELABORCOUNCIL:

Donald Mason, Mayor

Tonya M. Sapp, FOP/OLC General Counsel

David Tarbert, Law Director

Scott Comstock, Captain

Doug Merry, Safety Director

Christopher Phipps, Captain
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Tony Coury, Chief of Police

Kade Haddox, Budget & Finance Director

Jonathan J. Downes, Labor Counsel
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Doug Merry
Public Safety Director
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-131
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
RATIFYING THE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING WITH FRATERNAL
ORDER OF POLICE, OHIO LABOR COUNCIL, INC. (POLICE CAPTAINS)
REGARDING A ONE-TIME LUMP SUM PAYMENT TO BE PAID FOLLOWING THE
RATIFICATION AND EXECUTION OF THE 2021-2023 COLLECTIVE BARGAINING
AGREEMENT, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY

WHEREAS, a Memorandum of Understanding (attached hereto and incorporated as
though fully rewritten herein) ("Memorandum") has been agreed to by and between the Fraternal
Order of Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc. (Police Captains); and
WHEREAS, City Council must adopt the terms of the Memorandum in order for it to go
into full effect regarding processing of the payment terms incorporated into the Memorandum;
and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 4117.10 (B), City Council must
approve or reject the proposed agreement within 30 days of its introduction or the agreement will
be deemed approved, making it necessary for this ordinance to be declared an emergency
measure so as to not jeopardize the health, safety, and welfare of our citizens by threatening the
efficient service of the Police Captains.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville,
· State of Ohio, that:
SECTION ONE: Council hereby ratifies, approves, and adopts the Memorandum of
Understanding attached hereto, signed by the Public Safety Director and representatives of
Fraternal Order of Police, Ohio Labor Council, Inc., (Police Captains), regarding the one-time
lump sum payment signing bonus.
SECTION TWO: For the reasons stated above, upon the affirmative votes of six (6) or
more members of Council, this ordinance shall be deemed an emergency and take effect and be
in force immediately upon its passage and approval by the Mayor. Otherwise, it shall take effect
and be in force from and after the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED: - - - - -, 2021

Susan Culbertson
Clerk of Council

Daniel Vincent
President of Council

Ordinance No. 2021-131

APPROVED: - - - -~ 2021

This legislation approved as to form:

Donald Mason, Mayor

David Tarbert, City Law Director

City of Zanesville - FOP (Captains)
Lump Sum Payment-Memorandum of Understanding- 10.29.21

Memorandum of Understanding
This Memorandum of Understanding is made by and between the City of Zanesville and the
Fraternal Order of Police (hereinafter referred to as "the Parties").
The Parties agree that all Police Captains employed as of the ratification of the Parties' 2021-2023
collective bargaining agreement ("CBA") will receive a one-time lump sum payment to be paid
following ratification and execution ofthe 2021-2023 CBA. The one-time lump sum payment shall
be calculated by multiplying $132.93 by the number of full pay periods in 2021 prior to ratification
by both Parties of the 2021-2023 CBA.

FOR THE EMPLOYER:

Date Agreed: _ _ _ _ __

FOR THE UNION:

Department of Public Service
Andrew Roberts, Chair
ORDINANCE NO. 2021 -132
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE PROPER CITY OFFICIAL TO SUBMIT A
REVISED COMBINED SEWER OVERFLOW LONG TERM CONTROL PLAN
TO THE OHIO ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY.
WHEREAS, the City of Zanesville has been required by the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency
(OEPA) to have an approved combined sewer overflow Long Term Control Plan (LTCP) , which was
approved on June 17, 2008 ; and
WHEREAS, the City of Zanesville selected AECOM per Ohio Revise·d Code 153.65 - 153.71 for
assistance in making revisions to the LTCP ; and
WHEREAS, Phase 1 of the LTCP update, as authorized by Ord . No. 17-87, was successfully
completed with OEPA agreeing to modify the City of Zanesville NPDES permit to allow the City to submit an
updated LTCP by December 31, 2020; and
WHEREAS, Phase 2 of the LTCP update, as authorized by Ordinance No. 19-09, was successfully
completed with submission to and review of the LTCP Phase 2 Technical memo by OEPA; and
WHEREAS, Phase 3 of the LTCP update, as authorized by Ordinance No. 20-66, was successfully
completed with development of alternatives for a draft LTCP and the OEPA agreeing to a new submittal date
of December 31 , 2021 to allow for public involvement; and
WHEREAS, Phase 4 of the LTPC update, as authorized by Ordinance No. 21-51 that included the
following: alternative selection, public outreach , financial affordability analysis, and the submittal of the LTCP
Update to OEPA is nearing completion ; and
WHEREAS, the administration is prepared to submit to OEPA the revised LTCP substantially similar
to the attached and meet the OEPA deadline.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED , by the Council of the City of Zanesville, State of Ohio , that:
SECTION ONE: The Public Service Director is hereby authorized to submit a revised combined
sewer overflow Long Term Control Plan to the Ohio Environmental Protection Agency, in form substantially
similar to Exhibit A, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference.
SECTION TWO: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period
allowed by law.

PASSED:

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _, 2021

ATTEST:

APPROVED:

SUSAN CULBERTSON,
Clerk of Council

DANIEL M. VINCENT,
President of Council

- - - - - - - - - - - ' 2021

THIS LEGISLATION APPROVED
AS TO FORM

DONALD MASON,
Mayor

LAW DIRECTOR'S OFFICE

Ordinance No. 2021-132
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Prepared for:
City of Zanesville
Scott Brown
Public Service Director
401 Market Street
Zanesville, Ohio 43701

Prepared by:
AECOM
277 West Nationwide Blvd
Columbus, OH 43215
aecom.com
AECOM Project Number: 60634897

Copyright © 2021 by AECOM
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1.

Executive Summary

1.1

Background
The City of Zanesville, Ohio (City) submitted a Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO) LongTerm Control Plan (LTCP) in accordance with the Ohio Environmental Protection
Agency (OEPA) National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Pen-nit in
2007. The LTCP included a phased approach to performing sewer separation, pump
station upgrades, and sewer and pump station rehabilitation projects in the collection
s.ystem and upgrades to increase the wet weather capacity at the City's wastewater
Treatment Plant (WWTP) to address the City's CSOs. The LTCP was approved by
OEPA in 2008 and subsequently incorporated into the City's NPDES Permit
(0PE00000) Schedule of Compliance.
Under the existing LTCP, the City has been performing sewer separation and sewer
rehabilitation projects, upgrades to the WWTP, and a complete overhaul of the Y-Bridge
Uft Station, investing over $41 Million on the LTCP implementation. Through
implementation of the approved LTCP, the City has made substantial progress in
reducing the amount of CSOs in the collection system and has already eliminated
several CSO outfalls.
In 2018, the City began discussions with OEPA regarding evaluating, and updating the
LTCP. As the remaining projects to be completed under the existing LTCP are
increasingly more complex and expensive, the City wanted to evaluate the current
performance of their system and to consider new future alternatives and investigate
potential sources of inflow to the system that were not previously evaluated. In 2018
OEPA provided approval for the City to perform investigations of the collection system
and modified the City's NPDES Permit to require a LTCP Update be submitted in
December 2020. The main objectives of the LTCP Update are to:
•

Evaluate the performance of the separation projects completed to date

•

Review the City's current financial ability to complete future projects

•

Update the hydraulic model to be more robust and to incorporate additional
areas of the collection system

•

Collect flow monitoring data to evaluate the conditions of the existing· collection
system

•

Evaluate future goals and alternatives, and

•

Investigate potential factors not previously considered (i.e. river water intrusion,

1/1).
The City began performing field investigations, GIS updates, flow monitoring, and
hydraulic modeling to characterize the system and the thirteen (13) remaining active
CSOs. The City refers to the CSO outfalls as 'racks' and has. assigned a rack number
(e.g. R2) to identify each CSO outfall. This report primarily utilizes the City's rack
identification system when referring to CSO outfalls.
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The City continues to implement separation projects from the LTCP, and separation of
R6 and RS through R11 along with Y Bridge Pump Station force main improvements
are currently under design. The City was nominated for $5.8 Million of 0% CSO
Discount Loans through WPCLF for these separation projects which are scheduled to
begin construction in 2022. The City is also in the process of rehabilitating the Linden
Avenue Pump Station, which includes the replacement of pumps to maintain existing
design capacity.

1.2

Integrated Planning Approach
This LTCP Update has been developed in accordance with US EPA regulatory
requirements and guidance utilizing an Integrated Planning Approach to address
traditional CSO community requirements and the more recent integrated planning
methodologies. ,n 2019, the Water Infrastructure and Improvements.Act (WIIA) was
signed into law which adds a new Section 402(s) to the Clean Water Act (CWA) to
include the 2012 Integrated Municipal Stormwater and Wastewater Planning Approach
Framework. In addition, US EPA also published a pre-publication of the 2021 Financial
Capability Analysis for CWA schedule development in January 2021. The 2021 FCA
allows communities to more accurately demonstrate the financial burden of funding
CWA projects and programs and was used as guidance in the development of this
LTCP Update.
The Integrated Planning Approach provides municipalities flexibility in addressing all of
their CWA requirements to develop cost-effective solutions,. The City developed, a
project team of City staff across several departments to aid in performing field
investigations, reviewing data, identifying historical issues, documenting, existing CWA
regulatory efforts and developing the LTCP Update. As part of the LTCP Update the
WWTP, combined sewer system, separate sewer system, and MS4 were evaluated as
part of the system characterization.

1.3

LTCP Update Development
The LTCP Update included flow monitoring throughout the City to gain a better
understanding of the system response to dry and wet weather flows. Th& flow
monitoring data was used to calibrate the Personal Computer Stormwater
Management Model (PCSWMM) hydraulic model created for the LTCP Update.
As part of the LTCP Update, the hydraulic model was constructed and calibrated using
extensive field investigation and flow monitoring data. The collection system was
delineated into sewershed basins and the model was used to develop alternative
solutions to control overflows in the collection system and at the 'INNTP. Flow
monitoring data was also used to identify areas of 1/1 and determine the effects on the
system. Seventeen ( 17) flow monitors were installed and evaluated during the period
from June 6, 2019 through November 7, 2019.To identify areas of river water intrusion
(RWI), the City evaluated river gage data and flow monitoring data. These activities are
an important component of the adaptive management strategy to optimize the selected
CSO control alternatives.
Numerous potential solutions were evaluated in the collection system and at the
WWTP to develop alternatives to provide the desired level of CSO control. Several
types of information were considered during the development phase including City staff
tlistorical knowledge, data review, hydraulic modelling, and public input. The City
evaluated the following potential control solutions as part of this LTCP Update:
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1.4

•

Source Controls

•

1/1 and Conveyance Upgrades

•

Storage and Treatment Technologies

•

Best Management Practices

•

VWJTP Upgrades

LTCP Update Selected Alternative and Cost
The City evaluated several city-wide alternatives that would meet or exceed the goal of
reducing the number of CSO occurrence to four (4) or less during the typical year in
accordance with the CSO Control policy presumptive approach. Post-construction
monitoring will be performed to demonstrate the attainment of was in accordance with
CWA requirements upon completion of this LTCP Update. The selected alternative has
been simulated using the hydraulic model and is being recommended based on a
planning level feasibility analysis and estimated costs of implementation.
The selected alternative includes Early Action, infiltration and inflow (l/1) and
conveyance upgrades, storage, VWJTP Upgrade projects, and programmatic reviews.
The estimated cost of the selected alternative is $38 Million (2021 dollars) and is
summarized in Table 1-1. These cost estimates are representative of total project costs
including construction, engineering design and construction oversight, permitting costs
and contingencies.
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Table 1-1. LTCP Update Selected Alternative Summary
LTCP Update
Projects

Description

Estimated Cost

Early Action Projects

Projects in the planning or design phase $10,154,000
including the Linden Avenue Lift Station
upgrades,, the Y-Bridge Pump Station
Force Main improvements and NPDES
Permit sewer separation projects (R6
and RB-11)

Ill and Conveyance
Upgrades

Sewer separation and RWI projects
throughout the collection system along
with regulator modifications

Storage

In-line and off-line storage and
associated pumping capacity

WJVTP Upgrades

Improvements to increase the WWTP
wet weather treatment capacity to 36
MGD

$1,315,000

$12,260,000

$14,165,000

Programmatic Reviews Evaluation of system performance
$120,000
following each phase of LTCP Update (3
phases)

Total

$38,020,000

Early Action Projects - The sewer separation projects in R6 and R8 through R11 are
required to be completed under the City's existing NPDES Permit. The design of these
projects was underway during the development of this LTCP Update and the City plans
to move forward with construction of these project regardless of the selected
alternative for the collection system. The City also plans to upgrade the pumping
capacity of the Y-Bridge Pump Station by adding an additional pump and upsIzing the
force main. In addition, the City is currently in design phases of the Linden Avei:,ue Lift
Station upgrades project which will maintain the existing design capacity of the lift
station.
Infiltration and Inflow (1/1) and Conveyance Upgrades - Sewer separation in the
R 13 sewershed and R30 sewershed were included as viable inflow reduction projects.
The City plans on completing R 13 combined sewer separation by constructing the
remaining sanitary sewer extents to convert the R13 CSO outfall into a dedicated storm
outfall. In the R30 sewershed the City plans on removing the one known sanitary
connection into the combined sewer and converting the R30 CSO outfall to a storm
outfall. The City also plans on pursuing RWI remediation at R3 and R14 via end-of-pipe
solutions for additional inflow reduction in these areas. Proposed conveyance
upgrades include CSO regulator modifications at R 12 and R26. To maximize the
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existing capacity of the combined collection system, the City plans to raise the existing
weir at R12. Based on field investigations and hydraulic modeling the City is pursuing
closure of the R26 CSO outfall by performing improvements at the R26 regulator
structure and associated piping.
Storage - Storage was considered the most cost-effective, feasible option for CSO
control at R3 and R21. The City plans to provide in-line storage at R3 via an oversized
gravity sewer. At R21 a storage array and 1 MGD pump station are proposed to
provide required hydraulic relief.
WWTP Upgrades - The City's WWTP currently has a wet weather capacity of 25
MGD. The WWTP will be upgraded to treat a wet weather capacity of 36 MGD which
will be achieved by removing existing hydraulic bottlenecks through upgrades and
improving treatment efficiency of existing units.
Programmatic Reviews - Programmatic reviews will allow the City to evaluate the
performance of constructed projects and determine whether adjustments are required
for future phase projects. The City plans on conducting flow monitoring and a
programmatic review following each phase of the three-phased LTCP Update
Implementation Schedule.

Implementation of the Selected LTCP Update Alternative will reduce the total CSO
volume during a typical year from approximately 56.4 MG/year to 14.9 MG/year, or a
73.6% system wide overflow volume reduction. The Selected LTCP Update Alternative
was modeled to predict the estimated number of overflows system-wide and the total
volume from each CSO. Table 1-2 provides a comparison of the existing conditions
and the predicted LTCP Update modeling results for each CSO. The selected
alternative is described in further detail in Section 11.
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Table 1-2. Existing Condition and Predicted LTCP Update CSO Occurrence and
Volume Modelling Results
CSO Outfall
City Rack
Number

Existing Condition

NPDES
Permit

Number of
Overflows
(#/yr)

cso

Overflow
Volume
(MG/yr)

Predicted LTCP Update
Number of
Overflows
(#/yr)

Overflow
Volume
(MG/yr)

Overflow
Volume·%
Reduction

8.6

50.0,%

0

100%

Station
Number

R2

005

R3

006

R4

007

Closed

R5

008

Closed

R6

009

R7

010

R8

011

9

1.7

0

0

1.00%

R9

012

20

6.9

0

0

1,00%

R10

013

9

1.2

0

0

100%

R11

014

1

0.1

0

0

1,00%

R12

015

4

1.0

1

0.2

80%

R13

016

57

7.5

0

0

100%

R14

017

4

2.7

4

2.2

18.5%

Closed

33

22

17.2

7.0

4

0
Closed

I

R15

018

Closed

R17

020

Closed

R18

021

Closed

R19

022

Closed

R21

024

14

10.5

4

3.9

62.9%

R26

029

6

0.6

0

0

100%

R30

052

0

0

0

0

-

14.9

73.6%

Total

1.5

56.4

.

Implementation Schedule
The LTCP Update Implementation Schedule (Schedule) has been developed in
consideration of several regulatory requirements including the CSO Control Policy, the
Integrated Planning Approach and the US EPA Financial Capability Assessment. Based
on these documents, the City has developed a 25-year implementation schedule
utilizing a phased approach. Early Action Projects will be completed at the beginning of
the implementation schedule followed by high priority/high impact proJects. Th.e
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Schedule has been developed in three phases each with a review period at the end of
the phase to allow the City to evaluate the performance of the projects from the
previous phase and serves as an evaluation mechanism for future phase projects.
Upon completion of projects identified in the schedule, the City plans to perform post
construction compliance monitoring (PCCM) at remaining CSO locations. During the
review periods and the PCCM, the City will collect and review data, calibrate the
hydraulic model and modify the LTCP Update as necessary. Modifications to the LTCP
Update may include revision of selected project, future project sizing, and schedule
modifications. A report detailing the review and any proposed modifications will be
submitted to OEPA. The City's 25-year implementation schedule is included in Section

13.

P111pared f0r: Zanesville. Ohio
60634897

AECOM

7

Attachment to Ordinance No. 2021-132
Long-Term Control Plan Update

2.

Background
The City submitted the CSO LTCP to OEPA on June 12, 2007. The LTCP was
approved on June 17, 2008 and the City began completing projects identified in the
plan. The LTCP included separation projects and infrastructure upgrades to be
completed by December 1, 2022. The LTCP was later approved for amendment by
OEPA in 2014 and 2016. The City continues to implement separation projects from the
approved LTCP and has several ongoing projects in the planning, design or
construction phase for sewer separation, 'NWTP modifications, and pump station
upgrades. Twelve (12) racks (CSO outfalls) remain active. The following is a summary
of past project performance and relevant studies performed by the City.

2.1

2007 LTCP Report
On July 23, 2003, the City of Zanesville was issued OEPA NPDES Permit No.
OPE00000*ND, which required preparation of an LTCP to control CSOs. In 2007, the
City submitted the LTCP to the OEPA to control CSOs by performing sewer separation
and 'NWTP upgrades. The recommended alternative included a phased approach to
completing sewer separation projects in addition to a wastewater treatment plant
(Y'NYTP) expansion, targeted river water intrusion protection and sewer rehabilitation
for a total estimated cost of $68 Million (assumed to be in 2007 Dollars). The LTCP,
which was approved in June 2008, provided the following key information and
recommendations:
1 . System characterization of the collection system for the interceptors, local
sewers, CSO structures, river crossing siphon, and pump stations
2. Characterization of the VVVI/TP on Moxahala Avenue in addition to the results of
a stress test that showed the WNTP was capable of a maximum wet weather
flow of 20 MGD
3. An EPA-SWMM based collection system hydraulic model that was calibrated
with flow data collected during 1997 through 1999 and recalibrated with
additional data collected from February to June of 2005
4. Pollutant loadings evaluation of the Licking and Muskingum Rivers for an
assessment of the effects of CSOs on river conditions, which found that the
Muskingum River does not attain Ohio Water Quality Standards for bacteria
prior to reaching Zanesville, and that removal o.f all CSOs in the Zanesville
system would have minimal impact on the river in achieving attainment tor this
parameter
5. Selection of the separation approach to control CSOs through the construction
of new sanitary sewers and the conversion of existing combined sewers into
storm sewers, in addition to the application of community standards to ensure
that alternatives control odor, improve aesthetics, and protect public health
6. Selection of targeted sewer rehabilitation, river water intrusion prevention, and
expansion of the WWTP from 20 to 36.2 MGD to provide additional CSO control
7. Analysis of the financial impacts to the community due to implementation of the
LTCP, which concluded that the 'NWTP upgrade and sewer separation projects
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totaling $68 million are a high burden for the City based on OEPA and US EPA
guidelines
CSO sewershed separation prioritization was completed based on cost per gallon of
CSO removed and the City's debt service, with separation projects being scheduled to
coincide with the retirement of existing wastewater loans. Table 2-1 depicts the
schedule of completed projects and associated costs for completed projects. While it
should be noted that although the majority of the R 13 basin was separated by projects
completed in 2004 and 2010, additional work is required before the CSO location can
be eliminated.
Table 2-1. LTCP Schedule of Completed Projects
Project Name

Description

Year Completed

Cost*

R13 Separation...

R 13 service area separation and CSO
elimination

Phase I: 2004
Phase II: 2010

$1,880,744

Southend Sewer
Rehabilitation

5-year program to remove rainfall derived

2008

$1,085,616

WWTP Expansion,
Phase I

Completion of WWTP expansion to provide 2007
peak wet weather capacity of 36.2 MGD

WWTP Expansion,
Phase II

2009

1/1
$28, 172,000

R17 and R19
Separation

R17 and R19 service area separation and
CSO elimination

2010

$363,440

R18 Separation

R 18 service area separation and CSO
elimination

2011

$838,300

2012

$49,000

2014

$1,442,450

2015

$3,337,000

2016

$1,028,000

Total

$38,176,550

R21 river water intrusion prevention
R21 River Water
Intrusion Prevention
R4 and R5
Separation

R4 and R5 service area separation and
CSO elimination

Y-Bridge Lift Station Upgrade of Y-Bridge Lift Station capacity
Upgrades
from 10 MGD to 14.4 MGD
R2 and R7
Separation

R2 and R7 service area separation and
CSO elimination

Notes:
* Costs are actual dollars spent and are not in 2021 Dollars.
... Separation projects were performed in the R13 sewershed, however, due to the complex;ty
of railroad crossings, this area was not completely separated and a portion remains combined.

Table 2-2 summarizes the remaining projects in the 2007 LTCP including
anticipated completion year and estimated cost in 2021 Dollars. It should be noted that
project costs were adjusted from 2007 Dollars using a 4-percent annual compounding
inflation rate except for the ongoing project for sewer separation at R6. RB, R9, R10,
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R11 and Y-Bridge Pump Station force main improvements. Costs for these ongoing
projects are based on engineers estimates at the time this report was developed
(2021).

Table 2-2.2007 LTCP Schedule of Projects to be Completed

Project Name

Description

2007 LT~P Estimated
Completion Cost*
Year

CSO R6, RB, R9,
R10, R11 Separation
and Y-Bridge PS
Force Main
Improvements

R6, RB through R11 service area 2021
separation and CSO elimination

$7,444,00o-

CSO R3 Separation

R3 service area separation and
CSO elimination

2022

$9,409,000

CSO R 12 Separation R12 service area separation and 2022
CSO elimination

$6,.030,000

CSO R14 Separation R14 service area separation and 2022
CSO elimination

$9,947,000

CSO R21 Separation R21 service area separation and 2022
CSO elimination

$15,040,000

CSO R26 Separation R26 service area separation and 2022
CSO elimination

$2,32B,OOO

Total

$50,198,000

Notes:
• Estimated costs aro projected from 2007 LTCP to 2021 Dollars.
** Based on Engineer's Opinion of Probable Cost for CSO R6, RB, R9, R10, R11
Separation and Y..Bridge Force Main Improvements Project currently under design.
In 2014, the OEPA provided approval of a City requested amendment to the 2007
LTCP. The LTCP was amended to allow for the installation of new storm sewers in
addition to new sanitary sewers to separate a CSO tributary basin and eliminate
discharges during a typical year of rainfall.
In 2016, the City submitted a request to OEPA to modify the LTCP schedule in the
NPDES Permit Part l,C - Schedule of Compliance. The request for modification was
made to update the PTI submittal date for R3, R6, R12, R14, R21, and R26.
In 2018, the City began discussion with OEPA about evaluating and updating the LTCP.
The City submitted several correspondence to the OEPA regarding the status and
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objectives of the LTCP Update efforts. Key OEPA correspondence documents related
to the LTCP Update process have been included Appendix A.

2.2

NPDES Permit Schedule of Compliance Summary
The City of Zanesville NPDES Permit effective April 1, 2016 provided a Schedule of
Compliance for CSO LTCP implementation. The OEPA approved an update to the
NPDES Permit Part I, C - Schedule of Compliance in June of 2018 to include the
following language and compliance dates:
1. The City shall complete construction and obtain operation of the separation
projects for sewer collection areas tributary to regulators RB, R9, R10 and R11
by December 31, 2019.
2. The City shall submit an updated LTCP by December 31, 2020.
3. The City shall complete construction of all LTCP projects and attain operation
by December 1, 2022.
In August 2020, the City submitted an application to OEPA to renew the current NPDES
Permit (0PE000O0*SD) in accordance with the 5-year permit term which expired
January 31, 2021. Once the terms of the LTCP Update are finalized, the City assumes
that the LTCP Update will be incorporated in the NPDES Permit Schedule· of
Compliance and will submit all required applications to modify or renew the NPDES
Permit accordingly.
In December 2020, the City submitted a request to the OEPA to modify the Schedule of
Compliance under their existing NPDES Permit such that the LTCP Update shall be
submitted no later than December 31, 2021.

2.3

Nine Minimum Contr,ols Implementation
As part of the City's NPDES Permit, the City is required to implement the Nine
Minimum Controls (NMC) under the US EPA CSO Control Policy. All communities with
CSOs are required to create and submit a Combined Sewer System Operational Pran
(CSSOP). The CSSOP is submitted to document how the community will execute the
NMCs for CSOs. The City continues to implement the NMCs:
1. Routine inspection, operation and maintenance of the system
2. Maximize use of collection system for storage during wet weather
3. Review and modification of pretreatment program
4. Maximization of flow to Publicly Owned Treatment Works (POTW)' for treatment
5. Elimination of dry weather overflows
6. Control of solid or floatable materials in CSO discharges
7. Monitoring, inspection and reporting of CSOs
8. Pollution prevention to reduce CSO impacts
9. Public notification of any areas that are affected by CSOs, especially beaches
and water recreational areas
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Each community with CSOs must provide documentation on specific actions that have
been taken to implement all minimum controls in their CSSOP. If a minimum control is
not applicable to a community, this must also be explained in the plan such that all
controls have been identified and commented on.
The City of Zanesville prepared a CSSOP which was originally developed in 1988 and
updated in 2005 as new system data became available. The CSSOP was developed to
document the NMCs currently being implemented or proposed to be implemented by·
the City to reduce CSO discharges and maximize the existing system infrastructure.
On July 23, 2019, OEPA performed a CSO/NMC Inspection to review the City's
compliance with the requirements in the Zanesville WWTP NPDES Permit
0PE00000*SD. Toe inspection found that the City is in compliance with the NMCs in
coordination with their CSSOP as summarized below.
1. Operation and Maintenance Program
City staff operates and maintains the wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) and
collection system, though operators and maintenance staff function as separate
departments. The City owns a televising camera, and inspections are
historically implemented on a complaint-driven basis. The City maintains O&M
manuals for all unit processes and equipment at the WWTP, as well as for the
CSO regulators. The City does not have an O&M manual for regular sewer
cleaning and maintenance. The City is developing a GIS app to track assets
and maintenance.
The City owns four (4) pump stations which are inspected three (3) times per
week. Three of the four have a dedicated backup generator, and the fourth
received a backup generator following an upgrade in 2020. CSO regulators are
inspected daily during dry weather and then repeatedly throughout the day
during or following precipitation events. City staff documents inspection findings
upon return to the facility.
2. Maximum Use of the Collection System for Storage
The weirs at each of the CSOs are set to 2"-6" above the invert of the combined
sewer. The combination of the low weirs and the bottleneck caused by 24" trunk
sewer flowing into the interceptor connection pipe (8") allows CSOs to
discharge relatively easily, and before the WWTP reaches peak capacity.
The interceptor leading to the WWTP is approximately 9,000 linear feet of 60"
sewer. When the VVWTP reaches peak sustainable capacity, staff are able to
partially close the influent gate and use the interceptor for storage. The City
owns two vac trucks for sewer cleaning to remove deposited sediments.
AJI of the CSOs have either an end of pipe duckbill: or flap-gate to reduce river
water intrusion (RWI). The City recently recalibrated flow meters to detect flow
direction and discovered significant RWI, which occupies considerable sewer
and treatment capacity. RWI is particularly problematic at R14 where, unless
the CSO is discharging, RWI appears to be constant. The outfall is submerged
and the regulator is likely below river level due to a dam immediately
downstream and, while the duckbill prevents most RWl, the City staff suspects
that river water is still infiltrating at pipe joints. Raising the weir elevation is
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unlikely to reduce RWI (though it would likely reduce CSO discharges and/or
volume).
3. Review and Modification of Pretreatment Program
The City has an OEPA approved pretreatment program. The City has 15
significant industrial users and 15 non-significant industrial users, though most
are food processing facilities, so discharge of organic or metal pollutants via
CSOs is not a major concern. The City has discussed discharge during wet
weather events with its largest flow contributor, but the user has no ability to
withhold flow.
4. Maximization of Flow to POTW for Treatment
Wastewater received at the VV\/1/TP receives secondary treatment via trickling
filter and activated sludge processes operated in series. The facility is designed
to treat an instantaneous peak flow of 36 MGD, though stress tests have
demonstrated that it can achieve an instantaneous peak of 30 MGD and'
sustainable peak of 27 MGD. At these peak flows, a hydraulic bottleneck riear
the head of the plant results in wastewater splashing out of the shallow
channels of the primary screens. City staff believe that an upgrade to this
portion of the facility would increase the overall treatment: capacity.
There is a se.condary treatment bypass which diverts primary effluent directly to
the chlorine contact tanks, bypassing both the trickling filters and aeration
basins. This bypass is activated at 27 MGD and is used to redirect
instantaneous peak flows that could disrupt secondary treatment operation. A
second bypass allows wastewater to skip the trickling filters and flow directly to
the aeration basins, though this bypass is rarely used.
5. Prohibition of Dry Weather Overflows
Four outfalls are equipped with a flow meter to detect overflows, including
during dry weather. The City visually inspects its outfall regulators daily during
dry weather. City staff have not recorded a dry weather overflow in many years.
6. Control of Solid and Floatable Materials in CSO Discharges
Sewers are cleaned primarily on a complaint-driven basis.
7. Required Inspection. Monitoring, and Reporting of CSOs
Four of the CSOs (006, 009, 017, and 024) are equipped with a flow meter to
record occurrences and volume. Reporting of occurrences at all other CSOs is
dependent on inspections conducted daily and during precipitation events. All
monitoring has been reported in accordance with the permit.
8. Pollution Prevention to Reduce CSO Impacts
The City owns two street sweepers which operate regularly and offers yardwaste removal in the fall. Catch basins and open ditches in known problem
areas are cleaned frequently. Catch basins that flow directly to the river are
appropriately labelled if they have been replaced recently, though this has not
been completed city-wide.
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9. Public Notification for Any Areas Affected by CSOs
The City has installed appropriate signage at its outfalls_The City website
includes information on CSOs and brochures are frequently provided for public
education in sewer bills and at event booths.

2.4

Fecal Coliform Study
The City's CSSOP included a Fecal Colifonn Characterization Study Muskingum River
and Area Tributaries dated November 1997. The report provided an analysis of the
fecal coliform densities in the Muskingum River upstream and downstream of the City's
CSOs. The City contracted Hull & Associates, Inc. to perform a similar study in 2018.
The results of the Fecal Coliform Study Memorandum dated November 2019
presented the following conclusions:
•

Comparison of the 2018 data to the 1997 data indicated an overall decrease in
fecal colifonn densities at a majority of the sampling locations

•

During the period between sampling years E. Coli limits were lowered for water
quality evaluation metrics (which could affect the attainment designation of the
Muskingum and Licking Rivers)

•

The bacteria impact on the Muskingum and Licking Rivers occurs upstream of
the Zanesville POTW

•

The CSO fecal colifonn loading calculated using average values and
streamflow estimates contributes less than 6% of the total fecal coliform load in
the Muskingum River.

There is not currently an approved TMDL for the Muskingum River or the Licking River
near the mouth. OEPA is in the process of studying the Muskingum River and collecting·
sampling data.

2.5

Y-Bridge Pump Station Capacity Study
In 2014 the City completed the Y-Bridge Pump Station Upgrades project which involved
existing pump replacement to increase its wet weather capacity from 10 MGD to 14.4
MGD. In August 2015 CH2M Hill performed a capacity study and condition
assessment of the upgraded Y-Bridge Pump Station and its associated 24-inch effluent
force main. The study included a condition assessment of the 24-inch effluent force
main, evaluation of the existing capacity at the Y-Bridge Pump Station, and
development of recommendations for additional capacity.
A key finding from the 2015 study was. that the 2014 upgrades project resulted in a
maximum capacity of 14.4 MGD with three pumps in operation (and a fourth pump out
of service to meet firm pumping capacity). Condition assessment of the effluent force
main showed an estimated coefficient of friction {Hazen-Williams "C" Value) of 96-199,
indicating that the existing 24-inch diameter effluent force main was in ,good condition
considering its age. In addition, the study concluded that there is currently no
additional capacity in the existing 24-inch effluent force main.
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3.

Purpose
The purpose of any LTCP is to provide site-specific, cost-effective CSO controls that
will provide for attainment of water quafity standards. According to US EPA Guidance
Documents, a LTCP should provide flexibility to municipalities given the variable
impacts of CSOs on water quality and the ability of different municipalities to afford
varying levels of CSO control. The LTCP should evaluate a reasonable range of CSO
control alternatives and varying control levels within those alternatives, using
affordability as a consideration to help guide selection of the CSO control alternative.
As part of the LTCP Update, the City has used the Integrated Municipal Storrnwater
and Wastewater Planning Approach which will serve to address multiple City owned
infrastructure issues at once by performing projects that have overlapping benefits to
the 'N'NTP, collection system, and storm sewer system.
The main components of this updated LTCP include the following items:
•

Summary of the City's previous CSO program efforts, including review of the
existing LTCP, LTCP Evaluation and NPDES Permit.

•

Establishment of a site-specific LTCP planning approach and development of a
decision-making process to review, evaluate, and select CSO control
alternatives.

•

Characterization of the existing system, to include the existing system
components (YINVTP, pump stations, interceptors, CSO structures/overflows,
siphons), and preparation of a hydraulic model that accurately simulates wet
weather impacts on the existing system.

•

Alternative analysis that identifies, screens, and evaluates potential site-specific
CSO control alternatives, including a performance evaluation of each
alternative in conjunction with the presumption approach.

•

Update of the City's financial affordability assessment to consider the impact of
the CSO controls required to achieve compliance with the selected approach
and determination of the City's financial capability to afford the plan and Citywide burden.

•

CSO control selection based on affordability and the alternative performance
evaluation including preparation of an implementation schedule and
development of a compliance and monitoring program that achieves successful
tracking of the program.

Furthermore, the LTCP Update will incorporate the U.S. EPA CSO Control Policy and
guidance documents throughout development of the alternatives for affordable CSO
control that provide the most benefit to water quality.
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3.1

LTCP Update Key Tasks
The following key tasks have been performed to develop the LTCP Update.
1. Flow Monitoring: Perform flow monitoring to evaluate the performance of
separated areas and to quantify wet weather volumes in the collection system
in future project areas
2. River Water Intrusion Analysis: Review flow monitor data and river elevation
data, and field verify locations of suspected river water intrusion to determine
alternatives for mitigation
3. GIS Updates: Review existing as-builts, record drawings, and field inspection
data to update the City's GIS database of the collection system
4. Hydraulic Modeling: Caljbrate the existing SWMM model to the collected flow
monitoring data, perform updates to reflect current field conditions and recent
GIS updates. and expand the model to provide additional detail in areas
planned for future projects
5. Alternative Analysis: Use the calibrated SWMM model results to right-size the
scopes of planned sewer separation projects. Determine if upgrades to the
\/1/V\/TP or other solutions are more cost-effective to meet LTCP goals than
planned separation projects. Update the LTCP program with the selected
alternatives.
6. Financial Affordability Analysis: Evaluate the financial affordability of the City's
LTCP program using the EPA affordability threshold of 2% of the median
household income
7. lmpleme.ntation Schedule: Develop an updated implementation schedule of the
selected alternatives for the City's LTCP program
8. Public Outreach: Perform public outreach to solicit community input and
incorporate stakeholder comments and feedback.

3.2

LTCP Update Purpose
Since the LTCP was approved in 2008, the City has spent over $40 million upgrading
the \/1/V\/TP and the Y-Bridge Pump Station, providing RWI. protection , and closing
various CSOs through sewer separation. As the remaining projects to be completed
are increasingly more complex and expensive and mostly located in the downtown and
historical areas of the City, the City would like to evaluate the current performance of
their system to understand if alternative projects would be more cost-effective and
feasible to construct. In addition, the City has evaluated new future alternatives and
identified potential sources of inflow to the system that were not previously evaluated.
The main objectives of the LTCP Update are:
1. Evaluate the performance of the separation projects completed to date
2. Update the hydraulic model to be more robust and to incorporate additional
areas of the collection system
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3. Collect flow monitoring data to evaluate the conditions of the existing collection
system
4. Evaluate future goals and alternatives
5. Investigate potential factors not previously considered (i.e. river water intrusion,

Ill)
6. Review the City's current financial ability to complete future projects
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4.

Methodology
The LTCP Update is intended to recommend affordable CSO control strategies for the
City of Zanesville that provide the most benefit to water quality. The following City of
Zanesville documents were used to obtain background information in the development
of this evaluation:
1. Combined Sewer System Operational Plan, City of Zanesville {BBS Corporation
Consulting Engineers; 2005)
2. Combined Sewer Overflow Long-Term Control Plan, City of Zanesville (CH2M
Hill; May 2007)
3. Wet Weather Plan, City of Zanesville (URS; June 2013)
4. Y-Bridge Pump Station Capacity Study and Force Main Assessment, City of
Zanesville {CH2M Hill, August 2015)

5. Flood Insurance Study, Muskingum County, Ohio (FEMA, July 2010)
6. Linden Avenue Pump Station Facility Plan, City of Zanesville (Poggemeyer
Design Group; March 2019)
7. Fecal Coliform Characterization Study Muskingum River and Area Tributaries
{November, 1997)
8. City As-Built Maps and Atlas Maps
9. City GIS Information
The following US EPA and national guidance documents were referenced in the
development of this evaluation:
1. Recommended Standards for Wastewater Facilities {2004)
2. NOAA's National Weather Service (NWS) Advanced Hydrologic Prediction
Service
3. US EPA Combined Sewer Overflow Control Policy Federal Register (April,

1994)
4. US EPA Combined Sewer Overflows Guidance for Screening and Ranking
(August, 1995)
5. US EPA Combined Sewer Overflows Guidance for Lang-Term Control Plan
(September, 1995)
6. US EPA Combined Sewer Overflows Guidance for Financial Capability
Assessment and Schedule Development (February, 1997)
7. US EPA Combined Sewer Overflows Guidance for Monitoring and Modeling
(January, 1999)

8. US EPA Integrated Municipal Starmwater and Wastewater Planning Approach
Framework (June, 2012)
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9. US EPA Financial Capability Assessment Framework for Municipal Clean wat.er
Act Requirements (November, 2014)
10. US EPA Water Infrastructure and Improvement Act (January, 2019}
11 . US EPA Financial Capability Assessment Guidance for Clean Water Act
Obligations (January, 2021)
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5.

Planning Approach
The CSO Control Policy was issued by the US EPA on April 19, 1·994 to establish a
consistent approach for controlling CSO discharges to the Nation's waters thtough the
NPDES permit program. The policy provides guidance for coordinating the planning,
selection, and implementation of CSO controls that meet the requirements of the CWA.
The main goal of the CSO Control Policy is to provide a national strategy to ensure that
municipalities, regulating authorities, and the public cooperate in an effort to develop
cost-effective CSO controls that meet the appropriate health and environmental
objectives. The CSO Contr,ol Policy contains four key principles to ensure that CSO
controls are cost-effective and meet the requirements of the CWA:
1. Provide clear levels of control that would be presumed to meet appropriate
health and environmental objectives.
2. Provide sufficient flexibility to municipalities, especially those that are financially
disadvantaged, to consider the site-specific nature of CSOs and to determine
the most cost-effective means of reducing pollutants. and meeting CWA
objectives and requirements.
3. Allow a phased approach for implementation of CSO controls considering a
community's financial capability.
4. Review and revise, as appropriate, was and their implementation procedures
when developing long-term CSO control plans to reflect the site-specific wet
weather impacts of CSOs.
Additionally, the CSO Control Policy outlines the expectations for the municipality and
the EPA, which include the following:
1. Municipalities should implement the NMCs immediately, which are utilized to
reduce CSOs and their effects on receiving water quality.
2. Municipalities should give priority to environmentally sensitive areas.
3. Municipalities should develop LTCPs for controlling CSOs, which may follow the
guidance of the demonstrative or the presumption approach to meet the water
quality requirements of the CWA.
4. The EPA should review and revise State was during the CSO LTCP planning
process.
5. The EPA should consider the financial capability of the permittee when
reviewing CSO control plans.
As part of the CSO Control Policy, the EPA states that it recognizes that financial
considerations are a major factor affecting the selection and implementation of CSO
controls within a community. Because of these factors, the policy allows for
consideration of the municipalities' financial capability in connection with the l TCP
recommended CSO controls and implementation schedule. The LTCP Update will
include an updated financial capability analysis based on: the estimated cost of the
recommended CSO controls that balance both water quality impacts and scheduling
considerations to identify the most cost-effective CSO control method.
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The CSO Control Policy outlines the objectives for municipalities with active CSOs to
complete, which includes characterizing their existing sewer systems, demonstrating
their implementation of the NMCs, and developing a LTCP. The CSO Control Policy
summarizes several required components of developing a LTCP, including preparation
of a project implementation schedule and a financing plan to design and construct the
CSO controls. The City's LTCP Update includes consideration of each of the CSO
Control Policy goals and evaluation of the required components of a LTCP. In addition,
public and regulatory agency input has been considered during development of the
CSO control alternatives including evaluation of financial affordability in relation to
water quality benefits.
Based on the tasks completed to date, the City has decided to move forward with a
LTCP Update that will incorporate the recently codified Integrated Municipal
Stormwater and Wastewater Planning Approach Framework (Integrated Planning
Approach). The Integrated Planning Approach and US EPA CSO Control Policy have
been utilized in developing alternatives, schedules and affordability of the City's LTCP
Update.
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6.

System Characterization
The City's collection system and wastewater treatment plant were characterized in the
2007 LTCP and re-evaluated as part of the LTCP Update. A summary of this
characterization for each of the key components is provided in this Section.

6.1

Gravity Collection System
The City of Zanesville sesvice area consists of both combined and separate sanitary
sewers. Table 6-1 summarizes key data for each interceptor. Average daily flow
parameters for each major interreceptor were updated based on available LTCP
Update flow monitoring results (refer to Section 7 for further information). The City's
combined collection system is depicted in Figure 6-1 including major interceptors,
force mains. rack locations (CSOs), and pump stations.

Table 6-1. Summary of Major Interceptors

Interceptor

Size (in)

Material

Average
Daily Flow
(MGD)

Joe's Run

30-36

RCP

2.77

Y-Bridge Pump
Station

Mill Run

21-27

RCP

1.08

Downtown
Interceptor

Downtown

24-48

VSP/RCSP 1.10

Muskingum River R21, R26, R30
Siphon

Linden Avenue

24-36

VSP

0.48

Joe's Run

West Main
Street

8-21

VSP

Unavailable

Y-Bridge Pump
Station

Chap's Run

18-24

VCP/CIP

0.62

Y-Bridge Pump
Station

R12

Main

60

Brick/GIP

4.50

WNW

R3, R6, RB, R9,
R10, R11
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Figure 6-1
City of Zanesville LTC'P Update
System Overview Map
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6.2

Combined Sewer Overflows
The City has sixteen (16) permitted CSOs in the current NPDES Permit, twelve (1'2) of
which are active. These CSOs are referred to as racks. The rack locations are shown
in Table 6-2. In accordance with the City's NPDES Permit, flow meters collect flow data1
from the following rack numbers: R3, R6, R 14 and R21'. All othe~ racks are vis11Jally
inspected. All racks discharge to the Muskingum River, except for R1'3, wlilich
discharges at the mouth of the Licking River. Tabl.e 6-2 includes the rack number,
location, outfall size and current status of each CSO in the collection system.

Table 6-2. Combined Sewer Overflow Description and Rack Numbers
City Rack
Number

NPDES Perm it
CSO Station
Location Description
Number

Overflow Outfall
Closed?
Sewer Size

R2

005

Hoover St. at Muskingum Ave.

24"

R3

006

Johnson St. at Muskingum Ave.

48"

R4

007

Lincoln St. at Muskingum Ave.

24"

Yes

RS

008

Pierce St. at Muskingum Ave.

24"

Yes

R6

009

Harrison St. at Muskingum Ave.

48"

R7

010

Van Buren St. at Muskingum
Ave.

24"

RS

011

Madison St. at Muskingum Ave.

18"

R9

012

Jefferson St. at Muskingum Ave. 24"

R10

013

Adams Ave. between
Muskingum Ave. and Putnam
Ave.

R11

014

Muskingum Ave. between
24"
Putnam Ave. and Washington St.

R12

015

Southwest of Y-Bridge PS in
Alley

48"

R13

016

Peters Alley behind Mee's

60"

R14

017

McIntire Ave. east of Linden Ave. 60"x54." ellipse

R15

018

Canal St. NE of 6th St. Bridge

30"

Yes

R17

020

8th St. North of Hughes St.

18"

Yes

R18

021

Wayne Ave. South of Hughes St. 18"

Yes

R19

022

Hughes St. West of Sharon Ave. 42"

Yes

R21

024

Market St. at 3rd

48"

R26

029

5th St. North of Canal St.

42"

R30

052

Main St. in Front of Courthouse

36"
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The 2-chambered CSO structures at R13, R14, R21, R26, and R30 all have separate
float and regulator gate chambers and divert flow through a gate to an interceptor,
sewer. A float closes the gate as water levels are raised, and opens the gate as wate.f
levels are lowered, thus directing flow back into the interceptor. All other regulators are
single chambered and utilize a diversion dam to direct high flows out to the Muskingum
River.
Existing CSO locations are shown in Frgure 6-1 and Figure 6-2. CSOs that have been
closed by completed sewer separation projects are depicted in Figure 6-2 as welli as
existing CSO area boundaries.
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Figure 6-2
City of Zanesville LTCP Update
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6.3

River Water/Intrusion Prevention
Tideflex style gates or valves have been installed at R12 , R13, R14, and R21 to·
prevent the intrusion of river water into the system during high river levels. A duckbill
was installed at the R21 outfall in 2012 to mitigate river water intrusion. Routine
inspections are conducted to ensure proper operation and maintenance of the installed
devices for continued functionality. River water intrusion was evaluated at key
infrastructure in Section 8.

6.4

Siphons
The Muskingum River Siphon, constructed in 1953, conveys combined wastewater
from East Zanesville and the City's downtown area across the Muskingum River. The
siphon begins at the east riverbank and conveys flows into the upstream point. of the
Main Interceptor. The siphon consists of two parallel conduits - one (1) 12-inch barrel
and one (1) 24-inch barrel. An overflow weir was installed at the siphon to allow for
emergency bypasses. There have been no documented overflows at this location.

6.5

Pump Stations
In addition to the pump stations located at the VVWTP, the City owns and operates (2)
remote wastewater pump stations - the Linden Avenue Pump Station and the Y-Bridge
Pump Station. The Linden Avenue Pump Station serves a relatively small section of the
City to the northwest with an estimated average dry weather flow of 0.3 MGD. This PS
is being rehabilitated to continue to convey the existing design flow.
The City relies on the Y-Bridge Pump Station for conveyance of combined flows from
the northwest portion of the City with a discharge point at the entrance to the Main
Interceptor. According to 2019 flow monitoring data the estimated average dry weather
flow is 3.9 MGD. The Y-Bridge Pump Station was constructed in 1953 along with
approximately 3,550-feet of 24-inch effluent force main which runs parallef to the
Muskingum River before discharging into the Main Interceptor.
In 2014 the City completed the Y-Bridge Pump Station Upgrades project which involved
replacement of existing pumps, increasing its wet weather capacity from 10 MGD to
14.4 MGD. During extreme conditions, the station is capable of pumping
approximately 18 MGD prior to an overflow occurrence.

Table 6-3 summarizes key parameters for each remote pump station.
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Table 6-3. Summary of Remote Pump Stations

Year Built

Linden Avenue Pump
Station

Y-Bridge Pump Station

1960

1959
2014

Year Upgraded
Wet Well / Dry Pit

Wet Well / Dry Pit

Number

2

3

Capacity, each

400 gpm

7,000 gpm

TOH

30 ft

30 ft

Diameter

Bin

24in

Material

CIP

RCPP

Length

250 LF

3,190 LF

Permitted Overflows

None

None

Size

15 inch

48inch

Capacity

6.7 MGD

30MGD

Type

Pumps

Force Main

Influent Sewer

6.6

Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP)
The City of Zanesville operates a conventional trickling filter WWfPon Moxahala
Avenue that serves the City and adjacent systems from Muskingum County. The
WWTP was constructed in 1959 and last upgraded in 2009. The City has continued to
make operational adjustments at the WWTP to maximize flows through the plant.
Primary treatment processes include influent primary pumping and screening,
secondary screening, grit removal and primary clarifiers. The WWfP is also, equipped
with a sludge dewatering system and anaerobic digestors. The secondaf:¥ treatment
processes include trickling filters, secondary clarifiers, chlorine disinfection, contact
tanks, and aerobic digesters. Figure 6-3 depicts the wet stream processes, while
Figure 6-4 depicts the sludge processes.
According to the City's current NPDES permit, the effluent loadings of the wastewater
treatment plant (YIIWTP) are based on a wet weather flow rate of 18 MGD.. The
average daily design flow of the treatment plant is rated at 11 MGD.
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Figure 6-4. WWTP Sludge Processes

The City of Zanesville's \/INI/TP performed upgrades in 2007 and 2009 to increase
average daily plant capacity to 11.0 MGD and peak wet weather plant capacity to 36.2
MGD. There are 5 primary pumps which are all rated at 13 MGD. The pumps operate
at 45-ft of head and discharge into a 42-inch ductile iron force main rated at 36.2 MGD.
Flows up to 27 .1 MGD were designed to receive full secondary treatment, and: flows
greater than this were designed to bypass secondary treatment after chemically
enhanced primary treatment.
The \/INI/TP is currently unable to treat sustained flows in excess of 25 MGD as the
primary screens become blinded, submerging the trolley, which shuts off the rakes.
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This causes flows to be diverted to the 1.5" bypass screens, which passes significant
debris into the primary pump station wet well, causing pump failures due to seal failure
and impeller damage. This result occurred during a stress test on March 1, 2017, in
which 30 MGD was received by the plant.
As a result of this stress test and other events resulting in flows in excess ot 25 MGD,
the City has had to replace or rebuild all 5 of the primary pumps during 2017 and 2018.
Due to this restriction at the primary screens, plant operators adjust the influent sluice
gate to throttle the flow coming into the plant when influent flow reaches 23.6 MGD.
In 2013, URS (AECOM) completed an evaluation report of the City's \/INVTP as pan of
a Wet Weather Plan and reached the following conclusions:
1. A reduction in V'JVI/TP capacity from 36.2 to 23.6 MGD results ih an additional
overflow volume of 0.9 MG (9.6 to 10.5 MG) during the 1-year design storm.
2. The chlorine contact basin does not provide adequate detention time (per 110
State Standards) at flows greater than 30 MGD.
3. With optimum secondary splitter weir gate settings, the secondary treatment
system is hydraulically limited to 23.6 MGD. The hydraulic limitati.on is due to
inadequate freeboard in the solids contact tank.
Furthermore, the evaluation made several operational recommendations, which are
summarized as follows:
1. Solids Contact Tank: The secondary splitter weir gates needl to be adJusted to
properly split the flow between each secondary settling tank. The desired
position of the weir gates is dependent on the· total flow exiting: the solids
contact tank. Allowing for a minimum of 6 inches of freeboard at the entrance
of the solids contact tank, the solids contact tank can convey 23.6 MGD. This
assumes a RAS flow of 18.9 MGD.
2. Secondary Settling Tanks: The three older and shallower settling tanks are
known to experience solids washout during prolonged wet weather events. To
minimize the occurrence of solids washout, settling tank No. 4 should be
operated at a higher SOR than settling tanks Nos. 1, 2, and 3. Settings for the
solids contact tank effluent weir gates are provided' to allow settling tanks Nos.
1, 2, and 3 to be run at lower SORs than settling tank No. 4.
3. Return Activated Sludge (RAS) Rate: Historically, plant staff has maintained the
RAS rate at approximately one times the influent rate. Operating in this
manner, the RAS flow may be set unnecessarily high during wet weather
events. Lowering the RAS rate will reduce headloss through secondary
treatment and increase the amount of freeboard in the solids contact tank, but it
may also risk the possibility of solids washout occurring-especially in the
shallower secondary settling tanks. An appropriate, lower RAS rate shall be
determined by plant staff during high flows.
4. Waste Activated Sludge (WAS) Rate: Currently, the WMTP is, limited! to wasting
approximately 225 gpm of WAS due to the size and location of the opening
between the WAS and RAS wet wells. Installation of a second orifice, 6 imches
in diameter and located 3 feet below the existing orifice would allow the WWTP
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to operate their WAS pumps continuously, if needed, to maximize use of the
WAS pumps.
Upgrades to the City's WWTP wet weather capacity in 2007 and 2009 were designed
to treat a peak flow of 36.2 MGD. The 2013 AECOM study of the post-upgrade peak
wet weather capacity found that the 1/WflP is currently unable to treat sustained flows
in excess of 25 MGD. Several bottlenecks were identified throughout the plant
including the secondary splitter weir gate,, the solids contact tank, and the headworks.
Since·the 2013 wet weather study, plant operators have made operational
improvements to eliminate some of these bottlenecks.
When flows reach approximately 25 MGD, the plant begins to experience solids
washout from three (3) of the four (4) secondary settling tanks. The 2013 wet weather
study determined that the secondary splitter weir gate is hydraulican:y limited to 2:3.6
MGD due to inadequate freeboard in the solids contact tank. Basecl on
recommendations, plant operators adjusted the sluice gates. at the splitter box for each
of the secondary settling tanks. The operational improvements have been s.uccessful in
eliminating solids washout. As the influent flow continued tO' increase to 27 MGD,. the
solids contact tank filled to a level where water began to overflow the tank wall.
To eliminate overflows, in 2018 plant operators began operating the RAS at 50% when
the influent exceeds 18 MGD. The 1984 headworks was designed and installed with a
maximum capacity of 20 MGD, forcing plant operators to close the influent sluice gate
in order to throttle the flow coming into the plant when influent flow reaches 25 MGD.
The chlorine contact basin at the WWTP al.so has a peak capacity of 30 MGD based on
1O State Standards detention time. A detailed explanation of recent projects and
operational changes implemented at the WWTP is included in the Wastewater
Treatment Plant Improvements Memorandum in Appendix B .. The Memorandum also
includes a summary of the proposed upgrades at the WWTP to increase the peak
capacity.
The capacity and operation of the WWTP was further investigated as part of this. LliCP
Update and potential alternatives were developed for specific treatment units to
increase the full wet weather treatment capacity as discussed in Section 10.
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7.

Flow Monitoring and Rainfall Data
Since the start of the implementation of the 2007 LTCP, the City has not performed an
analysis to evaluate the performance of completed sewer separation projects. Flow
monitoring was necessary to evaluate flows from the separated areas in additi.on to
quantifying wet weather volumes in planned project areas and to calibrate the new
PCSWMM hydraulic model. As part of the LTCP Update, the City conducted flow
monitoring throughout the collection system for a period of approximately six {6)
months.

7 .1

Purpose of Flow Monitoring
AECOM conducted flow monitoring and data collection to achieve the following
objectives:
1. Quantify dry weather and wet weather flow rates at key locations across the
City's collection system;
2. Calibrate the hydraulic model of the collection system (refer to Section 9 of this
report);
3. Identify sub-basins with excessive infiltration and inflow (1/1); and
4. Compare flow monitoring to river gage data to determine potential' areas of river
water intrusion (RWI) for further analysis.

7 .2

Flow Monitoring Location Selection and Data Collection
The flow monitor locations were selected based on a review of the available GIS data,
record plans, previous technical reports, historical knowledge,. and discussioFJs with the
City. AECOM conducted the following steps to select and implement the flow
monitoring sites:
1. Map Review
2. Flow Monitoring Location Selection
3. Meetings and Coordination with the City
4. Reconnaissance and Flow Monitor Location Adjustment
5. Coordination with Hydraulic Model
6. Flow Monitoring Installation
Various equipment configurations were reviewed for applicability of installation at each
monitoring site. The variables that were assessed included: sewer size, distance of
measurement site from access manhole, pipe junction points,. drop pipes, and maFlhole
alignment on the pipe. FL900 AV flow monitors were installed which use area-velocity,
flow monitors that record depth and velocity at 5-minute intervals. Depth was measured
by a pressure transducer. Average velocity was measured by a doppler ultrasonic
transducer.
The flow monitor locations have been selected to capture major flows to the interceptor
in addition to flows draining to Racks 2, 3, 5, 7, 12, 13, 14, and 21. The provided data
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was used to calibrate the updated system hydraulic model'. Racks 2, 5 and 7 have all
been separated, so the flow monitors on these racks also provide data to evaluate the
effectiveness of the separation. This data was used to anticipate the effectiveness of
the planned remaining rack separations.
Seventeen (17) flow monitor locations were installed and evaluated during1the period
from June 6, 2019 through November 7, 2019. After installation, each site was visited
regularly to assess flow monitor functionality. Cleaning and adjustments of the
programming parameters were completed as needed'.
Table 7-1 provides a
summary of the flow monitoring location selection including location description,
installation date and removal date.
Several of the flow monitors were moved after initial installation to account for GIS
inaccuracies or to target new flows.
•

FM-3-12 was moved to site FM-16

•

FM-6 was moved to site FM-17

•

FM-8 was moved to site FM-8A

•

FM-14 was moved to site FM-14A

Figure 7-1 shows the locations of flow monitors installed for purposes of the LTCP
Update. Additional maps showing each individual flow meter location are, included in
Appendix C.
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Table 7-1. Flow Monitoring Locations
Flow Monitor
Site Number

Location

Installation
Date

Removal
Date

FM-1

Main Interceptor near Muskingum Ave. &
Hoover St.

6/25/2019

11ll/2019

FM-2

Johnson St. & Muskingum Ave.

6/25/2019

11/7/2019

FM-3

Jefferson St. & Muskingum Ave.

6/25/2019

11/7/2019

FM-3-121

Jefferson St.

6/25/2019

7!24/2019

FM-4

Downstream of 7th Ave. Siphon near
Muskingum Ave. (Putnam Landing Park)

6/25/2019

1117/2019

FM-5

Downstream of Y-Bridge Lift station near
Muskingum Ave. (Putnam Landing Park)

6/25/2019

1117/2019

FM-G2

Linden Ave & McIntire Ave.

6/25/2019

7/4/2019

FM-7

Market St. & 3 rd St.

6/25/2019

1117/2019

FM-83

Cleveland Ave. (County sewer)

6/25/2019

7/24/2019

FM-8A3

Cleveland Ave. & Moxahala Ave. (City
sewer)

7/24/2019

10/27/2019

FM-9

Pine St. & Muskingum Ave.

6/25/2019

11/7/2019

FM-10

Van Buren St. & Muskingum Ave.

6/25/2019

1117/2019

FM-11

Linden Ave & McIntire Ave.

6/25/2019

11/7/2019

FM-12

Peters Alley behind Mee's

6/25/2019

1117/2019

FM-13

Pierce St. & Muskingum Ave.

6/25/2019

1117/2019

FM-144

N

6/25/2019

7/24/2019

FM-14A4

Greenwood Ave. & UndeJWOod St.

7/24/2019

11/7/2019

FM-15

8111 St. & Hughes St

6/25/2019

1117/2019

FM-161

W Main St. (Chap's Run)

7/24/2019

11/7/2019

FM-172

Peters Alley (Joe's Run)

7/24/2019

11/7/2019

-,rn St. & Market St.

Notes:
FM-3-12 was moved to site FM-16
2
FM-6 was moved to site FM-17
3
FM-8 was moved to site FM-BA
4
FM-14 was moved to site FM-14A

1
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Figure 7-1

City of Zanesville LTCP Update
Flow Monitoring Location Map
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7.3

Flow Monitoring Period Rainfall Summary
Two (2) tipping bucket rain gauges were utilized to measure precipitati.on during the
same period as the flow monitoring. The rain gauges were installed in strategic
locations; Rain Gauge 1 (RG1) was installed at the Zanesville WWTP and Rain Gauge
2 (RG2) was installed at the Y-Bridge Pump Station as shown in Figure 7-1.
Precipitation readings were recorded in 5-minute intervals to coincide with the flow
monitor data collection interval. A rainfall analysis was conducted to quantify the
number of events captured during the flow monitoring period.
Between June 2019 and November 2019, a total of twenty-nine (29). rainfall events
were recorded between the two (2) rainfall gauges. Figure 7-2 shows a summary of
the rainfall depth and peak hourly intensity across the flow monitoring period. The
depth of rainfall is shown on the primary y-axis and hourly intensity is plotted in
descending intensity on the secondary y-axis.
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Figure 7-2. Rainfall Depth and Peak Hourly Intensity
Table 7-2 provides detailed information for the ten (10) rainfall events received during
the flow monitoring period which were used to calibrate the hydraulic model as part of
this LTCP Update. The reported parameters are based on the more intense rainfall
occurrence between the two rain gauge locations. Individual events are identified' as
being separated by more than ten (10) hours of dry weather between one another and
rainfall depth exceeding 0.05 inch. The return frequency for each precipitation event
was determined using the Rainfall Frequency Atlas of the Midwest, Bulletin 71' (Huff
and Angel, Midwestern Climate Center, 19).

Prepared for: Zanesville, Ohio

60634897

AECOM
37

Attachment to Ordinance No. 2021-132
Long-Term Control Plan Update

Table 7-2. Flow Monitoring Rainfall Summary
Storm Storm Event
Event Start Date
Rank

Duration
(hr)

Total Rainfall
(in)

Peak Hourly
Intensity
(in/hr)

Return
Frequency*

1

7/21/2019

29

2.05

1.38

5-Year

2

7/2/2019

23.5

1.9

0.60

2-Year

3

7/5/2019

3.5

1.2

0.98

1-Year

4

8/8/2019

3.3

0.72

0.38

9-Month

5

8/13/2019

12.9

0.64

0.25

2-Month

6

8/1912019

0.3

0.19

0.19

7

10/6/2019

24.8

0.82

0.28

8

10/16/2019

15.6

0.35

0..16

9

10/22/2019

8.8

0.65

0.14

1-Month

10

10/30/2019

25.9

1.81

0.42

2-Year

2-Momth

Note:
* Return frequency determined using the Rainfall Frequency Atlas of the Midwest, Bulletin 71
(Huff and Angel, Midwestern Climate Center; 19).
The results of the rainfall analysis showed an array of rainfall events during the flow
monitoring period, including one (1) 5-year storm with 2.05 inches of rainfall over 29
hours, two (2) 2-year storms and several smaller storms. Based on the results of
rainfall analysis it was assumed that the flow monitoring data collected fmm June 2019
to November 2019 was sufficient to perform the wet weather model calibration.
1

7 .4

Summary of Flow Monitoring Data
For each flow monitoring location. rainfall data and flow monitoring data were
evaluated to characterize Dry Weather Flow (DWF) periods and Wet Weather Flow
(WWF) periods for utilization during the model calibration process. DWF is defined by a
period of a minimum three (3) days without precipitation, and generally consists of
base sanitary flow (BSF) in addition to groundwater infiltration (GWI). WWF is
comprised of DWF in addition to rainfall dependent inflow/infiltration (ROIi). Typically,
the ROIi response is a major component of peak WWF and is responsible for capacityrelated issues in sanitary sewers.
Observed DWF periods were compiled and averaged for each flow monitoring location
to determine the Average Dry Weather Flow (ADWF) during the flow monitoring period.
A \/VWF analysis was also performed to characterize the response to wet weather
events at each FM location. Table 7-3 summarizes the results of the DWF and WWF
analysis for each individual flow monitoring location
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Table 7-3. Flow Monitor Dry and Wet Weather Flow Summary
Flow
ADWF
Monitoring (MGD)
Site

Peak
WWF
(MGD)

Ratio

Peak Flow

Full Pipe
Capacity

(Peak

(MGD)

WWF*/
ADWF...)

Pipe
Utilization

Peak Wet
Weather
Utilization

(%)

(%)

Min.ADWF

FM-1

4.50

24.20

5.4

37.26

13%

65%

FM-2

0.09

45.55

506.1

125.92

0.1%

36%

FM-3

0.02

6.88

344.0

6.08

0.1%

100%

FM-4

1.59

16.84

10.6

37.75

3.5%

45%

FM-5

3.87

20,65

5.3

41.93

16.1%

49%

FM-6

0.32

7.40

23.1

9.18

3.2%

81%

FM-7

0.14

57.51

410.8

145.59

0.1%

40%

FM-8A

0.75

4.96

6.6

3.19

10.6%

1.00%

FM-9

0.01

16.15

1615.0

275.29

0.1%

6%

FM-10

0.00

0.08

6.58

0.0%

1%

FM-11

0.16

71.86

449.1

114.15

0.1%

63%

FM-12

0.02

49.41

2470.5

33.67

0.0%

100%

FM-13

0.03

0.15

5.0

17.70

14.6%

1%

FM-14A

0.19

3.78

19.9

39.32

3.5%

10%

FM-15

0.02

0.57

28.5

1.61

3.1%

35%

FM-16

0.62

2.45

4.0

8.41

5.8%

29%

FM-17

2.77

8.86

3

29.7

6.9%

30%

Notes:
* WWF = wet weather flow
•• ADWF = average dty weather flow

7.5

Flow Monitoring Data Analysis Findings
Peak flow rates reached maximum pipe capacity at FM-3, FM-BA, and FM-12 during
the flow monitoring period. In most cases, these peaks were attributed to the 1-year
storm which occurred on July 6, 2019 with a total rainfall of approximately 1.6 inches in
under two (2) hours. Low WNFs were observed in areas where the City has
successfully completed sewer separation projects; FM-13 provides flow data for CSO
Basin R5 which was separated in 2013 and FM-10 corresponds to the CSO Basin R7
Sevver Separation project completed in 2015.
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The ratio of peak 'MNF-to-ADWF, or the 'peak flow ratio' was evaluated to indicate the
level of 1/1 entering the collection system in response to wet weather events. The peak
flow ratio is calculated by dividing the peak 'MNF by the ADWF for each location.
Typically, the peak flow ratio is in the range of 40:1 for combined collection systems. A
peak flow ratio was not presented for FM-1 o due to the observed ADWF value of zero
(0) MGD at the flow monitoring location. According to the flow monitoring data
characterization, peak flow ratios were highest for the following CSO basins: R3 (FM2), R12 (FM-9), R13 (FM-12), and R21(FM-7). As a result, these four (4) CSO Basins
were evaluated for 1/1 reduction projects and related conveyance upgrades for inclusion
into the LTCP Update. An elevated peak flow ratio was also observed at R9 (FM-3). It
is assumed that the ongoing sewer separation project at R9 will address the high levels
of 1/1 observed in this area.
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8.

River Water Intrusion Analysis
The City's collection system includes several areas where the river inundates the
existing infrastructure during high river stage events. Typically, river water intrusion
(RWI) can occur through three main sources when the river level reaches elevations
above critical sewer system infrastructure:
•

Inflow through the at-grade components of the system that are submerged
(manholes. catch basins, siphons, pump station wet wells);

•

Infiltration into the underground (or under-river siphon pipes) sewer system
infrastructure components through defects, cracks, leaking joints, etc.; and

•

Backflow into the regulator outfalls where backflow prevention is either not
present or not operating properly.

Available data from the flow monitoring period was used to evaluate and identify
potential RWI in the City's collection system, specifically at low elevations in the
floodplain along the riverbanks. This RWI analysis consisted of several key parts:
1.

Investigation of available flood stage profiles provided by the Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) to assess the variation in river
levels across the collection system to account for elevation differences caused
by the Dillon Dam;

2.

Development of flow monitoring hydrographs and comparison to U.S.
Geological (USGS} river stage elevations, precipitation data and approximate
rack invert elevations;

3.

Development and evaluation of depth vs. velocity scatter plots from collected
flow monitoring data; and

4.

Field investigations of infrastructure susceptible to RWI during high river
conditions.

The findings of these data evaluations aid in the identification of specific locations
where RWI is suspected to occur. Solutions were investigated to minimize RWI into
susceptible areas and included in this LTCP Update.

8.1

River Stage Analysis
The extents of the Muskingum River inside the City's boundaries are subject to
significant variation in river stages, largely due to the presence of the existing Dillon
Dam. The Dillon Dam was built in 1959 to control-flooding and regulate flows along the
Licking and Muskingum Rivers. The riverbed slope also contributes to the variation in
river stages across City boundaries. To correct for this variation in river stages, a river
stage analysis was performed to identify an adjustment factor for each existing rack
location across the City's collection system based on available FEMA flood profiles.
The flood profile of the Muskingum River from FEMA's Flood Insurance Study No.
39119CV000A, Figure 06P was used to determine river stage adjustment factors. River
mile locations and river stages were determined using the mouth of the Licking Rivef
as the baseline location.
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The 100-year floodplain zone designation ( 1% annual chance of flooding) was mapped
against flow metering locations to further evaluate these findings. The National Flood
Hazard Layer Flood Insurance Rate Map (FIRM) tool, available from FEMA, was used
to develop Figure 8-1. Areas identified as regulatory floodway represent the 10~year
floodplain boundaries, also known as FEMA Flood Zone AE. Light blue shading
represents 100-year floodplain areas. Figure 8~1 was developed as a tool for
identifying infrastructure within or near the edge of the 100-year floodplain zone which
are susceptible to RW1 during high river conditions.
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Figure 8-1
City of Zanesville LTCP Update
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Available Flood Insurance Study (FIS) flood data for the Muskingum River included
high-flow conditions with a 1% annual chance of flooding ( 100-year return frequency).
As a result, the adjustment factors provided in this report are considered conservative
and show higher variations in river stage compared to low flow river conditions. The
associated adjustment factors, shown in Table 8-1, were applied to river stage data at
USGS River Gage No. 03148000 along the Muskingum River to evaluate periods of
potential RWI into the collection system.
Racks excluded from this RWI analysis are any racks that have been closed as listed in
Table 6-2. R26 was not included in this analysis as it is not hydraulically connected to
the river. Additionally, R30 was excluded from the analysis due to its location in a tiighelevation area of the collection system and lack of associated flow monitoring data.
8.1.1

Flow Monitoring Hydrographs
Flow monitoring hydrographs were plotted with rainfall data and USGS river gage data
to identify potential RWI locations in the collection system. Flow monitoring elevations
were calculated by summing the flow monitoring depths and the approximate NAVO
1988 invert elevations obtained from City recofd plans. Using the USGS National
Water System web-based interface, river stage data was obtained for the USGS River
Gage No. 03148000, located along the Muskingum River southwest of South First
Street. River elevation data was converted to NAVO 1988 datum.
Based on the desktop review of available data, potential RWI was evaluated at critical
locations in the collection system during three (3) of the major storm events which
occurred during the flow monitoring period. These events occurred on July 2 , July 6,
and July 22, 2019 which had 2-year, 1-year, and 5-year return frequencies,
respectively. It should be noted that following the July 3 event, several of these
locations did not recover to dry weather baseline flows until early August.
Deta.iled hydrographs were developed for each flow meter and categorized based on
adjacent racks and related infrastructure (included as Appendix D). The hydrographs
were evaluated based on the following RWI indicators:
•

Post-precipitation response at each flow meter to identify flow monitoring
locations where the data shows elevated flow for an extended period;

•

Gradual increase in observed flow depths during dry weather periods which
follow the same trend as the river; and

•

Comparison of rack invert elevations (superimposed on each hydrograph) to
observed river level data to determine whether estimated river levels welie
surcharged above the lowest point of RWI entry into the collection system.

Table 8-1 summarizes the findings of the RWI analysis for each flow monitoring
location. The findings were categorized according to related infrastructure and are
discussed below.
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Table 8-1. Flow Monitoring Hydrographs RWI Analysis- July 2019
Flow Monitor
Location

Associated Infrastructure*

River Stage
Adjustment
Factor (ft)...

Indication of RWI during
Rain Event
7/3/19

7/6/19

7/22/19

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

FM-1

Main Interceptor

-1.5

FM-2

R3

-0.9

FM-3/3-12

R9

-0.9

✓

✓

✓

FM-4

Muskingum River Siphon

-0.4

✓

✓

✓

FM-5

Y-Bridge PS Force Main

-0.4

✓

✓

✓

FM-6

R14

4.2

FM-7

R21

3.1

FM-8/8A

-1.5

FM-9

R12

FM-10

✓

0.2
-0.9

FM-11

R14

4.2

FM-12

R13

1.0

FM-13

-0.9

FM-14/14A

NIA

FM-15

-0.4

FM-16

R12

0.2

FM-17

R13

1.0

✓

✓

✓

✓

✓

Notes:
* Rack(s) or related infrastructure hydraulically connected to flow monitoring location(s). Flow
monitoring locations significantly outside the floodplain were assumed to not be affected by
RWI.
•• River stage adjustment factor correlates to the flow monitor locations and may be
independent of the associated rack(s) and related infrastructure.

R3 (FM-2): As previously mentioned, all racks have backflow prevention mechanisms
except for R3. Observed river elevations did not approach the R3 invert elevation
during the study period according to FM-2 flow monitoring data. Indication of RWI was
observed in the FM-2 post-precipitation response for the July 6 and July 22, 2019
storms. R3 is suspected to be susceptible to RWI and was evaluated for RWl
elimination solutions during development of LTCP Update alternatives.
R9 (FM-3): FM-3 is located directly upstream of R9. Following each of the studied' rain
events, FM-3 showed a delayed recovery indicating the potential. occurrence of RWJ1
into the adjacent collection system. Observed flow depths did not recover to base
sanitary flow depths until early August. Based on these findings, R9 is considered
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susceptible to RWI. It assumed that the ongoing sewer separation project at R9, which
includes CSO closure, will achieve RWI elimination at R9.
R12 (FM-5, FM-9, FM-16): FM-9 was installed directly upstream of R12. Following the
July 6, 2019 rain event, FM-9 experienced a delayed recovery response with depths
increasing alongside observed river levels, indicating the occurrence of RWI: at this
CSO. Although the adjusted peak river level was approximately 5 inches above the
R12 weir invert during the flow monitoring period, the river level adjustments were
based on high-flow conditions and therefore may not be representative of actual river
levels at the R12 CSO structure. Based on these findings R12 is suspected· to be
susceptible to RWI. RWI elimination solutions were further evaluated for this CSO
during the development of LTCP Update alternatives,.
R13 (FM-5, FM-12, FM-17): FM-12 was located directly upstream of R13. Following
the July 6, 2019 rain event, FM-12 experienced a delayed recovery response as well as
an increase in flow depths following the river stage trend. FM-17 was not installed prior
to these major rainfall events and was not included in the RWI analysis at R13. R13 is
considered susceptible to RWI and was further investigated for RWI elimination during
development of alternatives as part of this LTCP Update.
R14 {FM-11, FM-6): FM-11 was installed directly upstream of R14. The delayed
recovery response during the July 6 and July 22, 2019 rain: events indicate RWI
occurrence at R14 during the study period. As a result, R14 is considered susceptible
to RWI and was evaluated for RWI solutions during development of LTCP Update
alternatives.
R21 (FM-7): The City performed RWI remediation at R21 in 2011. The flow monitoring
hydrographs for FM-7 indicate that the 2011 RWI remediation project was effective at
eliminating RWI at this CSO. Based on these analyses, RWI elimination at R21 was
not considered necessary for inclusion into future alternatives.
Y-Bridge PS Force Main (FM.-5): FM-5 was installed on the downstream portion of the
Y-Bridge effluent force main. Flow trends are dictated primarily by upstream pump
operation. The effluent force main is suspectable to RWI considering its location within
the floodplain. Following the July 3, 2019 storm, FM-5 did not exhibit typical recovery
depths until after the river crests at approximately 68·1 feet (adjusted· using the
correction factors listed above). For each rain event, FM-5 shows a delayed recovery
response which suggests RWI occurrence within and/or upstream of the force main.
These findings suggest that the Y-Bridge PS force main is susceptible to RWI. The City
is pursuing the Y-Bridge PS force main improvements project to remove the force· main
from the floodplain which is assumed to address RWI in this area; this project is
included in the LTCP Update alternatives.
Main Interceptor (FM-1 ): FM-1 was located at the downstream portion of this City's
collection system along the Main Interceptor. Cumulative RWI occurring upstream in
the collection system is assumed to be the source of RWI trends in the FM-1
hydrograph. Observed flow depths at FM-1 remained elevated for an extended period
following each of the three study periods. The location is of FM-1, in the Main
Interceptor is not considered directly susceptible to RWI, but it is assumed that the RWI
trends are indicative of cumulative RWI entering the upstream collection system.
Muskingum River Siphon (FM-4): FM-4 was installed on a gravity pipe downstream
of the Muskingum River Siphon. Any RWI that enters the system upstream or within the
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river siphon would be assumed to be visible at FM-4. RWI would be expected to occur
through pipe defects, joints, or structures along the siphon. Flow depths at FM-4
elevated for an extended period following each of the study periods and followed the
river trends during subsequent dry weather periods. The Muskingum River Siphon is
considered susceptible to RWI considering its age and location w ithin the floodplain.
Potential RWI solutions at the siphon were evaluated for incl'usion into this LTCP
Update.

8.1.2

Velocity-Depth Scatter Plots
To verify the preliminary findings of the flow monitoring hydrograph evaluations, further
analyses were performed using scatter plots of depth versus velocity for each of the
flow meters. As an example, the depth versus velocity data for FM-12 located upstream
of R13 is shown in Figure 8-2 for the July 6, 2019 rain event:. Red trendlines are
superimposed over the plotted data to indicate the chronological succession of the flow
monitoring data throughout the event. The numbered circles represent the· critical
points in time when significant events begin within the interceptor,. as well as the river
level (R.L.) corresponding to that point. During the initial rainfall, there is a sharp
increase in depth within the manhole that can be attributed to precipitation 1/1 (Points 12). As the rain subsides and river water levels rise, RWI is introduced into the
interceptor, resulting in rising depths and decreasing velocity (Points 3-4). At Point 4,
the velocity is negative indicating backflow conditions. Between Points 4 and 5, flow
increases, and water levels continue to rise, indicating the presence of RWl in the
interceptor. On July 7 around 2:00 AM the river crests at. approximately 14.3 feet in
recorded gage height (Point 5) and then begins to subside as depth returns to normal
conditions (Point 6) and t he secondary source of inflow is removed. Based on this
data, R13 is suspected to be susceptible to RWI and was evaluated for RWI elimination
as part of this LTCP Update.
1
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8_2

Field Observations
Field investigations were performed at RWl-susceptible locations to verify and expand
upon findings from the flow monitoring data evaluation process. AECOM staff collected
field data using pole cameras at the following RWl-susceptible infrastructure on
September 17, 2020:
•

CSO Regulator Structures at R3, R13 and R14

•

Muskingum River Siphon

In addition, photos collected by field staff during the flow monitor installations on June
25, 2019 were reviewed for visual evidence of RWI. At the time of the flow monrtor
installation, river levels were trending relatively high according to USGS river gage
data. River levels were slightly lower during the September 2019 field investigaUons;
however, river stages were considered high enough to observe RWI entry at low-lying
infrastructure. Findings from these field visits are discussed below.
8.2.1

R3 Rwt Field Observations
Although indication of RWI was observed
in the FM-2 hydrographs, field
investigation documentation did not show
presence of RWI at the R3 regulator
structure or associated outfall. Figure 8-3
shows a photo of the R12 regulator
structure from the June 2019 site visit
facing east which indicates little to no
inflow during the late-June 2019 dry
weather period.
Figure 8-3. R3 Regulator Structure Photo,
Facing Upstream; June 2019

8.2.2

R13 RWI Field Observations
Photos from the June 2019 field visit
showed several inches of standing water
inside the R 13 outfall pipe which is
assumed to have entered the collection
system via the R13 regulator structure.
Field data from the September 2020 field
visit showed minimal intrusion into the
collection system at the R13 regulator
structure. Figure 8-4 shows the observed
RWI flow path from the R 13 outfall pipe
versus the base sanitary flow direction
from the upstream collection system.
Observed inflow from R13 outfall pipe
suggests that surcharged river levels
overtopped the R13 weir located upstream
of the outfall pipe.
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8.2.3

R14 RWI Field Observations

The City operates a flow meter installed along the R14 outfall pipe which collects
annual CSO flow data. Based on historical flow data at this location, the City has
observed frequent RWI when the CSO is not actively discharging. Although a duckbill
is installed on the outfall, it is suspected that infiltration is occurring at pipe joints.
During the September 2020
field visit, AECOM staff
obtained photos and videos at
the R14 regulator structure to
identify potential RWI entry. As
shown in Figure 8-5, RWI was
identified as entering the
system through the R14 outfall
and backflowing into the
collection system at the R14
regulator structure. Although a
duckbill is installed on the
outfall, it is suspected that
infiltration is occurring at pipe
joints along the outfall.
8.2.4

Figure 8-5. R14 Regulator Structure Photo,
Facing Down; September 2020

Muskingum River Siphon

The September 2020 field
investigations also included a visual
inspection of the access structures
located at the downstream end of the
Muskingum River Siphon as a
potential RWI entry location. Upon
accessing the structure, field staff
noted the structure to be surcharged
as shown in Figure 8-6. The next
downstream structure was sealed
and therefore could not be accessed
for further evaluation. Based on
these findings the City was not able
to draw conclusions regarding RWI
along the Muskingum River Siphon.

l

~ - ..__

,

Figure 8-6. Muskingum River Siphon Blow Off
Structure, Facing Down; September 2020
8.3

River Water Intrusion Analysis Findings
The RWI analysis findings discussed in previous sections suggest that river water
intrusion occurs at Racks 3, 9, 12, 13, and 14 during high river conditions along the
Muskingum River and Licking River. Evidence of RWI was also found at FM-4, located
at the end of the Muskingum River Siphon. While RWI was observed at the Main
Interceptor (FM-1}, this location is assumed to be indicative of cumulative RWI entry at
upstream infrastructure.
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The City plans on perfonning continued O&M of RW1-susceptible areas to mitigate river
water intrusion through any defects in the pipe or related structures. Proposed RW1
elimination projects for this LTCP Update were evaluated at the locations identified as
potentially susceptible to RWI. Table 8-2 summarizes the RWI analysis and
conclusions for indications of RWI at the CSOs and infrastructure evaluated. RWI
solutions are discussed in Section 10 of this report.

Table 8-2. RWI Analysis Summary
City Rack
Number

Associated Flow
Meter(s)

River Stage Rack Invert 100-Year
Adjustment Elevation
Flood Stage
Factor (ft)1
Elevation (ft,

Indication
of RWI?

NAVO 1988)

R14

FM-5, FM-6, FM-11

4.2

688.8

696.2

R21

FM-7, FM-14, FM-14A

3.1

692.5

695.1

R13

FM-5, FM-12, FM-17

1.0

678.6

693.0

Ucking
River

0.3

R12

FM-5, FM-9, FM-16

0.2

River Gage

-

0.0

R11
~

-0.4
FM-4

-0.4

FM-15

-0.4

R10
R9

FM-3, FM-3-12

RS
FM-10
R6

..

R3

✓

✓

692.3
682.6

692.2

✓

692.0
695.7

691.6
✓

-0.4

686.5

691.5

-0.9

683.8

691.3

-0.9

685.9

691.2

683.5

691.1

683.3

690.8

✓

690.5

✓

✓

-0.9
-0.9

FM-13

-0.9

FM-2

-0.9

FM-1, FM-8, FM-BA

-1.5

Notes:
1
Adjustment factors corm/ate to the given racks and may not corm/ate to the associated flow
monitoring locations. Flow monitoring locations were associated with racks based on
connectivity of the collection system.
*
RWI is assumed to be attributed to the Muskingum River Siphon.
** Cumulative RWI entering the upstream collection system is observed at downstream
infrastructure (i.e. Main Interceptor).
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9.

Hydraulic Modeling
A hydraulic model was developed and calibrated using PCSWMM to accurately
represent the City's existing collection system. The purpose of the hydraulic model is to
simulate the collection system and to estimate the quantity and volume of CSO
occurrences based on various conditions. PCSWMM Version 7.3.3095 {PCSWMM
2020) was used to simulate complex flow processes in the current system including
branched and looped networks, pressurized flow and backwater. PCSWMM combines
GIS data with US EPA SWMM5 Version 5.1.015 as the hydrology and hydraulics
calculation engine. The SWMM5 model engine also allows for the dynamic
representation of the hydraulic grade line and viewing of hydraulic time series for any
feature within the modelled collection system for the duration of the model simulation.

9.1

Combined Flow Components
Combined wastewater flow can be broken down into two main components: dry
weather flow (OWF) and wet weather flow f'MNF). OWF consists of base sanitary flow
(BSF) as well as groundwater infiltration (GWI). Base sanitary flow is the residual,
commercial, institutional, and industrial flow discharged into a collection system, and
typically varies with water use patterns throughout a 24-hour period. Higher flows are
usually observed during the day and lower flows at night. In most cases, the average
daily BSF typically remains constant throughout the year but may vary slightly
depending on the month or season. GWI enters the collection system through leaking
pipes, pipe joints, and manhole walls. GWI varies throughout the year, often trending
higher in late winter and spring as groundwater levels and soil moisture levels rise.
GWI normally subsides in late summer or during an extended dry period. Although the
amount of GWI is dependent on overall weather trends, GWI does not respond directly
to rainfall events.

W\/vF, also known as rain-derived 1/1 {ROIi) and is most commonly responsible for
capacity-related issues in a combined sewer collection system. While ROIi is
associated with rainfall events, snowmelt may also be a source of Wl/vF. ROU is
typically nonexistent before the start of a rainfall event, increases during the event, and
then recovers back to zero after the rain event subsides. For cases with less than
saturated antecedent moisture
conditions, surfaces and soils
absorb a portion of the rainfall early
in an event before a response is
observed in the sewer. If the rainfall
event is minimal, there may not be
a visible response. The maximum
amount of rainfall that does not
produce a flow response in a
collection system is termed the
"initial abstraction."

Figure 9-1 depicts the various
components of a wet weather flow
response within a combined sewer
system.
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9.2

Model Development
During the model development process, available data from the City1s GIS database
was imported into PCSWMM and supplemented with record plan drawings. Key
geospatial data input to the model included sanitary pipes, siphons, manholes, pump
stations, regulator structures, weirs, orifices, storage features and outfalls. Drainage
basins were delineated and assigned to respective manholes based on light detecting
and ranging (LIDAR) data and record drawings. Pipes equal to or smaller than 12inches in diameter were generally eliminated from the hydraulic model, with exceptions
in areas where sewer separation was completed. In instances where manhole rim
elevations were unknown, LIDAR data was utilized to determine the approximate
surface elevation.
Existing CSO regulator configurations were determined using a combination of field
investigations, available record drawings, the CSO Operational Plan, and photo
documentation and flow monitoring installation forms created when each of the 17 flow
monitors were installed. As part of the September 2020 field investigations, depth-to-invert measurements were obtained at critical regulator structures at and incorporated
into the model. Based on the available information, the model was configured to reffect
that orifice plates have been removed from the existing regulator structures along the
Main Interceptor.

9.2.1

Subcatchment Delineation
Subcatchment delineation was performed using available GIS data including existing
sewers, LIDAR data, and known service area boundaries. These subcatchments define
the boundaries of the combined sewer collection system and its designated service
areas. Subcatchments were further broken down by each associated sanitary manhole
for purposes of DWF and VVVVF calibration. In the R13 basin, two layers of delineated
subcatchments were developed to accurately represent the partially separated storm
sewer drainag.e area as well as the combined sewer drainage area.

9.2.2

Dry Weather Flow Patterns
As discussed in Section 7.4, a DWF analysis was
performed to characterize DWF in various
locations across the City's collection system. A
multi-step approach was used to build and
characterize the DWF component of the City's
hydraulic model. DWF distribution was performed
by relating ADWF values to individual manhole
nodes within each tributary flow meter area. A
weighting was assigned to each manhole based
on its delineated tributary area.

Pattern FM01_Hourty
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1 .10
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_ 1.00-+=------+----------f
.!!!

~
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Diurnal patterns were developed for each
0.75
individual flow monitoring location using DWF
0.70
data. PCSWMM was used to generate normalized
- -~w•~o~~m- ---~w•~o~~m-~
diurnal patterns which represent fluctuations in
~>>>>>>>>> o - ~ ~~~~~~~~~o:~~~~~E~~E~~~ E~E~~~~~~~~
flow based on water usage. Patterns were
Time
created for hourly, daily, and weekend DWF flow
Figure
9-2.
Example
Diurnal Pattern
at each flow monitoring location. An example of a
diurnal flow pattern is shown in Figure 9-2 is based on DWF periods for FM-0,1.

Prepared for. Zanesville, Ohio
60634897

AECOM

53

Attachment to Ordinance No. 2021-132
Long-Term Control Plan Update

Monthly variation of DWF was incorporated into the hydraulic model using a system
wide monthly flow pattern. Seasonal variation in DWF is mainly attributed to the
presence of GWI. WWTP influent flow data from 2018 to 2019 was used to generate
normalized monthly DWF patterns and applied across the entire coll.ection system.

9.3

Model Calibration
The hydraulic model calibration process involved incorporation of DWF and WVVF data
for accurate representation of flow responses throughout the collection system. First
DWF calibration was performed using the process outlined in Section 9.3.1 followed
by 'NINF calibration discussed in Section 9.3.2. The calibrated model's ability to
generate reasonable flow responses was then assessed using observed data at
existing CSO locations and at the WWTP influent

9.3.1

Dry Weather Flow Calibration
A multi-step approach was used to build and characterize the DWF component of the
City's hydraulic model. DWF distribution was performed by relating ADWF values,
calculated from flow monitoring data (refer to Section 7.4) to individual manhole nodes
within each tributary flow meter area. A weighting was assigned to each sanitary
manhole based on its estimated drainage area. The ADWF values were then
compared to flow rates experienced at upstream and downstream flow monitors and
adjusted as necessary.
To quantify the accuracy of the model in producing real-time data, the following criteria
were used:
•

Predicted time of peaks and troughs are within one hour of observed flow,

•

Predicted flow rates are within -15 percent and +25 of observed flow; and

•

Predicted flow volumes over a 24-hour period are within -1 0 percent and +20
percent of observed flow volume.

Additional analyses were performed to ensure that the model accurately represelilts the
system wide DWF experienced at the WWTP. Available WWTP influent flow data was
also used to evaluate the accuracy of DWF values at FM-1. Influent flow data from the·
\/1/WTP was compared to rainfall data to determine the average flow entering the plant
on days without precipitation. These values were compiled and averaged for eacti
month of the flow monitoring period. Table 9-1 summarizes the average daily influent
flow during dry weather and identifies the number of days without rainfall. It should be
noted that unusually high WWTP influent flows observed during dry days was
considered an outlier and therefore not included in this analysis.
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Table 9-1. WWTP Influent Flow- Monthly DWF
# of Dry Days

Average DWF (MGO)

July 2019

8

7.2

August 2019

16

5.6

September 2019

26

5.5

October 2019

20

5.1

Time Period

Average DWF (MGD):

5.84

Theoretically, there should be a negligible difference between 'WvlffP influent flows and
the sum of ADWF values at FM-1 and FM-8A. The average monthly DWF at the
'WvlffP was approximately 0.59 MGD higher than the total ADWF from FM-1, and FM8A, which showed ADWF values of 4.50 MGD and 0.75 MGD, respectively. Based on
these findings it is reasonable to assume that DWF was underestimated at FM-1 and is
not an accurate representation of base sanitary flows through the downstream portion
of the WWTP interceptor. FM-1 was installed in 60" pipe and when low flow conditions
occur, the flow monitor can experience inaccurate readings when the transducer is
partially submerged during low flow conditions. As a result, the syste~wide DWF
distribution was adjusted to match the average monthly DWF value of approximately
5.84 MGD observed at the WWTP. A monthly DWF flow pattern was also developed
based on average 'Wvlff P influent flow during dry periods and applied to each sanitary
inflow point.

9.3.2

Wet Weather Flow Calibration
Following DWF calibration, the model was calibrated for WWF using an iterative
process of fine-tuning the RDll and runoff to the collection system. The wet weather
events identified in Table 7-2 were utilized as a basis for comparison. Each flow meter
dataset was assessed for quality assurance and any false readings were eliminated. To
quantify the amount of runoff from each sewershed, parameters such as impervious
percentage, routing lengths and infiltration were adjusted for each subcatchment.
PCSWMM's Subcatchment Radio Tuning Calibration (SRTC) tool was used to aid in
calibration of subcatchment parameters based on estimated uncertainties.
Flow restrictions were implemented at the collection system's outfall to the WWTP at a
setpoint of 25 MGD to replicate existing wet weather operational protocol at tlile influent
sluice gates. Existing conditions at the Y-Bridge Pump Station were also configured
based on observed pump discharge through the effluent force main at FM-5. Storm
pump operation including on/off depths was configured to mimic observed flow
responses.
The following quantitative criteria were used for achieving WNF calibration at each
flow monitoring location:
•

Predicted time of peaks and troughs are within one hour of observed flow;

•

Predicted flow rates are within -15 percent and +25 percent of observed flow;
and
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Predicted flow rates are within +20 percent and -10 percent of observed flow
volume.

•

Hydrographs were developed to show the accuracy of the WINF calibration for each
individual flow monitoring location during the evaluati.o n period and are included as
Appendix E.
9.4

Model Validation

Following DWF and WINF calibration, modelling results were compared with existing
reports to confirm the accuracy in producing real-time data. Similar to the system-wide
DWF calibration check, WWTP influent flow data was used to evaluate the model's
ability to predict receiving flows at the plant throughout the flow monitoring, period.
Figure 9-3 shows the total reported monthly influent volumes at the WWTP in million
gallons in comparison to the modelling results at the WWTP outfaU across the
calibration period.
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Figure 9-3. Observed Vs. Predicted WWTP Influent Flow, July-October 2019

Monthly WWTP influent volumes were comparable between the two datasets, with
predicted volumes falling between +20% and -5% of observed volumes. Due to higher
volumes of GWI and RWI entering the collection system in the summer months, the
DWF component of the model may be slightly overestimated during the autumn
months causing slight variations in total monthly WWTP influent volumes. As
discussed previously, a monthly DWF pattern was developed based on historical
WWT:P dry weather influent flow data and applied to the hydraulic model inflow points
to account for seasonal variations in DWF across the collection system.
Table 9-2 shows the total inflow volumes and peak flow rates at FM-1 for four (4), of the
pre-identified major wet weather events in the calibrated model simulation. Observed
values were calculated using flow monitoring data and are also included for
comparison.
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Table 9-2. Observed vs. Predicted Wet Weather Events Summary - FM-1
Event Date

Predicted
Volume (MG)

Observed
Volume (MG)

Predicted
Peak Flow
(MGD)

Observed
Peak Flow
(MGD)

7/5/2019

21.28

19.81

27.87

23.82

7/22/2019

17.61

15.42

27.54

23.68

8/13/2019

20.72

17.12

23.77

22.05

10/30/2020

18.24

16.53

25.38

23.57

Predicted inflow volumes and peak flows at the Main Interceptor in the hydraulic model
were found to be generally consistent with flow monitoring data from FM-1. On
average, the model predicted volume approximately 17% higher than observed FM
data, and the model predicted peak flow rates approximately 14% higher than the
observed FM data. Both percentages are considered within the acceptable range for
calibration.

9.5

Typical Year Rainfall Analysis
A typical year analysis was performed to determine the representative precipitation
year to be used for establishing a base case scenario and to perform future modelling.
Two (2) sets of data were evaluated for the selection of a typical year: 1) the 50-year
typical year was selected to represent long-term historical trends from 1963 to 2013,
and 2) the 20-year typical year was selected to represent 1993-2013 historical rainfall
data. These two options were then compared to determine if average wet weather
conditions have seen an increasing or decreasing trend over time.
AECOM examined local precipitation datasets to identify the representative year for
use in future model simulations. Several datasets were obtained and evaluated for
completeness from 1963 through 2013. Digital daily and hourly rainfall data was
obtained from the following USGS stations:
•

USW00093824 Zanesville Municipal Airport

•

COOP:339422 Zanesville WWTP

•

COOP:331197 Cambridge Ohio

•

COOP:331786 Port Columbus International Airport

The rain gauge at the Zanesville Municipal Airport provided daily reporting frequency
while Columbus Airport reported rainfall at an hourly reporting frequency for the period
of interest. Average annual rainfall depths for both locations were compared to
determine whether it was reasonable to utilize the Columbus Airport hourly dataset for
the City's typical year analysis. It was discovered that there was a negligible difference
between the 50-year average annual rainfall values at the Zanesville Airport (38.8
inches) and the Columbus Airport (39.0 inches). Wrth the assumption that storm
distribution characteristics were also similar, it was considered acceptable to utilize
Columbus Airport data in the typical year storm distribution analysis.
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Rainfall statistics were generated for each year including total annual rainfall, number
of storms, average rainfall per storm, average storm duration, peak intensity, and
maximum daily rainfall. Average statistics for both the 20-year and 50-year timeframes
are presented in Table 9-3.
Table 9-3. Typical Year Analysis Statistics
Time Period

Total

#of

Average

Duration
(in/event) (hr)

Average Max Pl Average #of
AMC,._ Rainy
Pr
Days

126

0.31

7.0

0.13

1.33

2.7

138"

2.3·

50-YearTypical
37.8
Year (1981)

127

0.30

7.1

0.12

0.96

2.6

142

2.6'

20-Year
Average:

124

0.33

7.1

0.13

1.36

2.7

139"

2.3"

121

0.31

6.7

0.14

1.17

2.8

130

2.0

Average

Rainfall Storms Rainfall
(in)
50-Year
Average:

38.8"

38.5"

20-Year Typical
37.1
Year (2012):

Max
Day

Notes:
* Calculated using daily rainfall data from Zanesville Municipal Airport
u
Pl = Peak Intensity
*** AMC = Antecedent Moisture Control
Generally, there was a negligible difference between the 50-year and 20-year average
total rainfaJI, and slightly higher values of average rainfall per event, peak intensity and
duration for the 20-year timeframe. The typical year options identified in. Table 9-3 were
further evaluated for storm distributions including depth, intensity and reoccurrence
interval of each rainfall event. Hourly rainfall data was also used to identify the· top· ten
storms and respective reoccurrence frequencies. Years with storms greater than 3
inches were not considered as the recurrence level of this size event is considered
atypical. Table 9-4 presents the top ten storms that occurred in the (a) 50-year typical
year and (b) 20-year typical year.
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Table 9-4. 50-Year and 20-Year Typical Year Top Ten Storms
Rank

Date

Total
Rainfall
(in)

Duration (hr)

Storm
Category

Rank

Total

Date

Rainfall
(in)

Duration (hr)

Storm
Category

1

6/13

2.04

6

2-yr 12-hr

1

3/18

2.04

6

2·- yr 6-hr

2

1/30

1.80

37

9-mo24-hr

2

1/25

1.80

3J

6-mo24-hr

3

5/26

1.43

16

4-mo24-hr

3

5/7

1i.43

1'6

6-mo• 12-hr

4

4/11

1.24

10

4-mo 24-hr

4

4/26,

1.24

1Q,

6-rno6-hr

5

12/21

0.98

17

3-m 24-hr

5

10/26

0.98

17

2-mo 12'-hr

6

4/4

0.92

6

3-mo 12-hr

6

7/26

0.92

6

2-mo6-hr

7

9/14

0.87

10

3-mo2-hr

7

12/20

0.87

10

2:- mo,6-hr

8

7120

0.96

24

2-mo 24-hr

8

8/9

0.96

24

1-mo24-hr

9

2/1

0.81

10

2-mo 18-hr

9

3/8

0.81

10

1-mo 6-hr

10

2/18

0.64

5

2-mo 12-hr

10

12/4

0.64

5

1-mo3-hr

(a) 50-Year Typical Year: 1981

(b) 20-Year Typical Year: 2012

Based on the results of the above analyses, the City decided to move forward with
utilizing 2012 as the selected typical year for LTCP Update model simulations. While
total annual rainfall of 37.1 inches is slightly lower than long-term and short-term
averages, the selected typical year includes a 2-year, 6-hour storm of 2.04 inches. It
was assumed that relatively less annual rainfall, is balanced by the presence of larger,
higher intensity storms. It is also important to note that the previous LTCP Typical Year
of 1982 experienced a total annual rainfall of 33.7 inches, approximately 5 inches lower
than historical average annual rainfall. This observation provides further support for the
selection of 2012 precipitation in lieu of the previous LTCP typical year.
9.6

Existing Conditions Model Results

The calibrated hydraulic model, referred to as the Existing Conditions model,
represents current conditions within the City's collection system and operating
conditions at the WNTP. This model includes the calibrated DVVF and VWvF flow
parameters and existing wet weather operating procedures. The Existing Conditions
model was simulated using the selected typical year {2012) to evaluate the total
number of CSO occurrences and total annual discharge volume under existing
conditions.
Table 9-5 summarizes the results of the Existing Conditions model including annual
CSO volume and frequency for each active rack location.
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Table 9-5. Existing Conditions Model Typical Year CSO Occurrence and Volume
Summary
City Rack
Number

NPDES Perm it
CSO Station
Number

R2

005

R3

006

R4

007

Closed

R5

008

Closed

R6

009

R7

010

R8

011

9

1.7

R9

012

20

6.9

R10

013

9

1.2

R11

014

1

0.1

R12

015

4

1.0

R13

016

57

7.5

R14

01 7

4

2.7

R15

018-

Closed

R17

020

Closed

R18

021

Closed

R19

022

Closed

R21
R26

024
029

14

10.5

6

0.6

R30

052

0

0
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33
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1O.

Alternatives Analysis

10.1

Basis of Evaluation
The purpose of any LTCP is to provide site-specific, cost-effective CSO controls that
provide attainment of water quality standards in accordance with the CWA. As stated in
the CWA, a LTCP should be flexible and recognize 1) the financial capability of varying
municipalities to afford differing levels of CSO control; and 2) CSOs have varying levels
of impact on water quality. Furthermore, a LTCP should consider a reasonable range of
alternatives and varying levels of control (for those alternatives), using costeffectiveness as a consideration in selection of control alternatives and level of control.
The EPA CSO Guidance for Long-Term Control Plans identifies two (2) general
approaches to attainment of was and they include the demonstration approach and
the presumption approach. Both approaches provide municipalities with targets for
CSO controls that achieve compliance with the CWA. The City plans ta attain was
after implementation of this LTCP Update in accordance with the presumption
approach.
Under the presumption approach, CSO controls adopted in a LTCP should be required
to meet one of.the fallowing criteria:
Option 1:

No more than an average of four overflow events per year, provided that
the permitting authority may allow up to two additional overflow events
per year. Far the purpose of this criterion, an overflow event is one or
more overflows from a CSS as the result of a precipitation event that does
not receive the minimum treatment specified; or

Option 2:

The elimination or the capture for treatment of no less than 85% by
volume of the combined sewage collected in the CSS during precipitation
events on a system-wide annual average basis; or

Option 3:

The elimination or removal of no less than the mass. of the pollutants
identified as causing water quality impairment through the sewer system
characterization, monitoring, and modeling effort far the volumes that
would be eliminated or captured for treatment under paragraph 2 above.

The City has developed the LTCP Update to achieve the performance criteria
described in Option 1 of the presumption approach. Upon completion of the projects
included in this LTCP Update, the City will perform post-construction monitoring and
review attainment of was.
A characterization of the City's CSS was performed as part of the LTCP Update
including review of the nine minimum controls, existing system monitoring and
modeling data, , existing water quality goals and was data and effectiveness of CSO
controls. Review of this characterization indicates that the presumption approach was
the most feasible approach for the City's LTCP.
Typically, CSO control alternatives are developed during the LTCP process in
accordance with the following steps:
•

Definition of water quality goals

•

Identification of a range of CSO control goals to meet water quality goals
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•

Development of alternatives to meet the CSO control goals

The recommended CSO control alternative for the City's 2007 LTCP was sewer
separation in CSO areas. The recommended CSO control alternative was considered
affordable at the time of LTCP preparation given the 23 year implementation schedule.
The costs spent to date on the projects completed from 2007 LTCP (over $40 Million)
already exceeds the estimated amount for the overall LTCP $39 Million with several
separation project remaining to be completed. The cost of implementation of the 2007
LTCP has significantly increased and the current LTCP goal of separation of all CSOs
is not feasible in the remaining areas The existing NPDES Permit requires that the City
submit a revised LTCP no later than December 31, 2021 .
In developing this LTCP Update, the City has adopted the US EPA Integrated Planning
Approach as discussed in Section 5. One of the main goals of the Integrated Planning
Approach is to meet regulatory requirements and water quality standards while
maximizing infrastructure investments. The City evaluated the existing infrastructure
requirements including the MS4, '#NTP and CSO/SSO regulatory requirements.
Maximizing funds can be accomplished through developing alternatives that address
multiple reg,ulatory requirements established in the CWA and the City's MS4 and
NPDES Permits. This is accomplished by addressing multiple City-owned infrastructure
issues with one capital improvement project.
The financial capability assessment in Section 12 of this report documents the current
financial capability of the City and the need to evaluate varying CSO control levels and
water quality goals that meet existing was except for the specified number of times
per year. The City previous discussion with Ohio EPA have focused on the
development of LTCP flexible and cost-effective:
•

A LTCP should be flexible and recognize 1) the financial capability of varying
municipalities to afford differing levels of CSO control; and 2) that CSOs have
varying levels of impact on water quality.

•

A LTCP should consider a reasonable range of alternatives and varying-control
levels (for those alternatives), using cost-effectiveness as a, consideration in
selection of control alternatives.

The City has decided to pursue the presumption approach because of the escalated
cost and the historical significance/complexity in the remaining separation areas of the
current LTCP. The following alternative evaluation summarizes the process used to
identity, screen , and evaluate various reasonable alternatives; cost-effectiveness and
affordability were used in selection of control alternatives for the LTCP Update.

10.1.1

Definition of Water Quality Goals
In accordance with the CSO Control Policy presumption approach, attainment of wate~
quality goals is assessed by achievement of one of the performance criteria specified
in the CSO Control Policy. The Zanesville LTCP Update has been developed and
evaluated to meet a specific number of untreated overfl•o w events in a typical year
which is presumed 1o be protective of water quality standards and meet the
requirements of the CWA. The LTCP Update includes post-construction monitoting and
review water quality goals..

Prepared for. Zanesville, Ohio

60634897

AECOM

62

Attachment to Ordinance No. 2021-132
Long-Term Control Plan Update

10.1.2

Attainment of Presumption Approach
Alternatives were developed and evaluated to achieve the performance criteria
described in Option 1 of the presumption approach. The evaluation includes
identification of control alternatives, sizing, identification of siting and operational
issues, and cost versus performance comparisons. At the completion of the LTCP,
post-construction compliance monitoring will be conducted at any remaining CSO
outfalls. The flow monitors will be used to collect occurrence data to verify that the
performance criteria to attain the water quality goals of the LTCP Update (approved
number of overflow events) have been met. The attainment of the presumption
approach is further discussed in Section 12.

10.1 .3

Attainment of Affordable CSO Control
As part of the LTCP Update development, alternatives ranging from no action taken to
zero (0) overflow events in a typical year were evaluated. This was done to evaluate
the· performance versus cost relationship to identify the most cost-effective alternatives.
The cost-effectiveness of the alternatives was verified by performing a 'knee otthe
curve' analysis to pinpoint the level of control where the performance-cost ratio begins
to diminish. The knee of the curve evaluation also provides information for evaluating
the economic hardship imposed by the adoption of the LTCP Update with the selected
level of control. The knee of the curve analysis is discussed in Section 11.3.

10.2

Identification of Potential Control Measures
The first step in the alternative evaluation process is to identify CSO control measures
which can aid in achieving the desired CSO level of control. Potential control measures
include source controls. infrastructure improvements, operational strategies, storage
and treatment technologies, and implementation of local regulatory measures. For
organizational purposes, potential control measures were organized into four (4)
categories: 1) source controls 2) 1/1 or conveyance upgrades, 3) storage or treatment
technologies, and 4) Best Management Practices (BMPs). Each of tlaese CSO control
types are detailed below.

10.2.1

Source Controls
Source controls have the potential to improve the quantity or quality of runoff entering
the collection system through reduction of runoff volumes, peak flows, or pollutant
loads. Implementation of these source controls can reduce the need for downstream
control measures. Table 10-1 identifies common source control measures.

Table 10-1. Source Controls
Control Measure

Description

Flow Detention

Detention areas can store stormwater runoff temporarily, delaying its
introduction into the collection system and help attenuate peak wet
weather flows in the collection system.

Area Drain and
Downspout
Disconnection

Used in highly developed areas where downspout and area drains are
commonly connected directly to the combined sewer system. Rerouting of
these connections to separate storm drains or available pervious areas
can help reduce peak wet weather flows and volumes.
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Control Measure

Description

Use of Pervious
Areas for
Infiltration

Detention of storm flow in pervious areas reduces runoff volume througlrl
infiltration into the soil. Grassed swales, infiltration basins, and subsurface
leaching facilities can be used to promote infiltration of runoff. This type of
control might be more appropriate as a requirement for future
development or redevelopment areas.

Street Sweeping

Frequent street sweeping can prevent the accumulation of dirt, debris, and
associated pollutants, which may wash off streets and other tributary
areas to a combined collection system during a storm event.

Pervious
Pavements

Pervious pavements reduce runoff by allowing stormwater to drain through
the pavement to the underlying soil. Benefits are limited in cold weather
climates.

Catch Basin
Cleaning

The regular cleaning of catch basins can remove accumulated' sediment
and debris that could ultimately be contained in CSOs.

The source control measures listed above were considered as potential solutions,for 111
across the City's collection system but were eliminated in early screening stages of the
alternatives evaluation process due to constructability challenges and costperformance effectiveness.
10.2.2

UI and Conveyance Upgrades
1/1 and conveyance upgrades can be performed in critical areas of the collection. system
to 1) reduce or eliminate CSO volume and frequency by removing or peak flows, 2)
minimize the amount of 1/1 entering the collection system, or 3) maximize the capacity
of existing infrastructure. Table 10-2 identifies the various 1/1and conveyance
upgrades control measures considered by the City for inclusion into. the· LTCP Update.

Table 10-2. 1/1 and Conveyance Upgrades
Control Measure

Description

Maximizing Existing
Infrastructure

Optimizing the capacity of existing. infrastructure to collect and
treat higher flows with the goal of CSO frequency reduction.
Modifications or repairs to existing structures to capture. higher
amounts of storm flows within the collection system.

Sewer Separation

Conversion of a combined sewer system into separate stormwater
and sanitary sewage collection systems. Typically implemented' by
communities to reduce or eliminate CSOs and associated
impacts. In recent years, sewer separation has been reconsid'ered
by many communicates due to high capital; costs, disruption to
traffic and related community impacts during construction.

Infiltration/Inflow Control
(Inflow Reduction)

Control of excessive 1/1 to provide hydraulic relief hydraulic
capacity, both in the collection system and at the WNTP: In
combined sewer systems, surface runoff is the primary source of
inflow. Other sources of inflow in combined sewers might be
appropriate to control, including river water intrusion or
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Control Measure

Description
groundwater infiltration. Infiltration flow tends. to be molie constant
but of lower volume than inflow. As a result, infiltration controls
may have minimal impact on CSO volume compared to inflow
controls.

Flow Diversion

Diversion or relocation of dry weather flow, wet weather flow, or
both from one drainage basin to another through new or existing
drainage basin interconnections. Flow diversion can relieve an
overloaded regulator or interceptor reach, resulting in a more
optimized operation of the collection system.

Relief Sewers/Interceptors

Installation of relief sewers or new interceptors to increase the
hydraulic capacity within a collection system. Different types of
relief sewers include full flow interception relief sewers, wet
weather flow diversion relief sewers, and sewer
replacement/upsizing. Full flow interception relief sewers will
divert all flows from upstream of a specific interception poimt to a
location downstream. Wet weather flow diversion relief sewers will
only divert the portion of wet weather flow from the interception
location. This type may also include a new sewer for the dry,
weather flow and utilize the existing sewer for wet weather flows.

Pump Station Upgrades

Improvements to increase the hydraulic capacity and improve,
performance of existing pump stations. Adding an additional pump
is generally a simple improvement, as some pump stations have
been designed with extra space for future expansion. Increasing
impeller size or changing the belts and sheaves are additiolilal
methods for adding capacity at a pump. station. Replacement with
larger or higher speed pumps can also be a recommended
improvement for gaining capacity. Force main modifications can
be also considered to increase the hydraulic capacity of the pump
station.

Inflow Redirection

Implementation of an express storm sewer to reduce the
stormwater load to the combined sewer. Designed to convey
storm flow directly to receiving waters. Typically implemelilted on
public stormwater sources including catch basins,. curb inlets., and
surface drainage.

10.2.3

Storage and Treatment Technologies
Storage technologies are utilized to collect or convey high wet weather flows until' the
downstream collection system capacity has been restored. Treatment technologies
may also be utilized to increase the volume of flow receiving treatment. liable 10-3
identifies common storage and treatment technologies.
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Table 10-3. Storage/Treatment Technologies
Storage/Treatment
Technology

Description

In-Line Storage

Includes 1) construction of new tanks or oversized conduits to provide
storage capacity, and 2) construction of a flow regulator to optimize
storage capacity in existing conduits. The new tanks or oversized
conduits are designed to allow dry weather flow to pass through, while
flows above a specific design peak are restricted, causing the· tank or
oversized conduit to fill. A flow regulator on an existing conduit fulilctions
under the same principle, with the existing conduit providing the· storage
volume.

Off-Line Near
Surface Storage/
Equalization

Reduces overflow quantity and frequency by storing all or a portion of
diverted wet weather combined flows in off-line storage tanks. The
storage arrangement is considered to be parallel with the sewer. Stored
flows are returned to the interceptor for conveyance to the WWTP once
system capacity is available.

Deep Tunnel
Storage

Provides storage and conveyance of storm flows in l'a rge tur:mels
constructed well below the ground surface. Tunnels can provide-large
storage volumes with relatively minimal disturbance to the ground
surface, which can be very beneficial in congested urban areas. Flows
are introduced into the tunnels through drop shafts, and pumping: facilities
are usually required at the downstream ends for dewatering.

High Rate
Treatment (HRT)

Provides advanced primary treatment and increase the peak design flow
capacity at the WWTP and regulate the flow of wet weather peak fl'ows.
High rate treatment facilities settle concentrate· and remove solids, while
allowing filtered wastewater to pass over a weir. Though pilot testing is
necessary, high rate treatment can be· effective at removing suspended
solids, with removal rates reported at up to 80-95 percent. High rate
treatment facilities require a small area of land, and the modular
construction also makes it easy to locate and expand.

SwirlNortex
Technology

Designed to promote solids separation via a swirling motion to promote.
Solids are removed through the underdrain of the unit and effluent passes
over a top weir.

Off-line Near
Surface
Sedimentation

Functions as off-line storage tanks and provides sedimentation for excess
flow volumes. These units commonly require coarse screening, floatable
control, and disinfection.

Activated Sludge
Tank Step Feed
Operation

Modifications to existing activated sludge tanks,to. provide additional
operational flexibility and the addition of anaerobic, anoxic, swing, and
oxic/aerobic zones. These improvements increase the treatment capacity
of the tanks by retaining solids in specific zones while maximizing flows
through the unit.
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10_3

Screening of Alternatives
The City evaluated system improvements designed to reduce CSOs using a thr,eetiered screening process. The controls and technologies described in Section 1·0.2
were evaluated with the following screening' approach:
•

Level 1 - Evaluate Non-Monetary Factors,.

•

Level 2 - Evaluate Feasibility and Preliminary Cost, and

•

Level 3 - Evaluate Cost and Performance.

Under Level 1, each identified improvement option was screened to identify possible
environmental impacts, technical difficulties, and implementation challenges that would·
eliminate the identified project as a viable option. Any improvements not eliminated are
then screened under Level 2.
The second tier included a determination of each alternative size, scope, and feasibility.
Each option was modeled using. the updated hydraulic model. The alternatives were
sized to meet the OEPA goals for system-wide overflow control during a typical year,.
The fifth largest storm was used to define the projects and included a range of system
improvement opportunities including the following:
•

The reduction of sources of 1/1 by use of sewer separation,

•

The maximization of conveyance of flows to the VVWTP by including additional
pumps and improved pipes,

•

The maximization of treatment capacity at the \NVI/TP, and

•

The minimization, consolidation, and appropriate placement of needed system
storage with and without pump stations as required by the location of storage.

Additionally, Level 2 included a very preliminary cost opinion used to further screen
alternatives. A Class 5 "Concept Screening" cost estimate as defined by the American
Association of Cost Engineering (AACE) was used to determine the· final tllree
alternatives that would be further refined during Level 3. This cost estimate class has
an expected range of accuracy of-50 to +100 percent.
In the third and final tier, the three remaining alternatives were further refined by
including the all necessary facilities and controls to confirm modeled system
performance over the typical year. Once complete, the three selected alternatives'
preliminary cost analysis was updated to a Class 4 "Study of Feasibility" cost estimate
as defined by the AACE with and accuracy range of -30 to +50 percent.

Table 10-4 summarizes. the types of controls and technologies considered for the City's
LTCP Update followed by a discussion on the Level 1-3 Screening. methodologies
utilized to select the preferred alternative.

Prepared for. Zanesville, Ohio

60634897

AECOM

67

Attachment to Ordinance No. 2021-132
Long-Term Control Plan Update

Table 10-4. Control and Technology Matrix
Control
Measure/Technology
Maximizing Existing
Infrastructure

Description of Improvements

Comments

• CSO weir modifications to
increase hydraulic capacity in
interceptor sewer
• Real time control system
optimization
• RWI Improvements - install
tideflex valves on regulators,
install watertight covers on
manholes, waterproof siphons
and pump stations, relocation of
infrastructure from influence area,
rehabilitate main interceptors

• Cost-effective method to
increase capacity•with
minimal. disruption to existing
system

Sewer Separation

• New Sanitary Sewers
• New Storm Sewers
• Rehabilitation of Existing
Combined Sewers

• Construction of new
infrastructure is expensive
and includes pavement
restoration
• Disruptive. to surrounding
area and existing collection
system flows
• This is a very expensive CSO
elimination alternative

Infiltration/Inflow Control
(Inflow Reduction)

• Catch basin and curb inlet
disconnection
• Rehabilitation of existing
combined infrastructure

• Catch basin disconnection is
very effective inflow removal
technique
• Inflow removal reduces, more
significant flow loading than
infiltration removal
• Relocation of infrastructure
can be expensive alternative

Flow Diversion

• Divert wet weather flows to
another drainage basin for
conveyance to the WWTP

• Mid-cost alternative to relieve
CSOs
• Must consider downstream
capacities of existing
infrastructure so problem is
not transferred

Relief Sewers/
Interceptors

• Parallel interceptor to convey
peak wet weather flows
• Combination gravity sewer/siphon
under river

• Subject to river water
intrusion in the l.ocations near
the existing interceptors
• Expensive to construct
adjacent to the existfng
interceptors due to
topography, environmental
concerns, and easement
requirements
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Control
Measure/Technology
Pump Station Upgrades
(Maximizing Flows to the

Description of Improvements

Comments

• Upsizing the existing pumps
• Additional pumps and pumping
capacity for the wet weather flows
in existing Lift Station
• Complete lift Station
Replacement
• Force main upgrade to increase
pumping capacity

• Eliminates existing hydraulic
bottlenecks
•· Imp.roves the upstream
interceptor hydral!Jlic capacity
during wet weather events by
elimination of backwater
condition
• Mid-cost alternative

Inflow Redirection

• Express storm sewer to transfer
stormwater flow from CSS to
receiving river
• Public stormwater separation by
constructing local storm sewers

• Provides. a significant
reduction in wet weather
inflow
• Conveys and discharges
stormwater separately to the
receiving water
• Future retrofit options if
stormwater treatment is
required

ln-1!.ine Storage

• Install regulators on the
interceptor sewers to maximize
capacity
• Construction of in-line storage to
replace the existing sections of
interceptors

• Evaluate interceptor to
determine segments with
available capacity
• Must maintain existing flows
during construction of in-line
storage tanks
• Construction in low areas
near river/ floodplain presents
constructability issue

Off-Line Near Surface
Storage

• Storage tanks above grade
(bolted steel or concrete)
• Concrete tank below grade

• Land adjacent to existing
pump station, must be
available
• Maintenance•is required after
wet weather events
• Doesn't impaci the existimg
system operations during•
construction

Deep Tunnel Storage

• Construction of a deep tunnel
parallel and below the existing
interceptor for wet weather flow
storage with flow added at drop
structures

• Extremely high construction
costs
• Typical storage option in large
municipalities

High Rate Treatment

• Install a high rate treatment train
to· treat peak wet weather flow at
theV\IWTP

• High construction cost
• Often requires cnemical
addition to increase efficiency
• Only used during,wet weather
events

V\IWTP)
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Control
Measure/Technology

Description of Improvements

Comments

SwirWortex Technology

• Install swirl/vortex technology
unit(s)

• High, construction cost
• Grit sumps tend to clog and
require hi9ch pressure water or
air to loosen compaction

Off-line Near Surface
Storage/ Sedimentation/
Equalization

• Construct storage tanks and weir
regulators
• Construct conveyance from the
collection system to the storage
tanks

• Maintenance is required after
wet weather events
• Doesn't impact the existing,
system operations during
construction

Activated Sludge Tank
Step Feed Modifications

• Modify weirs and flow splitters to
achieve desired flow patterns to
create treatment zones in
activated sludge tanks.

• Increase flow capacity
through activated sludge
tanks
• Low cost modifications,

10.4

Level 1 Screening
Once projects with major environmental impacts, technical difficulties., and
implementation challenges were eliminated, several types of projects were, identified as
conceptually feasible to improve the capacity of the City's collection and wastewater
treatment systems. The list of potential alternatives remaining after Level 1 screening,
includes a variety of control strategies that were further investigated to develop the
most beneficial alternatives based on a cost comparison and water quality benefits. In
this initial stage, the project opportunities that remained included 1/1 reduction and!
conveyance upgrades, storage, WNTP upgrades, and high rate treatment. During
Level 1 screening, potential options for each type of technology were developed. These
options are further described in the subsequent sections.

10.4.1

1/1 and Conveyance Upgrades
1/1 reduction projects and conveyance upgrades could be implemented in targeted
areas to remove or divert a portion of the high wet weather flows observed in collectedi
flow monitoring data. These projects identified for further consideration were based olil
an evaluation of the following data sources:

•

Existing infrastructure including GIS database and record drawings;

•

Flow monitoring performed

•

Calibrated hydraulic model; and

•

City reported CSO data.

Types of 1/1 reduction projects considered included complete sewer separation and RWI
remediation projects. Cost, location of 1/1 within the right-of-way, and potential imflow
volume elimination are typically the driving factors for 1/1 reduction project selection.
River water intrusion was identified at several locations throughout the City's collectiom
system and should be eliminated in order to achieve adequate CSO control.
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Conveyance upgrades were also considered along with 1/1. reduction projects which
included upgrading pump stations and providing new pump stations. Installing
additional conveyance to the WI/I/TP can reduce the overflow quantity and frequency
by conveying the additional flows directty to the WI/I/TP for treatment or storage. The
existing infrastructure conditions, conveyance capacity, and existing utility conflicts
were important factors in identifying feasible. conveyance upgrades projects.
Additionally, maximizing conveyance through the existing infrastructure was also
analyzed. Projects to increase conveyance with existing infrastructure could include
adjusting the overflow weir elevations in a regulator based on output from the
calibrated hydraulic model during a typical year scenario.

10.4.2

Storage

Constructing new storage facilities were evaluated including upstream in-line· storage
and centralized storage in the collection system or at the \/WI/TP. Installing new storage
within the collection system can reduce the overflow quantity and frequency by storing
all or a portion of the wet weather flows within a specific area. Land availability,.
floodplain considerations, and storage capacity requirements typi.cally dictate the type
of storage that can be utilized for each area. Storage facilities were•found to be the
most likely option within the R3 and R21 based on land availability and high overflow
quantity in these two CSO basins.

10.4.3

High Rate Treatment. (HRT)

Three types of HRT were evaluated including: ballasted flocculation, compressible
media filtration, and detention treatment. HRT facilities can remove 80 to 95 percent of
solids and require some type of disinfection of wet weather flows. Pilot testing is
typically required for reguiatory acceptance. HRT is most often utilized where land
acquisition is limited and where-wet weather flow volume.s are high. These facilities
require a small footprint and the modular construction also facilitates expansions. The
City performed a feasibility analysis for the installation of HRT at the W./1/TP prior to the
2007 Expansion project and found that the existing land restrictions disqualified this
technology from implementation at both the \/WI/TP and at an HRT satellite location.
HRT was considered to treat wet weather flows from the City's do.w ntown aFea but was
also eliminated as a viable option due to offsite maintenance requirements and land
restrictions.

10.4.4

WWTP Upgrades
The City conducted a review of the current condition of each of the \/WI/TP units to
evaluate bottlenecks, operational issues, potential upgrades and replacement of
existing technology.
Upgrades to the City's \/WI/TP wet weather capacity in 2007 and 2009 were designed
to treat a peak flow of 36.2 MGD. Since construction, peak capacity studies have
indicated that the VI/WTP is currently unable to treat sustained flows, in excess of 25
MGD. Several bottlenecks have been identified throughout the plant including the
secondary splitter weir gate, the solids contact tank, and the headworks. The City has
made operational changes to eliminate some of these bottlenecks.
When flows reach approximately 25 MGD, the plant begins to experience solids
washout from three (3) of the four ( 4) secondary settling tanks. The 2013 wet weather
study determined that the secondary splitter weir gate is hydraulically limited to, 23.6
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MGD due to inadequate freeboard in the solids contact tank. Based on
recommendations, plant operators adjusted the sluice gates at the splitter box for each
of the secondary settling tanks. The operational improvements have been successful in
eliminating solids washout. As the influent flow continued to increase to 27 MGD, the
solids contact tank filled to a level where water began to overflow the tank wall.
To eliminate overflows, in 2018 plant operators began operating the RAS at 50% when
the influent exceeds 18 MGD. The 1984 headworks was designed. and installed with a
maximum capacity of 20 MGD, forcing plant operators, to close the influent sluice gate
in order to throttle the flow coming into the plant when influent flow reaches 25 MGD.
The chlorine contact basin at the WNTP also has a peak capacity of 30 MGD based on
1O State Standards detention time
Based on the evaluation of the WNTP, upgrades evaluated at the VWvTP were
categorized as1) upgrades to increase the wet weather capacity of the treatment units
to 36.2 MGD; 2) upgrades for long term implementation. The selected alternative· for
the VWvTP Upgrades is a combination of upgrades needed to remove bottlenecks and
increase the wet weather treatment capacity to 36.2 MGD and several· upgrades to
address the long term operation of the 'WWTP. These upgrades are detailed in the
Zanesville VWvTP Condition Assessment Technical Memorandum in Appendix B. The
total estimated cost for the \/MVTP Upgrades is $14.165 ,000.

10.5

Level 2 Screening
Level 2 Screening involved a more detailed evaluation to determine the applicability
and feasibility of potential control technologies. Site-specific projects were identified for
each type of control technology, with the overarching goar of reducing CSOs to the
desired control level. Cost and performance estimates were also developed and
evaluate cost-effectiveness of potential improvement projects.

10.5.1 Early Action Projects
During the development of collection system alternatives, the City identified several
"early action projects" which are currently in planning, design or construction phase
and are expected to be completed in the next 1-5 years. These early action projects will
be incorporated into the City's LTCP Update regardless of the selected alternative.
Figure 10-1 presents a visual summary of the proposed LTCP Update Early Action
Projects. The Early Action Projects are described below.
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The LTCP Update Early Action Projects include:
1. Linden Avenue Lift Station Upgrades
The City is currently in detailed design phases to upgrade the Linden Avenue
Lift Station, which includes the replacement of pumps to maintain existing
design capacity. The City anticipates construction to begin in 2022.
2. Combined Sewer Separation at R6, R8, R9, R10, and R11
Detailed design is complete underway for sewer separation at CSO basins R6
and RB through R11 and construction is anticipated to begin prior to December
31, 2021.
3. Y-Bridge Pump Station Effluent Force Main Improvements
The City is currently in the design phase for Phase 1 of the Y-Bridge Pump
Station Effluent Force Main Improvements project. This phased project
involves moving the existing 24-inch Y-Bridge Pump Station effluent for,ce main
out of the Muskingum River floodplain, as well as re-grading and re-paving
Muskingum Avenue and Dug Road to improve roadway safety caused by
existing grade conditions.
The City's decision to upsize the effluent force main was based on findings from
the August 2015 capacity study and condition assessment of the Y-Bridge
Pump Station and its associated 24-inch effluent force main. A key conclusion
of the study was that as of 2015, there was currently no additional capacity in
the existing 24-inch effluent force main. Upsizing the effluent force main fr.om
24-inch to 30-inch would result in an approximate capacity increase of 8.6
MGD.
To meet firm capacity requirements at the Y-Bridge Pump Station, the City also
plans on installing a fourth pump at the Y-Bridge Pump Station. The existing
pump station is equipped with the required valving and piping for a fourth future
pump. Installation of a fourth pump, as well as the effluent force main
improvements, are included in the LTCP Update regardless of the selected
alternative.
To maximize capital improvement costs, the City plans to perform the Y-Bridge
PS effluent force main improvements in concurrence with planned roadway and
sewer separation projects with overlapping project areas. The portion of
effluent force main along Dug Road shall be upsized during the Dug Road
pavement installation and grading improvements, and the downstream portion
near R11 shall be captured under the R11 sewer separation project. The City
intends on completing the effluent force main improvements over the course of
three (3) phases:
1. Phase 1: Upsize 24" to 30" along Muskingum Avenue, from CSO Basin
R11 to Railroad
2. Phase 2: Upsize 24" to 30" along Muskingum Avenue, from Railroad to
Dug Road
3. Phase 3: Install new pump and connection at Dug Road
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10.5.2

1/1 and Conveyance Upgrades

10.5.2.1 Combined Sewer Separation
Each of the following CSO basins were identified as high 1/1 areas and evaluated for
inflow reduction via cost-effective combined sewer separation:
R3 Combined Sewer Separation
Phased sewer separation was considered in the R3 basin to reduce high wet weather
flows observed in available flow monitoring data. 1/1 reduction would involve
constructing a separate storm sewer along Johnston Street,. Luke Drive and Marysville
Road . The project area involves several constructability challenges includfng an
existing railroad crossing and construction in high-density residential neighborhoods,
making combined sewer separation less cost-effective in this area.
R13 Combined Sewer Separation
In 2003, the City contracted DLZ to perform detailed design for the complete
separation of the R13 basin under the GW Morse Sewer Separation project. New
storm and sanitary sewers were constructed for approximately 80% of the total project
area. The remaining 20% of the project area, or approximately 12 properties west of
the Railroad, were omitted from project construction and thus continue to send wet
weather to the combined system. Finalization of the combined sewer separation
detailed in the GW Morse design plans is an extremely feasible option for inflow
reduction at R13. In addition, complete separation in R13 would allow the City to
remove the existing CSO connection at the R13 regulator structure and significantly
reduce downstream wet weather flows.
R14 Combined Sewer Separation
Several properties within the R14 area have been deemed to have historical
significance. Due to concerns of negative public perception, high constructability costs,
and anticipated permitting challenges, sewer separation feasibility was extremely low
for this area. As a result sewer separation in the R14 basin was not considered a
viable option.
R21 Combined Sewer Separation
Approximately 9.9 acres of the City's urbanized downtown area is located within R21 .
Construction within this urbanized area would be highly difficult due to. high traffic
congestion, limited construction workspace, and existing utility crossings. The feasibility
of combined sewer separation within the more residential portion of R21 was
evaluated. The City identified a potential opportunity to re-purpose an existing 2-MGD
water storage reservoir located southeast of the proposed R2t sewer separation area,
making partial separation in the R21 basin an attractive control option. However, the
hydraulic model showed that multiple lift stations would be requi~ed to convey storm
flows from the R21 basin to the storage facility, resulting in high capital and O&M costs.
In addition, the hydraulic model showed that R21 partial separation projects did not
meet the desired CSO control level of four or less overflows in the typical year at R21
and would require additional cap•acity upgrades downstream of the R21 basin.
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R30 Combined Sewer Separation
Currently, the City's partially separated collection system along E Main Street takes an
additional source of sanitary inflow which currently prevents the City from closing tmei
R30 outfall. As a result the R30 basin was considered a potential inflow reduction
project area and evaluated for combined sewer separation .
Two properties in the City's downtown area were investigated as potential costeffective candidates for small scale sewer separation projects. Field investig,ation
results indicated that (1) property at the intersection of E.. Main Street and 9th Street
sends sanitary flows into the combined sewer system that runs from E Main Street to
S. 5th St. This area was previously separated, and the City has been conducting
monitoring to determine if R30 could be eliminated. Dye testing performed at 925' Main
Street showed that sanitary flow enters the 18-inch storm sewer and is conveyed
towards the R30 outfall located at Canal Street and S. 5 th Street. Findings from these
field investigations including mainline inspection data and dye testing results are
included in the Appendix F. Further analysis and coordination with property owners at
20 9th Street needs to be conducted to determine whether sanitary connection
relocation is necessary to complete sewer separation in the R30 basin. This project
would also require extension of existing sanitary infrastructu.re along E Main Street and
relocation of existing sanitary lateral(s). The R30 sewer separation project has been
included in the alternatives evaluation.
Combined Sewer Separation Feasibility Analysis
Table 10-5 summarizes the estimated runoff volume removal, opinion of probable cost,
and cost-effectiveness (cost per unit of runoff removed) for viat:Jl'e inflow reduction
projects requiring further analysis. Future runoff rates in these areas were based on
average observed hydrology parameters in areas of the collection system that have
been separated.
Table 10-5. Combined Sewer Separation Project Cost Analysis

1/1 Reduction Project
Area

Volume of Runoff
Removed (gal)*

Opinion of
Probable Cost ($
Million)

Cost I Peak Runoff
Removed ($/ gal)

R3

421,400

$7.6

$16.61

R13

478,800

$0.49

$1.02

R21, East of
Greenwood

105,000

$14.3

$136.19

Note:
.. Wet weather volume reduction required to achieve desired CSO control level of four
(4) or less overflows in the typical year.
The R13 sewer separation project resulted in the lowest cost of 1/1 removal per dollar
($1.02 per gallon of runoff removed), which led to the inclusion of this project i11 tine
LTCP Update regardless of the selected alternative. Table 10-5 shows that the sewer
separation in the R21 basin resulted in the highest estimated inflow reduction unit cost
($136.19 per gallon), eliminating this project as a cost-effecUve option. Phased
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separation at R3 was also eliminated as a cost-effective alternative after preliminary
cost screening compared to storage options.
10.5.2.2 River Water Intrusion Remediation
Indications of RWI were observed at R3, R9, R12, R13 and R14. It is assumed that the
RWI suspected in the R9 area will be addressed following completion of the ongoing
sewer separation project. The R12 weir is· proposed to be modified, and the R13 sewer
separation project will be completed. The only remaining RWl-susceptible locations
which required future RWI control solutions were R3 allld R 14.
End-of-pipe solutions were proposed R3 and R14 which win require installation of new
duckbills and potential rehabilitation of the existing outfall piping. These solutions will,
be implemented regardless of the selected LTCP Alternative. Cost opinions for these
improvements were included in Level 3 Screening.
10.5.2.3 Regulator Modifications
The City's existing collection system was evaluated using flow monitoring data and field
investigation findings to identify areas with underutilized regulator structures. Sitespecific projects were proposed for each existing CSO location where
1. The upstream collection system capacity is not fully utilized,.
2. Proposed combined sewer separation projects will: require the modification of
the existing regulator configuration,
3. Combined sewer separation has been completed but CSO connections have
yet to be removed, or
4. CSO storage has been proposed and requires an alternative overflow weir
configuration.
Several regulator modification projects were included in each of the City's LTCP
Update alternatives and are discussed herein.
R12 Regulator Modifications
This location was selected as a potential regulator modification project due to, the high
velocities experienced in the upstream pipe entering, the structure, causing hydraulic
jumps regardless of upstream system capacity. An iterative modelling process was
utilized to determine optimal weir elevations. This involved incremental increases to1a
specified weir structure until (0) CSO activations were observed in the typical year.
Upstream and downstream impacts were evaluated using the hydraulic model and
aided in determining the feasibility of potential regular modifications.
In addition, the R12 weir modifications will significantly decrease the likelihood of RWI
entering the collection system at the regulator structure. Based on the river stage
analysis performed (refer to Section 8.1), the peak river stage that occurred at R12
during the flow monitoring period was 682.2-feet (NAVD88). Wrth plans t0r raise the
R 12 weir by approximately 12 inches from the existing weir elevation of 682. 57-feet to
683.57-feet, it is reasonable to assume that future river levels wilt remain below the
planned weir elevation, eliminating the need for RWI remediation at this location.
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R 13 Regulator Modifications
For planned sewer separation at R 13, the receiving CSO regulator at Peter's Alrey will
be converted to a separate storm structure and the combined sewer connection will be
removed.
R26 Regulator Modifications
The City has performed daily visual inspections at the. R26 regulator structure to
assess whether CSO activations continue to occur during rain events. Woodchips were
placed on the downstream side of the regulator weir and used to indicate CSO
activation. From January to December 2019, there was one (1r) observed CSO
activation at R26 which occurred in October 2019. The hydraulic model was utilized to
evaluate potential impacts of closing the existing R26 CSO location. Based on the field
report data and hydraulic model analysis, closure of the R26 CSO was considered a
viable project and thus was included in the LTCP Update. This project would involve
several modifications at the regulator structure including removal of the existing
overflow connection and removal of the existing orifice plate.
In summary, the following regulator modification projects were included in the City's
LTCP Update regardless of the selected alternative:
•

R12 Regulator Modifications - Raise overflow weir

•

R26 Regulator Modifications - Remove overflow connection and orifice plate

Alternatives involving wet weather storage and wet weather pump stations will require
constructing a side-weir at the existing regulator structure to convey high flows into
new wet weather facilities at a specified rate and elevation . Side-weir elevations were
determined using the process described for R12 regulator weir optimization to achieve
the desired control level of (4) or less CSO activations in the typical year.
10.5.2.4 Downtown Interceptor and Muskingum River Siphon
The City relies on the Muskingum River Siphon to convey flows from the northeast
portion of the City, including the City's downtown area, across the Muskingum River
into the 60-inch Muskingum Avenue Interceptor. Hydraulic modelling analyses showed
that the existing Muskingum River Siphon (1'2-inch and 24-inch in parallel) and the
City's downtown interceptor are limited in capacity.
The total estimated capacity of the existing Musking.um Avenue Siphon and Downtown
Interceptor is 18.6 MGD and 12.3 MGD, respectively. Based on future tributary flows,
these structures are required to convey a minimum of 21.4 MGD in order to maintain
four or less overflows at R21 in the typical year. Based on these findings the City
considered options to increase the capacity through these structures as part of the
LTCP Update.
Downtown Interceptor Upsizing
The hydraulic model was used to determine. optimal sizing for the proposed Downtown
Interceptor improvements.
Constructability was a critical factor in potential upsizing of the Downtown Interceptor. A
majority of the interceptor runs along heavily trafficked urbanized roads with limited
workspace for large-diameter pipe installation and construction. Along South 5th Street,
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a 24-inch diameter combined sewer runs parallel to the Downtown Interceptor. AnotheF
potential constructability hurdle was identified at the intersection of Canal Street and
Putnam Avenue, where the Putnam Avenue bridge was constructed above grade.
New interceptor routing was proposed at the downstream portion of the interceptor to
avoid construction along South 5th Street and near the Putnam Bridge·.. To maximize
costs, this option involves installing a new smaller diameter sewer which will run east
from the manhole at 5th Street and South Street. In turn, the City would continue to
utilize the existing trunk sewers along South 5th Street and Canal Street.
Due to spatial constraints, downtown district disturbance, maintenance-of-traffic
requirements, and ancillary infrastructure unknowns due to the age. of the area the
Downtown Interceptor upsizing project was limited to trenchless construction methods.
Cost estimations were developed assuming microtunneling is the selected construction
technology due to its high accuracy of finished pipe location which is considered
necessary in the City's downtown area. Rock removal and dewatering were not
included in preliminary costs.
Muskingum River Siphon Upgrades
Several options were considered to increase the capacity at the Muskingum River
crossing which involved re-purposing the existing siphons, replacililg: the existing
siphons entirely, or utilizing. both siphons and constructing a new wet weather force
main and associated pump station. It was assumed that the. existing siphons are in fair
condition and have an estimated 30-40 additional useful years, allowing: the City to
eliminate the option involving complete replacement. The concept of converting the 24inch siphon into a force main was also eliminated based on hydraulic. modelling
showing that the required capacity of approximately 21.4 MGD was not met.
This project would also require that the City acquire the commercial' property· at the
corner of Canal Street and 9th Street. This property was the prefen:ed pump station
location due to proximity to the existing siphon influent box as well' as minimal.wet well
depth requirements. The City also considered locating the pump, station at the Cityowned property south of the river, however has removed this option due to public
perception of new construction in a highly utili.z ed public park. This latter option would
also require a significantly deeper wet well and larger lift station to tie into, the existing
collection system at the Muskingum Avenue Interceptor.
The City performed a feasibility evaluation for the proposed 20-inch force main river
crossing. The force main would require crossing a canal owned and operated by
ODNR. Aerial photography indicates that sheet piling was installe.d along, the south
side of the canal embankment, posing a potential constructability· conflict. Trenchless
construction via HOD was preliminarily recommended to minimize wetland disturbance
and instream work at the Muskingum River and the ODNR canal. Microtunneling and
jack-and-bore construction methods were also considered but not recommended due
to high capital costs and increased dewatering of entrance and exit shafts. Rock
removal and dewatering were not included in preliminary costs.
It should also be noted that the City plans on performing a detailed condition
assessment of the Muskingum River Siphon as part of the LTCP Update.
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10.5.3

Storage
The City performed detailed feasibility analyses for proposed storage facilities serving
the R3 and R21 basins. Potential storage sites were identified using updated GIS data
and County property records.
Public perception was a key factor in selection of proposed siting and CSO storage
type. The R21 area is located near highly utilized urban buildings, railroad tracks and
equipment storage areas, and a recently renovated City park. Resultantly the City did
not consider above-ground storage for this area. The City-owned parking lot adjacent
to the R21 regulator structure was the preferred underground storage site due to
proximity to existing infrastructure and avoidance of construction in the City park or
near the railroad. Below-ground tanks and linear storage were both considered, but
linear storage was selected based on preliminary cost comparison findings.
Similar to R21, public perception was a deciding factor for R3 storage selection. The
R3 basin is categorized as a medium-high density residential area. As. a result' the City
only considered below-ground storage technologies. The Buckingham Estates property
was removed from consideration after development of preliminary cost opinions, which
showed that multiple lift stations were required to convey stored flows from the site to
the Muskingum Interceptor. The existing 60-ft ROW along Muskingum Avenue, parallel
to the existing 60-inch trunk sewer, was considered the most cost-effective option. In
addition, linear storage would eliminate the need for lift station installation, making this
proposed project the most cost-effective CSO control solution at the R3 CSO Basin.

10.6

Level 3 Screening
Level 3 screening included detailed hydraulic modeling of numerous combinations of
the control options described above. The iterative hydraulic modeling along with
development of supporting preliminary comprehensive cost estimates were reviewed,
refined several times throughout the alternative selection process. Below is a summary
of ~he top three (3) combinations of options presented as Alternatives 1-3.

10.6.1

Alternative 1
Alternative 1 includes the projects and upgrades shown in Figure 10-2. The projects
are summarized below:
•

36 MGD Wet Weather Capacity WNTP Upgrades

•

Ear1y Action Projects (See Section 10.5.1)

•

1/1 and Conveyance Upgrades
o

R13 Combined Sewer Separation and Regulator Modifications

o

R30 Combined Sewer Separation

o

RWI Improvements at R3 and R14

o

R12 Regulator Modifications

o

R26 Regulator Modifications
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•

Storage
o

o

R3 In-Line Storage (210,000 gallons) and Regulator Modifications

•

1,400 LF of 60-inch Gravity Sewer along Muskingum Avenue

•

30 LF of 8-inch Gravity Sewer

R21 Storage Array (520,000 gallons) and Regulator Modifications
•

1,800 LF of 84-inch Gravity Sewer

•

1 MGD Pump Station

Alternative 1 involves upgrading the VVWTP wet weather capacity to 36 MGD and
completion of Early Action Projects which include ongoing Linden Avenue Lift Station
upgrades, ongoing combined sewer separation projects at R6, RB, R9, R10, and R111,
instaJlation of a fourth pump to the Y-Bridge Pump Station and upsizing the existing 24inch Y-Bridge Pump Station effluent force main to a 30-inch diameter force main. This
alternative includes completion of sewer separation in the R13 Basin and R30 Basin,
regulator modifications at R3, R12, R13, R21,and R26 and end-of-pipe solutions for
RWI remediation at R3 and R14.
Alternative 1 utilizes CSO storage to capture. high wet weather flows in the R3 Basin
and the R21 Basin. In the R3 area, Alternative 1 includes in-line storage providing
approximately 210,000 gallons of wet weather storage via 1,400 LF of 60-inch pipe
along Muskingum Avenue and 30 LF of 8-inch gravity sewer to control wet weather flow
into the Main Interceptor.
The R21 storage array includes 1,800 LF of 84-inch gravity sewer and offers
approximately 520,00 gallons of CSO storage for the R21 sewershed . A 1 MGD pump
station is required at the R21 storage array to pump stored wet weather flows into the
Downtown Interceptor at a controlled rate.
Alternative 1 is the•least expensive LTCP Update Alternative with a total project cost
estimate of $38.02 Million in 2021 dollars. A detailed breakdown of the preliminary cost
estimate is included in Appendix G.
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Figure 10-2

Zanesville LTCP Update
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10.6.2

Alternative 2
Alternative 2 includes the projects and upgrades shown in Figure 10-3. The projects
are summarized below:
•

36 MGD Wet Weather Capacity Wi/1/TP Upgrades

•

Early Action Projects (See Section 10.5.1)

•

1/1 and Conveyance Upgrades

•

o

R 13 Combined Sewer Separation and Regulator Modifications

o

R30 Combined Sewer Separation

o

RWI Improvements at R3 and R14

o

R12 Regulator Modifications

o

R26 Regulator Modifications

o

R21 Wet Weather Conveyance Improvements and Regulator Modifications
•

8 MGD Duplex Wet Weather Pump Station with Screening Unit

•

3,000 LF of 18-inch along Market St.

•

New Wet Weather Force Main under Muskingum River upstream of
existing dam - 600 LF of 20-inch {Horizontal Directional Drilling), tie-in at
Linden Ave and lee St

Storage
o

R3 In-Line Storage {300,000 gallons) and Regulator Modifications
•

1,400 LF of 72-inch Gravity Sewer along Muskingum Avenue

•

30 LF of 8-inch Gravity Sewer

Alternative 2 requires upgrading the Wi/1/TP wet weather capacity to 36 MGD and
completion of Early Action Projects which include ongoing linden Avenue Lift Station
upgrades, ongoing combined sewer separation projects at R6, R8, R9, R10, and R11,
installation of a fourth pump to the Y-Bridge Pump Station and upsizing the existing 24inch Y-Bridge Pump Station effluent force main to a 30-inch diameter force main. This
alternative includes completion of sewer separation in the R 13 Basin and R30 Basin,
regulator modifications at R3, R 12, R 13, R21 and R26, as well as end-of-pipe solutions
for RWI remediation at R3 and R14.
To address high wet weather flows in the R3 Basin, Alternative 2 includes in-line
storage via 1,400 LF of 72-inch gravity sewer along Muskingum Avenue and 30 LF of
8-inch gravity sewer to control wet weather flow into the Main Interceptor. It is
important to note that the R3in-line storage gravity sewer in Alternative 2 is slightly
larger at 72-inch diameter compared to 6~inch diameter in Alternative 1 due to the
presence of R21 peak flows in the Main Interceptor, resulting in less capacity for R3
Basin flows into the Main Interceptor and therefore higher in-line storage requirements.
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Proposed wet weather conveyance improvements in the R21 basin include an 8 MGD
wet weather pump station with screening unit, 3,000 LF of 18-inch gravity sewer along
Market Street. and 600-LF 20-inch wet weather force main under the Muskingum River,
located upstream of the existing dam. It was assumed that HOD would be performed
to install the new wet weather force main, which would connect into the existing Linden
Avenue Interceptor at. Lee Street.
The total project cost estimate of Alternative· 2 is $40.33 Million in 2021 dollars. A
detailed breakdown of the preliminary cost estimate is included in Appendix G.
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Figure 10-3

Zanesville LTCP Update
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10.6.3

Alternative 3
Alternative 3 includes the projects and upgrades shown Figure 1Q-4 .. The projects are
summarized below:
•

36 MGD Wet Weather Capacity VW/TP Upgrades

•

Early Action Projects (See Section 10.5.1)

•

1/1 and Conveyance Upgrades
o

R13 Combined Sewer Separation and Regulator Modifications

o

R30 Combined Sewer Separation

o

RWI Improvements at R3 and R14

o

R12 Regulator Modifications

o

R26 Regulator Modifications

o

Downtown Interceptor Upsizing

o

•

•

2,000 LF of 42-inch on 3m St. and South St. (Microtunneling)

•

1,700 LF of 36-inch on South St, 6 th St,. Marietta St., and 7th St.
(Microtunneling)

Muskingum River Siphon Improvements
•

12 MGD Wet Weather Pump Station with Screening Unit near existing
Muskingum River Siphon

•

900 LF of 20-inch HPDE under Muskingum River (Horizontal Directional
Drilling)

Storage
o

R3 In-Line Storage (300,000 gallons) and Regulator Modifications
•

1,400 LF of 72-inch Gravity Sewer along Muskingum Avenue

•

30 LF of 8-inch Gravity Sewer

Similar to the previous alternatives, Alternative 3 involves upgrading the VW/TP wet
weather capacity to 36 MGD and completion of Early Action Projects which include
ongoing Linden Avenue Lift Station upgrades, ongoing combined sewer separation
projects at R6, RB, R9, R10, and R11, installation of a fourth pump to the Y-Bridge
Pump Station and upsizing the existing 24-inch Y-Bridge Pump Station effluent force
main to a 30-inch diameter force main. This alternative includes completion of sewer
separation in the R13 Basin and R30 Basin, regulator modifications at R3, R12, R13,
R21, and R26, as well as end-of-pipe solutions for RWI remediation at R3 and R14.
To capture high wet weather flows in the R3 Basin, Alternative 3 includes in-line
storage via 1,400 LF of 72-inch gravity sewer along Muskingum Avenue and 30 LF of
8-inch gravity sewer to control wet weather flow into the Main Interceptor. Similar to
Alternative 2, this alternative requires slightly more in-line storage compared to
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Alternative 1 due to the presence of R21 peak flows in the Main Interceptor, resulting in
less capacity tor R3 Basin flows into the Main Interceptor and higher in-line storage
requirements.
To achieve CSO control at R2'1, this alternative includes Downtown Interceptor
improvements which involves 2,000 F of 42-inch gravity sewer on 3rd Street and South
Street, and 1,700 LF of 36-inch gravity sewer on South Street, 6th Street, Marietta
Street, and 7lh Street Alternative 3 would also require the construction of a new 12
MGD wet weather pump station and installation of a new 2.0-inch HPDE force main
across the Muskingum River parallel to the existing Muskingum River siphon. It was
assumed that HOD would be performed to install the new wet weather force main at
the river crossing, and microtunneling would be the preferred construction method for
the proposed Downtown Interceptor improvements.
The total estimated project cost of Alternative 3 is $52.68 Million in 2021 dollars. A
detailed breakdown of the preliminary cost estimate is included in Appendix G.
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Figure 10-4
Zanesville LTCP Update
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10.6.4

Alternative Evaluation Summary
Each of the finalized LTCP Update alternatives were evaluated based on the findings of
the three-tiered screening process as summarized in Table 10-6.

Table 10-6. LTCP Update Alternative Evaluation
Description

Alternative • 361/1/WTP Upgrades

1

Estimated Advantages
Cost ($Mil)
$38.02

-Least expensive alternative

• Early Action Projects

-Utilizes City-owned land

• 1/1 and Conveyance

-Minimal O&M requirements
at R3 and R21 Storage

Upgrades

Disadvantages

-Potential negative public
perception of underground
CSO storage

• R3 In-Line Storage

• R21 Storage Array
Alternative • 36 W-NTP Upgrades
2
• Early Action Projects

$40.33

-Utilizes City-owned land
-Provides redundancy for
existing Muskingum River
Siphon

• 1/1 and Conveyance
Upgrades
• R3 In-Line Storage

• 1/1 and Conveyance
Upgrades

work
-Relatively high O&M costs to
operate wet weather pump
station

-R21 flows pumped twice

• New \/Vet 1/Veather Pump
Station & Force Main at
North Muskingum River

Alternative • 36 \NWTP Upgrades
3
• Early Action Projects

-Potential permitting
requii:ements due to instream

-Construction 0f new Force
Main near existing lock and
dam system
$52.68

-Provides redundancy for
existing Muskingum River
Siphon
-Extends service life of
Downtown Interceptor

-Most expensive alternative
-Requires coordination with
ODNR due to canal crossing

• R3 In-Line Storage

-Potential permitting
requirements due to instream
work

• Downtown Interceptor
Upsizing

-Major construction in City's
downtown area

• New IIVet Weather Pump
Station & Force Main at
Muskingum River

-Relatively high O&M costs t0
operate wet weather pump
station
-Dependent on City's ability to
acquire additional land for new
wet weather pump station

Alternative 1 is projected to be the, least expensive LTCP Update alternative at an
estimated $38 Million in total project costs, while Alternative 2 is projected as the
expensive option at an estimated $52.7 Million. Identified disadvantages of Alternative
2 and Alternative 3 include O&M requirements for a new wet weather pump station,
major construction within the City's highly utilized downtown area, and potential
permitting requirements due to instream work, resulting in the elimination of these
alternatives as preferrable CSO solutions. Alternative is the preferred LTCP Update
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atternative due to significant cost savings and minimal operational requirements under
the proposed R3 and R21 CSO control solutions.
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11 .

Selected Alternative
Alternative 1 is the selected alternative for the City's LTCP Update. Upgrading, the
WNTP wet weather capacity to 36 MGD will maximize the City's downstream collection
system capacity, notably the Main Interceptor. Inflow reduction projects and
conveyance upgrades including the ongoing R6, R8 through R11 sewer separation
projects, the R13 sewer separation , and RWI remediation projects Will reduce peak
flows at downstream infrastructure, providing additional hydraulic relief to major
interceptors. Installing storage at R3 and R21 allows the City to maximize the capacity
of the existing collection system and provides hydraulic relief during high flow periods.
Refer to Section 12 for further details of the financial capability analysis peliformed as
part of the LTCP Update.
The CSO control solutions included in this LTCP Update were developed based on the
best technology available as of 2021 , therefore the City reserves the right to deviate
from this proposed plan as new technology or alternative acceptable solutions become
available. In accordance with the Integrated Planning Approach, the LTCP Update
Implementation Schedule was developed to include phases and programmatic reviews
between LTCP phases as discussed in Section 13. Inclusion of these programmatic
review periods allows the City to evaluate the performance of constructed projects and
determine where adjustments are required for future phase projects. After proposed
inflow reduction and conveyance upgrades projects have been implemented, the size
and cost information developed to control to four (4) overflow events during the typical
year will require further refinement and verification which shall be performed during
programmatic reviews.
A summary of the selected LTCP Update alternative is shown as Table 11-1 and,
discussed in subsequent sections.
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Table 11-1. Selected LTCP Update Alternative Summary
CSO Control
Measure

WNrP
Upgrades
Early Action
Projects

Project Name

Project Description

36 MGD Wet Weather
Capacity WWTP Upgrades

Improvements to increase the WWTP wet
weather treatment capacity to 36 MGD

Separations at R6, R8, R9,
R10, R11 and Y-Bridge PS
Force Main Improvements
Phase 1

Construction of separate storm sewer at R6,
R8, R9, R10 and R11; Upgrades to Y-Bridge
PS force main from Railroad to R 11
Sewershed

Y-Bridge Bridge PS Force
Upgrades to Y-Bridge PS force main from
Main Improvements Phase 2 Railroad to Dug Road
Y-Bridge Bridge PS Force
Upgrades to Y-Bridge PS force main from Dug
Main Improvements Phase 3 Road to Pump Station; Installation of fourth
pump

1/1 and
Conveyance
Upgrades

R 13 Combined Sewer
Separation and Regulator
Modifications

Construction of separate storm sewer west of
Railroad and removal of sanitary connections;
Conversion of R13 to dedicated storm outfall

R30 Combined Sewer
Separation and R26
Regulator Modifications

Disconnection of sanitary connections from E
Main Street combined sewer and
improvements to remove existing, sanitary
connection; modifications to remove CSO
connection at R30

RWI Improvements at R3
and R14

River water intrusion remediation at CSO
outfall structures

R12 Regulator Modifications Improvements to existing weir
Storage

R3 In-Line Storage and
Regulator Modifications

Construction of in-line storage and' re,lafed
regulator modifications

R21 Storage Array and
Regulator Modifications

Construction of storage array and 1 MGD
pump station

Programmatic
Reviews
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11.1

Selected Alternative Model Results
The selected alternative was incorporated into the hydraulic model and optimized to
meet the desired four (4) overflows during the 2012 typical year. The final model results
for the selected alternative are summarized in Table 11-2.
Table 11-2. Existing Conditions vs. Selected Alternative Model Results Summary

CSO Outfall
City Rack NPDES
Number
Permit

cso

Existing Condition
Number of
Overflows
(#/yr}

Predicted LTCP Update

Overflow
Volume
(MG/yr)

Number of
Overflows
(#/yr}

Overflow
Volume
(MG/yr}

Overflow
Volume%
Reduction

4

8.6

0

0

Station
Number
R2

005

R3

006

R4

007

Closed

RS

008

Closed

R6

009

R7

010

R8

011

9

1.7

0

0

0

R9

012

20

6.9

0

0

0

R10

013

9

1.2

0

0

0

R11

014

1

0.1

0

0

0

R12

015

4

1.0

0

1

0.2

R13

016

57

7.5

0

0

0

R14

017

4

2.7

4

4

2.2

R15

018

Closed

R17

020

Closed

R18

021

Closed

R19

022

Closed

R21

024

14

10.5

4

4

3.9

R26

029

6

0.6

0

0

0

R30

052

0

0

0

0

0

14.9

73.6%

Total:
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11.2

Selected Alternative Cost Estimates
Table 11~3 shows the preliminary cost estimates for each CSO control project included
in the selected LTCP Update alternative. The total estimated cost is approximately $38
Million in 2021 Dollars.

Table 11-3. Selected Alternative Cost Estimates
CSO Control
Measure

Project Name

Project
Cost

WNTP Upgrades

36 MGD Wet. Weather Capacity WWTP Upgrades

$14,165,000

Early Action Projects

Linden Avenue Lift Station Upgrades

$770,000

Separations at R6, RB, R9, R10, R11 and Y-Bridge PS
Force Main Improvements Phase 1

$7,444,000

Y-Bridge Bridge PS Force Main Improvements Phase 2 $780,000

Ill and Conveyance
Upgrades

Storage

Y-Bridge Bridge PS Improvements Phase 3

$1,160,000

R13 Combined Sewer Separation and Regulator
Modifications

$1,015,000

R30 Combined Sewer Separation and R26 Regulator
Modifications

$150,000

RWI Improvements at R3 and R14

$136,000

R12 Regulator Modifications

$14,000

R3 In-Line Storage and Regulator Modifications

$3,560,000

R21 Storage Array and Regulator Modifications

$8,710,000

Programmatic
Reviews

$120,000

Total LTCP Update Project Cost

$38,020,000

11.2.1

Basis of Estimate
Cost estimates included in this LTCP Update are high level planning costs and
considered to be Class 4 ~study of Feasibility" cost estimates as defined by the AACE
with and accuracy range of -30 to +50 percent. The preliminary cost estimates are
representative of total project costs including construction, engineering design and
construction oversight, permitting and legal costs and contingencies.
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Source data utilized during the cost estimate development process was adjusted for
inflation using a 4-percent per year compounding inflation rate and include:
•

Bid tabulation data and preliminary costing tools from similar project work

•

City of Columbus Cost Estimating Methodology Report, 2011

For LTCP Update projects involving new sewer installation, a high-level cost estimating
approach was utilized which involved applying a unit price to each linear feet of sewer
installed. The unit price shown in final cost estimates encompasses anticipated
restoration costs including pavement replacement, seeding, mulching, backfill and
related sewer main appurtenances such as manholes and catch basins. It was
assumed that new sewer installations will be constructed in City-owned streets and
paved areas. Unit prices obtained from source documents were adjusted for inflation
using a 4-percent per year compounding inflation rate.
Cost estimate markups were expressed as a lump sum or calculated as a percentage
of the subtotal of estimated construction costs. Rates were adjusted based on project
type and class of estimate. Costs for mobilization, maintenance of traffic, stomiwater
pollution prevention plan development, permitting and legal fees, engineering design
and construction oversight, and additional contingencies were built into the project cost
estimates. Detailed cost estimate breakdowns for each LTCP Update project are
included as Appendix G. Descriptions of notable cost estimate markups are
discussed below.
•

General Contingency: Accounts for inherent uncertainties in the estimating
process and is anticipated by the estimator as the relative stability of the design
documents, project scope, and assumptions upon which the estimate is based.

•

Site and Surface Contingency: Applied to proposed sewer separation project
work to account for costs of sitework including grading, seeding and mulching,
etc.

•

Overhead and Profit (O&P): Costs associated with general
contractor/subcontractor employees engaged in daily work activities tied to the
project life throughout all construction phases. as well as compensation for risk
and efforts to undertake and complete the project.

•

Permitting, Legal and Miscellaneous: Accounts for costs associated with
permitting and coordination with regulatory agencies, assessments, taxes, legal
and development charges, or any other fees not specifically stated in the cost
breakdowns.

•

Engineering Design and Construction Oversight: Design and construction
management fees applied to all projects at planning level. phase (not currently in
design or construction phases).

•

Design Phase Construction Contingency: Serves as an additional reserve if the
lowest bid exceeds the engineer's cost estimate by 10%.

•

Construction Contingency: Accounts for the estimator's anticipated overrun of
the estimate due to errors or omissions in the final bid documents and/or design
that may not be complete enough to determine final quantities. This generally
serves as a reserve for change orders during construction.
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11.2.2

Exclusions
The preliminary cost estimates developed as part of this LTCP Update excluded the
items listed below, as well as any scope items outside of what is stated in the cost
breakdowns (refer to Appendix G).
1.

Unforeseen subsurface conditions including rock excavation and dewatering;

2.

Escalation;

3.

Restoration costs unless specified as individual' line item; and

4.

Active utility relocation costs.

It is also important to note that this LTCP Update was developed during the COVID-19
pandemic and at the time of development. the construction market is experiencing
major project delays, procurement issues, high unemployment rates and iflcreased
equipment and goods costs as a result of the ongoing pandemic. It is uncertain how
the industry will continue to be affected by these issues, and therefore an
escalation/uncertainty factor has not been assumed to account for these unknowns.

11.3

Selected Alternative Cost Curve Analysis
The CSO controls included in the selected LTCP Update alternative· were further
evaluated to determine sizing requirements and associated costs under various levels
of service based on hydraulic modelling. This analysis allowed the City to compare
total project costs to predicted number of CSO activations during the typical year. The
resulting cost-performance curve was used to identify the "knee of the curve," or the
optimal level of CSO control where collection system performance reaches diminishing
returns in terms of total project costs.
Performance levels evaluated as part of this analysis included zero (0), four (4), six (6),
and nine (9) overflows in the typical year. Figure 11-1 depicts the cost-performance
curve with total project costs plotted on the x-axis and CSO frequency plotted on the yaxis.

Figure 11-1 shows the knee of the curve occurring at four (4) overflows in the typical
year. Based on these findings the City plans on implementing this LTCP Update with
four (4) overflow events during the typical year.
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Figure 11-1 . Selected Alternative Cost-Performance Curve

11.4

Additional Ongoing Efforts
The City is committed to continuous implementation of the NMCs in coordination with
the NPDES Permit as discussed in Section 2.3. The City will continue to implement the
CSSOP and update the document periodically as collection system improvements are
performed during the implementation of this LTCP Update.
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12.

Financial Capability Analysis
The affordability of the City's LTCP Update program was e'llaluated, including
performance of a Financial Capability Analysis in accordance with US EPA FCA
guidance and regulations ... Information utilized in the affordability analysis included the
cost of the selected altemati'lle, capital impro'llement plan/schedule to support the debt
service calculations, and program operation and maintenance costs during
implementation of the LTCP Update.
The Financial Capability Analysis performed as part of this LTCP Update is attached as

AppendixH.
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13.

LTCP Implementation Schedule
The LTCP Update Implementation Schedule was developed given the financial
affordability analysis of the selected LTCP Update alternative. The Schedule as shown
in Table 13-1 is considered feasible, affordable and adaptable to phased
implementation of CSO control projects over the proposed 25-year period.
Programmatic reviews were included following each phase of the Schedule to evaluate
future project specifications and performance of constructed projects. This will allow the
City to collect and evaluate flow monitoring data, calibrate the hydraulic model and
update planned projects as necessary.
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Table 13-1. LTCP Update Implementation Schedule
LTCP Update Project

Cost

Phase 1 (Year 1 to Year 5)

Linden Avenue Lift Station Upgrades

Ongoing

$770,000

Separations at R6, R8, R9, R10, R11 and Y-Bridge
PS Force Main Improvements Phase 1

Ongoing

$7,444,000

Y-Bridge PS Force Main Improvements Phase 2

Ongoing

$780,000

Y-Bridge PS Force Main Improvements Phase 3

Year2

Year4

$1,160,000

Phase 2 Flow Monitoring/ Programmatic Review

Year4

Year5

$40,000

LTCP Update Phase 1 Cost:

1

$10,194,000

Phase 2 (Year 6 to Year 19)

WWTP Upgrades Phase 1

Year6

Years

$9,045,000

WWTP Upgrades Phase 2

Year 10

Year 14

$5,120,000

R21 Storage

Year15

Year20

$8,710,000

R1.2 Weir Modifications

Year16

Year17

$14,000

RWI Improvements at R3 and R14

Year 17

Year 18

$136,, 000

Phase 2 Flow Monitoring/ Programmatic Review

Year 18

Year19

$40,000

LTCP Update Phase 2 Cost:

$23,065,000

Phase 3 (Year 20 to Year 25)

R13 Sewer Separation

Year20

Year 22

$1,015,000

R26 and R30 Regulator Modifications

Year 20

Year22

$150,000

R3 Storage

Year22

Year 25

$3',560,000

Post-Construction Flow Monitoring / Programmatic
Review

$40,000

LTCP Update Phase 3 Cost:

$4,765,000

Total Project Costs:

$38,020,000

Prepared for: Zanesville, Ohio
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Mark Baker, Chair
Community Development Committee

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-133
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE PROPER CITY OFFICIALS TO
EXECUTE A PRE-ANNEXATION AGREEMENT WITH MERIDIAN REALTY
CAPITAL LLC AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY
WHEREAS, Meridian Reality Capital, LLC has the contractual right to annex approximately
7.566 acres of land; and
WHEREAS, Meridian Reality Capital, LLC has engaged with surrounding property owners to
include approximately 3.686 acres of land into a Pre-Annexation Agreement and aforementioned
property owners have agreed to annex; and
WHEREAS, Meridian Reality Capital, LLC initiated contact with the City of Zanesville
Community Development Department staff and expressed their desire to annex approximately
11.252 acres of land (depicted on Exhibit B and referred to herein as the "Property") into the
corporate boundaries of the City of Zanesville; and
WHEREAS, the properties are contiguous to the municipal boundaries and are currently
being served with potable drinking water through existing connections and will tap into existing
and future City of Zanesville sanitary sewer facilities; and
WHEREAS, Meridian Reality Capital, LLC and surrounding property owners are willing to
execute a Pre-Annexation Agreement (depicted on Exhibit A and referred to herein as the
"Agreement") with the City of Zanesville; and
WHEREAS, the properties are currently built upon as a series of residential dwelling units
and undeveloped land in unincorporated Falls Township; and
WHEREAS, all costs associated with the formal annexation process shall be borne by the
Developer, Meridian Reality Capital, LLC; and
WHEREAS, failure to execute the attached pre-annexation agreement in a timely manner
would result in the loss of economic opportunities for Zanesville Residents resulting from the
proposed development. This loss of economic development could cause hardship to the health,
peace, and safety of our citizens. Furthermore, expedited annexation procedures benefit the
safety and security of those residents and property owners being annexed into the City. Thus it is
in the public's best interest to pass this legislation as an emergency.

Ordinance No. 2021-133

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville, State of Ohio,
that:

SECTION ONE: The Proper City Officials are hereby authorized to execute a Pre-annexation
Agreement, attached as "Exhibit A" with Meridian Reality Capital, LLC and corresponding property
owners for the following Muskingum County Parcel Numbers:
Auditors Parcel #17-27-01-28-000 recorded in Deed Volume 2330 Page 27, with said Deed
Volume being located in the Muskingum County Recorder's Office.
Auditors Parcel #17-27-01-30-000 recorded in Deed Volume 1634 Page 730, with said
Deed Volume being located in the Muskingum County Recorder's Office.
Auditors Parcel #17-27-01-30-001 recorded in Deed Volume 1090 Page 499, with said Deed
Volume being located in the Muskingum County Recorder's Office.
Auditors Parcel #17-27-01-31-000 recorded in Deed Volume 2774 Page 617, with said Deed
Volume being located in the Muskingum County Recorder's Office.
Auditors Parcel #17-27-01-32-000 recorded in Deed Volume 2537 Page 166, with said Deed
Volume being located in the Muskingum County Recorder's Office.
Auditors Parcel #17-27-01-33-000 recorded in Deed Volume 2352 Page 23, with said Deed
Volume being located in the Muskingum County Recorder's Office.
Auditors Parcel #17-27-01-34-000 recorded in Deed Volume 1065 Page 646, with said Deed
Volume being located in the Muskingum County Recorder's Office.
Auditors Parcel #17-27-01-35-000 recorded in Deed Volume 2919 Page 692, with said Deed
Volume being located in the Muskingum County Recorder's Office.
Auditors Parcel #17-27-01-36-000 recorded in Deed Volume 2419 Page 317, with said Deed
Volume being located in the Muskingum County Recorder's Office.
Auditors Parcel #17-27-01-37-000 recorded in Deed Volume 1140 Page 535, with said Deed
Volume being located in the Muskingum County Recorder's Office.
Auditors Parcel #17-27-01-38-000 recorded in Deed Volume 2378 Page 701, with said Deed
Volume being located in the Muskingum County Recorder's Office.
Auditors Parcel #17-27-01-39-000 recorded in Deed Volume 2378 Page 701, with said Deed
Volume being located in the Muskingum County Recorder's Office.
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SECTION THREE: For the reasons stated in Section Two, this Ordinance is declared to be an

emergency measure. Provided it receives the affirmative vote of six (6) or more members of City
Council, this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force immediately upon its passage and approval
of the Mayor. Otherwise, it shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period
allowed by law.

PASSED:

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ ___,2021

ATTEST:

APPROVED:

Susan Culbertson,
Clerk of Council

Daniel M. Vincent,
President of Council

------------ 2021

THIS LEGISLATION APPROVED AS TO FORM

Don Mason,
Mayor

LAW DIRECTOR'S OFFICE
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PRE-ANNEXATION AGREEMENT
This Pre-Annexation Agreement (the "Agreement" ) is made and entered into this
- - - day of
_ _ _ _ _ __, 2021, by and between:

Karen Kline (unmarried), Pamela Jo Young (unmarried}, Bette Ann Stoneburner (unmarried), and
Frederick M. Schuster (unmarried) Owners of 3770 Frazeysburg Rd. (Auditors Parcel #17-27-01-32-000),
Zanesville OH 43701 (appx..22 acres and attached hereto as Exhibit A);
Edgar A. Hammond and Rhea K. Hammond, a married couple, owner of 1390 Richey Rd. (Auditors
Parcel #17-27-01-31-000), Zanesville OH 43701 (appx . .32 acres and attached hereto as Exhibit B};
Damon A. Wright and Marjorie A. Wright, a married couple, owner of 1380 Richey Rd (Auditors Parcel
#17-27-01-30-001), Zanesville OH 43701 (appx. 1.137 acres and Attached hereto as Exhibit C);
Michael L. and Deborah J. Creeks, a married couple, owner of 1370 Richey Rd. {Auditors Parcel #17-2701-30-000), Zanesville OH 43701 (app.x. 1.37 acres and Attached hereto as Exhibit D);
Kathy A. Ryder and Robert Ryder, a married couple, owner of 1360 Richey Rd. (Auditors Parcel #17-2701-28-000), Zanesville OH 43701 (appx .639 acres and attached hereto as Exhibit E);
(hereinafter the "Landowner"), Meridian Realty Capital, LLC (hereinafter the "Developer") by way of
contractual right to enter into this agreement on behalf of the land owner's of:
3720 Frazeysburg Rd. (Auditors Parcel #17-27-01-38-000 and #17-27-01-39-000), Zanesville OH 43701
(appx. 3.23 acres and attached hereto as Exhibit F);
3730 Frazeysburg Rd. (Auditors Parcel #17-27-01-37-000), Zanesville OH 43701 (appx..967 acres and
attached hereto as Exhibit G);
3740 Frazeysburg Rd. (Auditors Parcel #17-27-01-36-000), Zanesville OH 43701 (app.x..97 acres and
attached hereto as Exhibit H);
3750 Frazeysburg Rd. (Auditors Parcel #17-27-01-35-000), Zanesville OH 43701 (appx. .97 acres and
attached hereto as Exhibit I);
3760 Frazeysburg Rd . (Auditors Parcel #17-27-01-34-000), Zanesville OH 43701 (appx. .769 acres and
attached hereto as Exhibit J};
3766 Frazeysburg Rd . (Auditors Parcel #17-27-01-33-000), Zanesville OH 43701 (appx, .66 acres and
attached hereto as Exhibit K);

and the City of Zanesville, Ohio, an Ohio municipal corporation organized and existing under the

.

Constitution and laws of the State of Ohio (hereinafter the "City"), under the circumstances summarized
in the following recitals.
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RECITALS:
WHEREAS, Landowner owns and Developer has the contractual right to annex approximately 11.252
acres of land located on SR 60 (Frazeysburg Road) and Richey Road {which land is depicted on Exhibit AK and referred to herein as the "Property") which is contiguous with the boundaries of the City; and
WHEREAS, Developer, Meridian Realty Capital, LLC is ln a contractual relationship with the owners of the
real estate above referenced, and plans to purchase, zone and develop the Property within the City of
Zanesville; and
WHEREAS, the Property would benefit from certain City services, including in particular police
protection, water, sanitary sewer, storm water, and comprehensive planning and zoning services; and
WHEREAS, the City is capable of providing and hereby agrees to offer its municipal services to the
Property if the Property is annexed to the City; and
WHEREAS, the Parties agree that it is in their mutual interest prior to the annexation process to enter
into this Agreement for the development of the Property for the mutual benefit of Landowner,
Developer and the City; and
NOW THEREFORE, inconsideration of the covenants and agreements contained herein, Landowner,
Developer and the City covenant and agree as follows:
Section 1. Annexation Petitions and Related Approvals.
A. Petition(s) for Annexation; Annexation. The Landowner and/or Developer shall prepare or has
already prepared, an annexation petition, map, legal description and other related information, as may
be required by the Ohio Revised Code {"ORC"}, to annex the Property to the City. The annexation
process shall be an "Expedited Type II" annexation as provided in ORC Section 709.023. Developer
agrees that it will execute any necessary annexation petition, as appropriate, and will execute any other
documents reasonably necessary to effectuate the annexation as may be required by law at its cost or
expense. The annexation petition shall appoint Derrick Moorehead, Esquire, as the petitioner's agent
and may be filed solely with the Property or may be filed as a joint annexation petition with other
parcels so long as all other parcels so joined are supported by one hundred (100%) of the owners of
each parcel and.the joinder of any such additional parcels will in no way affect the agreements of the
parties memorialized in this Agreement. The petition will be filed with the Muskingum County
Commissioners within thirty (30) days from the execution of this document. The landowner and
Developer agrees that all costs and expenses in petitioning for the annexation will be borne by the
Landowner and/or Developer. Should the City desire for its own attorney to represent its interests with
regard to the annexation petition, those costs will be borne by City. Landowner further agrees that they
will continue to support the annexation to the City throughout the process, including any appeal or
court action at no further expense to City, unless the City desires to retain lts own attorneys; provided,
however, Landowner's and Developer's continued cooperation in the annexation of the Property shall
be subject to and conditioned upon the City's performance of its duties and obligations as memorialized
in this Agreement.
B. City Service Resolution. Pursuant to and in accordance with the ORC, the City agrees to enact, prior to
twenty {20) days after the date of filing the annexation petition(s) with the Board of County
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Commissioners of Muskingum County, Ohio (the 11 Commissioners") 1 the appropriate Service Resolution
stating the services that will be provided to the Property upon annexation, The Service Resolution, once
adopted, shall be immediately certified and filed with the Clerk of the Commissioners. The services to be
supplied shall be adequate to meet the requirements for the commercial development shown in the
attached Site Plan (attached as Exhibit 1).
C. Development Considerations.

{i) The property is currently zoned under the Falls Township zoning ordinance, which township
zoning previously permits Residential Uses except for the real estate located at 3720
Frazeysburg Rd., which is Zoned for Commercial Use. The parties agree that Residential Use is
not the appropriate zoning of these parcels. Landowner's or Developer's intended use of the
Property is that of a Highway Commercial District (C-4) under the Zanesville Zoning Code to
include Commercial uses such as retail. Landowner and Developer propose the Site Plan for the
Property attached hereto as Exhibit 1 and incorporated herein by reference.
The City agrees that the Property will retain its Falls Township zoning, including any
development plan and development standards text approval, pursuant to Chapter 1125.04 of
the Codified Ordinances of the City of Zanesville. Upon filing of an application to rezone the
Property under the Zanesville Zoning Code, the application shall be formally referred to the
Zanesville Planning Commission for its review and consideration in accordance with the
applicable provisions of the Codified Ordinances. Such review and consideration shall occur
during the pendency of the annexation process. The City' planning staff and administration
agree that, if the rezoning application and accompanying preliminary Site plan is generally
consistent with Exhibit 1 attached hereto, City staff and administration will professionally review
and timely process the application to zone the property to a C-4 Zoning District. The City
understands it has one hundred twenty (120) days to accept the annexation after the
annexation petition has been approved by the Commissioners and a copy of the record is filed
with the Clerk of the City and laid before Council; (ORC Section 709.04). At the request of the
Landowner and Developer, the City agrees to delay acceptance of the annexation until
legislative approval of the rezoning can be accomplished contemporaneously with the
acceptance of the annexation. If, for some reason, the rezoning ordinance cannot be approved
in a form or substance acceptable to Landowner and Developer, the City agrees, at the request
of Landowner and Developer, to permit landowner and Developer to withdraw its request to
annex the property to the City and/or to forbear from acceptance of the annexation by allowing
the 120-day period to expire, thus effectively rejecting the annexation of the Property. If the
annexation approval occurs prior to or other than concurrently with the legislative approval of
the rezoning, and the rezoning is subsequently not approved substantially in accordance with
Exhibit 1 (or as it may be modified acceptably to Landowner and Developer) or a building
moratorium is enacted which would limit Landowner's or Developer's use of the Property, City
agrees, at Landowner's or Developer's request:
a)

to reconsider the ordinance accepting the annexation, and to rescind, repeal and reject
the annexation approval within fourteen (14} days of the date of the disapproval of the
rezoning or referral to a vote of the electorate or the enactment of the building
moratorium, or
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b) to detach/de-annex the property from the City or not oppose any owner's petition to
detach/de-annex its part of the Property from the City.
(ii) Sewer and Water Access. The expense of extending sanitary sewer, storm sewer, and water
utilities necessary for the development of the Property shall be financed by the Developer in
accordance with City development policies. If the Developer petitions the City to form a Tax
Increment Financing District pursuant to ORC 5709.43 et seq. or similar statute, the City may
approve any reasonable allocation of such expenses as are permitted by such statute.
(iii) Road Improvements. The parties acknowledge and agree that SR 60 and Northpointe Drive are
an Arterial roadways. The parties further acknowledge and agree that Improvements to such
roadways will be necessary for Owner's proposed development and for reasons other than the
development of the Property, and the parties agree as follows:
(a)
The Developer shall be required to finance any improvements to the public rlghtof-ways, as determined by the City Code and identified within a City approved Traffic
Impact Study, conducted to analyze the impacts of the development on the
transportation system, so long as improvements are limited to those necessary for the
benefit of the development of the Property. If the Developer petitions the City to form a
Tax Increment Financing District pursuant to ORC 5709.43 et seq. or similar statute, the
City may approve any reasonable allocation of such expenses as are permitted by such
statute.
D. Approval and Permit Regulation.

(i) Compliance Statement. Nothing in this Agreement shall exempt the parties hereto from the
zoning, development plan and subdivision platting processes of City. The execution and delivery of this
Agreement shall not serve as a variance of the zoning, development plan and platting process mandated
by the Codified Ordinances and the Subdivision Regulations of City, but will serve as a preliminary
understanding and guide for the proposed zoning and development of the Property.

(ii} Council Action. The obligations of and agreements by the City contained herein shall be
effective and enforceable upon, and subject to, the approval of all necessary legislation and/or motions
by Council. It is acknowledged that the initial legislation approving this Agreement is merely the first in a
series of legislative acts implementing this Agreement. All subsequent Council actions implementing this
Agreement shall be considered to be in furtherance of this Council Action .
(iii) Permits. Landowner or Developer will obtain all necessary permits from all levels of
government to allow Landowner or Developer to build and develop Property consistent with its
intended use.
{iv) Re-platting, City will cooperate with Developer to cause the Property to be re-platted from
the currently effective plat to permit the development of the Property generally in accordance with the
Development Plan Concept.
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Section 2, Miscellaneous
A. Intent of Parties. This Agreement shall be binding upon the Parties hereto and their respective
successors and/or assigns, and by execution hereof, all Parties represent that they are duly authorized
to sign it. By passage of Ordinance No. _ _ on _ _ _ _ _____, the City authorized the execution of
this Agreement .
8. Cancellation or Termination. This Agreement may be cancelled or otherwise terminated by mutual
written agreement of the Parties hereto or pursuant to the terms of this Agreement as to conflict in law,
impracticality and/or acts of God.
C. Remedies. Except as otherwise limited by Chapter 2744 of the Ohio Revised Code as to action for or

against the City, the Parties hereto shall be afforded and do possess the right to seek every remedy
available at law or in equity provided for under the laws of the State of Ohio as pertains to the terms
and conditions, duties, obligations, privileges and rights of this Agreement and the enforcement thereof.
D. Enforcement. Unless this Agreement is cancelled or otherwise terminated, this Agreement will be
enforceable against any Party hereto per the laws, ordinances, resolutions, regulations or policies in
effect at the time of the execution of this Agreement.
F. Assignment of Agreement. Landowner or Developer may assign this Agreement, or any part thereof
or any duty, obligation, privilege or right granted under this Agreement to any newly formed entity of
which Landowner or Developer is a member, or to any affiliate entity of which Landowner or Developer
is a member. Landowner or Developer will not otherwise assign the Agreement without the express
written consent of the City, which shall not unreasonably be withheld.
G. Relative Rights. The rights and obligations of the parties hereunder shall be subject to the terms and
conditions hereof, and will inure to the benefit of, and be binding on, the respective successors and
assigns.
H. Entire Agreement Merger Clause; Statement of Incorporation. It is agreed that the Agreement
merges all of the oral negotiations, representations, discussions and understandings between the
Parties, their legal counsel, agents or representatives. This Agreement contains the entire Agreement of
the Parties with respect to its subject matter. All documents related to thls Agreement and/or attached
hereto as exhibits or addend urns shall be incorporated into this Agreement by reference as if fully set
out at length herein .
I. Severability. If any clause, sentence, paragraph or part of this Agreement shall, for any reason, be
adjudged by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such judgment shall not affect, impair, or
invalidate the remainder of this Agreement and the remainder of said Agreement shall continue in full
force or effect.

J, Cooperation. The City will cooperate with Landowner and Developer to obtain any required and/or
necessary permit from any government or governmental agency not a party to this Agreement.
K. Modifications or Amendment of Agreement. No modifications, amendments, alterations or additions
shall be made to this Agreement except in a writing signed by all Parties hereto.
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L. Recitals. The Parties acknowledge and agree that the facts and circumstances as described in the
Recitals hereto are an integral part of thls Agreement and as such are incorporated herein by reference.
M. Executed Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed in several counterparts, each of which shall
be regarded as an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same agreement. It shall not
be necessary in proving this Agreement to produce or account for more than one of those counterparts.
N. Captions. The captions and headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and in no way
define, limit o r describe the scope or intent of any provisions or sections of this Agreement.
0. Survival of Representations and Warranties. All representations and warranties of Landowner and
the City in this Agreement shall survive the execution and delivery of this Agreement.
P. Effective Date. This Agreement shall be effective when signed by all the Parties hereto.
Q. Time. Time shall be of the essence in doing and performing all things to be done under the terms of
this Agreement.
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed by their duly
authorized representatives this _ _ day of _ _ _ _ __, 2021.

CITY OF ZANESVILLE, OHIO
By:
Printed:

Title: Mayor

By:
Printed:

Title: Public Service Director

By:
Printed:

Title: Community Development Director

Meridian Realty Capital, LLC
By: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __
Printed: Matthew C. Daniels

Title: Managing Member
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STATE OF OHIO, COUNTY OF MUSKINGUM, SS

Before me, a Notary Public in and for said County and State personally appeared the above named
Matthew C. Daniels who acknowledged that they did sign the foregoing agreement on behalf of
Meridian Realty Capital, LLC and that the same is their free act and deed .

IN TESTIMONY HEREOF, l have hereunto set my hand and seal in Muskingum County, OH, this _ __
day of _ _ _ _ _ __, 2021.

Notary Public
Approved As To Form

DAVID TARBERT
City Law Director
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Executed this _ _ __ day of _ _ _ __ _ _ __ _

20_ _ _

Karen Kline

STATE OF

_______

____,

_____ ___ __

COUNTY OF

__;

ss:

This is an acknowledgment clause. No oath or affirmation was administered to the signer.
I hereby certify that Karen Kline did this day appear before me and acknowledge that
they did sign the foregoing instrument on their own free will and accord, for the purposes
named and expressed in this instrument.

I have set my hand and official seal unto this instrument this _ _ __ day of

- - - - - - - - - - -- ·, 2021.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires: - - -- - --
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Executed this ____ day of _ _ __ _ __ __ _ 20_ _ _

Pamela J. Young

STATE OF

-------~

COUNTY OF

- - - - - - - - - - ~ ss:

This is an acknowledgment clause. No oath or affirmation was administered to the signer.
I hereby certify that Pamela J. Young did tbis day appear before me and acknowledge
that they did sign the foregoing instrument on their own free will and accord, for the
purposes named and expressed in this instrument.
I have set my hand and official seal unto this 1nstroment this ____ day of

- - - - - -- - -- --

, 2021.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: _ _ _ __ _
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Executed this _ _ _ _ day of _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 20_ __

Bette A. Stoneburner

STATE OF

-----------.J

COUNTY OF

- - - - - - - - - - - ss:

This is an acknowledgment clause. No oath or affirmation was administered to the signer.
I hereby certify that Bette A. Stoneburner did this day appear before me and acknowledge
that they did sign the foregoing instrument on their own free will and accord, for the
purposes named and expressed in this instrument.

I have set tny hand and official seal unto this instrument this _ _ _ day of

- - - - - - - - - - --~ 2021.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires: _ _ __ __ _

10

Attachment

Ordinance No. 2021-133

Executed this

- - - - day of - - - - - - - - - - - 20----

Frederick M. Schuster

STATE OF

_ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ _ J

COUNTY OF

- - - - - - - - - - ~ ss:

This is an acknowledgment clause. No oath or affirmation was administered to the signer.

I hereby certify that Frederick M. Schuster did this day appear before me and
acknowledge that they did sign the foregoing instrument on their own free will and
accord, for the purposes named and expressed in this instrument.
I have set my hand and official seal unto this instrument this

____________

_,

- - - day of

2021.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: - - - - - - -
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Executed this _ _ _ day of _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 20_ __

Edgar A. Hammond

STATE OF _ _ _ _ _ _ __,
COUNTY OF_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __,ss:
This is an acknowledgment clause. No oath or affirmation was administered to the signer.
I hereby certify that Edgar A. Hammond did this day appear before me and acknowledge
that they did sign the foregoing instrument on their own free will and accord, for the
purposes named and expressed in this instrument.
I have set my hand and official seal unto this instrument this _ _ __ day of
- - -- - --

- - - - - ' 2021.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires: _ _ _ __ __
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Executed this _ _ _ _ day of _ _ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ 20_ __

Rhea K. Hammond

STATE OF

- -- - - - - ~

COUNTY OF

----------~

ss:

This is an acknowledgment clause. No oath or affirmation was administered to the sign.er.
I hereby certify that Rhea K Hammond did this day appear before me and acknowledge
that they did sign the foregoing instrument on their own free will and accord, for the
purposes named and expressed in this instrument.
I have set my hand and official seal unto this instrument this

____________

_,

- - - - day of

2021.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: _ _ _ _ _ __
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Executed this ____ day of _ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ _ 20_ __

Damon A. Wright

STATE OF - - - - - -- ~

- - - - - - - - - - ~ ss:

COUNTY OF

This is an acknowledgment clause. No oath or affinnation was administered to the signer.
I hereby certify that Damon A. Wright did this day appear before me and acknowledge
that they did sign the foregoing instrument on their own free will and accord, for the
purposes named and expressed in this instrument.
I have set my hand and official seal unto this instrument this _ _ _ day of
- - - - - - - -- -- -, 2021.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires: _ _ _ _ _ __
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Executed this -

- - day of

- - -- -- - - - - 20- - -

Marjorie A. Wright

STATE OF

-------~
- - - - - - - - - - - ss:

COUNTY OF

This is an acknowledgment clause. No oath or affinnation was administered to the signer.

I hereby certify that Marjorie A Wright did this day appear before me and acknowledge
that they did sign the foregoing instrument on their own free will and accord, for the
purposes named and expressed in this instrument.
I have set my hand and official seal unto this instrument this -

- - day of

- - - - - - - - - - - -' 2021.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: _ _ __ _ __
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Executed this - - - day of - - - - - - - - - - 20- - -

Michael L. Creeks

STATE OF

-------~

COUNTY OF_______

____ , ss:

This is an acknowledgment clause. No oath or affirmation was administered to the signer.
I hereby certify that Michael L. Creeks did this day appear before me and acknowledge
that they did sign the foregoing instrument on their own free will and accord, for the
purposes named and expressed in this instrument.
I have set my hand and official seal unto this instrument this - - - day of
_ _ __ _ _ _ _ _ _ ____, 2021.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires: _ _ _ __ _ _
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Executed this - - - day of - - - - -- - -- -

20- - -

Deborah L. Creeks

STATE OF _ _ _ _ _ _ __,
COUNTY OF- - - - - - - - - - ~ss:
This is an acknowledgment clause. No oath or affirmation was administered to the signer.

I hereby certify that Deborah L Creeks did this day appear before me and acknowledge
that they did sign the foregoing instrument on their own free will and accord, for the
purposes named and expressed in this instrument.
I have set my hand and official seal unto this instrument this _ _ _ day of
- - - - - - - - -- - - ' 2021.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires: _ _ _ _ _ __
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Executed this _ _ _ day of _ __ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 20_ __

Kathy A. Ryder

STATE OF __________,
COUNTY OF_ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ __,ss:
This is an acknowledgment clause. No oath or affirmation was administered to the signer.
I hereby certify that Kathy A. Ryder did this day appear before me and acknowledge that
they did sign the foregoing instrument on their own free will and accord, for the purposes
named and expressed in this instrument.
I have set my hand and official seal unto this instrument this _ _ _ day of
- - - - -- -- - - - - - - ' 2021.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: _ _ _ _ _ __
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Executed this _ _ _ day of _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _

20_ __

Robert A. Ryder

STATE OF _ _ _ _ _ ___,
COUNTY OF_ _ __ _ _ _ _ _ __Jss:
This is an acknowledgment clause. No oath or affirmation was administered to the signer,
I hereby certify that Robert A. Ryder did this day appear before me and acknowledge that
they did sign the foregoing instrument on their own free will a:nd accord, for the purposes
named and expressed in this instrument.
I have set my hand and official seal unto this instrument this _ _ _ day of

- - - - - - - - - - --

' 2021.

Notary Public

My Commission Expires: _ _ __ _ __
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Exhibit •1A"
Legal Description
Situated in the First Quarter of Township One (1), Range Eight (8) U.S. Military Lands,
Falls Township, Muskingum County, Ohio, and being a part of the land formerly belonging to
Benjamin 0. Taylor as described in the deed dated March 1, 1899 from Charles H. Jones and
recorded in Volume 117, page 494 of the Records of deeds of Muskingum County, Ohio, bounded
and described as follows: Beginning at a point on the West line of the property described above,
1087.55 feet north of a stone at the southwest comer of said property, said beginning point also
being on the North right of way line of State Route No. 77 (known as the Frazeysburg Road) thence
running north 3 degrees 45 minutes East along said West line 120.0 feet to a point in Township
Road No. 147; thence south 71 degrees 22 minutes East 114.0 feet to a stake; thence south 13
degrees 25 minutes West 130.00 feet to a stake on the North right of way line of State Route No.
77; thence North 83 degrees 15 minutes West 95.5 feet to the place of beginning, containing
Twenty-nine hundredths (0.29) of an acre. Description according to the survey made by Robert B.
Pinnick on July 3, 1950.
Prior Instrument Reference: Book 2537, Page 168, Muskingum County, Ohio Records
Auditor's Parcel Number :
17-27-01-32-000
3770 Frazeysburg Road, Zanesville, Ohio 43701
Being Known As:

EXCEPT that portion of the land:
Situated in the township of Falls, County of Muskingum, State of Ohio, and in Section
Ql, Town lN, Range 8W, and bounded as described as follows:
Parcel No. 18WD
Being a parcel ofland lying on the Right Side of the centerline of a survey, made by the
Department of Transportation, and recorded in Book _ _ Page_, of the records of
Muskingum County and being located within the following described points in the boundary
thereof:
Commencing from an iron pin found at the southwest corner of the Meadowbrook No. 2
Subdivision as recorded in P.B. 8, Pg. 57 of the Muskingmn County Plat Records; Thence along
said subdivisions westerly property line N 14° 15' 10" E, a distance of 238.659 m (7766.44 feet)
and passing the northwest comer of said subdivision at 227 .292 tn (745. 71 feet) to a point on the
centerline of a survey station 33+762.381 of S. R . 60; thence along said centerline of survey N
63° 12' 48" W, a distance of204.015 m (669.34 feet) to a point on said centerline of survey
station 33+966.396; Thence leaving said centerline of survey N 26° 47' 12" E, a distance of
9.144 m (30.00 feet) to the grantor's southeast property comer of the northerly right-of-way line
of S.R. 60 and being the true point of beginning:
Thence along the grantor's southerly property line and northerly right-of-way line of S.R.
60, N 63 ° 12' 48" W, a distance of 30.964 m (101.59 feet) to a point at the grantor's southwest
property corner and the centerline of Richey Road and being 9.144 m (30.00 feet) right of
centerline of survey station 33+997. 360;
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Thence leaving said grantor's southerly property line, along the grantor's westerly
property line and the centerline of Richey Road N 04° 36' 15" E, a distance of 18.136 m (59.50
feet) to a point 25.938 M (85.10 feet) right of centerline of survey station 34+004.21 0;
Thence leaving said grantor's westerly property line and said centerline of Richey Road, S 85°
23' 45" E, a distance of 7. 820 m (25.00 feet) passing the easterly right-of-way line of Richey
Road at 4.572 m (15.00 feet), io aa point 28.815 m (94.54 feet) right of centerline of survey
station 33+997.152;
Thence S 04° 36' 15" W, a distance of 14.660 m (48.10 feet) to a point 15.240 m (50.00
feet) right of centerline of survey st.ation 33+991.617;
Thence S 63° 12' 48"E, a distance of23.858 m (78.28 feet) to a point in the grantor's
easterly property line and being 15.240 m (50.00 feet) right of centerline of survey station
33+967.759;
Thence along the grantor's easterly property line S 14° 11' 12" W, a distance of 6.246 m
(20.49 feet) to the true point of beginning and containing 0.0292 hectares (0.072 acres), more or
less, from Auditor's Parcel Number 17-27-01-32-000, including the present road which occupies
0.0166 hectares (0.041 acres), more or less. All stationing is shown in the metric system.
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Exhibit 0 B"
Legal Description
Situated in the County of Muskingum, in the state of Ohio, and 1n the Township of Falls,
and bounded and described as follows:
Situated in the First Quarter of Township 1, Range 8, U.S. Military Lands, Falls
Township, Muskingum County, Ohio, and being part of the land of grantor, Benjamin 0. Taylor,
herein as described in the deed dated March 1, 1899, from Charles H. Jones and recorded in
Volume 117, Page 494 of the Record of Deeds of Muskingum County, Ohio, bounded and
described as follows:
Beginning at a point on the West line of the above described B.O. Taylor property, said
beginning point being in the Township Road No. 147 and bearing North 3 degrees 45 minutes
East 1207.55 feet from a stone at the southwest comer of said B. 0. Taylor property; thence
north 3 degrees 45 minutes East 103.0 feet to a point in Township Road No. 147; thence South
82 degrees 35 m1nutes east 131.6 feet to a stake; thence south 13 degrees 25 minutes West 125.7
feet to a stake; thence north 71 degrees 22 minutes West 114.0 feet to the place of beginning and
containing thirty-two hundredths (.32) of an acre, Description according to survey of Robert B.
Pinnick made July 3, 1950. Being part of the 75 acre tract ofland conveyed to Benjamin Oliver
Taylor, from Charles H. Jones by deed dated <arch 1, 1899 and recorded in Vol. 117, page 494
of Record of Deeds of Muskingum County, Ohio.
These premises are conveyed subject to the conditions and restrictions a.s set forth in
Muskingum County Official Record Book 636, Page 108.
Prior Instrument Reference: Book 2995, Page 348 Muskingum County, Ohio Records.
Auditor's Parcel Number:

17-27-01-31-000

Being Known As:

1390 Richey Road, Zanesville, Ohio 43701

Easement: From B.O. Taylor & Emma Taylor, his wife, to The Ohio Power Company for a line
of poles dated 7-25-30, filed 8-28-30 at 10:45 A.M., recorded in Deed Volume 237, page 38,
Muskingum Co. Recorder's Office.
Easement: from B. 0. Taylor et ux to The Ohio Power Company for a line of poles, dated 10-2146, filed 11-13-45 at 1:30 P .M,, recorded in Deed Volume 330, page 92, Muskingum Co.
Recorder's Office.
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Exhibit "C"
Legal Description
Situated in the County of Muskingum> State of Ohio> Township of Falls, part of the First
Quarter of Township 1, Range 8, bounded and described as follows:
Commencing at an axle found at the Northwest comer of Lot 11 of Meadowbrook
Subdivision, recorded in Plat Book 8, Page 47; thence South 1 degree 57 minutes 34 seconds
East 146.60 feet to an iron pin set) the place of beginning; thence South 1 degree 57 minutes 34
seconds East 32.55 feet to an iron pin found; thence South 25 degrees 55 minutes 46 seconds
West 103 .30 feet to an iron pin found; thence North 82 degrees 34 minutes 23 seconds West
392.00 feet to the center of Richey Road, passing an iron pin set at 381.33 feet; thence North 03
degrees 45 minutes 00 seconds East along center of Richey Road 108.94 feet to a point; thence
South 85 degrees 26 minutes 25 seconds East 426.99 feet to the place of beginning, passing an
iron pin set at 21.00 feet, containing 1.137 acres more or less.
Bearings are based on Meadowbrook Subdivision. Iron pins set are No. 5 reinforcing bars
30 inches long with plastic l.D. caps.
Survey and description by R. L. Daniels, Registered Surveyor #5410, February 2, 1994.

Prior Instrument Reference: Book 1090, Page 499, Muskingum County, Ohio Records
Auditor's Parcel Number:

17-27-01-30-001

Being Known As:

1380 Richey Road, Zanesville, Ohio 43701
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Exhibit "D"
Legal Description
Situated in the State of Ohio, County of Muskingum, Township of Palls and being part of
the First Quarter of Township 1, Range 8 of the United States Military Lands.
Commencing at an axle found at the Northwest comer of Lot #11 of Meadowbrook
Subdivision as recorded in Plat Book 8, Page 47 of the Muskingum County Records.
Thence, with the West line thereof, South- 0 01 -57 °-34" - East, 179.15 feet to an iron
pin found at the southwesterly comer of Lot #11.
Thence, South- 25° - 55' -46" - West, 103,30 feet to an iron pin found.
Thence, South 82° - 34' - 22'' - West, 392.00 feet to a point in Township Road #147
(Richey Road) passing an iron pin found at 381 .33 feet.
Thence, North 03° - 45' - 00" - East 248.79 feet to a point in said road.
Thence, South 86° - 15' -00" -East, 412.37 feet to the place of beginning, passing an
axle found at 15.00 feet, and containing 2.153 acres more or less.
Subject to all legal highways and easements of record.
Bearings shown herein are based on the South line of Lot #1 of aforesaid Meadowbrook
Subdivision.
This description, written on February 19, 1992, is based on an actual survey of the
premises by Terry. J. Finley, Ohio Registered Surveyor #7222.

EXCEPTING the following described parcel of real estate:
Situated in the County of Muskingum, State of Ohio, Township Fall_s and being part of
the First Quarter of Township 1, Range 8, bounded and described as follows:
Commencing at an axle found at the Northwest comer of Lot 11 of Meadowbrook Subdivision,
recorded in Plat Book 8, Page 47; thence South 1° 57' 34" East 146.60 feet to an iron pin set, the
place of beginning thence South 1° 57' 34" East 32.55 feet to an iron pin found; thence South
25° 55' 46" West 103.30 feet to an iron pin found; thence North 82° 34' 23" West 392.00 feet to
the center of Richey Road 108.94 feet to a point; thence South 85° 26' 25" East 426.99 feet to
the place of beginning, passing an iron pin set at 21.00 feet, containing 1.137 acres, more or less.
Bearings are based on Meadowbrook Subdivision. Iron pins set are No. 5 reinforcing bars 30
inches long with plastic LO. caps.
Survey and description by R. L. Daniels, Registered Surveyor #5410, February 2, 1994.

Prior Deed Reference:

Book 1634, Page 731, Muskingum County, Ohio Records.

Auditor' s Parcel Number:

17-17-27-01-30-000

Being Known As:

1370 Richey Road, Zanesville Ohio 43701
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Exhibit "E"
Legal Description
Situated in the County of Muskingum, and in the Township of Falls, in the State of Ohio
and bounded and described as follows:
Being Lot Number One (1), of Meadow Brook Addition to the Township of Palls,
Muskingum County, Ohio, as the same is designated and delineated on the recorded plat thereof,
of record in Plat Book 8, page 47, of the Plat Records of Muskingum County, Ohio.
Subject to all legal highways and restrictions and reservations ofrecord.

Prior Instrument Reference: Book 2330, Page 27, Muskingum County, Ohio Records
Auditor's Parcel Number:

17-27-01-28-000

Being Known As:

1360 Richey Road, Zanesville, Ohio 43701
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Exhibit "F11
Legal Description
PARCEL ONE:
Situated in the County of Muskingum, in the State of Ohio, and in the Township of Falls
and bounded and described as follows:
Situated in the First Quarter of Township 1, Range 8, U.S. Military Lands, Falls
Township, Muskingum County, Ohio, and being part of the land of the grantor herein, as
described in the deed dated March 1, 1899 from Charles H. Jones, and recorded in Volume 117,
Page 494 of the Record of Deeds of Muskingum County, Ohio, bounded and described as
follows:
Beginning at a stone at the southwest comer of the land mentioned above and running
north 3 degrees 45 minutes east, along the west line of said land, I 084.70 feet to a point on the
north line of State Route No. 77; thence south 63 degrees 59 minutes east, along the north line of
said State Route, 587.47 feet to a stake, the place of beginning of the property hereinafter
described; thence continuing south 63 .degrees 59 minutes east 100.00 feet to a stake; thence
north 26 degrees 01 minute east 4350 feet to the place of beginning, containing one (1.00) acre.
This description being according to a survey made by W.H. Neikirk, surveyor, March 5,
1949.
There is also granted to the grantees herein a right-of-way from the premises herein
conveyed to the run or creek lying south and east of said premises for laying and maintaining a
sealed drainage tile which tile is to be laid deep enough to plough over it. There is also reserved
to the grantors herein, their heirs, administrators, or assigns, a right-of-way over and across the
premises herein conveyed for laying and maintain a sealed drainage tile which tile shall be 6 inch
tile and shall be laid at least 40 feet from the well of the grantees herein and no more than two
(2) houses to be served by said drainage tile in addition to thai of the grantees herein.
These premises are conveyed subject to the following conditions and restrictions:
1. No liquor is to be kept for sale or sold on said premises
2. No privy or outside toilet is to be maintained or kept on said premises
3. No residence is to be built on said premises costing less than $5,000.00. A temporary
dwelling may be built thereon but may be kept there for not over 2 years.
4. No junk yard shall be maintained on or about said premises
It is agreed that the same restrictions and conditions shall be a part of any deed or deeds
conveying the lots immediately adjoining the premises herein conveyed.
Being the same premises conveyed to Raymond Thomas and Eva Thomas by Warranty
Deed dated March 14, 1949, and recorded in Volume 366, Page 273, of the Deed Records of said
county.

Prior Reference Instrument: Book 2378 Page 703, Muskingum County, Ohio Records
Auditor's Parcel Number:
17-27-01-39-000
Also Known As:
3720 Frazeysburg Rd, Zanesville, Ohio, 43701
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PARCEL TWO:
Situated in the County of Muskingum, in the State of Ohio, and in the Township of Falls
and bounded and described as follows:
Being a part of the First Quarter of Township One (1), Range Eight (8), United States
Military Lands, more particularly bounded and described as follows:
Beginning at the northwest comer of a seventy-five acre tract ofland described in a deed
from Charles H. Jones to Benjamin Oliver Taylor dated March 11, 1899, and recorded in Vol.
117, Page 494 of the Deed Records of Muskingum County, Ohio, said northwest comer also
being the southwest comer of Lot Number Six ( 6) of Sibley's Subdivision of a part of the First
Quarter of Township One, Range Eight, U.S.M.L.; thence from said beginning place south 3
degrees 45 minutes west along the west line of said seventy-five acre tract 1125.02 feet to the
north right-of-way line of State Route Number 77; thence along said north right-of-way line
south 63 degrees 59 minutes east 687.47 feet to an iron pin (Ford axle) which is the true place of
beginning of the property herein intended to be conveyed; thence from said true place of
beginning, north 26 degrees 01 minute east 435.60 feet to an iron pin (Ford axle); thence south
63 degrees 59 minutes east 110 feet to an iron pin (Ford axle); thence north 26 degrees 01 minute
east 185.8 feet to an iron pin (Ford axle); thence south 80 degrees 34 minutes east 130.6 feet to
an. iron pin (Ford axle) on the east side of Joe's Run; thence south 36 degrees 55 minutes west
433.98 feet to an iron pin (Ford axle) on the north right-of-way line of said State Route Number
77; thence continuing south 36 degrees 55 minutes west 30.32 feet to the center of said road;
thence with and along the center of said road 191. 3 feet to a point; thence north 26 degrees -1
minute east 30 feet to the true place of beginning, containing 3.23 acres, more or less, but subject
to the easements of all legal highways.
Being further identified as Tract A as shown on the Plat of Meadowbrook ofrecord in
Plat Book 8, Page 47 of the Plat Records of said County. For conveyance to Grantors herein, see
D.B. 409, P. 156 of the Deed Records of Muskingum County, Ohio.
Reserving, however, to the grantors herein, their heirs and assigns, an easement three (3)
feet in width extending along the entire north boundary of the above described remises. Said
easement to be for drainage purposes with the right of said grantors to enter upon said premises
to repair, lay and maintain said drainage tile.
EXCEPTION:
Situated in the County of Muskingum, State of Ohio, Township of Falls and bounded and
described as follows:
Being a part of Tract A as shown on the plat of Meadowbrook of record in Plat Book 8,
Page 47 of the Plat Records of Muskingum County, Ohio, and described as follows:
Beginning at an iron pin at the most southerly comer of Lot 13 in Meadowbrook
Subdivision of Falls Township as designated and delineated on the plat thereof record in Plat
Book 8, Page 47; thence north 26 degrees 00 minutes East along the line of said Lot 13, 185.8
feet to an iron pin at the most easterly comer of Lot 13; thence south 80 degrees 34 minutes east
along the line of Tract A and the line of Lot 14 of Meadowbrook 130.6 feet to an iron pin at the
northeast comer of Tract A: thence south 13 degrees 21 minutes west along the east line of Tract
A 227 .5 feet to an iron pin; thence northwesterly to the place of beginning containing 66/100
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acre, more or less. Subject to the easement for drainage as reserved in deed to these grantors
recorded in Deed Book 409, Page 156, Muskingum County Land Records.
Being the same premises conveyed by Raymond W. Thomas, et ux to Rodney D Cox, et
u.x by deed April 26, 1963 and recorded in Deed Book 521, Page 678 of Deed Records of said
County.

Prior Reference Instrument: Book 2378, Page 702, Muskingwn County, Ohio Records
Auditor's Parcel Number:
17-27-01-38-000
Being Known As:
3720 Frazeysburg Rd., Zanesville, Ohio 43701

FURTHER EXCEPTI~G FROM THE FIRST AND SECOND PARCELS THE
FOLLOWING:
Situated in the Township of Falls, County of Muskingum, State of Ohio, and in Quarter
1, Township 1 N, Range 8 W, and bounded and described as follows:
PARCEL NO. 11 WD
Being a parcel of land lying on the Right side of the centerline of a survey, made by the
Department of Transportation and record in Book _ _, Page _ _~ of the records of
Muskingum County and being located within the following describe,d points in the boundary
thereof.
Commencing from an iron pin found at the southwest corner of the Meadowbrook No. 2
Subdivision as recorded in P .B. 8, Pg. 57 of the Muskingwn County Plat Records; Thence along
said subdivisions westerly property line North 14 degrees 15 minutes 10 seconds East, a distance
of 236.659 m (776.44 feet) and passing the northwest corner of said subdivision at 227.292 m
(745.71 feet) to a point in the centerline of survey station 33+762.381 of S.R. 60; thence along
said centerline of survey North 63 degrees 12 minutes 48 seconds West, a distance of 23.582 m
(77.37 feet) to a centerline of survey station 33 _785.963 and being the truepoint of beginning:
Thence leaving saio centerline of survey and along the grantor's westerly property Line
North 26 degrees 47 minutes 12 se.conds East, a distance of 9.144 m (30.00 feet) to a
point 9.144 m (30.00 feet) to a point 9.144 m (30.00 feet) right of centerline survey of
station 33+785.963;
Thence leaving said grantor's westerly property line and along the grantor's southerly
property line, also being the northerly right-of-way line of S.R. 60 1 North 63 degrees 12
minutes 48 seconds West, a distance of30.282 m (99.35 feet) to a point 9.144 m (30,00
feet) right of centerline of survey station 33+816.245;
Thence leaving said southerly property line and said northerly right-of-way line , along
grantor's westerly property line North 26 degrees 47 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance
of 4.572 m (150.00 feet) to a point 13.716 m (45.00 feet) right of centerline survey station
33+816.245;
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Thence leaving said grantor's westerly property line South 63 degrees 12 minutes 48
seconds East, a distance of33.245 m (109.07 feet) to a point 13.716 m (45.00 feet) right
of centerline of survey station 33+783.000;
Thence north 26 degrees 47 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of 6.096 m (20.00 feet)
to a point 19.812 m (65.00 feet) right of centerline survey station 33+783.000;
Thence South 63 degrees 12 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of33.000 m (108.27
feet) to a point 19.812 m (65.00 feet) right ofcenterline of survey station 33+750.000;
Thence North 26 degrees 47 minutes 12 seconds East, a distance of30.48 m (10.00 feet)
to a point 22.860 m (75.00 feet) right of centerline of survey station 33+750.000;
Thence South 63 degrees 12 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of 26. 892 m (88.23 feet)
to a point in the grantor's easterly property line and being 22.888 m (75.09 feet) right of
centerline of survey station 33+723.387;
Thence South 63 degrees 12 minutes 48 seconds East, a distance of26.892 m (88.23 feet)
to a point in the grantor's easterly property line and being 22.888 m (75.09 feet) right of
centerline of survey station 33+723.387;
Thence along the grantor's easterly property line South 38 degrees 02 minutes 13 seconds
West, a distance of 23. 308 m (7 6 .47 feet) to a point on the centerline of survey station
33+727.655;
Thence leaving said grantor's easterly property line and along the grantor's southerly
property line and the centerline of survey of S.R. 60, North 63 degrees 12 minutes 48
seconds West, a distance of 58.308 m (191 .30 feet) to the true point of beginning and
containing 0.1395 hectares (0.345 acres), more or less, of which 0.0611 hectares (0.151),
more or less, from Auditor's Parcel Number 17-27-01-38-000; and 0.0138 hectares (0.034
acres), more or less, from Auditor's Parcel Number 17-27-01-39-000; including the
present road which occupies 0.0646 hectares (0.160 acres), more or less. All stationing is
shown in the metric system.
This description was prepared by Clyde E. Williams & Associates, Inc., according to a
survey made in 1993 under the direction and supervision of Abdul Wadood A. Haider,
Registered Surveyor #6350.
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The basis of bearing in this description is based on the centerline bearing as shown on
right-of-way plaDB for :tvruS-60-20.57 Maple Avenue on file with the Ohio Department of
Transportation, District No. 5.
Grantor, for themselves and their heirs, executors, administrators and assigns, reserves
the right of ingress and egress to and from the residue.
Exceptions referenced in Vol. 521, Pg. 678, Muskingum County Deed Records; Vol.
1133, Pg. 698, Muskingum County Deed Records.
Subject to conditions, restrictions and easements, if any, contained in prior instruments of
record.
Except taxes and assessments, if any, now a lien and thereafter due and payable.
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Exhibit "G"
Legal Description
Situated in the County of Muskingum, in the State of Ohio and in the Township of Falls:
Being a part of Lot 12 of Meadowbrook Subdivision as recorded in Plat Book 8, Page 47 of the
Muskingum County Plat Records; situated in Quarter Township 1, Township 1, Range 8, of the United
States Military Lands, Falls Township, Muskingum County, Ohio and being further described as fo llows:
Beginning at an existing iron pin (axle) at the northeast corner of Lot 12; thence with the east
line of said Lot 12, South 24 degrees 13 minutes 10 seconds West 421.24 feet to a point on the north
right-of-way line of State Route 60; thence with the said north right-of-way line, North 65 degrees 43
minutes 06 seconds West 100.00 feet to a point, said point being South 65 degrees 43 minutes 06
seconds East 0.28 feet from an existing iron pin (5/8 inch rebar-ODOT), passing existing iron pins (5/8
inch rebar-ODOT} at 0.64 feet and at 45.79 feet; thence with the west line of Lot 12; North 24 degrees

13 minutes 10 seconds East 421.25 feet to a point, said point being the northwest corner of said Lot 12,
passing an iron pin set at 411.25 feet; thence with the north line of Lot 12, South 65 degrees 42 minutes
44 seconds East 100.00 feet to the Place of Beginning.
Containing 0.967 more or less acres, subject to all applicable easements.
All iron pins set are 5/8 inch x 30 inch re bar with plastic identification caps (Biedenbach PSS718·
PS6923).
The bearings are based on the State Plane Coordinate Grid derived from a solar observation
(local hour angle method) .
I hereby certify to the best of my knowledge and belief the survey and description to be correct
as prepared by me this 29t h day of October 1997.
Prior Instrument Reference:
Auditor's Parcel Number:
Being Known As:

Book 1140, Page 535, Muskingum County, Ohio Records
Book 2776, Page 67, Muskingum County, Ohio Records
17-27-01-37-000
3730 Frazeysburg Road, Zanesville, Ohio 43701
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Exhibit "H"
Legal Description
Situated in the First Quarter of Township 1, Range 8, U.S. Military Lands, Falls
Township, Muskingwn County, Ohio, and being part of the land conveyed to Benjamin Oliver
Taylor, as described in the deed dated March 1, 1899 from Charles H. Jones, and recorded in
Vol. 117, page 494 of the Record of Deeds of Muskingum County, Ohio, bounded and described
as follows:
Beginning at a stone at the southwest comer of the land mentioned above running north 3
degrees 45 minutes East along the West line of said land, 1084.70 feet to a point on the north line
of State Route No. 77; thence South 63 degrees 59 minutes East, along the north line of said
State Route, 387.47 feet to a stake, the place of beginning of the property hereinafter described;
thence continuing South 63 degrees 59 minutes East, 100.00 feet to a stake; thence North 26
degrees 01 minutes East 435.60 feet to a stake; thence North 63 degrees 59 minutes West 100.00
feet to a stake; thence South 26 degrees 01 minutes West 435 .60 feet to the place of beginning,
containing one (1) acre. There is also granted to the Grantees herein a right of way from the
premises herein conveyed to the run or creek lying south and east of said premises for laying and
maintaining a sealed drainage tile which tile is to be laid deep enough to plough over and is to be
laid at least 40 feet from the wells on the adjoining properties.
These premises are conveyed subject to the following conditions and restrictions:
1. No liquor is to be kept for sale or sold on said premises.
2, No privy or outside toilet is to be maintained or kept on said premises.
3. No residence is to be built on said premises costing less than $5,000. A temporary
dwelling may be built thereon but may be kept there for not over two years.
4. No junk yard shall be maintained or operated on or about said premises. It is agreed that
these same restrictions and conditions shall be part of any deed or deeds conveying the
lots immediately south of the premises herein conveyed.
Being the same premises conveyed to Raymond W. Thomas and Eva E. Thomas by Irvin
K. Berkshire and Marilyn Marie Berkshire, husband and wife, by Warranty Deed dated March 6,
1951 and recorded in Deed Book 395 on page 262 of the Deed Records of Muskingum County,
Ohio ..

EXCEPTING THE FOLLOWING:
Situated in the Township of Falls, County of Muskingum, State of Ohio, and in Section
QI, Town IN, Range 8W, and bounded and described as follows:
Being a parcel ofland lying on the right side of the centerline of a survey, made by the
Department of Transportation, and being located within the following described points in the
boundary thereof:
Commencing from an iron pin found at the southwest comer of the Meadowbrook No. 2
Subdivision as recorded in D.B. 8, Pg. 57 of the Muskingum County Plat Records; Thence along
said subdivision's westerly property line N 14° 15' 10" E, a distance of236.659 m (776.44 feet)
and passing the northwest comer of said subdivision at 227 .292 m (745.71 feet) to a point on the
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centerline of survey station 33+762.381 of S.R. 60; Thence along said centerline of survey N 63°
1
12 48" W, a distance of 84.232 m (276.35) feet to a point on said centerline of survey station
33+846.613; Thence leaving said centerline of survey N 26° 47 1 1211 E, a distance of9.144 m
(30.00 feet) to the grantor's southeast property corner and the northerly right-of-way line of S,R.
60 and being the true point of beginning;
Thence along the grantor's southerly property line and northerly right-of-way line of S.R.
60 N 63° 121 48" W, a distance of 30.368 m (99.63 feet) to a point at the grantor's southwest
property comer and being 9.144 m (30.00 feet) right of centerline of survey station 33+876.981;
Thence leaving said grantor's southerly property line and said northerly right-of-way line
along the grantor's westerly property line N 26° 441 55 11 E, a distance of 4.572 m (15.00 feet) to a
point 13.716 m ( 45.00 feet) right of centerline of survey station 33+876.984;
Thence leaving said grantor's westerly property line S 63° 12' 48" E, a distance of30.371
m (99.64 feet) to a point in the grantor's easterly property line and being 13.716 m (45.00 feet)
right of survey station 33+846.613;
Thence along the grantor's easterly property line S 26° 47' 12" E, a distance of 4.572 m
(15.00 feet) to the true point of beginning and containing 0,0139 hectares (0.034 acres), more or
less, from Auditor's Parcel Number 17-27-01-36-000, including the present road which occupies
0.0000 hectares (0.000 acres), more or less. All stationing is shown in the metric system.
This description was prepared by Clyde E. Williams & Associates, Inc., according to a
survey made in 1993 under the direction and supervision of Abdul Wadood A. Haider,
Registered Surveyor #6350.
The basis of bearing in this description is based on the centerline bearing as shown on
right-of-way plans for MUS-60-20-57 Maple Avenue on file with the Ohio Department of
Transportation, District #5.
Grantor claims title by instrument(s) ofrecord in D.B. 421, Page 281 County Recorder's
Office.
Grantor, for themselves and their heirs, executors, administrators and assigns, reserves
the right of ingress and egress to and from the residue.

Prior Instrument Reference: Book 2419, Page 317, Muskingum County, Ohio Records
Auditor's Parcel Number:

17-27-01-36-000

Being Known As:

3740 Frazeysburg Road, Zanesville, Ohio 43701
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Exhibit "l"
Legal Description
Situated in the County of Muskingum, in the State of Ohio and in the Township of Falls,
and bounded and described as follows:
Beginning in the First Quarter of Township #1, Range #8, of the U.S. Military District,
and more particularly described as follows:
Beginning at an iron pin (set) at the Southwest corner of Lot #11 in the Subdivision of
Meadowbrook as recorded in Plat Book 8, page 47 in the Muskingum County Recorder's Office;
thence along the South line of said Lot #11 South 63 degrees 59 minutes 00 seconds East 100.00
feet to an iron pin (set) at the Southeast comer of said Lot #11; thence South 25 degrees 58
minutes 43 seconds West 435.60 feet to an axle (found) on the Northerly right-of-way of State
Route #60 (Frazeysburg Road); thence along said right-of-way line North 63 degrees 59 minutes
00 seconds West 100.00 feet to an iron pin (set), passing a concrete monument (found) at 16.52
feet; thence leaving said right-of-way line North 25 degrees 58 minutes 43 seconds East 435.60
feet to the place of beginning, containing 1.000 acres.
Basis for the bearings in this description is the South line of said Lot #11 as shown on
said plat of Meadowbrook Subdivision.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM THE FOLLOWlNG:
Situated in the Township of Falls, County of Muskingum, State of Ohio, and in Section
Ql, Town lN, Range 8W, and bounded and described as follows: PARCEL NO. 14\VD.
Being a parcel of land lying on the right side of the centerline of a survey, made by the
Department of Transportation, and recorded in Book _ _ _, Page ___, of the records of
Muskingum Coum:y and being located within the following described points of boundary thereof:
Commencing from an iron pin found at the southwest comer of the Meadowbrook No. 2
Subdivision as recorded in P.B. 8, Pg. 57 of the Muskingum County Plat Records; thence along
said subdivision's westerly property line N 14° 15' l 011 Ea distance of 236.659 m (776.44 feet)
and passing the northwest comer of said subdivision at 227.292 m (745.71 fe.et) to a point on the
centerline of survey station 33+762.381 of S.R. 60; thence along said centerline of surveyN 63°
121 48" W a distance of 114.600 m (375.98 feet) to a point on said centerline of survey station
33+876.981; thence leaving said centerline of survey N 26° 47' 12u E, a distance of 9.144 m
(30.00 feet) to the grantor's southeast property comer and the northerly right-of-way line of S.R.
60 and being the true point of beginning;
Thence along the grantor's southerly property line and northerly right-of-way line of S.R.
60, N 63° 12' 48 11 W, a distance of 30.453 m (99.91 feet) to a point at the grantor1s southwest
property comer and being 9.144 m (30.00 feet) right of centerline of survey station 33+907.434;
Thence leaving said grantor's southerly property line and said northerly right-of-way line
along the grantor's westerly property line N 26° 44' 55" Ea distance of 4.572 m (15.00 feet) to a
point 13.716 m (45.00 feet) right of centerline of survey station 33+907.437;
Thence leaving said grantor's westerly property line S 63° 12' 48" Ea distance of 30.453
m (99.91 feet) to a point in the grantor's easterly property line and being 13.716 m (45.00 feet)
right of centerline of survey station 33+876.984;
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Thence along the grantor's easterly property line S 26° 44' 55" W a distance of 4.572 m
(15.00 feet) to the true point of beginning and containing 0.0139 hectacres (0.034 acres), more or
less, from Auditor's Parcel Number l 7-27-01-35-000, including the present road which occupies
0.0000 hectacres (0.000 acres), more or less. AU stationing is shown in the metric system.
This description was prepared by Clyde E. Williams & Associates, Inc., according to a
survey made in 1993 under the direction and supervision of Abdul Wadood A. Haider,
Registered Surveyor #6350.
The basis of bearing in this description is based on the centerline bearing as shown on
right-of-way plans for MUS-60-20.57 Maple Avenue on file with the Ohio Department of
Transportation, District #5. Deed Ref.: Vol. 1131 Page 390.
Grantor, for themself and their heirs, executors, administrators and assigns, reserves the
right of ingress and egress to and from the residue.

Prior Instrument Reference: Book 2919, Page 125, Muskingum. County, Ohio Records
Auditor's P arcel Number:

17-27-01-35-000

Being Known As:

3750 Frazeysburg Road, Zanesville, Ohio 43701
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Exhibit "J"
Legal Description
Situated in the First Quarter of Township 1, Range 8, U.S. Military Lads, Falls
Township, Muskingum County, Ohio, and being part of the lands of Benjamin 0. Taylor, as
described in the deed dated March 1, 1899, from Charles H. Jones and recorded in Vol. 117,
page 494 of the Record of Deeds of Muskingum County, Ohio, bounded and described as
follows: Beginning at a stone at the southwest corner of the land mentioned above and running
North 3 degrees 45 minutes East, along the west line of said land, 1084.70 feet to a point on the
north line of State Route 77, thence south 63 degrees 59 minutes East, along the north line of
said State Route, 191.32 feet to the place of beginning of this survey and description thence
continuing South 63 degrees and 59 minutes east, 335.40 feet to a stake; thence North 82 degrees
33 minutes West, 131.62 feet to a stake; thence North 20 degrees 46 minutes West 293 .67 feet to
the place of begging of this survey and description, containing Eight Hundred Three
Thousandths (0.803) of an acre, more or less.
These premises are conveyed subject to the following conditions and restrictions:
1. No liquor or intoxicating beverages are to be sold or kept for sale on said premises.
2. No privy or outside toilet is to be maintained or kept on said premises
3. No residence is to be built on said premises costing less than $5,000.00.
4. No junk yard shall be maintained or operated on or about said premises. It is agreed that
these same restrictions and conditions shall be part of any deed conveying the lots
adjoining the premises herein conv eyed.
5. All buildings to be built a reasonable distance from the road or highway.
Being the same premises conveyed to Harvey E. Owens, Sr., and Eloise A. Owens by a warranty
deed from John Weidig and Florence M. Weidig (husband and wife) dated January 31, 1973, and
recorded in Volume 641, Page 107 of the Deed Records of Muskingum County, Ohio.
Prior Instrument Reference: Volume 1065, Page 647. Muskingum County, Ohio
Records.
Auditor's Parcel Number:

17-27-01-34~000

Being Known As:

3760 Frazeysburg Road, Zanesville, Ohio 43701
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Exhibit "K"
Legal Description
Situated in the First Quarter of Township 1, Range 8, U.S. Military Lads, Falls
Township, Muskingum County, Ohio, and being part of the lands of Benjamin 0. Taylor, as
described in the deed dated March 1, 1899, from Charles H. Jones and recorded in Vol. 117,
page 494 of the Record of Deeds of Muskingum County, Ohio, bounded and described as
follows: Beginning at a stone at the southwest comer of the land mentioned above and running
North 3 degrees 45 minutes East, along the west line of said land, 1084.70 feet to a point on the
north line of State Route 77, thence south 63 degrees 59 minutes East, along the north line of
said State Route, 191.32 feet to the place of beginning of this survey and description thence
continuing South 63 degrees and 59 minutes east, 335.40 feet to a stake; thence North 82 degrees
33 minutes West, 131.62 feet to a stake; thence North 20 degrees 46 minutes West 293.67 feet to
the place of begging of this survey and description, containing Eight Hundred Three
Thousandths (0.803) of an acre, more or less.
These premises are conveyed subject to the following conditions and restrictions:
1. No liquor or intoxicating beverages are to be sold or kept for sale on said premises.
2. No privy or outside toilet is to be maintained or kept on said premises
3. No residence is to be built on said premises costing less than $5,000.00.
4. No junk yard shall be maintained or operated on or about said premises. It is agreed that
these same restrictions and conditions shall be part of any deed conveying the lots
adjoining the premises herein conveyed.
5. All buildings to be built a reasonable distance from the road or highway.
Being the same premises conveyed to Harvey E. Owens, Sr., and Eloise A. Owens by a
warranty deed from John Weidig and Florence M. Weidig (husband and wife) dated January 31,
1973, and recorded in Volume 641, Page 107 of the Deed Records of Muskingum County, Ohio.

Prior Instnuneut Reference: Volume 1065, Page 647. Muskingum County, Ohio
Records.
Auditor's Parcel Number:

17-27-01-34-000

Being Known As:

3760 Frazeysburg Road, Zanesville, Ohio 43701
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Ways and Means Committee
Ann Gildow, Chair

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-122
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE
NO. 2021-27 AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY
WHEREAS, it is necessary during the course of the fiscal year to make changes
to the City' s working budget; and
WHEREAS, to keep the City's estimated revenues and appropriations as current
as possible those changes should be made at least on a quarterly basis or when the need arises;
and
WHEREAS, without appropriate funding City Departments would be in jeopardy
of providing efficient and reliable services, it is therefore in the best interest of the residents and
visitors of Zanesville, to have this ordinance passed as an emergency.
NOW, TIIEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of
Zanesville, Ohio, that:
SECTION ONE: Exhibit#A of ordinance No. 2021-27, which established
revenues and appropriations from January 1, 2021 through December 31, 2021, is hereby
amended as indicated in Exhibit 1, attached hereto.
SECTION TWO: For the reasons stated above, this ordinance is declared to be an
emergency measure. Provided it receives the affirmative votes of six (6) or more members of
Council, this ordinance shall take effect and be in force immediately upon its passage and approval
of the Mayor. Otherwise, it shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest period
allowed by law.
PASSED_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _____, 2021

ATfEST:- - - - - - - - - - - - Susan Culbertson
Clerk Of Council

Daniel M. Vincent
President Of Council

APPROVED:

This legislation approved as to form:

---------~ 2021

Donald Mason
Mayor

Law Director's Office

THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE
WORKING BUDGET 01/01/2020 -12/31/2020
ORDINANCE #2021-122 (Exhibit 1)
~

BUDGET
101
APPROPRIATIONS:
101-1081
101-1081-532

101-3281
101-3281-544

GENERAL FUND

2021

101-7682
101-7682-544

STREET LIGHTING

$360,000

26,000

386,000

TOTAL

$390,000

26,000

416,000

446,000

(72,050)

373,950

$971 ,049

(572.050)

$898,999

Salaries and Wages
Employee Benefits
Contractual Services
Reimbursements to Vehicle Maintenance

$311 ,234
66,905
337,050
8,550

$15,000
6,000
(50.000)
6,000

$326,234
72,905
287,050
14,550

TOTAL

$750,489

($23,000)

$727,489

70,000

\15.000)

55,000

$537,085

(S15.000)

$522,085

117,000

20,000

137,000

$427,119

$20,000

$447,119

12,300

4,500

16,800

$821,795

$4,500

$826,295

Salaries and Wages

$130,000

$12,000

$142,000

TOTAL

$301 ,604

$12,000

$313,604

174,500

15,000

189,500

$264,150

$15,000

$279,150

5,000

2 000

7 000

$105,416

$2,000

$107,416

PARKS

Capital Outlay

BUILDING & CODE ENEORCEMENT

TREASURER'S OFFICE

Capital Outlay
TOTAL

101-7721
101-7721-532

MUNICIPAL COURT

Contractual Services
TOTAL

101-7782
101-7782-5701

CITY MAINTENANCE

Reimbursements to Vehicle Maintenance
TOTAL

101-7862
101-7862-510

101-7863
101-7863-532

IT MANAGEMENT

BUDGET & FINANCE

Contractual Services
TOTAL

101-7864
101-7864-533

AMENDED
BUDGET

Contractual Services

TOTAL
101-4381
101-4381-510
101-4381-521
101-4381-532
101-4381-5701

AMENDING
AMOUNT

PURCHASING

Materials and Supplies
TOTAL
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101-7891
101-7891-544

101-7921
101-7921-55304
101-7921-55401
101-7921-55700

CAPITAL OUTLAY
Capital Outlay

$100,000

(~30.000)

$70,000

TOTAL

$100,000

($30,000)

$70,000

252,894
272,803
528,850

$15,000
$4,750
40800

$267,894
$277,553
569,650

TOTAL

$9,994,846

$60,550

$10,055,396

TOTAL APPROPRIATION

19,291,005

TRANSfERS
Transfer to Community Dev. Admin. Fund
Transfer to General Sinking Fund
Transfer to Vehicle Maintenance Fund

19,291 ,005

~

BUDGET
2021

POLICE FUND

201

AMENDING
AMOUNT

AMENDED
BUDGET

APPROPRIATIONS:
201 -1311
201-1311-521
201-1311-57020

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Employee Benefits
Reimbursement to Self Insurance Fund

$1 ,060,357
950,000

($75.000)
75,000

$985,357
1,025,000

TOTAL

$2,010,357

$0

$2,010,357

TOTAL APPROPRIATION

$8, 145,401

$0

$8,145,401

202

AUTO GAS FUND

BUDGET
2021

AMENDING
AMOUNT

AMENDED
BUDGET

APPROPRIATIONS:
202-6541
202-6541-544
202-6541-5701

STREET OPERATIONS
Capital Outlay
Reimbursement to Vehicle Maintenance

953,932
96500

(60,000)
60,000

893,932
156,500

TOTAL

$2,589,079

$0

$2,589,079

TOTAL APPROPRIATION

$2,995,479

$0

$2,995,479
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304

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT
ADMINISTRA T/VE FUND

BUDGET

2021

AMENDING
AMOUNT

AMENDED
BUDGET

$41,783

$0

$41,783

TRANSFERS:
Transfer from General Fund

$252,894

$15,000

$267,894

TOTAL RECEIPTS

$299,852

$15,000

$314,852

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS

$341,635

$15,000

$356,635

Salaries and Wages
Insurance
Capital Outlay

$200,229
1,000
25,000

$15,000
500
(500)

$215,229
$1 ,500
$24,500

TOTAL

$267,129

$15,000

$282,129

TOTAL APPROPRIATION

$341 ,635

$15,000

$356,635

BALANCE AVAILABLE

REVENUES:

304-48101

APPROPRIATIONS:
304-4361
304-4361-510
304-4361-53406
304-4361-544

C.D. ADMINISTRATION

401

BUDGET

GENERAL SINKING FUND

2021

APPROPRIATIONS:
401-7901
401-7901-53401
401-7901-53402
401-7901-53403
401-7901-53409

$0

$42

Transfer from General Fund

$272,803

$4,750

$277,553

TOTAl RECEIPTS

$329,063

$4,750

$333,813

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS

$329,105

$4,750

$333,855

DEBT SERVICE
Bond Principal-General Obligation
Principal - Note Payment
Interest - Note Payment
Bond Interest-General Obligation

$208,042
10,025
1,080
109,958

$11,000
302
(302)
(6,250)

$219,042
9,730
1,374
103,708

TOTAL APPROPRIATION

$329,105

$4,750

$333,855

CEMETERY OPERATING FUND

602

BUDGET

2021
APPROPRIATIONS:
602-2171
602-2171-532
602-2171-5701

AMENDED
BUDGET

$42

BALANCE AVAILABLE

REVENUES:
401-48101

AMENDING
AMOUNT

AMENDING
AMOUNT

AMENDED
BUDGET

CEMETERY OPERATIONS

86,065
23,000

(3,000)
8000

78,065
31 ,000

TOTAL

$484,960

$0

$484,960

TOTAL APPROPRIATION

$641 ,850

$0

$641,850

Contractual Services
Reimbursements to Vehicle Maintenance
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603

WATER OPERATING FUND

BUDGET
2021

BALANCE AVAIL.ABLE

~om>
AMENDING
AMENDED
BUDGET
AMOUNT

$1,289,843

$0

$1,289,843

$25,600
15,000

$14,000
3,500

$39,600
18.500

TOTAL RECEIPTS

$5,928,624

$17,500

$5,946,124

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS

$7,218,467

$17,500

$7,235,967

750,000

150 000

900.000

$1 ,047,928

$150,000

$1 ,197,928

REVENUES:
603-41117
603-46108

Special Assessment Tax
Credit Card Convenience Fee

APPROPRIATIONS:
603-5311
603-5311-57020

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Reimbursement to Self Insurance Fund
TOTAL

603-5470
603-5470-53434
603-5470-544

WATER OPERATIONS
Contingencies
Capital Outlay
TOTAL

603-5471
603-5471-532

UTILITY BILblNG & ACCOUNTING
Contractual SeNices
TOTAL
TOTAL APPROPRIATION

401,546
502,800

(57,500)
{100.000

344,046
402,800

$5,701 ,852

($157,500)

$5,544,352

131 ,200

25,000

156,200

$468,687

$25,000

$493,687

$7,218,467

$17,500

$7 ,235,967

O!ll!!)0!f1!0Clnl0

~

SEWER OPERATING FUND

604

BUDGET
2021

AMENDING
AMOUNT

AMENDED
BUDGET

APPROPRIATIONS!
604-5450
604-5450-53434
604-5450-5701

SEWER OPERATIONS
Contingencies
Reimbursements to V ehicle Maintenance

543,981
80,500

(15,000)

15,000

528,981
95,500

TOTAL

$7,062,566

$0

$7,062,566

TOTAL APPROPRIATION

$7,062,566

$0

$7,062,566

STORM SEWER FUND

608

BUDGET
2021

AMENDING
AMOUNT

AMENDED
BUDGET

APPROPRIATIONS:
608-5462
608-5462-54448
608-5462-56109

STORM SEWER OPERATIONS
180,898
0

(100)
100

180,798
100

TOTAL

$2,063,831

$0

$2,063,831

TOTAL APPROPRIATION

$2,096,831

$0

$2,096,831

Operating Equipment
De!iquent Re al Estate Tax Fees
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613

BUDGET
2021

COMBINED SEWER
OVERFLOW FUND

AMENDING
AMOUNT

AMENDED
BUDGET

APPROPRIATIONS:

613-5453-544
613-5453-56109

Capital Outlay
Deliquent Real Estate Tax Fees

TOTAL APPROPRIATION

AUDITORIUM OPERATING FUND

620

BALANCE AVAILABLE

9,017,023
0

{'100)
100

9,016,923
100

$9,827,698

$0

$9,827,698

BUDGET
2021

AMENDING
AMOUNT

AMENDED
BUDGET

$141,812

$0

$141,812

Auditorium Charges

$45,000

$3,500

$48,500

TOTAL RECEIPTS

$322,935

$3,500

$326,435

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS

$464,747

$3,500

$468,247

REVENUES:

620-46106

APPROPRIATIONS:

620-3261
620-3261-532

A!.!Dl!QRIIJM OPERATIONS

Contractual Services
TOTAL

620-3311
620-3311-57020

205,106

(8,500)

196,606

$374,213

(~;8,500)

$365,713

66,812

12,000

78,812

$90,534

$12,000

$102,534

$464,747

$3,500

$468,247

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Reimbursement to Self Insurance Fund
TOTAL
TOTAL APPROPRIATION
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700

VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT
MAINTENANCE FUND

2021

AMENDED
BUDGET

$22,435

$0

$22,435

$0

$2,200

$2,200

$69,450
96,500
23,000
80,500

$10,500
60,000
8,000
15,000

$79,950
$156,500
$31,000
$95,500

$528,850

$40,800

$569,650

TOTAL RECEIPTS

$1,981,028

$136,500

$2,117,528

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS

$2,003,463

$136,500

$2,139,963

54,000
863,453
5,950

1,000
135,000
500

55,000
998,453
6,450

TOTAL

$1,620,903

$136,500

$1,757,403

TOTAL APPROPRIATION

$2,003,463

$136,500

$2,139,963

BALANCE AVAILABLE

REVENUES:
700-45101

Sale of Assets

700-47101
700-47202
700-47602
700-47604

Reimbursement from
Reimbursement from
Reimbursement from
Reimbursement from

700-48101

Transfer from General Fund

APPROPRIATIONS:
700-7631
700-7631-532
700-7631-533
700-7631-53406

AMENDING
AMOUNT

BUDGET

General Fund
Auto Gas Fund
Cemetery Fund
Sewer Fund

VEHICLE & EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE
Contractual Services
Materials and Supplies
Insurance

~

SELF INSURANCE FUND

750

BUDGET

2021

APPROPRJATIONS:
750-7641-53240

AMENDED
BUDGET

$922,339

$0

$922,339

950,000
750,000
66,812

75,000
150,000
12,000

$1,025,000
$900,000
$781812

TOTAL RECEIPTS

$5,512,357

$387,000

$5,899,357

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS

$6,434,696

$387,000

$6,821,696

Claims

$5,605,446

$387,000

$5,992,446

TOTAL APPROPRIATION

$6,434,696

$387,000

$6,821,696

BALANCE AVAILABLE

REVENUES:
750-47201
750-47603
750-47620

AMENDING
AMOUNT

Reimbursement from Police Fund
Reimbursement from Water Fund
Reimbursement from Auditorium Fund
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Ways and Means Committee
Ann Gildow, Chair

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-123

m1~o~u(r~ ~I (O~ijLl
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK SETTING FORTH POLICIES AND PROCEDURES FOR
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES OF THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE

WHEREAS, Ordinance #2021-80 approved an updated Employee Handbook: and
WHEREAS, the City has determined certain language regarding vacation accrual for
unaffiliated employees, sick leave payout for unaffiliated employees and sick leave
donation for City employees are being updated.
WHEREAS, Council for the City of 2anesville believes it is necessary to amend the Employee
Handbook for public employees of the City of Zanesville.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville, Ohio that:
SECTION ONE: Council for the City of Zanesville hereby amends the City of Zanesville

Employee Handbook with updated language set forth below.
"SECTION 5.2: Added bullet point that says: For the purpose of hiring new
employees, management has the right to set the vacation accrual rate based on experience
and prior service. "
"SECTION 5.3: Adding the following statement to the TERMINATION OF
EMPLOYMENT & SICK LEAVE PAYOUT section.
In the event that an employee dies or is permanently disabled while a current
employee of ths City, the tsn (10) year service requirement shall be waived, and
payment shall be made to the estate of the deceased."
"SECTION 5.4: 2nd paragraph. Change "unaffiliated" to "City" employees and put in
parenthesis (unaffiliated & affiliated).
SECTION lWO:This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force effective October 1,

2021.
SECTION THREE: It is hereby found and determined that all formal actions of this
Council concerning and relating to the passage of the ordinance were adopted in an open
meeting of Council, and that all deliberations of the Council and any of the decision-making
bodies of the City of Zanesville which resulted in such formal actions were in meetings open
to the public in compliance with all legal requirements of the State of Ohio.

uramance No. 2021-123

PASSED: _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ __,2021

SUSAN CULBERTSON
CLERK OF COUNCIL

DANIEL M VINCENT
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

APPROVED: _ _ _ _ _ _ ___,2021

This legislation approved as to form:

Donald Mason, Mayor

David Tarbert, City Law Director

Attachment to Ordinance No. 2021-123

Employee Handbook Summary of Chan2es
October 2021

Update

Section

"For the purpose of hiring new employees,
management has the right to set the vacation accrual rate based on
experience and prior service".

1.

5.2

25

Added bullet point that says:

2.

5.3

26

Adding the following statement to the TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT &
SICK LEAVE PAYOUT.

In the event that an employee dies or is permanently disabled while a current
employee of the City, the ten (10) year service requirement shall be waived,
and payment shall be made to the estate of the deceased.

3.

5.4

28

2nd paragraph. Change "unaffiliated" to "City" employees and put in
parenthesis (unaffiliated & affiliated). This will allow all city employees to
donate sick time between bargaining units and to those employees who do
not have sick leave donation in their contracts to donate and receive sick
leave donations.

Attachment to Ordinance 2021-123

CITY OF
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-1 1

Introduction & Provisions
lntroduct

n/D1sclaimer

Welcome to the City of Zanesville! We are pleased that you have chosen to join our organization
and hope that you will enjoy a long and successful career with us. As you become familiar with
our culture and mission, we hope you will take advantage of opportunities to enhance your
career and further the City of Zanesville s goals.
The City takes pride in its service to the citizens of Zanesville and the community, and believes
that, first and foremost, we must be good citizens, set a good example, and fulfill our duties in
a conscientious and courteous manner. In return, the City strives to provide a professional ,
positive, hands-on approach to managing its human resources.
This Employee Handbook addresses issues and policies of a city-wide nature. Individual
departmental rules and polices remain applicable, such as Police, Fire and Services
Departments for the functions and responsibilities of those departments.
The policies of this Employee Handbook are meant to be read in conjunction with any relevant
department policies and rules. Administration will decide, should a conflict arise, which rule or
policy should prevail. Employees are encouraged to bring to the attention of their Department
Head and the Human Resources Manager any perceived conflicts between the employee
handbook and department rules or policies.
Should any information in the handbook conflict with a collective bargaining agreement, the
applicable bargaining agreement will take precedence.
This Employee Handbook was designed to help employees acquaint themselves with the City's
policies and procedures. The City of Zanesville also reserves the right to interpret the
information in this guide and to make determination of appropriate actions in all circumstances.
If you have any questions regarding the interpretation or application of the contents of this
handbook, you should direct them to your supervisor or to the Human Resources Department.
The information in this guide is not intended to create contractual obligation with respect to any
matters it covers, nor is the guide intended to create a contract guaranteeing that you will be
employed for any specific period of time.
The City of Zanesville reserves the right to revise and/or change, delete, suspend or discontinue
parts or policy in its entirety, at any time without prior notice. Any such action shall apply to
existing as well as future employees.
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1.2

Human Resources ObJective

The mission of the human resource department is to support the goals and challenges of the City
of Zanesville by providing services that promote a work environment that is characterized by fair
treatment of staff, open communications, personal accountability, trust and mutual respect. We will
seek and provide solutions to workplace issues that support and optimize the operating principles
of the organization.
The City believes that a personnel system which recruits and retains competent, dependable
employees is important to effective government.
It is the mission of the human resources department to provide the following quality services to the
employees of the City of Zanesville:

•

•
•
•
•

•
•
•

Recruitment of qualified individuals
Retention of valuable employees. Maintain recruitment and internal promotional practices
which enhance the attractiveness of a career with the City and encourage each employee
to give his/her best effort to the City and the public
Training, development and education to promote individual success and increase overall
value to the organization
A safe and healthful working environment
Inspiration and encouragement for a high level of employee morale through recognition ,
effective communication and constant feedback
Promote high morale and foster good working relationships by providing uniform personnel
policies and procedures, equal opportunity for advancement, and consideration for
employee needs
Encourage courteous and dependable service to the public
Resources for administering benefits, policies and procedures
Ensure all City operations are conducted in an ethical and legal manner

These services are achieved through a team-work philosophy that is inspired through effective
organizational skills, proactive efforts and maintaining a balance between professionalism and the
ability to have fun 1

5
CITY OF ZANESVILLE EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK (Attachment to ORD 2021-123)

1.3

E · 1ployment Eligibihty
All City employees are subject to applicable federal laws pertaining to citizenship and employment
verification . In compliance with the Immigration Reform and Control Act of 1986, each new
employee, as a condition of employment, must complete the Employment Eligibility Verification
Form 1-9 and present acceptable documentation.

1.4

Service Co1 ,:n,ssior
The Pendelton Act, sponsored by Ohio Senator George H. Pendelton and signed January 16, 1883
by President Chester A. Arthur established the federal civil service system. The Civil Service
Commission (CSC) of the City is composed of three (3) persons who are appointed and serve in
the manner provided for in Section 124.40 of the Ohio Revised Code. Rules and Regulations are
adopted in accordance with the authority conferred upon the Civil Service Commission by Section
1 O of Article XV of the Constitution of the State of Ohio and by Chapter 124 of the Ohio Revised
Code.
The CSC rules apply to all Civil Service matters within the jurisdiction of the CSC except to the
extent these rules have been modified or superseded by the terms of a valid Collective Bargaining
Agreement Whenever the terms of a valid Collective Bargaining Agreement conflict with these
rules. the terms of the Collective Bargaining Agreement will prevail. (See Ohio Revised Code
4117.10.)
The City follows the civil service laws of the Ohio Revised Code Chapter 124. The application,
testing and original appointments to positions in the City are governed by the civil service laws and
the rules of the City Civil Service Commission, CSC. The CSC has adopted its own rules which
should be consulted.
Employees of the City are either '" classified" or unclassified" under the civil service laws. Classified
employees have civil service protection and continue to serve the City unless disciplined or laid off
following civil service law provisions or the process under the applicable collective bargaining
agreement. Unclassified employees are considered exempt from civil service law procedures and
serve at the pleasure of the City and are considered "at will." Unclassified employees may be
dismissed at any time.
Classified employees are prohibited from engaging in partisan political activity where unclassified
employees may engage in partisan political activity. The rules of the CSC outline the prohibited
political activity of employees of the City. A classification plan for the positions in the City is
maintained by the CSC which lists the titles, and includes the job description, for all positions in the
City.
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1.5.1.

APPLICATIONS FOR EMPLOYMENT AND TESTING

The CSC is responsible to make available applications for original employment testing.
Applicants and employees are responsible to accurately and completely provide information in the
applications as well as submitting all required documentation, such as records or proof of licenses.
Applicants may be disqualified from employment for inaccurate or incomplete appl ications and
information Employees will be held accountable and may be disciplined for inaccurate or
incomplete information provided in an employment application. For example, if an employee
inaccurately or falsely indicated on an employment application that he/she had a college degree
the employee may be disciplined. up to discharge, for submitting the false information.

1.5.2.

TESTING

When a vacant position is to be filled by a civil service examination the CSC will conduct the
examination. rate and then rank the candidates who pass the examination on an eligible list.
The CSC has rules and procedures for the examination process and the procedures to be followed
to fill a vacancy. The CSC procedures apply to entry level positions.

1.5.3.

APPEALS AND HEARINGS

The civil service laws provide for appeals of certain actions including layoffs and certain discipline
matters for those employees who are classified and not included in a collective bargaining unit For
those employees who are included in a collective bargaining unit their appeal rights are set forth in
the collective bargaining agreement
The CSC provides for hearings of appeals The CSC jurisdiction, and what appeals it may consider
are set forth in the civil service laws. The CSC may not consider appeals or conduct hearings of
issues or matters not included in the civil service laws.

1.5

Pay and Benefits Ordinance
The pay and benefits for Employees not included in a collective bargaining unit. ie. unaffiliated
employees, are established by the Administration and approved by the City Council in an
ordinance. Pay and benefit questions are to be directed to the employee's Department Head.
The benefits included in the Ordinance which may be modified or eliminated by City Council,
include:
Compensation/Pay Plan
• Overtime Compensation
• Holidays
• Vacations
• Sick Leave
• Leaves of Absence
• Longevity Pay
• Insurance
• Mileage Reimbursement

.

This handbook does not modify benefits provided by City Ordinance or provided in a union contract
and does not grant additional benefits or compensation. This handbook simply provides guidelines
and rules for use of these benefits by employees.
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1.6

C JllectIve Barga i -, ,19
The pay and benefits for employees in positions included in a collective bargaining unit are provided
for in the applicable collective bargaining agreement. Where an issue, benefit, or economic matter
is addressed and included in a collective bargaining agreement the provision in the agreement will
prevail over the provisions of this Employee Handbook. If questions arise, please contact the
Human Resources Manager

1.7

Civil Service _aw and City Managernent Rights
As noted in the initial provisions of this Employee Handbook, many issues are addressed by the
rules of the Civil Service Commission, or are included in civil service laws. Management of a City
is responsible to administer many programs to serve the public. As such City Management has
authority within the parameters of civil service law, union contracts and employment laws to
administer the human resources of the City and its personnel.
Many topics and issues are not specifically addressed in this Employee Handbook nor should every
topic be addressed. Those issues and situations will be addressed on an as-needed basis.
Questions or comments regarding this Handbook or any other related issue should be directed to
the employee's department or to the Human Resource Manager.
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

& RESPONSIBILITIES

The policies in this Handbook do not and should not be construed to limit the rights, responsibilities
or privileges of the City. The City has the authority to compensate, manage, evaluate and discipline
employees of the City in accordance with the Ohio Revised Code, the Rules of the Civil Service
Commission of the City, ordinances of the City, and/or collective bargaining agreements negotiated
by the City.
The City retains the right to:
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

•

Determine the City's goals, objectives, programs and services and to utilize employees in
a manner designed to effectively and efficiently meet these purposes.
Exercise complete control and discretion over the budget, organizational structure, and
method of performing the work required.
Manage and determine the location, type and number of physical facilities, equipment and
programs and work to be performed.
Determine the adequacy, size, composition and qualifications of the work force, including
when a job vacancy exists.
Take necessary action to abolish and create classifications.
Manage and direct employees. including the right to establish methods to select, hire,
promote, transfer, assign, evaluate. supervise, layoff, recall, reprimand, suspend,
discharge and discipline for just cause and to maintain order among employees.
Determine the hours of work and work schedules including the necessity of overtime.
Determine the work rules, standards of quality, productivity and performance to be
maintained and the policies and procedures for all employees .
Implement and enforce rules on workplace safety.
Maintain the security of records and other pertinent information.
Inspect and search employees and/or their personal property when there is a reasonable
suspicion of illegal or impermissible activity.
Inspect and search files, electronic media, lockers. desks, cubicles, etc. as these items are
provided for employee convenience and remain the property of the City, and are subject to
control and search.
Determine and implement necessary actions in emergency situations.

This list is intended to provide a general understanding of the City's responsibilities , and therefore
the responsibilities of the employees to carry out the mission and functions of the City for its citizens.
The City has those other rights needed and appropriate to manage and administer the mission and
functions of the City for rights not listed above_
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2

Workplace Standards & Ethics

2.1

Equal Opportunity
The City of Zanesville provides equal employment opportunities to all employees and applicants
for employment without regard to race, color, ancestry, national origin, gender, sexual orientation ,
marital status, religion, age, disability, gender identity, results of genetic testing, or service in the
military. Equal employment opportunity applies to all terms and conditions of employment, including
hiring, placement, promotion, termination, layoff, recall , transfer, leave of absence, compensation,
and training.
The City of Zanesville expressly prohibits any form of unlawful employee harassment or
discrimination based on any of the characteristics mentioned above. Improper interference with the
ability of other employees to perform their expected job duties is absolutely not tolerated.

2.2

Americans with Disabilities (ADA) & Reas ··., able Accommodation
The Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) of 1990, as amended by the Americans with Disabilities
Amendments Act (ADMA) of 2008, effective January 1, 2009, prohibits discrimination against a
qualified individual with a disability in regard to job application procedures; the hiring, advancement,
or discharge of employees: employee compensation; job training: and other terms, conditions, and
privileges of employment To ensure equal employment opportunities to qualified individuals with
a disability, the City of Zanesville will make reasonable accommodations for the known disability of
an otherwise qualified individual, unless undue hardship on the operation of the business would
result.
Employees who may require a reasonable accommodation should contact the Human Resources
Department.

2.3

Genetk Information Non Discriminatior; Act (GINA :
The City of Zanesville strictly prohibits discrimination based on genetic information. GINA prohibits
employers and other entities covered by GINA Title II from requesting or requiring genetic
information of employees or their family members. In order to comply with this law, we are asking
that you not request or provide any genetic information in the workplace or to representatives of
the company at any time. 'Genetic information.· as defined by GINA, includes an individual's family
medical history, the results of an individual's or family member's genetic tests. the fact that an
individual or an individual's family member sought or received genetic services, and genetic
information of a fetus carried by an individual or an individual's family member or an embryo lawfully
held by an individual or family member receiving assistive reproductive services.

2.4

Commitment to Diversity
The City of Zanesville is committed to creating and maintaining a workplace in which all employees
have an opportunity to participate and contribute to the success of the business and are valued for
their skills, experience, and unique perspectives. This commitment is embodied in the City's policy
and the way we do business at the City of Zanesville and is an important principle of sound
management.
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2.5

Harass·,,-ient in the Workplace
The City of Zanesville strives to maintain a workplace that fosters mutual employee respect and
promotes harmonious, productive working relationships. Our organization believes that
discrimination and/or harassment in any form constitutes misconduct that undermines the integrity
of the employment relationship. The City prohibits discrimination and/or harassment that is sexual,
racial or religious in nature or is related to anyone's gender. national origin. age. sexual orientation.
gender identity. pregnancy. disability. genetic information or veteran·s status. This policy applies to
alt employees throughout the organization and all individuals who may have contact with any
associate of this organization for business reasons, such as, a vendor or customer. Sexual and
other unlawful harassment is a violation of Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VII), as
amended, as well as many state laws.
It is the City of Zanesville's policy to provide a work environment free of sexual and other
harassment. To that end, harassment of City employees by management, supervisors, coworkers,
or nonemployees who are in the workplace is absolutely prohibited. Further, any retaliation against
an individual who has complained about sexual or other harassment or retaliation against
individuals for cooperating with an investigation of a harassment complaint is similarly unlawful and
will not be tolerated . City of Zanesville will take all steps necessary to prevent and eliminate
unlawful harassment.
Definition of Unlawful Harassment. "Unlawful harassment" is conduct that has the purpose or
effect of creating an intimidating, hostile, or offensive work environment: has the purpose or effect
of substantially and unreasonably interfering with an individual's work performance; or otherwise
adversely affects an individual's employment opportunities because of the individual's membership
in a protected class.
Unlawful harassment includes, but is not limited to, epithets; slurs: jokes; pranks; innuendo:
comments; written or graphic material; stereotyping: or other threatening, hostile, or intimidating
acts based on race, color, ancestry, national origin, gender. sex. sexual orientation, marital status,
religion, age, disability, veteran status, or other characteristic protected by state or federal law.
Definition of Sexual Harassment. ··sexual harassment" is generally defined under both state and
federal law as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors. and other verbal or physical
conduct of a sexual nature where:
•
•

Submission to or rejection of such conduct is made either explicitly or im plicitly a term or
condition of any individual's employment or as a basis for employment decisions; or
Such conduct has the purpose or effect of unreasonably interfering with an individual's
work performance or creating an intimidating, hostile , or offensive work environment.

Other sexually oriented conduct, whether intended or not, that is unwelcome and has the effect of
creating a work environment that is hostile, offensive, intimidating, or humiliating to workers may
also constitute sexual harassment.
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While it is not possible to list all those additional circumstances that may constitute sexual
harassment. the following are some examples of conduct that, if unwelcome, may constitute sexual
harassment depending on the totality of the circumstances , including the severity of the conduct
and its pervasiveness:

•

•
•
•
•

Unwanted sexual advances, whether they involve physical touching or not;
Sexual epithets. jokes. written or oral references to sexual conduct, gossip regarding one's
sex life, comments about an individual's body, comments about an individual's sexual
activity, deficiencies. or prowess:
Displaying sexually suggestive obJects, pictures, or cartoons:
Unwelcome leering, whistling, brushing up against the body, sexual gestures, or suggestive
or insulting comments;
Inquiries into one's sexual experiences; and
Discussion of one·s sexual activities.

All employees should take special note that, as stated above, retaliation against an individual who
has complained about sexual harassment and retaliation against individuals for cooperating with
an investigation of sexual harassment complaint is unlawful and will not be tolerated at the City of
Zanesville.
Complaint Procedure

Any employee who believes he or she has been subject to or witnessed illegal discrimination.
including sexual or other forms of unlawful harassment, is requested and encouraged to make a
complaint. You may, but are not required to , complain first to the person you feel is discriminating
against or harassing you. You may complain directly to your immediate supervisor or department
manager, the HR Manager, or any other member of management with whom you feel comfortable
bringing such a complaint. Similarly, if you observe acts of discrimination toward or harassment of
another employee, you are requested and encouraged to report this to one of the individuals listed
above.
No reprisal, retaliation, or other adverse action will be taken against an employee for making a
complaint or report of discrimination or harassment or for assisting in the investigation of any such
complaint or report. Any suspected retaliation or intimidation should be reported immediately to one
of the persons identified above.
All complaints will be investigated promptly and, to the extent possible . with regard for
confidentiality.
If the investigation confirms conduct contrary to this policy has occurred, the City of Zanesville will
take immediate, appropriate, corrective action, including discipline, up to and including termination.
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2.6

Ethics of Pubhc Employment

The proper operation of government requires that actions of public officials and employees be
impartial: that government decision and policies be made within the proper channels of government
structure; that public office not be used for personal gain; and that the public have confidence in
the integrity of its government. State law establishes, through the Ethics Commission, standards
for public officials and employees. The City recognizes the State standards and the goals of
responsible government. Recognition of these goals has led to the establishment of a Code of
Ethics as follows for all officials and employees of the City.
No employee shall use their official position for personal gain, or shall engage in any business or
transaction or shall have financial or other interests, direct or indirect, which is in conflict with the
proper performance of their official duties.
No employee shall . without proper legal authorization. release confidential information concerning
the property or government affairs of the City; nor shall employees use such information to advance
the financial or other private interest of him or others. No employee shall accept any valuable gift,
whether in the form of service, loan, item, or promise from any person. form or corporation which
is interested directly or indirectly in any manner whatsoever in business dealings with the City: nor
shall employees accept any gift, favor or item of value that may tend to influence any decisions of
the employee or his supervisor. Any employee offered a gift or favor who is not sure whether its
acceptance would be a violation of the Code of Ethics should inform his supervisor. The supervisor
will make a decision or refer the individual to the City's Law Director.
No employee shall accept from any contractor or supplier doing business with the City any gifts ,
material or service for the private use of the employee
No employee shall represent private interests in any action or proceedings against the interest of
the City in any matter in which the City is a party.
State law prohibits employees and officials from having financial interests in companies which do
business with public agencies. with minor exceptions. Employees who have any doubt concerning
possible violations of these statutes are advised to consult their own attorney.
No employee shall engage in or accept private employment or render services for private interests
when such employment or service is in conflict with the proper performance of his official duties or
would tend to impair his independent judgment or action in the performance of his official duties.
Any employee having doubt as to the applicability of a provision of this Code to a particular situation
should consult the Human Resource Manager, the Law Director, or the Ohio Ethics Commission.
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2.7

Fraud Reporting
The Ohio Auditor of State's office maintains a system for the reporting of fraud, including misuse of
public money by any official or office. The system allows all Ohio citizens, including public
employees, the opportunity to make anonymous complaints through a toll free number, the Auditor
of State's website, or through the United States mail.
Auditor of State's fraud contact information
Telephone: 1-866-FRAUD OH (1-866-372-8364)

US Mail: Ohio Auditor of State·s office
Special Investigations Unit
88 East Broad Street
P.O. Box 1140
Columbus, OH 43215
Web: www ohIoauditor gov

2.8

Personnel Fileb
Personnel files on all employees shall be maintained in the administrative offices of the City.
Department heads may maintain files but shall forward copies of all appropriate documents therein
to the administrative office. A personnel file may include, but not be limited to. the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Employment application. resumes, evaluations and related documentation.
Letters of reference.
Commendations.
Records of discipline/corrective action.
Performance evaluations.
Instructional memos.
Records of college coursework, attendance at training seminars, etc.
Records of licensure or certifications.
Changes in personal status.
Changes in employment status.

Payroll records shall be maintained separately and in addition to personnel files. The City
Treasurer's Office shall maintain City payroll records on all City employees. Such files shall include,
but may not be limited to, individual employment data. payroll information, records of deductions,
number of exemptions claimed. employee status. and related information.
Medical records shall be handled in accordance with the all recent HIPPA Laws.
An employee shall have a right of reasonable inspection of his or her official personnel file. A
supervisor or management employee will be present at the time of inspection.
Employees shall advise their department heads of any change in: name, address, marital status,
telephone number, number of exemptions claimed for tax purposes, citizenship, selective service
classification, or association with any government military service organization.
The department head shall then forward this information to the Treasurer's Office for purposes of
updating the payroll files.
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2.9

Publ ic Records
All public records requests are subject to the City's public records policy. Any questions regarding
the policy are to be directed to the Law Director or Department Head .
From time-to-time employees are asked by members of the public or other employees to copy and
provide documents which may constitute public records. All public records requests, whether from
members of the public or other employees, must first be communicated to the department director
before records are released. The director is responsible for releasing the records or referring the
request for clarification on the applicability of the law.
Any requests that are made concerning personnel information about any City employee are to be
forwarded to the Human Resource Manager for review. The information released will be in
accordance with the applicable law.
Employees are never permitted to copy and disseminate documents for themselves, to each other
or to the public, even if they have access to the information as part of their position. Violations of
this policy may result in corrective action up to and including dismissal of employment.
Records requests received by the Police Department will be subject to the procedure established
by the Police Department.

2.10

Solic1tat1on

Employees are never permitted to solicit the general public while on City property during the regular
work day. including lunch hours and breaks.
Employees, who feel harassed. pressured , or otherwise disturbed by the solicitations of other
employees may notify the Department Director or the Human Resource Manager who will
investigate the complaint and determine if the soliciting employee will be instructed to cease any
and all solicitations.
With the exception of local charitable organizations, solicitation, distribution or selling among
employees is restricted to mutual lunch periods and work breaks in non-work areas.
Violations of this policy resulting in a disruption to the City's operations may be cause for disciplinary
action.
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2.11

Employment of Relative~
Members of an employee's family will be considered for employment on the basis of their
qualifications. Immediate family members may not be hired, however, if it would:
•
•
•

Create a direct supervisor-subordinate relationship with a family member;
Have the potential for creating an adverse effect on work performance; or
Create either an actual conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interest.

This policy must be considered when hiring, assigning or promoting an employee.
If a circumstance arises that result in a direct supervisory relationship between immediate family or
close personal relatives, including marriage, reduction in force , reorganization, priority placement,
etc., one of the relatives may be reassigned. During the period that a direct supervisory relationship
exists between immediate family members or close personal relatives, the supervisory relative will
not be involved in any personnel action involving his or her relative. Typical first-level supervisory
responsibilities will be referred to the next higher level in the supervisory chain.
For purposes of this policy, immediate family includes employees mother, father , husband, wife,
son, daughter, sister, brother, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sister-in-law, brother-in-law, son-in-law,
daughter-in- law, stepchild, stepparent, grandchild or grandparent. This policy also applies to close
personal relatives such as uncles. aunts, first cousins, nephews, nieces or half-siblings.
If two employees become related while employed, or marry, the employees must immediately
report the relationship or marriage to their supervisor and the Human Resource Manager.
Questions should be directed to the Human Resource Manager.

2.12

Outside Employment

Under no circumstances shall an employee have other employment which conflicts with the
policies, objectives. and operations of the City. In addition, an employee shall not become indebted
to a second employer whose interests might be in conflict with those of the City.
An "employment conflict," as set forth in this policy, is when a second job impairs the employee's
ability to perform the duties of his or her position with the City.
Full-time employment with the City shall be considered the employee's primary occupation, taking
precedence over all other occupations.
Prior to accepting "outside" employment (or becoming self-employed), an employee shall notify his
or her supervisor, in writing, of his or her intention to be employed in a secondary job. The
supervisor shall confer with the employee to determine whether the "secondary job" presents a
conflict with City policies, objectives, interests, and/or operations.
"Outside" employment or "moonlighting" shall be a concern to the Employer only if it adversely
affects job performance. or could negatively impact the City's reputation or interests.
If, in the opinion of the Employer, outside employment is adversely affecting an employee's job
performance. he or she may be asked to refrain from such activities as a condition of continued
employment. Refusal to conform to such a request shall be cause for disciplinary action.
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2.13

Employee Fraternization
The City wants to preserve a working environment that has clear boundaries between personal and
professional relationships. This is believed to be the best practice for conducting business in a
professional manner. This policy establishes clear boundaries with regard to how relationships
develop at work and within the confines of the work area.
During working hours and in work areas, employees of the City are expected to keep all
personal interactions limited and at a professional level to avoid distracting or offending
others.
Employees are prohibited from engaging in any physical interactions that would be seen
as inappropriate in the work area. What constitutes inappropriate conduct is in the
discretion of the City.
Employees who engage in personal relationships with others and allow these relationships
to negatively affect the working environment will be subject to disciplinary action.

•

•

Romantic relationships between supervising, managing or executive employees and subordinates
are strictly prohibited. If a relationship does develop between a supervising employee and his or
her subordinate, management should be notified immediately so that a department transfer may
be considered.

3
3.1

Workplace Safety
Drug Free Workplace
In compliance with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, the City of Zanesville has a commitment
to provide a safe, quality-oriented and productive work environment consistent with the standards
of the community in which the City operates. Alcohol and drug abuse poses a threat to the health
and safety of the City of Zanesville's employees and to the security of the City's equipment and
facilities. For these reasons, The City of Zanesville is committed to a workplace free of drug and
alcohol use and abuse. Compliance with this Drug Free Workplace Policy is made a condition of
employment.
Employees are prohibited from the following when reporting for work, while on the job, on City or
customer premises or surrounding areas. or in any vehicle used for City business:
•
•
•

•

The unlawful use, possession, transportation, manufacture, sale, dispensation or other
distribution of an illegal or controlled substance or drug paraphernalia.
The unauthorized use, possession, transportation, manufacture, sale, dispensation or
other distribution of alcohol.
Being under the influence of alcohol or having a detectable amount of an illegal or
controlled substance in the blood or urine ("controlled substance" means a drug or other
substance as defined in applicable federal laws on drug abuse prevention).
Other similar conduct deemed a violation of criminal laws.
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Controlled Substances
As used in this policy, controlled substances include any drug that is illegal under federal or state
law, or that is legally obtainable but has not been legally obtained. The term includes prescribed
drugs which are not being used for the prescribed purpose or in the prescribed manner. Examples
include but are not limited to:
•
•

Marijuana•
Cocaine

Opiates
Crack, phencyclidine (PCP)

•

Amphetamines
Narcotics, barbiturates

Stimulants. depressants
• Despite Ohio House Bill 523, marijuana for medical use is a Drug Enforcement Administration listed Schedule I
controlled substance and therefore is prohibited.

Medical Marijuana
With respect to medical marijuana, the possession. distribution, and/or use of marijuana, including
medical marijuana, is prohibited under federal law. The City of Zanesville prohibits employees from
using, possessing, or being under the influence of marijuana in any form, including medical
marijuana, while at work or during work time. Any employee who tests positive for marijuana,
regardless of whether the marijuana consumed was for medicinal purpose and/or with a
prescription, will be considered to have violated this policy, and may be subject to disciplinary
action. As such, the City encourages employees to discuss with their providers alternative
treatments to the use of medical marijuana.

Any employee violating these prohibitions will be subject to disciplinary action up to and including
termination.
Employees who are taking medication prescribed to them and work in positions where these
medications/drugs may affect or impair their ability to perform their job duties must notify their
supervisor and Department Director. The City will consider options for employees taking
prescription drugs.
The City of Zanesville does not desire to intrude into the private lives of its employees, however,
recognizes that employees· off-the-job involvement with drugs and alcohol may have an impact on
the workplace. Therefore, the City reserves the right to take appropriate disciplinary action for drug
use, sale or distribution while off City premises. An employee who is convicted of, plead guilty to or
are sentenced for a crime involving an illegal drug is required to report the conviction, plea or
sentence to HR within five days. Failure to comply may result in automatic discharge. Cooperation
in complying may result in suspension to allow management to review the nature of the charges
and the employee's past record with the City.
Drug and alcohol testing will be carried out in compliance with any applicable state and federal laws
and regulations.
Disciplinary action will be taken for drug-related crimes, regardless of whether they happened
during working hours or on an employee's own time.
It is also understood that employees suffering from alcohol or drug dependence can be treated. We
encourage any employee to seek professional care and counseling prior to any violation of this
policy.
Required Testing

Employees subject to this policy shall be subject to drug and alcohol testing including, but not
limited to the following: pre-employment testing: reasonable suspicion testing: and post-accident
testing.
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Pre-em ployrnent

All applicants must pass a drug test before beginning work or receiving an offer of employment.
Refusal to submit to testing will result in disqualification of further employment consideration.
Reasonable suspicion

Reasonable suspicion testing shall be used when there are objective observable reasons to believe
that a controlled substance or alcohol use is adversely affecting an employee·s job performance or
that the employee has violated this policy. Reasonable suspicion referral for testing shall be made
on the basis of documented objective facts and circumstances which are consistent with the effects
of substance use. Any employee who witnesses an employee who they feel mig ht be under the
influence, should report it to management personnel who are trained to detect the signs and
symptoms of controlled substance and alcohol use and who may reasonably conclude that an
employee may be adversely affected or impaired in the employee's work performance due to the
use of a controlled substance or alcohol. The observing supervisor or manager, whether or not the
person is the employee·s immediate supervisor, is required to complete the appropriate required
documentation concurrently with the observation and consideration to impose reasonable
suspicion testing.
Reasonable suspicion testing shall be completed whenever possible within two (2) hours of the
observation. but in any case no later than eight (8) hours after the observation for breath alcohol
testing and thirty-two (32) hours for controlled substance testing.
Post-accident

Employees are subject to testing when they cause or contribute to accidents that damages a
vehicle, machinery, equipment or property or result in an injury requiring medical attention.
Follow-up

Employees who have tested positive, or otherwise violated this policy, are subject to discipline, up
to and including discharge. Depending on the circumstances and the employee·s work
history/record, the City may offer an employee who violates this policy or tests positive the
opportunity to return to work on a last-chance basis pursuant to mutually agreeable terms, which
could include follow-up drug testing at times and frequencies determined by the City. If the
employee either does not complete the rehabilitation program or tests positive after completing the
rehabilitation program. the employee will be subject to immediate discharge from employment.
Consequences

Employees who refuse to cooperate in required tests or who use, possess, buy, sell. manufacture
or dispense an illegal drug in violation of this policy will be disciplined in accordance with their
bargaining unit contract or applicable policy. If the employee refuses to be tested, yet the City
believes he or she is impaired, under no circumstances will the employee be allowed to drive
himself or herself home.
Employees who test positive for alcohol or illegal drugs under this policy will be disciplined within
existing contractual or administrative procedures .
.:>epa1-1ment of Pubhc Service an .: P, .-;Jic Safety Drug & A c:,:., -JI Ai-,use Po 11.::., and : ~s11:19 Progran·
0

In addition to the above policy, employees of the Departments of Public Service and Public Safety
have additional policies with testing standards to comply with federal and state laws applicable to
certain positions and persons with licenses subject to these laws.
Employees of the Department of Public Service and Public Safety should consult with the policy for
that Department and direct questions to the Department Director. Employees of the Service and
Safety Departments are subject to both the Department Policy and the City Handbook
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3.2

Tobacc -. Polley · Smoke Free Workplace
The purpose of this policy is to protect the health and safety of employees, customers, and visitors
of The City of Zanesville. Smoking is a leading cause of preventable death in the United States.
Smoking and secondhand smoke are known causes of lung disease, heart disease, and cancer.
The City of Zanesville recognizes the hazards caused by tobacco use and exposure to secondhand
tobacco smoke. This policy covers the smoking of any tobacco product, including smokeless
tobacco products and electronic cigarettes (regardless of tobacco content), and it applies to both
employees and non-employee visitors of The City of Zanesville.
No use of tobacco products, including cigarettes, smokeless tobacco, and electronic cigarettes. is
permitted on owned or operated property of the City of Zanesville at any time. "Property'" means
the organization's facilities "curb to curb. - including offices. grounds. adjacent sidewalks, parking
lots/ramps, City owned vehicles. and employee vehicles parked on owned and leased property .
Nicotine is prohibited within direct proximity to locations of ingress and egress to any municipal
facility owned and operated by the City Employees must be at least 20 feet from areas of ingress
or egress when smoking.
Responsibility for Reporting Violations

Any employee who witnesses a violation of this policy is requested and encouraged to make a
complaint. You may make a complaint directly to your immediate supervisor or department
manager, the HR Manager, or any other member of management with whom you feel comfortable
bringing such a complaint.
No reprisal, retaliation, or other adverse action will be taken against an employee for making a
complaint or for assisting in the investigation of any such complaint or report. Any suspected
retaliation or intimidation should be reported immediately to one of the persons identified above.
Discipline
Violations of this policy are considered as a work rule violation for which employees may be
disciplined.
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3.3

Workplace Violence Prevention
It is the City's policy to provide a workplace that is safe and free from all threatening and intimidating
conduct. Workplace violence is ·'any act of aggression, or threat of an act, that threatens the safety,
security, or well-being of an individual who is at work on duty." The City will not tolerate violence or
threats of violence of any form in the workplace, at work-related functions or outside of work if it
affects the workplace. This policy applies to City employees, clients, customers, guests, vendors
and persons doing business with the City.
It is a violation of this policy for any individual to engage in any conduct, verbal or physical. that
intimidates. endangers or creates the perception of intent to harm persons or property. Examples
include but are not limited to:
•

Physical assaults or threats of physical assault, whether made in person or by other means
(e.g., in writing. by phone, fax or email).
Verbal conduct that is intimidating and has the purpose or effect of threatening the health
or safety of a co-worker.
Any other conduct or acts that management believes represent an imminent or potential
danger to work place safety or security.

•
•

Anyone with questions or complaints about workplace behaviors that fall under this policy may
discuss them with a Supervisor or the Human Resource Manager. The City will promptly and
thoroughly investigate any reported occurrences or threats of violence. Violations of this policy will
result in disciplinary action. up to and including immediate termination of employees. Where such
actions involve non-employees, the City will take action appropriate for the circumstances. Where
appropriate and/or necessary, the City will also take whatever legal actions are available and
necessary to stop the conduct and protect City employees and property.
All employees are responsible for their conduct during work and work-related matters. Also,
employees who witness conduct violating this policy, as well as all other City policies, should report
the conduct, incident or violation.

3.4

Weapons in the Workplace
The C,ty of Zanesville 1s comm tted to provIdIng ,ts employees a work environment that Is safe and
secure This commitment includes proh1b1ting employees from possessing or having under their
control a weapon or other dangerous weapons while conducting city business or on city time.
including possession or control of a weapon other dangerous weapons ,n an employees personal
vehicle unless specially authorized by the c;ty or as provided In Section 3.4 1 below The c1ty·s
proh1bItion against such unauthorized weapons or other dangerous weapons applies to all
contractors and all employees. including out not 1tmIted to permanent city employees. contract
workers seasonal workers consultants college interns and anyone else conducting business on
city property
Prohibited Items: Any weapon or other dangerous weapons including firearms except as provided
in this policy; knives (switchblades, gravity knives or any knife with a blade longer than three
inches), ballistic knife, metal knuckles, explosives and explosive devices (dynamite, black powder,
pellet powders, blasting caps, fuse igniters and instantaneous fuses) , bows and arrows and Tasers.
Legal, chemical dispensing devices such as pepper sprays that are sold commercially for personal
protection are permissible under this policy.

Prohibited Conduct: Employees shall not carry or store a weapon or other dangerous weapons:
•
•
•

In a facility, building. or portion of a building owned or leased by the city, including parking
lots or garages, except as provided in Section 3.4.1
In a motor vehicle owned or leased by the city; or
While conducting city business or on city time, even when employees are off of city owned
or leased property
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34 1

Effect of Concealed Carry LIce11se

Individuals covered by this policy who have been issued a permit to carry a concealed weapon in
the State of Ohio are not exempt from the above provisions. Individuals covered by this policy who
carry or possess a weapon must store the weapon in accordance with the law prior to entering an
area in which a weapon is prohibited. This section also applies to an active duty member of the
armed forces of the United States who meets the requirements under Revised Code Section
2923.126 (E)(2) to have the same right to carry a concealed weapon as a person issued a
concealed carry license.
Individuals covered by this policy who have been issued a concealed weapon permit may store or
transport their weapon and/or ammunition in their privately owned motor vehicle on property owned
by the city that is primarily used as a parking facility for motor vehicles (i.e. parking lots and
garages), unless otherwise prohibited. The weapon and/or ammunition must remain inside the
person's privately owned motor vehicle while the person is physically present inside the motor
vehicle , or the weapon and/or ammunition must be locked in the trunk, glove box, or other enclosed
compartment or container within or on the person's privately owned motor vehicle while on the
above referenced property owned by the city.
3.4.2

Violations

Violations will be subject to legal action as appropriate. Violation of this policy by a city employee
may lead to disciplinary action up to an including termination in accordance with the applicable law.
rule. or collective bargaining agreement.
3 4. 3

Exceptions

In accordance with ORC 2923.12. the following City Personnel are exempt from this policy; An
officer or authorized agent (law director, mayor, safety director), or employee of this or any other
state or the United States, or to a law enforcement officer, who is authorized to carry concealed
weapons or dangerous ordnance or is authorized to carry handguns and is acting within the scope
of the officer's. agent's, or employees· duties.

3.5

Severe Weather
Severe weather emergencies have the potential to impact and/or disrupt City operations. During
such weather-related emergencies, it is important to identify which employees are critical to the
continuity of the City's operations. As such, employees may be classified as one of the following:
Essential or Non-essential.
Essential Employees

Those employees who perform a service-critical activity and must be onsite to perform the work;
this includes employees who work in departments/divisions that respond to emergency safety and
care of the public.
•
•
•

Administrative Personnel
Emergency/Public Safety Personnel
Public Services Personnel
o All scheduled Public Utilities employees (inclusive of all divisions), unless notified
as non-essential by their respective Department Director or designee.
o All scheduled Public Services employees (inclusive of all divisions), unless notified
as non-essential by their respective Department Director or designee.
o All scheduled Parks & Recreation employees, unless notified as non- essential by
their respective Department Director or designee.

Non-Essential Employees

Those employees who are not critical to maintain basic or emergency services to the public during
a weather related or emergency event
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Notification
In the event that a severe weather emergency is declared by the County Sheriff's Office, the County
EMA or the Mayor chooses to close City offices for non-essential employees, each Department
Director, or their designee, shall be responsible for determining and notifying which employees
should report to work or be sent home. dependent upon an employee's status of being considered
essential or non-essential to City/Department operations during such a severe weather emergency
event. It is the sole discretion of the City to determine which staff is considered essential in
responding in a severe weather emergency situation. The City may maintain a list of essential and
nonessential positions and employees.

In the event that a severe weather emergency is declared after normal business hours, or on the
eve of a regular work week, the City will notify area print and media outlets , or other available
means as the City determines regarding closure of City offices.
Compensation
With respect to compensation for such severe weather emergencies in which City offices are
closed, all non-essential employees, including full-time and permanent part-time personnel, will be
compensated for the number of hours they were scheduled to work during the emergency period.
Employees not scheduled to work because of scheduled vacation, personal or sick leave will be
charged for leave regardless of the declared emergency. If vacation, personal or sick leave ends
prior to the end of the declared emergency, no leave time will be charged for the remainder of the
emergency.

In the event that the decision is made to not close City facilities during inclement weather,
employees who are not able to report to work at their regularly scheduled start time due to inclement
weather should contact their respective supervisor and request the use of available vacation,
compensatory time or personal leave (in accordance with their collective bargaining agreement) to
cover the period not worked . The supervisor will determine whether the leave is justified and will
approve of such leave accordingly. If the leave is determined to be unjustified and the employee
does not report to work at the scheduled time, the employee will be considered absent without
excused leave and may be subject to disciplinary action. Inclement weather is not a valid excuse
for the use of sick leave.
During weather emergencies, those departments/divisions required to maintain twenty-four hour or
emergency service operations may continue to use available personnel beyond regularly
scheduled hours to ensure appropriate service coverage and to cover for non-available staff.
Eligible employees required to work beyond their regular shift shall be paid overtime, as
appropriate.
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4
4.1

Hours of Work
Hours of Work
Each department and officer holder are responsible for establishing the hours of work and
schedules for employees, and for enforcement of the schedules and hours of work.
Employees in collective bargaining units may have their hours and schedules addressed in their
agreements. If not. the hours of work and schedules will be established by their department.

4.2

Overt,m 2: Compensation
It is the policy of the City to keep work in excess of established schedules at minimum and to permit
such work only when it is necessary to meet urgent City operating requirements

•

•

•

•

4 .3

Overtime work will include only that work performed by an employee at the direction of a department
head or any other authorized representative which exceeds the number of hours comprising the
established work week for the position and department.
Except as herein provided. hours worked in excess of forth (40) hours per week will be compensated
at the rate of time-and-one-half Overtime hours worked which are not in excess of forth (40) hours
per week actually worked shall be compensated at straight time
Appointed salary employees are declared exempt from the overtime requirements of the Fair Labor
Standards Act and shall not receive compensation for hours worked in excess of forty (40) hours per
week.
For purposes of computing weekly overtime. holidays, vacation , compensatory time, and jury duty
during normal work hours shall be counted as hours worked . Sick leave shall not be counted as
hours worked.
The proper crty official shall designate those administrative and professional classes which shall be
entitled to compensatory time off for hours work in excess o the normal week with approval of the
proper city official Employees may accumulate a maximum of 180 hours of accrued compensatory
time . Employees who , for whatever reason, have accumulated more than 180 hours of accrued
compensatory time may not accrue additional time unless their accumulated hours fall below 180.
Upon separation, each employee shall be paid for any net accumulation of compensatory time
Call-in pay shall be provided when an employee is required to report for work at times other than his
regular shift or hours of work Except as herein provided, employees called In under these
circumstances shall receive four hours,Pay at his/her base rate or pay for time actually worked at the
applicable rate, whichever is greater.
The call-in minimum for the Police Chief and Fire Chief shall be three hours. Call-in time for which
payment is rendered shall not be used for computing the applicable 40-hour. Hours actually worked
under the call-in provisions shall count in determining premium pay.
Certain employees may be assigned by their appointing authority to an on-call status if it is necessary
for such employees to remain at or near home and to refrain from certain activities so that they are
available to respond to a call-m Employees in this on-call status who are called in outside their
regular hours of work shall receive the minimum call-in pay or pay at double their regular rate of pay,
whichever is greater.

Upgrades
When an unaffiliated employee performs a task that is normally paid at a higher PAY GRADE than
what they are currently assigned, said employee is entitled to a 5% pay increase for the hours
worked in the higher PAY GRADE.
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5
5.1

Time Off/Leave of Absence Benefits
Holidays
Each full-time and permanent part-time City employee is entitled to a number of paid holidays.
Permanent part-time employee·s holidays are paid depending on their regular work schedule as
well as the number of hours they are paid for a personal day. Depending on whether the employee
is in a bargaining unit or not, the days vary in number. Certain City employees may be required to
work on holidays, as a number of our departments maintain staffing levels seven days a week.
twenty-four hours a day. If you are a member of a bargaining unit, refer to your collective bargaining
agreement to identify those holidays for which you will be paid. Non-bargaining unit employees will
receive each of the following paid holidays:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

New Year's Day
Martin Luther King. Jr. Day
President's Day
Memorial Day
Juneteenth
Independence Day (4th of July)
Labor Day
Columbus Day
Veterans Day
Thanksgiving Day
Friday after Thanksgiving
Christmas Day
Three personal holidays selected by the employee with prior approval of the employee's
supervisor. Please refer to your bargaining agreement or ordinance for use of your
personal holidays. Unaffiliated employees are eligible to take a personal holiday after
completion of ninety (90) of service. Personal days are not cumulative and cannot be
carried over into the next year.
Any additional day declared as a holiday by the President of the United States or by the
Governor of the State of Ohio, or by the Mayor or Council of the City of Zanesville.

When one of the holidays listed above falls on a Sunday, the next following Monday shall be
observed as a holiday. When one of the holidays listed above falls on a Saturday, the preceding
Friday shall be observed as a holiday. Holidays occurring during vacation shall not be counted
as a day of vacation. For purposes of computing compensation for continuous personnel. the
actual date of the holiday shall be used rather than the day the holiday is observed.
Employees required to work on the day observed as a holiday shall be granted premium pay at
the time-and-one-half or compensatory time off at time-and-one-half for actual hours work.
Appointed salary employees shall not receive premium pay for work on a holiday.
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5.2

Vacation
Full-time and Permanent Part-time City employees are eligible to earn vacation leave. For
employees who are members of a bargaining unit, specific provisions regarding vacation leave
accumulation. use, transfer, and payment upon separation of employment. are covered in the City's
various collective bargaining agreements. Permanent part-time employees earn vacation on a
prorated basis according to the number of hours they are scheduled to work.
All Unaffiliated (nonunion) full-time employees of the City, shall accumulate vacation leave with pay
in accordance with the following schedule for each full pay period of service. Appointed salary
positions will not accrue vacation but are guaranteed a minimum of three (3) weeks' vacation per
year.

.
f
ears O 5 erv,ce
First Year
After 1 year
After 5 ears
After 10 years
After 15 years
After 20 years
y

Vacation Hours Accrued
Per Pay Period Worked
3.10 hours
3.39 hours
4.60 hours
5.54 hours
6.20 hours
6.815 hours

---~--

In order to utilize vacation leave. an employee must obtain prior approval from his/her department
head by entering their request through the Payroll Employee Self Service (ESS) . Vacation leave
may be subject to additional restrictions regarding the scheduling of vacation depending upon
operational needs or departmental restrictions. Employees should contact their immediate
supervisor to request specific information regarding departmental procedures for vacation use.
• For unaffiliated employees. vacation with pay will not be scheduled during an employee's
first six (6) months of service with the City. Vacations shall be scheduled to meet the
operating requirements of the City and the preference of the employees. Under no
circumstances will an employee be allowed to take vacation in advance.
• Employees occupying the position classification of Police Chief shall accumulate vacation
leave with pay at the rate of 6.2 hours per pay period, except that employees with more
than twenty years of service shall accumulate vacation leave with pay at the rate of 6.47
hours per pay period
•
Effective January 1 of each year, employees occupying the position classification of Fire
Chief shall be credited with 162 hours of vacation, except that employees with more than
twenty years of service shall be credited with 169 work hours of vacation.
• Vacation may be accumulated up to the maximum time which is accruable in a two-year
period.
Employees occupying the position classification of Fire Chief may carry over 540
hours of vacation to a new year.
Employees moving into the unaffiliated ranks from a union position in the
Sanitation Division shall retain the maximum vacation accrual allowed in their
previous position until their vacation accrual falls below the maximum authorized
herein but for no longer than two years; after two years, such employees will not
accrue additional vacation until their vacation accrual falls below the unaffiliated
maximum.
• Vacation with pay shall be charged out in no less than one-hour increments
•
Upon separation from the City, any accrued vacation owing will be paid to you as a lump
sum . less applicable statutory deductions. Payment will be paid through the usual means
as part of the pay cycle
• Full-time regular employees in paid status for less than 80 hours in a pay period shall
receive a prorated portion of vacation accrual based on actual hours in paid status.
Vacation accrual for part-time permanent employees will be prorated according to the
number of hours worked per week.
• For the purpose of hiring new employees. management has the right to set the vacation
accrual rate based on experience
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5.3

Stck/Bereav ;.,p .:' ,· t
Full-time and Permanent Part-time employees, except elected officials, are eligible to earn sick
leave. For employees who are members of a bargaining unit, specific provisions regarding sick
leave accumulation. use, transfer, and payment upon separation of employment, are covered in
the City's various collective bargaining agreements. Part-time employees earn sick leave and
bereavement leave that is prorated based on the number of hours they are scheduled to work.
For non- union employees (unaffiliated), full - time employees shall accumulate sick leave with pay
at the rate of 4.6 hours for each eighty (80) hours in paid status. Accumulation of sick leave shall
be unlimited.
Employees (whether affiliated or unaffiliated). may use sick leave for:
•
•
•
•

His/her own illness, pregnancy, injury, or exposure to contagious disease;
Attendance upon members of his/her household whose illness or injury requires the care
of the employee if no other competent adult is living in the household; or
A death in the employee's immediate family. Please refer to your perspective bargaining
agreement or ordinance for the allowable number of bereavement days.
An employee who has a sick leave absence in excess of three consecutive work days must
present a Return to Work slip from their Medical Provider for the absence.

As used in this section, the term ''household" shall mean two or more persons living together in a
single dwelling unit The term "immediate family" shall mean husband. wife. child, step-child,
parent. step-parent, grandparent, mother-in-law, father-in-law. brother or sister of the employee.
The department head may require reasonable evidence to support a claim for sick leave and shall,
in case of absence of multiple days. require a doctor"s certificate to justify the absence (per the
individuals bargaining agreement).
The number of bereavement leave days is determined by the employee's bargaining agreement.
Bereavement leave may be used in the event of death in the employee's immediate family; in
certain circumstances. the employee's division or department head may authorize more time off
using sick leave. For unaffiliated employees, three (3) days leave per occurrence may be used in
the event of a death in the employee's immediate family; in certain circumstances, the employee's
division or department head may authorize more time off using sick leave

TERMINATION OF EMPLOYMENT & SICK LEAVE PAYOUT
Full-time and permanent part-time employees with ten (10) full years or more of service may elect
at retirement to be paid in cash for one-third of the value of his/her accrued sick leave credit. Such
payment will be made at the employee's rate of pay at the time of retirement. Payment for sick
leave on this basis shall be considered to eliminate all sick leave credit accrued by the employee
and shall be made only once to any employee. The maximum payment shall be 500 hours.
Employees can refer to their perspective bargaining agreement for maximum hours to be paid.
In the event that an employee dies or Is permanently disabled whi le a current employee of the City.
the ten (10) year service requirement shall be waived, and payment shall be made to the estate of
the deceased
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SICK LEAVE RECIPROCITY
Full-time and permanent part-time employees with more than one (1) year of service may have the
option of receiving payment in cash for unused sick leave hours at the end of the payroll year,
provided such employee was entitled to sick leave pay during said payroll year and provided further
that the employee was in said paid status.
•
•

•
•
•

Union employees can refer to their perspective bargaining agreement for other stipulations
concerning hours worked and calculation tables.
Unaffiliated employees will be entitled to sick leave benefits during said payroll year and
provided further that the employee was in paid status, based on the following calculation
tables:

For the purpose of sick leave reciprocity computation, any disallowance of sick leave credit
shall be considered as hours of sick leave taken during the year
Appointed Salary employees shall not be eligible to receive sick leave reciprocity payments
Eligible full-time employees may elect to receive the Sick Leave Reciprocity Payment or
they may retain their accrued sick leave hours. The number of reciprocity hours paid each
employee will be subtracted from his/her total accrued sick leave. The reciprocity payment
shall be made at the employee's hourly rate in effect on the last day of the final pay period
of the previous year.
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5.4

Sick Leave Donation
The City of Zanesville recogn;zes that on rare occasions an employee may not have sufficient sick
leave accruals to cover a long-term illness or serious injury To address such occasions the City
finds 1t appropriate that other unaffiliated employees be allowed to donate some of their sick leave
hours to other injured/Ill unaffiliated employees within the parameters of this guideline For
employees who are members of a bargaining unit specific prov1s1ons regarding sick leave donation
are covered in their specific collective barga1nmg agreements
City employees (unaffiliated & affiliated) may donate up to forty (40) hours annually of accrued but
unused sick time to another employee of the City, per these guidelines.
The City retains the right to approve the sick leave donation . Sick leave donations are intended for
those individuals who need time to recover. Sick leave donation is not intended nor may be used
for extending the service time of the employee. Employees may not be on disability or otherwise
separated during the time requested for sick leave donation. Employees using donated sick leave
will not accrue sick or other leaves.
In order to donate sick leave hours, employees must meet the following requirements:
• Donating employees must maintain a balance of 200 hours of sick leave.
• Donations must be in no less than four-hour increments.
• Employees may donate up to a maximum of 40 hours in one calendar year.
•
Donations may only be made to eligible recipients as defined in this guideline.
In order to receive donated sick leave hours, employees must meet the following requirements:
• All leave type balances must be depleted.
• Must currently be off work for a qualifying serious health condition as defined by the Family
Medical Leave Act (FMLA).
Unaffiliated employees wishing to donate must complete a Sick Leave Donation Request and
Authorization Form , indicating the number of hours they wish to donate and the date and time of
the donation. Please contact the Treasurers Office or Human Resources for the Sick Leave
Donation and Authorization form .
Donated hours will be used by the recipient according to the date and time in which they were
donated - first hours donated will be first hours used. This information will be forwarded to the
Treasurer's Office to ensure time banks are updated accordingly for the employee receiving and
the employee(s) donating.

Guidelines
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

All donations are on a voluntary basis. No employee is guaranteed any donations.
Sick leave hours are to be donated and used with no regard to the pay rate of the donor or the
recipient.
Donated sick leave hours will not be available for any cash out, including retirement cash out.
Recipients may not "bank" or save any unused donated hours.
Donated hours will not count against the employees Sick Leave Reciprocity eligibility.
Unused donated hours will not be returned to the donating employee.
Unused donated hours will be cleared from the donor employee's time bank upon their return
to work.
Recipients may not pay back hours to those who donated to them.
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5.5

Personal Leave of Absence

Division/Department heads shall have the authority to approve vacation, sick leave, and jury duty.
Such leaves of absence shall be requested by the employee, approved by the department head,
and reported to the proper city official. Personal Leaves of absence for other purposes, with or
without pay, shall be authorized by the Civil Service Commission on recommendation of the proper
city official or Human Resources. Employees shall not accrue vacation or sick leave while on a
personal leave of absence without pay.
An employee may be granted a Personal Leave of Absence without pay for a period not to
exceed twelve (12) months. Leave may be granted for advanced study or other important
purposes

5.6

Family & Medical Leave Act (FMLA)
The City of Zanesville is committed to compliance with the Family and Medical Leave Act of 1993
(the "FMLA"). The purpose of this policy is to provide employees with a basic understanding of their
rights and obligations under the FMLA
Employees are responsible for requesting leave under the FMLA, which is subject to the provisions
and standards for FMLA leave. The City reserves the right to designate FMLA leave as needed to
any eligible employee.
General Provisions

The FMLA is intended "to balance the demands of the workplace with the needs of families.·· It
allows eligible employees to take up to 12 work weeks of unpaid leave during any 12-month period
to attend to the serious health condition for:
,..
,

.,..
,.,

Birth of the employee's child and to care for the newborn. Leave for this purpose must
conclude within 12 months of the birth of the child;
Placement with the employee of a son or daughter for adoption or foste r care and to care
for the newly placed child. Leave for this purpose must conclude within 12 months of the
placement of the child;
Care for the employee's spouse, son, daughter or parent with a serious health condition;
and
A serious health condition that prevents the employee from performing the essential
functions of his or her job

A "serious health condition·· is an illness, injury, impairment. or physical or mental condition that

involves either an overnight stay or in-patient care in a medical care facility, or continuing treatment
by a health care provider for a condition that either prevents the employee from performing the
functions of the employee's job, or prevents the qualified family member from participating in school
or other daily activities.
Subject to certain conditions, the continuing treatment requirement may be met by a period of
incapacity of more than 3 consecutive calendar days combined with at least 2 visits to a health care
provider or one visit and a regimen of continuing treatment, or incapacity due to pregnancy, or
incapacity due to a chronic condition. Other conditions may meet the definition of continuing
treatment.
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Eligibility Requirements for All FMLA Leaves

To be eligible for FMLA leave, an employee must have been employed by the employer at least 12
months, and worked at least 1,250 hours over the past 12 months, and work at a location where
the employer employs 50 or more employees within 75 miles.
The 12-month period is calculated by a "rolling" 12-month window, measured backwards from the
date that the employee uses FMLA Leave. The only exception is when FMLA Leave is requested
for one of the "Covered Servicemember" situations listed below. In this situation , the 12-month
period begins on the first day that leave is taken to care for the covered service member, and ends
12 months after that date.

If An Employee and HisfHer Spouse Both Work for the City
If an employee and his or her spouse are both employed by the City, they are each separately
entitled to 12 workweeks of leave within a 12-month period if the leave is needed due to the
employee's own serious health condition or that of the spouse or child . However. the spouses are
jointly entitled to a combined total of 12 workweeks of leave to care for the birth or placement of a
child , to care for a parent with a serious health condition , or for leave due to any of the "Military
Obligations" situations . The spouses are also jointly entitled to a combined total of 26 workweeks
of leave during a single 12-month period in any of the "Covered Servicemember" situations.
Requests for FMLA Leave, Medical Certification
An employee who wishes to take FMLA Leave must contact Human Resources, obtain the required
leave request form and any required certifications (see below) , and return these forms signed and
completed to Human Resources at least 30 days before the day that the FMLA Leave is to start.

Employees who request FMLA Leave are responsible and will be required to provide a completed
and signed certification form that demonstrates the employee's eligibility for FMLA Leave.
If the employee is requesting leave for one of the "Military Obligations" situations , the employee will
also be required to provide a copy of the military member's active duty orders or other
documentation issued by the military which indicates that the military member is on covered activity
duty or a call to covered active duty status, and the dates of the military member's covered active
duty service.
Blank certification forms are available from Human Resources. The type of form needed will depend
on the reason for the FMLA Leave.
Employees must return the completed certification form to Human Resources within 15 days, or as
soon as practicable. Failure of employees to timely return forms may result in the delay of FMLA
Leave. Failure of employees to timely return certification forms or medical certifications may result
in denial of leave and discipline action as a result of the absence.
Employees will be notified if leave used by the employee will be designated as FMLA Leave and
the amount of leave counted against the employee's FMLA Leave.
If the need for FMLA Leave was unforeseeable , the employee must submit these signed and
completed forms to Human Resources as soon as practicable .
Employees must provide sufficient information to determine if the leave may qualify for FMLA Leave
and the anticipated timing and duration of the leave. Sufficient information may include that the
employee is unable to perform their essential job functions , the family member is unable to perform
daily activities, the need for hospitalization or continuing treatment by a health care provider, or
circumstances supporting the need for military family leave . Employees also must indicate if the
requested leave is for a reason for which FMLA Leave was previously taken or certified to determine
the remaining amount of FMLA Leave , if any.
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Employees will also be required to submit medical certification for their own or family member's
serious health condition. The medical certification must be signed by the health care provider, on
forms provided by Human Resources. Second or third certifications and periodic recertification
may also be required . Employees requesting leave will be informed whether they are eligible under
the FMLA, the reason for ineligibility if applicable, any additional information required , and their
rights and responsibilities.
Intermittent or Reduced-Schedule FMLA Leave
Employees may take intermittent or reduced schedule leave, when medically necessary, for leaves
of absences taken in connection with the employee's own serious health condition or that of a
spouse, son, daughter, or parent; or under one of the "Military Obligations" or "Covered
Servicemember" situations.

Employees who take intermittent or reduced schedule leave may be reassigned or may be required
to transfer temporarily to an alternate position (with equivalent pay and benefits) which better
accommodates recurring periods of leave.
Employees who take intermittent leave for planned medical treatment may also be required to
schedule the treatment so as not to unduly disrupt operations .
Use of Sick, Vacation, Compensatory Leave and Personal Days during FMLA Leave
Under the FMLA, Family Medical Leave generally is unpaid. If an employee has unused sick,
vacation , compensatory leave or personal days before the start of a FMLA Leave, the employee
must use those days as part of his or her FMLA Leave. This means that any unused sick, vacation,
compensatory leave and personal days will run concurrently with unpaid FMLA Leave and will count
against the employee's 12-week (or 26-week covered servicemember) entitlement. Sick time must
be used before any other form of paid time off.

Employees absent due to work-related illness or injury that qualifies as a serious health condition
will have the absence counted as FMLA Leave.
As long as the employee's FMLA Leave is approved, no additional forms are necessary to receive
payment for vacation/personal days when used in this circumstance.
After the employee exhausts all remaining unused sick , vacation, compensatory leave and personal
days. the remainder of the employee's FMLA Leave will be unpaid .
Additional Leave after Exhaustion of FMLA Leave
After an employee's FMLA Leave is exhausted a request for unpaid leaves of absence may be
submitted, which is discretionary. Return from the unpaid leave of absence will be to positions
determined if available.
Separation at Expiration of FMLA Leave
Employees not able to return to work and perform the duties of their position at the expiration of
their FMLA Leave, or the extension by an unpaid disability leave, may, at the discretion of the
Employer, be discharged as an involuntary separation, involuntary disability separation or, if eligible
under the retirement systems, be retired under the involuntary retirement provisions.
Benefits During Leave
Employees will not accrue leave (sick, leave, etc.) during unpaid periods of FMLA Leave or
additional unpaid leaves granted following the expiration of the FMLA Leave.
Health Insurance during FMLA Leave
During a Family and Medical Leave, the employee's existing coverage under the group health
benefit plan will be maintained in the same manner as if the employee was actively working , but
the employee will be required to pay his or her share of the cost of coverage, if any, as if he or she
was actively at work.
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The City of Zanesville will maintain the employee's benefits, including health, dental , and eye while
on an FMLA leave of absence. Additionally, while the employee is on "paid status", their medical
premiums will continue to be deducted for their paycheck. If an employee goes into an unpaid
status, it will be the employee's responsibility to pay their share of the health insurance premium
directly to the City. If applicable, the employee must continue to pay their portion of the benefits,
which may be made by check or money order to the City of Zanesville and submitted to the Auditors
Office. If the employee fails to pay their portion of the benefits for more than 30 days, the employee
and their beneficiaries' coverage(s) will be terminated , and the employee will be offered COBRA to
continue benefits, excluding life and disability insurance. The City may recover the employee's
share of any premium payments missed by the employee for any FMLA leave period during which
the employer maintains health coverage by paying the employee's share after the prem ium
payment is missed.
Returning From FMLA Leave, Fitness for Duty Statement
When an employee returns from FMLA Leave, he or she will be given the same or an equivalent
position and reinstated to all benefits as before the leave. However, the employee will have no
greater rights to reinstatement or to other benefits and conditions of employment than if the
employee had been continuously employed during the FMLA Leave period , such as layoffs.
In addition, if the FMLA Leave was due to the employee's own health condition, the employee may
be required to provide a fitness-for-duty certification before returning to work. Employees will not
be required to submit to a fitness-for-duty examination for each intermittent or reduced schedule
leave absence, but may require a fitness-for-duty certification or certification of the serious health
condition once every 30 days if the employee is taking intermittent and reduced schedule leave, or
if reasonable safety concerns exist regarding the employee's ability to perform the employee's
duties.
Employees will not be permitted to "make up" days or hours that are missed on account of taking
FMLA Leave.
Taking FMLA Leave Due to a Family Member's Military Obligations
Employees are eligible for up to 12 workweeks of unpaid FMLA Leave during a single 12-month
period in the event of a qualifying exigency arising out of the fact that the employee's spouse, son,
daughter or parent is a military member and is on or has been called to covered active duty service
in the Armed Forces of the United States in support of a contingency operation and that requ ires
deployment to a foreign country.
A "qualifying exigency" may exist in the event of a short notice deployment, or if leave is needed to
attend to one or more of the following situations:
,. military events and related activities
-,, childcare and school activities
financial and legal arrangements

•

;,.
',
,.-

r

counseling
rest and recuperation, up to a maximum of 15 calendar days
post-deployment activities
parental care, in the event that the military member's parent is incapable of self-care and
care such as arranging for alternative care, or providing care on an immediate need basis,
or admitting or transferring the parent to a care facility, or attending meetings with staff at
a care facility, is necessitated by the military member's active duty
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Taking FMLA Leave to Care for a Covered Servicemember
The City will provide up to 26 workweeks of unpaid FMLA Leave during a single 12-month period
for an employee who is the spouse, son , daughter, parent, or next of kin of a covered
servicemember, if the covered servicemember is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation ,
therapy, is in outpatient status, or is on the temporary disability retired list due to a serious injury or
illness.

A "covered servicemember'' means someone who is either:
• A current member of the Armed Forces, including a member of the National Guard or
Reserves, who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation, or therapy, is otherwise
in outpatient status; or is otherwise on the temporary disability retired list, for a serious
injury or illness; or
• A veteran who is undergoing medical treatment, recuperation or therapy for a serious
injury or illness. The veteran must be someone who was a member of the Armed
Forces (including a member of the National Guard or Reserves), and who was
discharged or released under conditions other than dishonorable at any time during
the 5-year period prior to the first day that the employee in question takes FMLA Leave.
In addition , FMLA Leave to care for the veteran must begin no later than 5 years from
the veteran 's previous active duty service.
FMLA Leave for this purpose is available only if the covered servicemember has incurred a
"serious injury or illness."
•

•

In the case of a current member of the Armed forces (including a member of the National
Guard or Reserves), a "serious injury or illness" means an injury or illness that was incurred
in the line of duty on active duty, or that existed before the beginning of active duty and
was aggravated by service in the line of duty on active duty, and that may render the
member medically unfit to perform the duties of the member's office, grade, rank or rating.
In the case of a veteran, a "serious injury or illness" means an injury or illness that was
incurred by the member in the line of duty on active duty in the Armed Forces (or existed
before the beginning of the veteran 's active duty and was aggravated by service in the line
of duty on active duty in the Armed Forces) and manifested itself before or after the member
became a veteran, and that either: (a) is a continuation of a serious injury or illness that
was incurred or aggravated when the veteran was a member of the Armed Forces and
rendered the servicemember unable to perform the duties of the servicemember's office,
grade, rank, or rating; or (b) a physical or mental condition for which the veteran has
received a VA Service-Related Disability Rating (VASRD) of 50% or greater, which was
based at least in part on the condition precipitating the need for leave; or (c) a physical or
mental condition that substantially impairs the veteran's ability to secure or follow a
substantially gainful occupation by reason of a disability or disabilities related to military
service, or would do so absent treatment; or (d) an injury, including a psychological injury,
on the basis of which the covered veteran has been enrolled in the VA's Program of
Comprehensive Assistance for Family Caregivers.
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Limitation on Reinstatement for Certain Key Employees
Certain ''key employees" may be denied reinstatement if necessary to prevent substantial and
grievous economic injury to operations. A "key employee" is a salaried eligible employee who is
among the highest paid 10% of all employees.
An employee will be advised at the time of a request for, or commencement of, FMLA Leave, or as
soon thereafter as is practicable, that he/she qualifies as a key employee and that reinstatement
may be denied if substantial and grievous economic injury to its operations would occur if the
employee elects not to return to employment.
Outside Work Prohibited, Conduct Inconsistent
Employees are prohibited from engaging in any work or activity of any kind that is inconsistent with
the employee's condition while on an approved FMLA Leave. Employees may be disciplined for
engaging in outside employment or activity inconsistent with the employee's condition during the
FMLA Leave. Employees on FMLA Leave are subject to the standards of conduct of an employee
and all other policies and procedures for employment.
Discrimination Prohibited
Discrimination, harassment or retaliation based on, or interference with any employee's exercise
of his or her rights under the FMLA, is prohibited. Employees are encouraged to inform Human
Resources of any such conduct directed at them , or other employees, as a result of the use of
FMLA Leave by the employee or other employees.
Questions about Family and Medical Leave
Any questions regarding this policy, including questions about eligibility for FMLA Leave and the
requirements for taking FMLA Leave, may be directed to Human Resources.

5.7

Jury Duty

Employees shall be granted a leave of absence with pay any time they are required to report for
jury duty or jury service. In order to receive payment from the City, the employee must furnish a
certificate of service and a statement of jury duty compensation signed by the Clerk of Courts The
duty compensation is the payment the employee received for Jury Duty.
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6
6.1

Employee Conduct, Responsibility, Discipline
Employee Standards of Conduct & Responsibilities

As public employees everyone who works for the City is responsible to the public. As such public
employees are held by the public to a higher standard of ethical conduct. These rules will provide
guidance for City employees. but are not intended to cover every situation. Common sense should
also be considered.
The following standards apply to all employees and have been established to ensure:

•
•
•
•

Employees conduct themselves in a mature, responsible and professional manner during
work hours or while on City premises.
Employees work in an efficient, conscientious and diligent manner.
Employees work in a safe environment, without risk to their health or safety, or the health
and safety of others.
That the rights of all employees are protected and honored.

The following outlines the expectations of all employees with respect to appropriate behavior and
conduct. In addition to these rules, employees are also required to follow any work rules, policies
or procedures established by their respective departments or divisions. An employee in violation
of any of these work rules may be subject to disciplinary action. including suspension or termination,
dependent upon the seriousness of the offense. the employee·s disciplinary history and any other
relevant factors. These expectations include all other standards of conduct in this handbook, and
all other policies and rules issued.
Commitment to Service
Employees are expected to act in a professional and courteous manner. Conduct that is abusive ,
discourteous, neglectful. purposefully performed incorrectly and against policy or standard
procedure, or not performed when required will not be tolerated. Further, speech that is disparaging
of the City, its officers, management or fellow employees and is not constitutionally protected shall
not be tolerated. To be constitutionally protected, speech must a) address a matter of public
concern, and b) outweigh any governmental interests. Speech that is purely job related or of purely
personal interest is not a matter of public concern.
Activities Outside of Work
While the City recognizes that it cannot control, the actions of employees while away from work.
misconduct while not on duty that discredits the employee·s or the City's reputation. interferes with
the ability to provide services to the public, or otherwise violates any established policy, procedure
or agreement will not be tolerated. An employee who is arrested for any criminal offense which
arrest could affect their ability to do their job (e.g., OVI) must report such arrest immediately to
his/her supervisor. The City will evaluate the impact that the arrest and/or subsequent conviction
has on its operations and consider any applicable employment decisions based on that impact.
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6.2

Discipline Reasons
Employees in the classified civil service. upon completion of their probationary period, shall not be
disciplined other than as set forth in Ohro Revised Code 124.34. Employees in the classified service
may be disciplined for any of the following:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Incompetency
Inefficiency
Dishonesty
Drunkenness
Immoral conduct
Insubordination
Discourteous treatment of the public
Neglect of duty
Violation of work rules or policies of the City, or City official for whom the employee
works.
Violation of Chapter 124 of the Ohio Revised Code or municipal civil service rules
Any other failure of good behavior
Any other acts of misfeasance, malfeasance, or nonfeasance in his job or conviction of a
felony

Employees in the unclassified civil service and serve at the pleasure of the Appointing Authority,
are considered employees at-will, and may be disciplined without notice for any reason. If you are
a part of a bargaining unit, please refer to your agreement regarding discipline.

6.3

Discipline Procedure - Pre-Disciplinary C ::, nference
Discipline involving a reduction in pay, demotion, suspension or removal/termination of a classified
civil service employee entitles the employee to a pre-disciplinary conference as set forth herein.
All other discipline may be imposed without a pre-disciplinary conference.
Before imposing a reduction in pay, demotion, suspension or removal/termination to a classified
civil service employee, the employer shall hold a pre-disciplinary conference with the employee.
The pre-disciplinary conference will be conducted by a neutral supervisor who will be selected by
the appointing authority, or his/her designee, from those supervisors not directly in the chain of
command of the employee. At the pre-disciplinary conference the appointing authority will explain
the charges against the employee and permit the employee the opportunity to respond to the
charges. The employee has the right to be accompanied at the pre-disciplinary conference by a
representative of his own choosing. The pre-disciplinary conference will be scheduled as promptly
as possible by the appointing authority. The employer may impose reasonable rules on the length
of the pre-disciplinary conference and the conduct of the participants. The employer may tape
record the pre-disciplinary conference, as may the employee or his representative. If the employer
determines that the employee's continued employment prior to the conference poses a danger to
persons or property or a threat of disrupting operations, the employee may be placed on
administrative leave with or without pay pending the pre-disciplinary conference to determine the
final disciplinary action.
Prior to the pre-disciplinary conference, the employer shall provide to the employee a list of alleged
improper conduct and a summary of the evidence concerning the disciplinary charges. Generally,
this information will be provided to the employee at least twenty-four (24) hours before the predisciplinary conference.
The employee may waive the disciplinary conference. A failure to attend the pre-disciplinary
conference constitutes a waiver of the pre-disciplinary conference
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At the pre-disciplinary conference, the employee will be given an opportunity to respond to the
allegations. The employee does not have the right to call or cross-examine witnesses.
Upon completion of the pre-disciplinary conference the neutral supervisor shall prepare a written
report within twelve (12) calendar days and provide a copy to the employee. Thereafter, the
appointing authority or his/her designee shall determine the appropriate discipline, if any. The
employee will be notified of the disciplinary action taken.
When imposing a demotion, reduction in pay, suspension or fine of forty (40) or more work hours
in the case of an employee exempt from the payment of overtime compensation, a suspension of
twenty-four (24} or more work hours in the case of an employee required to be paid overtime
compensation, demotion, or removal/termination of a classified employee, the appointing authority
or her/his designee shall sign a written order of reduction, suspension or removal/termination. The
order shall state the reasons for the disciplinary action. The appointing authority or her/his designee
shall furnish a copy of the order to the employee.
These provisions on discipline and removal do not apply to employees in the unclassified service.
If you are a part of a bargaining unit. please refer to your agreement regarding discipline.

6.4

Administrative Leave
The appointing authority may, at his or her discretion. place any employee of the City on
administrative leave, with or without pay, when the appointing authority has probable cause to
believe that a serious violation or offense has occurred. that could ultimately lead to termination.
and pending any investigation into any alleged violation and/or resolution of any related court
proceedings.
The length of any administrative leave, with or without pay. shall be determined by the appointing
authority. who shall inform the employee of such leave in writing prior to any such leave taking
effect.
Should an employee be placed on administrative leave without pay, and subsequently be found
innocent of the alleged charges of misconduct and/or related court proceedings, said employee will
be compensated as if he/she had worked for the time spent on administrative leave without pay.
The City of Zanesville will continue to pay its portion of the cost of the employee's benefits, including
health, dental , and eye while on Administrative Leave. While on an unpaid Administrative Leave,
it will be the employee·s responsibility to pay their share of the health insurance premium directly
to the City.
Any employee of the City may also be placed on administrative leave with pay when the appointing
authority determines such action to be necessary for the safety of the employee or for the effective
administration of City operations.
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6.5

Discipline Action an _: ? . 1a1tIes

All decisions regarding disciplinary action will be at the sole discretion of the City. The types of
discipline to which employees may be subject include but are not limited to: (1) oral warning; (2)
written warning; (3) suspension (unpaid or paid); and (4) termination. While discipline may be
progressive in nature, the City has the sole discretion to implement any type of discipline in
accordance with factors such as the seriousness and frequency of the violation and previous
discipline. Records of disciplinary action shall remain in the employee's personnel file but shall
only be considered, in connection with subsequent disciplinary action. Individuals should refer to
their collective bargaining agreements concerning time limits of disciplinary action.
Notwithstanding the foregoing. the employer may consider an employee's entire employment and
disciplinary history in determining the appropriate discipline to be imposed upon the employee.

6.6

Prohibited Behavio
Prohibited Behavior

It is the policy of the City that certain types of behavior are inappropriate and. therefore, are
prohibited. Behaviors and conduct set forth in the following Groups are in violation of City policy
and subject an employee to discipline. Such behaviors and conduct may, in addition and
independently, constitute additional grounds for disciplinary action under other rules and policies
as well as standards of conduct expected of public employees.
Prohibited behaviors and conduct are grouped according to seriousness of the offense, with Group
Ill being the most serious. The Group within which an offense falls provides a beginning point for
determining disciplinary action. Discipline is progressive regardless of the Group in which a current
or previous offense falls. Furthermore. behaviors and conduct not listed in any Group may still
constitute grounds for disciplinary action. Such behavior or conduct may be subject to discipline
under one or more of the grounds set forth in Section 6.2. Alternatively, behaviors and conduct not
specifically listed in any Group may be considered as being in the Group in which the most similar
behavior or conduct is found.
Discipline for prohibited behaviors and conduct shall be imposed based upon the facts of the
offense including, but not limited to, the type of offense. the nature of the offense, the duration or
frequency of the offense, any harm to persons or damage to property or risk thereof resulting from
the offense and the extent thereof. and the employee's disciplinary history.
In addition, other City policies and procedures. such as the Drug Free Workplace Policy, may
contain specific discipline for violations. Employee behavior or conduct violating such policies shall
be addressed in accordance with such policies and. generally. shall not be subject to this Section .
However, any such violation shall be considered an offense for the purposes of the progressive
system of discipline.
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Group I Offense

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Failure to timely "report off' work for any absence.
Failure to commence duties at the beginning of the work period , or leaving work prior to
the end of the work period.
Leaving the job or work area during the regular working hours without authorization .
Making preparations to leave work without specific prior authorization before the lunch
period , or for any official break time, or before the specified quitting time.
Leaving post of continuous operations prior to being relieved by employee of incoming
shift.
Neglect or carelessness in signing in or out.
Unauthorized absence from work.
Creating or contributing to unsanitary or unsafe conditions, or poor housekeeping.
Distracting the attention of others, unnecessary shouting demonstration, or otherwise
causing disruption on the job.
Mischief, horseplay, wrestling , or other undesirable conduct, including use of profane or
abusive language.
Tardiness in reporting to work .
Failure to cooperate with other employees as required by job duties.
Failure to exercise reasonable care during the use of City property or equipment.
Use of possession of another employee's working equipment without authorization.
Neglect or carelessness in observance of official safety rules , or disregard of common
safety practices.
Failure to observe department rules.
Obligating the City for any expense, service, or performance without authorization.
Failure to report accidents, injury or equipment damage.
Disregarding job duties by neglect of work, or reading for pleasure during working hours.
Unsatisfactory work or failure to maintain required standard of performance.
Unauthorized use of telephone for other than business purposes.

Group II Offenses

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Any Group I offense that results in harm to persons or damage to property, or risk thereof,
or causes the Employer to incur additional costs.
Unauthorized absence from work for three (3) days or more.
Discourteous treatment of the public.
Reporting for work or working while unfit for duty.
Violation of or failure to comply with any City rule, regulation or policy.
Conduct violating morality or common decency.
Unauthorized use of City property or equipment, or unsafe use or failure to use prescribed
safety equipment, or failure to ensure proper use of prescribed safety equipment and/or
adherence to safety practices and procedures.
Performing private work on City time.
Failure to sign in or out when required .
Failure to make required reports.
Failure to report for overtime work without good reason after being scheduled to work
according to overtime policy.
Solicitation on City premises without authorization.
The making or publishing of false, vicious or malicious statements concerning employees,
supervisors, the City, or its operations.
Refusing to give testimony when accidents are being investigated.
Unauthorized posting or removal of notices or signs from bulletin boards.
Distributing or posting written or printed matter of any description on City premises unless
authorized
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•
•
•
•

Unauthorized presence on City property.
Willful disregard of department rules .
Threatening , intimidating , coercing , or interfering with subordinates or other employees.
Sleeping during hours of work. (This policy does not apply to employees in the Fire
Department.)
Misfeasance, Nonfeasance.
Failure to report safety hazards.

•
•

Group Ill Offenses
•
•

•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

•

Any Group I or Group II offense that results in serious harm to persons or serious damage to property ,
or risk thereof, or causes the Employer to incur additional costs.
Wanton or willful neglect in the performance of ass igned duties , or in the care , use, or custody of any
City property or equipment. Abuse, deliberate, or negligent destruction in any manner of City
property, tools , equ ipment, or the property of employees.
Signing or altering other employees' time sheets/time cards , or unauthorized altering of own time
sheet/time card.
Unauthorized absence from work jeopardizing the health and safety of other employees or citizens
and/or interfering with necessary City operations.
Falsifying testimony when accidents are being investigated , falsifying or assisting in falsifying or
destroying any City records, including work performance reports; or giving false information or
withhold ing pertine nt information called for in making application for employment.
Making fa lse claims or misrepresentation in an attempt to obtain any City benefit.
Gambling during working hou rs.
Stealing or similar conduct, including destruction or vandalism .
The illegal use of narcotics/controlled substances or the sale of na rcotics/controlled substances .
Use of abusive or threatening language, gestures or behavior toward supervisors, coworkers or the
public.
Abusing, fighting , or attempting injury to other employees, supervisors , or persons, inclusive of sexual
harassment.
Carrying or possession of firearms , explosives, or weapons on City property at any time without
proper authorization .
Knowingly concealing a communicable disease, such as TB , which may endanger other employees .
Misuse, removal or improper release of City records or information without prior authorization .
Instigating, leading , or participating in any illega l walkout, strike , sit-down, stand-in , refusal to return
to work at the scheduled time for the scheduled shift, or other concerted curtailment, restriction , or
interference with work in or about the City's work stations.
Dishonesty or any dishonest action .
Insubordination by refusing to perform assigned work or to comply with written or verbal instruction
of the supervisor.
Giving false testimony or statements during a complaint, grievance , or internal investigation or
hearing.
Malfeasance.
Failure to promptly report a traffic violation, traffic related violation , or chargeable accident.
Willful failu re to comply with/enforce safety practices and procedures resulting in a safety hazard to
self, co-workers, and/or the general public.
Being convicted of a "felony" within the meaning of R.C. 124.34, even if prior discipline has been
issued for the underlying conduct.
Failure to abide by or comply with any rule, regulation , policy, procedure , directive or instruction
resulting in damage or inj ury to or risk of damage or inj ury to City property, other employees or the
general public.
Engaging in conduct towards other City employees or the general publ ic constituting harassment
based on sex, sexual orientation , race , color, creed , religion or national origin .
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6.7

Classified Employee Appeals
Any classified unaffiliated employee who desires to appeal a disciplinary action resulting in
discharge, suspension of more than twenty four (24) hours pay, a demotion, or layoff, shall appeal
such disciplinary action to the Civil Service Commission. Classified, unaffiliated employees who
are exempt from the payment of overtime under the law may appeal discipline listed in the previous
sentence when the discipline is more than forty (40) hours.
Any appeal filed by any classified unaffiliated employee of the City shall be brought within ten (10)
calendar days of the employee being served with the notice of such personnel action by filing a
Notice of Appeal with the Civil Service Employment Coordinator of the Civil Service Commission.
Affiliated employees should refer to their Collective Bargaining Agreement regarding appealing a
disciplinary action.
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7

Employee Benefits
Full - time and permanent part-time City employees are eligible for benefits defined in this Section and
include a variety of insurance programs. Contact the Human Resources Manager with any questions
you may have on these plans.

7.1

Ordinance and Collective Bargaining Agreement
The following benefits are provided in either City Ordinance or union collective bargaining
agreements Any questions regarding application or eligibility for these benefits listed should be
directed to the Human Resource Manager.

.
•
•
•

•

•
•
•
7.2

Holidays
Personal Days
Vacation Leave
Sick Leave
Unpaid Leave of Absence
Injury Leave
Health Insurance
Mileage Reimbursement

Health Benefits (Insurance)
Each regular, full-time and permanent part-time employee working 20 or more hours per week is
eligible to enroll in the health insurance benefits plan offered by the City for its employees and their
eligible family members.
These benefits, which are administered through MedBen, include
medical, dental , eye and prescription insurance. New employees can enroll on day one. benefits
will be effective after on the first day of employment (note. new employees have 30 days to enroll
in the insurance plan. If an employee misses the 30 day cut off, they will have to wait until open
enrollment to enroll in the benefits}.
Cost for the insurance (Single/Family) will be communicated to new employees during new hire
orientation.
If the spouse of a city employee is employed and is eligible for employer-sponsored health
coverage with their employer, the spouse must enroll in that particular health plan. If the spouse
cannot obtain coverage through their employer until certain date or open enrollment period, the
spouse will be covered under the City"s plan until he or she can obtain coverage through their
employer. Employees whose spouse has health insurance coverage through an employer shall
receive up to one thousand five hundred dollars ($1,500) per year stipend. If an employee·s spouse
would be required to pay more than 50% of the insurance premium through their employer, they
may be granted a waiver and allowed to stay on the City's plan as a primary member. Spouses
can also remain on the City's plan under secondary coverage.
CHANGE IN FAMILY STATUS - Changes to your health care coverage may only be made during Open
Enrollment (offered annually). unless you have a change in your family status. A change in family status means
to gain/lose a dependent. or loss of other coverage. Enrollment in such instances must be made within 31
days of the day of the event. (Refer to your Certificate of Coverage for more detailed information.) Employees
are responsible for notifying Human Resources within the 31-day time limit should a change in family status
occur. Employees failing to do so will be liable for back payments to the City for additional premiums paid by
the City on the employee ·s behalf
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The City shall establish a health care committee comprised of the Budget and Finance Director,
the Mayor, the law Director, one representative from City Council, two representatives from
A.F.S.C.M.E., two representatives from the F.O.P/O.L.C bargaining unit, one representative from
the 1.A.F.F. and one representative from the unaffiliated employees. This committee shall meet
regularly to review the content of the health care plan for the City and shall explore alternative
health care plans, cost saving measures, and proposed changes in current coverage before
changes are made.

While an employee is on Workers Compensation as a direct result of his/her employment with the
City, the City shall continue to pay his/her insurance premiums for up to one year, provided the
employee continues paying his/her share of the insurance cost.

7.3

life Insurance/Accidental Death & Dismemberment Insurance
On behalf of each full-time and permanent part-time employee of the City of Zanesville, the City
provides life insurance (Amounts are based on job title/division and is communicated during new
hire orientation). The City of Zanesville shall pay the entire cost of group life insurance policy for
each unaffiliated employee which may be concerted upon separation.
Eligible employees may also elect to purchase additional life Accidental Death & Dismemberment
insurance coverage. Such benefits shall be administered in accordance with the policy of the
current provider.
Such benefits shall be payable in addition to any termination pay which may be payable to the
employee's named beneficiary. In the event no beneficiary is named, the benefit shall be distributed
in accordance with the employee's last will and testament or the statute of descent and distribution
then in effect in the State of Ohio, whichever is applicable. Employees are advised to update their
beneficiary designations as changes occur.

7.4

Retirement Benefits (PERS/Police & Fire)
The Ohio Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (OPE RS) was created in 1935 to provide
retirement allowances for all State employees. Today the program provides retirement, disability
retirement and survivor benefit programs for public employees throughout the State. Certain Police
and Fire employees contribute to a similar plan, the Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund.
All City employees, being public employees, do not contribute to the Social Security System , but
are required to participate in the State·s retirement system. As a new employee. you will be sent a
member handbook from the appropriate retirement system that outlines the details concerning
membership, benefits, and health care. You will be required to complete a personal history form on
your first day of employment to become a member
ELECTED OFFICIALS. Membership in OPERS is optional for service as an elected official:
however. if you do not choose membership in OPERS. you must contribute to Social Security
Membership in OPERS as an elected official is required if you have an OPERS account through
previous elected service or if you are an age and service retiree from OPERS or another Ohio
retirement system.

As a new employee eligible for OPERS, you have the choice of selecting the retirement plan that
provides the features and benefits most suitable for your future financial needs. In order to select
the retirement plan most suitable for your needs, it is important you take the time to team the details
of each plan. The choices available include the traditional pension plan, which is a defined benefit
plan, a defined contribution plan and a combined defined benefit and defined contribution plan. For
specific information about these plans, visit the OPERS website at www.opers.org or see Human
Resources.
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As an employee, you contribute a percentage of your eligible earnings to your retirement plan
through a pre-tax payroll deduction. The City also contributes, on your behalf, a percentage of your
eligible earnings to your retirement plan. If you leave the City before retirement eligibility, you must
contact OPERS or the Ohio Police & Fire Pension Fund to discuss options for funds available to
you in your account. If you have questions regarding your OPERS/Police & Fire Pension
contributions or benefits, please contact Human Resources for assistance.

7.5

Deferred C Jmpensat1on
A 457(b) deferred compensation plan is a retirement plan created to allow public employees like
you to put aside money from each paycheck toward retirement. A deferred comp plan can help
bridge the gap between what you have in your pension and Social Security, and how much you'll
need in retirement.
Here are some frequently asked questions about deferred comp plans:
•

•

What sets a 457(b) apart from other retirement plans? A 457(b) may offer benefits other
retirement plans can't, like penalty-free withdrawals once you stop working for your public
sector employer.
What does tax-deferred mean? Basically, you don't pay income taxes on your deferred comp
plan contributions or earnings until you retire and/or begin to take payments from your account.
This may lower your taxable income now and in retirement. Withdrawals taken in retirement
are taxed as regular income.

The City has four deferred compensation providers you may choose to invest money with.
OHIO DEFERRED COMPENSATION
Ohio Deferred Compensation is a 457 plan. Public employees t"partic1pan1s··i contribute pre-tax money each
payday into a custodial trust account set up for them by the 457(b) plan, and invest that money. so that it can
grow tax-deferred. When a participant withdraws money from the plan. ifs taxed as ordinary income. You can
learn more about 457 plans and Ohio Deferred Compensation by visiting their website at ohio457.org or call
their service center at (877) 644-6457.

BUCKEYE DEFERRED COMP
The Buckeye Deferred Comp Plan (BUCKEY457 COM) has been available in Ohio since 2004 and has been
adopted by over 50 Ohio municipalities and the Ohio Association of Public Treasurers. Buckeye Deferred
Comp offers three different platform choices to manage deferred compensations investments. Choose from
3000+ investment options and get your portfolio professionally managed by a portfolio manager. There are
loan provisions with this plan
You can learn more about Bu ckeye Deferred Comp by visiting
www.buckey457.com or by calling (844) 662-9200.

OAPFF DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLANT
The OAPFF Deferred Comp Plan is a full-service plan available to all city employees. Serving the OAPFF 457
Deferred Compensation Plan as Investment Advisors is the entire team of knowledgeable dedicated financial
professionals of Palanca & Associates Wealth Management. You can !earn more by calling (614) 906-1514.

EQUI-VEST STRATEGIES/AXA EQUITABLE
EQUI-VEST Strategies is a group variable deferred annuity that can be used to fund a 403(b} plan It ts a long
term financial product that is designed for retirement purposes Its account value can be invested in a variety
of investment option. including stock and bond investment options.
To learn more about EQUI -VEST. visit www.axa.com or call (614) 975-7534

The City of Zanesville offers these tax-exempt savings benefits to all City Employees.
These plans accept payroll-deducted contributions for participant-directed investing and are
intended to help public employees meet long-term savings objectives. such as generating
retirement income.
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7.6

Longevity Pay
The City of Zanesville will grant longevity pay to permanent full-time and part-time unaffiliated
employees in accordance with the following schedule

Years of Service on
June 30

--~-

Longevity Pay

2% of Previous Annual Payroll Earning_s
3% of Previous Annual Payroll Earnings
43/oof Previous Annual Payroll Earnings
5% of Previous Annual Payroll Earnings
6% of Previous Annual Payroll Earnings

-~------

Employee who receive longevity pay from the City under the provisions of a labor agreement are
not eligible for the for the longevity pay described herein.
•
•
•

•

7.7

June 30 of each year shall be used to calculate years of service for longevity pay.
Payment shall be made in a lump sum during October of each year during a week when regular
payroll checks are not scheduled to be distributed.
Employees on the payroll as of June 30 will be entitled to a prorated share of longevity pay
even though they may terminate prior to October 1. This paragraph shall apply only to
terminations for those employees who have given a two weeks· notice and not used any benefit
pay during those two weeks.
For purposes of this section. "years of service" shall include all years of permanent employment
with the City of Zanesville. It shall not include employment with other governmental units.

Workers Compensation
The City of Zanesville strives to provide a safe and secure working environment for all employees.
When a work related injury or illness occurs (i .e. injuries and illnesses that arise out of, or are
incurred in the course of job related activities on behalf of the City), the City shall provide
appropriate medical care and treatment to the injured worker through its Workers' Compensation
Program.
The Human Resources Department is responsible for administering the City's Worker's
Compensation program.
Employee Responsibilities - Reporting an Injury
•
Immediately notify your supervisor. Your Supervisor will assess the situation, assist with
arranging proper medical care and begin the injury reporting process. No matter how minor
the injury may seem, it is required that you· report it. Promptly cooperate with your Supervisor
and the Claims Administrator in the completion of all relevant documents .
Supervisor Responsibilities - Reporting an Injury

•

Immediately assess the incident and assist the Employee in seeking appropriate medical care
or necessary treatment for any work-related injury. Provide the employee with the
Injury/Accident Report and the Injury Reporting Kit (only if they require medical attention other
than first aid) within 24 business hours. Complete a Supervisor Incident Investigation Report
and forward to Human Resources along with the Injury/ Accident Report. Obtain any witness
statements and forward to Human Resources along with Supervisor Incident Investigation
Report and Injury/Accident Report.
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When an injury requ ires medical attention . the City encourages the use of Designated Medical
Providers. These providers are familiar with the Workers Compensation process. At times, the
Employee may be required to see a provider selected by the City. According to Ohio's workers'
compensation laws, an injured employee may seek treatment from a physician of their choice who
is certified by the Ohio Bureau of Workers' Compensation (BWC).
Returning the Employee to Work -The Medical Provider must complete a Physician's Report of
Work Ability and provide it to the Employee and Claims Administrator. The Physician's Report of
Work Ability will indicate when the Employee can return to work and whether job modifications are
required to accommodate physical restrictions. The Employee will provide a copy of the Physician·s
Report of Work Ability to Human Resources.
Employees without restrictions can return to their usual work duties.
If the Medical Provider imposes work restrictions, the Supervisor and Human Resources will review
the job modifications that are required to comply with the restrictions. Every effort will be made to
accommodate the employee's restrictions, however there may be times it may not be possible due
to the restrictions and the employee's job description.
The City must be advised and continually updated if an employee continues to be absent due to a
work-related injury with an anticipated date of return to work. All requirements for reporting off work
must be followed. Employees are responsible for providing the City with their expected date of
return.
The City may establish a Wage Continuation Policy. Wage Continuation is not automatically
granted when an employee is injured. The City has the sole discretion whether or not to pay Wage
Continuation or have an injured worker go on Temporary Total Compensation. Wage Continuation
is not intended to last beyond a 12 week period, and if an injured worker is put on Wage
Continuation, the City may, at any time, terminate the Wage Continuation and have the injured
worker go on Temporary Total Compensation.
The injury or illness must be determined by the City to be compensable . Wage Continuation will be
paid only for those periods of lost time that otherwise would qualify the employee for receipt of
Workers' Compensation lost time benefits.
While an employee is on Workers Compensation as a direct result of his/her employment with the
City, the City shall continue to pay his/her insurance premiums for up to one year, provided the
employee continues paying his/her share of the insurance cost.
The City reserves the right to have the employee examined by a physician of its choice at City
expense to confirm the medical diagnosis and period of disability.

7.8

Tuition Reimbursement Program

n .e

The City of Zanesville is committed m t1,e ecucationai development :,f Ciry employees
T 1.. non
Re1mbursenierit Pr0gram has ::ieen des:gnated t~ promote co'ltnu1ng ed~1cat1cr oy of.e":-?;J
r'nanc1al ass•st3rce to emplo1ees for _oo -related co .... rses
-:-i-ie Clt:t of Zanesville r,ay '':),:nourse fi,11 -'.ime. reg.Jlar employees f;:ir ed1.,cat1or costs for coL: ses
approved oy the C:ty Tre a:::iprova1 fo r ·e1m bursem ent wtll be aepender: on :ri:! cou~se ard cs
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•

•
•

The City may reimburse employees a percentage based on the grade achieved and will cover
up to two (2) courses per term (quarter/semester) Payment will not be made for travel to and
from the course. time spent in class. study matenals purchased for the class. exam fees.
parking fees. meals and misc supplies.
The annual maximum benefit Is 52,400 00 per employee
Percentage reimbursement is as follows

UNDERGRADUATE
Grade
A

GRADUATE

Percentage

Grade

Percentage

90%
75%

A
B

90%
75%

B

-er~---

so%

- -- --

J

A pass/fail course~e reimbursed ~t 7_5% if passed ,__

•

El1gibie expenses include Tu1t1on and general lab fees or s1m1lar costs

For complete eligibility and gu idelines, please contact Human Resources for full policy.
7.9

Mileage Reimbursement
Employees who are authorized to use their private vehicles for public business shall be reimbursed
at the standard mileage reimbursement rate established by the Internal Revenue Service of the
United States. (Ord. 10-28).

7.10

Uniform Allowance

Each year, sworn employees of the Police Division will receive a $1,000 uniform allowance. For
sworn employees of the Fire Division, the uniform allowance granted shall conform to Part (D) of
Article 15 of the contract between the City of Zanesville and Local #88 of the I.AF .F. E. Employees
occupying position classifications which require a CDL, water or wastewater license shall be
reimbursed the cot of renewing said license. Employees occupying position classifications which
require employee to wear steel toe safety shoes may be reimbursed up to $100. 00 per year. The
Public Safety and Public Service Directors shall determine if the position classification is eligible for
the reimbursement. Allowed reimbursements must be turned into the Budget & Finance Director
no later than May 31 st of each year and the employee will receive the reimbursement by June 15th
of each year.
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7.11

Employee Assistance Program (EAP 1
The City of Zanesville provides to all full-time and permanent part-time employees a comprehensive
Employee Assistance Program (EAP). The City's EAP provider is AnthemEAP.
EAP is a City funded benefit that offers the support and resources you need to address any
personal challenges and/or concerns that may affect your personal well-being and/or work
performance. It is confidential and free to all City employees as well as their eligible family
members, including spouses and dependent children.
Your EAP benefit provides confidential access to licensed professional counselors and work/life
specialists who are available for short term assistance. EAP benefits include:
•
EAP Benefits 24-hour Emergency Hotline
•
Up to 5 visits per employee per event. This means you can talk either In-person,
telephonic or video counseling with licensed professional counselor for concerns
such as grief & loss, depression, or anything happening in your life.
•
Help with work/life service for issues such as childcare, eldercare, financia l & legal
issues, identity theft and more .
•
Savings Center which you will have access to discounts redeemable online,
through catalogs and select in-store merchants.

Getting started with AnthemEAP:
•
•
•

AnthemEAP Toll-Free Number: 800.865.1044
Anthem EAP Website: anthemEAP.com (Enter COZ to log in)
Member Orientation Video: Available on the website

Please call Human Resources at 740.617.4881 for more information.
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8
8.1

Computer and Technology Use, Cell Phones
Information Technology Policy
Employees are provided with Internet access and electronic communications services (which may
include, but are not limited to, computers. e-mail, cell phones, iPhones, iPads, PDAs, personal
computers and the like) as required for the performance and fulfillment of job responsibilities. All
employees are obligated to make effective, safe and responsible use of this technology. This policy
applies to all employees, including regular full-time, permanent part-time, temporary, and seasonal
employees who are provided access to the technology systems.
The City offers this access to technology for the purpose of increasing productivity and not for nonwork related activities. Specifically, this technology is meant to enhance operations by enabling
users to, among other things: locate and retrieve information; communicate more effectively with
other departments, employees, and organizations; and more easily publish information of interest
to the community and the general public. Users must understand that any connection to the Internet
offers an opportunity for non-authorized users to view or access information stored in the system.
Therefore, it is important that all connections be secured. controlled and monitored.
Electronic equipment and communications systems provided are considered to be City property to
be used for valid business purposes only. All communications and/or information created, stored ,
received, sent or otherwise transmitted on or through provided technology, including without
limitation the Internet, intranet, email, servers, personal computers, iPads, associated hardware
and software. online services and other electronic communications services, are considered City
property.
There shall be no expected right of privacy for any matter related to using equipment provided,
including no personal privacy right in any matter passing through, viewed, downloaded, printed,
created. stored, received, sent or otherwise transmitted from City-provided technology and
equipment. All employees should understand that the City reserves and intends to exercise the
right to monitor, review, intercept, access and disclose all Internet usage, email communications
sent or received, and all cell phone, iPhone, iPad and PDA usage. if necessary, to ensure that the
system is being used for business purposes in compliance with this policy, to ensure that all other
policies (including for instance those related to harassment and discrimination) are being followed,
and to be able to access information in an employee's email or other electronic communications
system in the event that the employee is unavailable to do so. Electronic audits of Internet activity
and other electronic communications by City employees may be implemented to identify and
properly deal with unauthorized activity.
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8.2

,nternet Access, Email, Public Records
Restrictions may apply to access, of all users, to certain unapproved Internet sites and capabilities
(ex: YouTube and instant messenger capabilities).
Emails are public records under State Law and are subject to public records requests. Emails must
be maintained and may be deleted only according to the public records policy.
Permitted Use
The Internet and electronic communications services are intended for the purposes of conducting
City business. Valid business purposes include, but are not limited to:

•
•

•
•

Locating, retrieving, collecting and/or disseminating information in connection with business:
Communicating with other departments and employees , as well as with outside contractors,
businesses. individuals or organizations currently or potentially doing business with or assisting
with the business of the City;
Conducting research to obtain information and material related to City issues; and
Limited personal use that does not result in the disruption of network operation or interfere with
productivity at work. Personal use of City technology and electronic devices must be kept to
the minimum amount of time needed to address a situation. Excessive use will be determined
or a case-by-case basis.

Prohibited Use
Internet and electronic communications services should not be used for any prohibited purpose.
Prohibited usage may result in the cancellation or loss of privileges. Any non-work related use is
defined as a prohibited use. Prohibited usage includes, but is not limited to:

•
•
•
•
•
•

•

•
•
•
•
•
•

Conducting personal business activities or seeking personal financial gain.
Playing games during working hours.
Bringing actual or potential embarrassment or harm to the City.
Conducting illegal activities or otherwise violating federal. state, or local laws.
Receiving, transmitting. downloading, viewing, or printing offensive materials of any kind ,
including any obscene or pornographic materials.
Receiving, transmitting, downloading, viewing, or printing any materials of a derogatory,
inflammatory, discriminatory, harassing, sexually explicit, obscene, offensive, defamatory,
violent or threatening in nature, or other material which is inappropriate, including any
content regarding an individual's or group's race. national origin . gender. age. marital
status, sexual orientation, religion or disability.
Downloading and/or installing software, games or any files or programs which could
potentially change system configuration without the consent of authorized Information
Technology personnel.
Removing and/or copying software, shared files or programs without the consent of
authorized Information Technology personnel.
Any social media use that is unrelated to an employee·s duties and responsibilities.
Use of any streaming or websites that impair system operations.
Downloading, distributing or printing copyrighted materials, which include articles. software
or intellectual property, in violation of the copyright laws.
Copying programs from City owned systems for personal use or non-City use.
Spamming email accounts or forwarding chain letters.
Disclosing confidential information or otherwise violating the privacy rights of the City or its
employees, citizens or business associates.
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•
•
•
•
•

8.3

Users, Employee Responsibilities
•

•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•

8.4

Using the Internet or electronic communications systems of another employee without
authorization.
Vandalizing data of another user, including uploading or creating of computer viruses.
Purchasing goods, materials, or services via the Internet using a City credit card or other
credit means without having proper authorization.
Violating any state or federal law.
Other uses as determined by the City.

Ensuring the security of their accounts and related passwords. Passwords should never
be shared between users or be in plain sight. If the integrity of a password has been
compromised, it should be changed and/or the Information Technology personnel or
Department should be notified.
Abiding by existing federal, state and local telecommunications and networking laws and
regulations;
Minimizing unnecessary network traffic that may interfere with the ability of others to make
effective use of City network resources and to conduct normal business activities;
Avoiding the overload of networks with excessive data, or wasting other City technical
resources;
Exercising good judgment and generally accepted rules of network etiquette when using
the Internet or other electronic communications services to avoid offense to others;
Maintaining the integrity and confidentiality of all City information;
Exercising good judgment when providing information to other individuals and using all
reasonable safeguards to avoid the mistaken distribution of another's information. The
transmission of confidential, sensitive or personal information shall follow current
procedures and regulations. Employees should only disclose such information or
messages from the electronic communications system to authorized individuals with a
need to know.
All dissemination of public records must follow the rules in this handbook and all public
records policies and laws.
Access personal email accounts.

Violations

If it is determined that a user has violated any of the above policy guidelines, the user will be
considered to have misused City property and will be subject to disciplinary action, up to and
including termination , as well as the loss of electronic communications privileges. If necessary, the
City will advise appropriate legal authorities of any illegal activities.
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8.5

Email Use Policy

This policy provides the employees with effective. consistent standards in regards to the use of the
electronic mail system (email). This policy applies to all employees. All City of Zanesville (COZ)
employees will have a COZ email address. This email account will be used for citywide/departmental communications, as well as communicating to outside agents on behalf of the
City. It will be the employees' responsibility to check their email frequently. This email account will
serve as the main communication channel for receiving all city-wide communications. (Le. Human
Resource, insurance/benefits updates, memos from the Mayor, etc.) Reviewing the employee
email account on a frequent basis allows for the timely response to any actions that are necessary
or needed. This City email account is required to be used when discussing city business. The use
of personal email accounts (Hotmail. yahoo, gmail. etc.) is not the City's protocol and is not
permitted for use when conducting City business. Violations of any guidelines listed above may
result in disciplinary action up to and including termination. If necessary, the appropriate legal
officials will be advised of any illegal activities.

All electronic communications and stored information transmitted. received. or archived in the City's
information system are the property of the City. The City reserves the right to access and disclose
all messages sent by email. Employees have no expectation of privacy with respect to any email
coming into or going out of City resources, particularly those which come into, or go out of, a City
email account. City email accounts are provided in order to carry out communications for City or
City-related business only. Employees may not access their personal email accounts through the
computer system.

8 .6

Social Media

Public employees have responsibilities, higher standards of conduct, and a public image to follow
and maintain.
There are many tools available today that enable people to publish and share content on the public
Internet. These include social media and networking sites such as Facebook, Twitter, Yelp,
YouTube. and foursquare, subscription services such as Angie's List, as well as biogs, blog
comments. forum posts, wikis, and other similar sites.
Employees may participate in any of these forms of communication using personal equipment
during their personal non-work time. The City respects the right of its employees to use social
media sites and other parts of the public Internet as a medium of self-expression, communication,
and public conversation. The City does not discriminate against employees who use these media
for personal interests and affiliations or for other lawful purposes.
However, employees should keep in mind that their postings can affect how the general public
perceives the City. The City has the right to make sure that nobody has made unauthorized use of
or discloses confidential information (e.g., personal and protected information about employees
and/or citizens). Employees are cautioned that they should have no expectation of privacy while
using the public Internet, even on their own personal time, and even when using their own personal
equipment. Employees· public postings on social media and other Internet sites can be viewed by
anyone, including the City's management.
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The following guidelines apply to all use of social media or the public Internet by City employees,
even when on their own personal time and on their own personal equipment:
•

•

•

•

•
•
•
•

8.7

Employees are free to identify themselves as a City employee if they wish. (Certain law
enforcement positions may be exempt.) However, they should state that their views are
their own, and do not reflect those of the City administration.
Only employees who are specifically authorized by the City are permitted to prepare and
modify content for the City's website, any official City biogs, and any of the City's official
social sites. If an employee is uncertain about whether or not he or she is permitted to post
certain content, he or she must discuss the proposed content with his or her supervisor
prior to posting.
If an employee sees a posting on the Internet from a member of the public that speaks
adversely about any City operation or service, they should forward the post to their
supervisor instead of responding directly to the poster.
Employees may not claim to speak on behalf of the City in an official capacity on the public
Internet or in any social networking service unless they have been specifically authorized
to do so.
Employees may not discuss or disclose on the public Internet or in any social networking
service any confidential information they obtained through their employment with the City.
Employees may not post or view any content on social media sites or to the public Internet
during working time, except as part of the employee's official assigned job duties.
Employees may not post any threats of violence or any unlawfully harassing or
discriminatory content about any of their co-workers, or any person.
Any employee found to be violating this Policy is subject to immediate disciplinary action,
including discharge.

Cellular Phone, Electronic Devices

This policy outlines the use of personal cell phones/electronic devices at work, the personal use of
City cell phones/electronic devices and the safe use of cell phones/electronic devices by employees
while driving.
Personal Cellular Phones/Electronic Devices
While at work employees are expected to exercise the same discretion in using personal cellular
phones/electronic devices as is expected for the use of City phones. Excessive personal
calls/electronic device use during the work day, regardless of the phone/device used, interfere with
employee productivity and distract others. Employees must limit personal calls and electronic
device use to non-working time (i.e., authorized breaks and lunch periods) and ensure that friends
and family members are aware of the City's policy. Flexibility will be provided in circumstances
demanding immediate attention or for emergencies.

Where an employee's duties require immediate access to an employee the City may issue a pager,
cellular phone or a hand-held radio (i.e .. a "walkie-talkie") to an employee for work-related
communications.
Employees in possession of City equipment are expected to protect the equipment from loss,
damage or theft. Upon resignation or termination of employment, or any time upon request, the
employee may be asked to produce the equipment for return or inspection. Employees unable to
present the equipment in good working condition within the time period requested (i.e. 24 hours)
may be expected to bear the cost of a replacement.
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Safety Issues for Cellular Phone/Electronic Device Use

•

•

•

•
•

•

•

•

•

Certain employees may be provided cellular telephones to provide communications needed to
perform job duties and responsibilities on behalf of the City of Zanesville. Employees who are
issued cellular telephones under the City plan shall be selected at the sole discretion of the
appointing authority, in consideration of business need, and to enhance the efficiency and
economy of City services. Appointing authorities are responsible for ensuring that only those
employees whose job demands require use of mobile telecommunications shall be issued a
City cellular telephone.
When personal telephone calls on City cellular phones are necessary, they are to be brief in
duration , and limited in number, in order to avoid tying up the cellular telephone on nonbusiness related matters.
City issued cell phones are the property of the City and as such may be accessed and inspected
at any time by the City. There are absolutely no rights or expectations of privacy for any
contents on the City owned phone.
Lost, stolen or broken City cell phones shall be reported by the Employee to the appointing
authority immediately.
Each employee, who makes personal telephone calls on his or her City issued cellular
telephone, shall be required to reimburse the City in full , for any costs associated with said
personal calls.
Upon a department's receipt of its monthly cellular telephone bill , the appointing authority or
designee shall review the statement. If the statement indicates any charges related to an
Employee's calls , the appointing authority shall submit a copy of the bill to the Employee and
said Employee shall promptly reimburse the City for the cost of any personal calls.
At an Employee's option , and as an alternative to using the City cellular telephone, the
Employee may, with the appointing authority's approval, use his or her own personal cell phone
for City business . If said use results in the Employee being billed for City business related
usage, the Employee may submit a copy of his bill to his or her appointing authority and seek
reimbursement for said expenses from the City.
When using a City issued cellular telephone in a City or personal vehicle, the Employee is
required to first pull over and stop the vehicle at a safe location, prior to placing the call or
texting . When receiving a cellular telephone call while driving , the employee is required to pull
over, as soon as it is safe and practicable to do so. If needed to remain safe, the Employee
receiving a cell phone call should place the caller on hold, or advise that the Employee will
return the call , when the Employee can safely park the vehicle. For the safety of the Employee
and other drivers , the employee is required to remain parked during the entire telephone
conversation. No texting while driving .
Upon termination of employment, any employee who has been issued a City cell phone shall
turn said phone into the appointing authority. If the employee desires to keep the cell phone,
he shall advise the appointing authority that will refer the matter to the City Auditor who will
determine the cost for purchasing the phone.
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9

Important Telephone Numbers for City of Zanesville Employees

Mayor's Office
Public Service Director
Community Development
Director
Public Safety Director
Budget & Finance
Director
City Law Director
Auditor's Office
Treasurer' s Office
Payroll
Civil Service
Human Resources
Information Technology
City Council (Clerk)
Insurance
EAP
Pension
Police & Fire Pension
Deferred Compensation
Workers Compensation
Fraud Hotline

(740J 617-4913
(740) 617-4915
Matt Schley

(740) 617-4879

Doug Merry
Kade Haddox

(740) 617-4914
(740) 617-4912

David Tarbert
_Andrew Body
David Wolfe
Krista Bonnett
Billie Corns
Darla Wooten
Lisa Hittle
Sue Culbertson

(740) 617-4887
(740) 617-4873
(740) 617-4898
(740) 617-4899
(740) 617-4877

MedBen
AnthemEAP
OPERS
Ohio P&FP
Ohio Deferred Corn ensation
ComJ2!V1anagement
Ohio Auditor of State

(740) 617-4881
(740) 617-4911
(740) 617-4875
800-686-8425
800-865-1044
800-222-7377
888-864-8363
877 -644-645 7
888-247 • 7799

8 66-372-8364
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10 Forms
10.1

COZ Record of Instruction and Verbal Reprimand

CITY OF ZANESVILLE
RECORD OF INSTRUCTION, AND VERBAL REPRIMAND
Employee Name:
Employee Classification:
Date Issued:
VIOLATION
Date Violation Occurred:
Location Where Violation Occurred:
Type of Violation:
' Chapter 124 Violation
' Conviction of Crime
r Discourteous Treatment of Public
1 Dishonesty
' Drunkenness
' Failure of Good Behavior
' Immoral Conduct
'Incompetency

' Inefficiency
' Insubordination
• Malfeasance
· Misfeasance
' Neglect of Duty
' Nonfeasance
· Violation of Work Rules or Policies of the City
' Other:

Description of Violation:

(allach add,t.onal sheet[s) 1f necessary)

This RECORD OF CAUTION is issued as a corrective measure in an effort to help you improve your
conduct. Any further violations could result in more severe disciplinary actions.

Tille

Signature of Person Issuing Warning

Date

I hereby acknowledge that a copy of the above RECORD OF VERBAL WARNING was provided to me
this day.

Date

Signature of Employee
cc:

Employee
Employee Personnel File
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10.2

COZ Writte:1Reprimand

CITY OF ZANESVILLE
WRITTEN REPRIMAND
Employee Name:
Employee Classification:
Date Warning was Issued:
VIOLATION
Date Violation Occurred:
Location Where Violation Occurred:
Type of Violation:
• Chapter 124 Violation
' Conviction of Crime
r Discourteous Treatment of Public
I Dishonesty
' Drunkenness
' Failure of Good Behavior
' Immoral Conduct
' Incompetency

' Inefficiency
- insubordination
1 Malfeasance
' Misfeasance
f Neglect of Duty
' Nonfeasance
'Violation of Work Rules or Policies of the City

Description of Violation:

{allach ad01tiona1sheet{sJ 1f necessary)

This WRITTEN REPRIMAND is issued as a corrective measure in an effort to help you improve your
conduct. Any further violations could result in more severe disciplinary actions.

Signature of Person Issuing Warning

Title

Date

I hereby acknowledge that a copy of the above WRITTEN REPRIMAND was provided to me this day.

Signature of Employee
cc:

Date

Employee
Employee Personnel File
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10.3

COZ Notice of Pre-Disciplinary Conference

CITY OF ZANESVILLE
NOTICE OF PRE-DISCIPLINARY CONFERENCE
TO:
Name of Employee
A pre-disciplinary conference concerning you will be held at:

Time

Location

Date

The purpose of the conference is to provide you with an opportunity to respond to the following
allegations of misconduct:

You have the right to: (1) appear at the conference to present an oral or written statement in your response:
(2) appear at the conference and have your chosen representative present an oral or written statement on
your behalf; or (3) elect in writing to waive your opportunity to have a pre-disciplinary conference. Failure
to respond or respond truthfully may result in further disciplinary action.
At the conference you may present any testimony, witnesses, or documents which explain whether or not
the alleged conduct occurred. You may be represented by any person you choose, whether such individual
is an employee or not. You shall provide a list of witnesses to the designated neutral conference supervisor
no later than one (1) hour prior to the pre-disciplinary conference. It is your responsibility to notify witnesses
that their attendance is desired. No conference will be delayed more than twenty-four (24) hours to enable
your representative to attend.
A written report will be prepared by the neutral supervisor concluding as to whether or not the alleged
conduct occurred. A copy of this report will be provided to you within five (5) days following its preparation.
The pre-disciplinary conference will be conducted by:
If you have any question in regard to this procedure, please contact the above individual or consult the
City's personnel policy manual.

Signature of Appointing Authority or Designee
cc:

Date

Neutral Conference Supervisor
Employee Personnel File
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10.4

COZ Oiscip li rtary Action (Pay Reductlo·, Demotion ·;i,pens,

Re,:-]

,., ,·

11· 1 ,-~ • .

CITY OF ZANESVILLE
DISCIPLINARY ACTION
(Pay Reduction, Demotion, Suspension, Removal/Tennination)

Employee Name:
Department:

Employee Classification:
VIOLATION

Date Violation Occurred:
Location Where Violation Occurred:
Type of Violation:
i Chapter 124 Violation
· Conviction of Crime
fOiscourteous Treatment of Public
• Dishonesty
· Drunkenness
i Failure of Good Behavior
' Immoral Conduct
' Incompetency

' Inefficiency
'Insubordination
'. Malfeasance
- Misfeasance
r Neglect of Duty
' Nonfeasance
' Violation of Work Rules or Policies of the City

Description of Violation:

(altach addilional sheet[s] if necessary)

Title

Signature of Person Requesting Action

Date

DISCIPLINARY ACTION TAKEN
Date of Pre-Disciplinary Conference
Disciplinary Action Taken:

Signature of Person Imposing Action

Title

Date

Signature of Person Issuing Action

Title

Date

I hereby acknowledge that a copy of the above DISCIPLINARY ACTION was provided to me this day.

Signature of Employee
cc:
Employee; Employee Personnel File

Date
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10.5

Employee Request for Leave F Jrm

Employee Request for Leave Form
Name:

---------------

Date form completed: _ _ _ _ _ _ __

Date(s) of Requested leave (enter date(s) only- list hrs. in correct category :)

List of Hours Below For Each Leave Requested:
Personal medical, dental, optical examination or treatment for employee
Personal illness or injury
Immediate family illness, injury or medical, dental or optical appointment
Death in family, bereavement leave for immediate family
Death in family. sick leave for extended family (relationship _ _ _ _ _ ___,
Vacation
Personal Holiday
Civil leave, jury duty, etc.
Military
Compensatory time
Family medical leave
Unpaid leave - describe:

DATE

SIGNATURE OF EMPLOYEE

By signing, the employee verifies the use of the leave requested and compliance with
Department Leave Policies.

Administrative Action:
The approval and/or recommendation signified does not prevent issuance of disciplinary
action for abuse of leave or violation of the leave policy.
_ _ Approved

Admin. Approval

_ _ Disapproved

Hours Approved:
Comp Time
Vacation
Personal Holiday
Sick Leave

Date

Remarks:
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10.6

Employee Acknowledge ··,ent

CITY OF ZANESVILLE EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

Employee Name:
Department:

Date:

I hereby acknowledge that I have received a copy of the City of Zanesville Employee
Handbook. I hereby acknowledge that I understand that it is my responsibility to
familiarize myself with the Employee Handbook and I agree to comply with all of the
policies and procedures contained in the Handbook.
I further understand that if I have any questions as to the applicability or meaning of any
policy, I can direct my questions to my supervisor, department head, Human Resources
or the Mayor's Office.
I further understand that this Handbook is not an employment contract and that changes
may occur to this Handbook.

Signature

Date

This jbrm must be completed and signed at the time <~f!he issuance of this Handbook. A copy,~/
this aclm01r{edR111e11I is to be placed in the employee'spersonnef.tile.
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Community Development Committee
Mark Baker, Chair

ORDINANCE NO. 2021- 125
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REVISE CHAPTERS 1109.01, 1137.04 AND 1141.05
OF THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE'S PLANNING AND ZONING CODE
WHEREAS, through a comprehensive review of the Planning and Zoning Code, The
Community Development Department has identified a need to amend and revise the following
Chapters: 1109.01 Definitions, Chapter 1137.04 Residential Districts, and Chapter 1141.05
Business Districts; and
WHEREAS, according to Section 1117.01 "To adapt to changing development
conditions and provide for the phased implementation of the City Comprehensive Plan, the
Planning Commission may from time to time recommend, and Council may adopt, amendments
to the provisions of the text of this Zoning Code ... as provided by the Ohio Revised Code."; and
WHEREAS, proper notification of the intent of this proposed legislation was given in a
newspaper of general circulation; and
WHEREAS, after taking testimony and discussion, the Zanesville Planning Commission
has recommended to City Council that the proposed amendment(s) to Chapters 1109.01,
1137.04, and 1141.05 be approved.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville,
State of Ohio; that
SECTION ONE: Chapter 1109.01: Definitions shall receive an additional definition that
shall read as follows:
Vocational Agriculture Education Program: The practice of agriculture for the purpose of school
curriculum, including the raising of livestock and the growing, treating, packaging, and storage
of produce. Vocational Agriculture Education Programs shall be limited to recognized
educational institutions, as defined by this code.

SECTION TWO: Chapter 1137.04 currently reads as follows:
1137.04 TABLE 12: PERMITTED AND CONDITIONAL USES IN RESIDENTIAL
DISTRICTS
GROUP A: Permitted Uses in All RS, RA and RM Residential Districts.
( 1) Home occupations
(2) Single-family detached dwellings conforming to the standards in Table 13
Section 1137.05.
'
(3) Parks, playgrounds, golf courses, forest preserves, wildlife sanctuaries and other publicly
owned space

Ordinance No. 2021-125

(4) Permitted public uses, as defined in this Zoning Code
(5) Streets and alleys
(6) Temporary buildings or trailers for construction purposes for a period not to exceed the
period of construction
(7) Accessory uses, buildings and structures to all permitted uses in the district.
(8) HUD Code manufactured, single-family detached or individual lots outside manufactured
home parks or manufactured home subdivisions conforming to the approval standards in Table
13, Section 1137.05.
GROUP B: Conditional Uses in All RS, RA and RM Residential Districts.
(1) Cemeteries
(2) Conditional public uses, as defined in this Code
(3) Educational institutions, as defmed in this Code
(4) Golf courses and country clubs, private
(5) Hospitals, clinics, medical and dental offices, nursing and group homes, mental health
centers
(6) Philanthropic and charitable institutions, as defined in this Code
(7) Religious institutions, as defined in this Code
(8) Zero lot line single-family detached residential developments
(9) Accessory uses, buildings and structures to all conditional uses in the district, and,
including off-street parking and loading and signs as provided in applicable sections of this
Code.
(10) Accessory structures on separate lots to the rear of all adjacent principal use buildings.
GROUP C: In addition to Group A, the following are Permitted Uses in RA and RM
Residential Districts.
In unit groups of eight or fewer dwelling units:
(1) Single-family attached dwellings as defined in this Code
(2) Townhouses as defined in this Code.
GROUP D: In addition to Group A and C, the following are Permitted Uses Only in RM
Residential Districts.
(1) Multiple-family dwellings as defined in this Code
(2) Two-family dwellings that are not townhouses as defined in this Code.
GROUP E: In addition to Group B, the following are Conditional Uses Only in RM Residential
Districts.
(1) Manufactured home parks as defined in this Code conforming to the standards in Table 9,
Section 1121.08.
(2) Manufactured home subdivisions as defined in this Code conforming to the standards in
Table 9, Section 1121.08.
(3) Tourist homes.
SECTION THREE: Chapter 1137.04 shall be amended to read as follows:
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1137.04 TABLE 12: PERMITTED, CONDITIONAL AND SPECIAL USES IN
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICTS
GROUP A: Permitted Uses in All RS, RA and RM Residential Districts.
(1) Home occupations
(2) Single-family detached dwellings conforming to the standards in Table 13,
Section 1137.05.
(3) Parks, playgrounds, golf courses, forest preserves, wildlife sanctuaries and other publicly
owned space
( 4) Permitted public uses, as defined in this Zoning Code
(5) Streets and alleys
(6) Temporary buildings or trailers for construction purposes for a period not to exceed the
period of construction
(7) Accessory uses, buildings and structures to all permitted uses in the district.
(8) HUD Code manufactured, single-family detached or individual lots outside manufactured
home parks or manufactured home subdivisions conforming to the approval standards in Table
13, Section 1137.05.
GROUP B: Conditional Uses in All RS. RA and RM Residential Districts.
(1) Cemeteries
(2) Conditional public uses, as defined in this Code
(3) Educational institutions, as defined in this Code
(4) Golf courses and country clubs, private
(5) Hospitals, clinics, medical and dental offices, nursing and group homes, mental health
centers
(6) Philanthropic and charitable institutions, as defined in this Code
(7) Religious institutions, as defined in this Code
(8) Zero lot line single-family detached residential developments
(9) Accessory uses, buildings and structures to all conditional uses in the district, and,
including off-street parking and loading and signs as provided in applicable sections of this
Code.
(10) Accessory structures on separate lots to the rear of all adjacent principal use buildings.
GROUP C: In addition to Group A, the following are Permitted Uses in RA and RM
Residential Districts.
In unit groups of eight or fewer dwelling units:
(1) Single-family attached dwellings as defined in this Code
(2) Townhouses as defined in this Code.
GROUP D: In addition to Group A and C, the following are Permitted Uses Only in RM
Residential Districts.
(1) Multiple-family dwellings as defined in this Code
(2) Two-family dwellings that are not townhouses as defined in this Code.
GROUPE: In addition to Group B, the following are Conditional Uses Only in RM Residential
Districts.
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(1) Manufactured home parks as defined in this Code conforming to the standards in Table 9,
Section 1121.08.
(2) Manufactured home subdivisions as defined in this Code conforming to the standards in
Table 9, Section 1121.08.
(3) Tourist homes.
Group F: Special Use in all RS, RA, and RM Districts
(1) Vocational Agriculture Education Programs

SECTION FOUR: Chapter 1141.05 Table 15: Permitted and Conditional Uses in
Business Districts shall be renamed to Chapter 1141.05 Table 15 Permitted, Conditional and
Special Uses in Business Districts.
SECTION FIVE: Chapter 1141 .05 Table 15 shall be amended to allow for the addition
of Vocational Agriculture Education Programs as a Special Use (S) in I-1 , Industrial District.
SECTION SIX: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest
period allowed by law.

PASSED:

- - - - - - -- ~

2021

ATTEST:

SUSAN CULBERTSON,
Clerk of Council

APPROVED:

- - - -- -- - ~ 2021

DANIELM. VINCENT,
President of Council

THIS LEGISLATION APPROVED
AS TO FORM

DONALD MASON, Mayor

LAW DIRECTOR'S OFFICE

Community Development Committee
Mark Baker, Chair
ORDINANCENO.2021- 126

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT WITH SUNDAY
CREEK HORIZONS (SCH) FOR REVITILIZATION AND REDEVELOPMENT CONSULTING
SERVICES
WHEREAS, the City of Zanesville Comprehensive plan identifies redevelopment and reuse planning as a
high priority; and

WHEREAS, the City of Zanesville has identified that additional consulting services are beneficial to
redevelopment within the City; and
WHEREAS, Sunday Creek Horizons has exhibited unique expertise in redevelopment planning and
consulting in similar sized communities throughout the South East Ohio; and
WHEREAS, the City has identified that Sunday Creek Horizons expertise in redevelopment consulting
constitutes a sole provider for the provided services; and
WHEREAS, sole-source consulting services are exempt from the competitive bidding requirements of
§307.86 of the Ohio Revised Code; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE AS
FOLLOWS:

SECTION ONE: The Mayor is hereby authorized to enter into a professional services/consulting contract
with Sunday Creek Horizons (SCH) in substantially the same form as Exhibit A to this ordinance.
SECTION TWO: The contracted service fee shall not exceed $38,500.00 and shall be expensed from line
303-4105-5618.

SECTION THREE: This ordinance shall take effect upon the approval of the Mayor and from and after
the earliest period allowed by law.
PASSED: _ _ __ _ _ _ _ _ __, 2021.

ATTEST:

SUSAN CULBERTSON
CLERK OF COUNCIL

DANIEL M. VINCENT

PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

APPROVED: _ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ _ __, 2021.

DONALD MASON
MAYOR

THIS LEGISLATION
APPROVED AS TO FORM
LAW DIRECTOR'S OFFICE
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SUNDAY CREEK HORIZONS, LLC SCOPE OF WORK
We, the undersigned, agree to provisions of the below Scope of Work between Sunday Creek Horizons
LLC, an Athens, Ohio limited liability company, and the City of Zanesville, Ohio.
We agree that this Scope of Work commences on - -- -- -- ~ 2021.
We agree that Sunday Creek Horizons will invoice the City of Zanesville on the first of each month, per
the terms of the Scope of Work attached.
IN WI1NESS WHEREOF, the parties to this agreement have hereto set their hands and seals, with the
intention of being legally bound hereby.

City of Zanesville, Ohio

Name: Don Mason
Title: Mayor, City of Zanesville
Date:

Sunday Creek Horizons, LLC

Name: Zachary T. Space
Title: President, Sunday Creek Horizons
Date:

I0- Horizons
Sunday Creek
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Fr: Sunday Creek Horizons
To: Don Mason, Mayor of City of Zanesville
cc: Matthew Schley, City of Zanesville Community Development Director
Re: Zanesville Brownfield/Superfund Clean-Up & Water and Sewer Projects: State and Federal
Advocacy
Proposal Submission Date: August 25, 2021

Background:
Per conversations with Mayor Don Mason and Community Development Director Matthew Schley,
Sunday Creek Horizons (SCH) has become familiar with the City of Zanesville's need for additional
funding to complete EPA-mandated water and sewer infrastructure projects. SCH has also been involved
in conversations with Mayor Mason, Director Schley, and Lt. Governor Jon Husted, regarding the cleanup of several brownfield sites that would be, upon successful clean-up, primed for redevelopment.
These mandates, and the need to clean up former superfund/brownfield designated sites, coincides with
the distribution of historic state and federal resources to the City of Zanesville, Muskingum County, the
region, and the State of Ohio, that could be applied to significantly or entirely fill the funding gap for this
project.

Scope of Work:
•

Narrative development and County-level support:

At start, Sunday Creek Horizons (SCH) will help the City of Zanesville identify the strongest
possible story to tell that will increase state and federal support for the City's projects. It is
important that we thoughtfully identify the impacts that an unsubsidized build-out of these
projects would have on the community. We will also work to understand the "right'' amount of
money for the City and County to commit to the project -- enough that it can be leveraged to
attract other support, but not so much that it sucks up too large a percentage of the City/County' s
American Rescue Plan Act allocation. This narrative, along with SCH's recommendations for
community investment, will be made available in written documentation to be provided to Mayor
Don Mason, members of City Council, Community Development Director Matt Schley, and other
relevant stakeholders.
•

State of Ohio Outreach:

SCH is well versed in the unique brand Zanesville and Muskingum County have in the minds of
state leaders, and knows that Zanesville and its environs are well known to the Governor and his
staff. Southeast Ohio's broader economic challenges are also well known to Ohio's leaders, who
recognize unsubsidized costs of the water and sewer infrastructure and brownfield clean-up
projects could impose significant financial burdens on the City. SCH will leverage the stories of
residents and City leaders and the City's financial support of the projects to attempt to secure
investment from the State of Ohio's newly allotted brownfield cleanup funds, as well as from

I0- Sunday
Creek
Horizons
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other funds made available by the state for small town advancement post-COVID. SCH will
generate a monthly memo detailing the status of this outreach, to be delivered to relevant
community stakeholders

•

Federal Agency Outreach:
SCH will engage federal agency leaders in discussions focused on bringing grant dollars into the
above projects. Examples of Agencies to receive outreach include the U.S. Economic
Development Administration (EDA) Chicago Office, the Appalachian Regional Commission
(ARC), the United States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Rural Development, and the U.S.
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA). SCH will also engage with the EPA to change
regulations that prohibit brownfield funds from being applied towards superfund sites. Similarly,
SCH will provide relevant stakeholders with a monthly memo detailing the status of Federal
outreach, along with State of Ohio outreach.

•

Federal Office Outreach:
Regarding grant opportunities identified through the above outreach to federal agencies, Sunday
Creek Horizons will aid the City of Zanesville in communications with federal elected officials,
including the offices of relevant members of Congress, the Senate, and the federal administration.
SCH will generate a monthly list of meetings scheduled and conversations had on behalf of the
City of Zanesville.

•

Media and Communications:
Sunday Creek Horizons will provide the City of Zanesville with strategic communications and
media outreach services, seeking to place press coverage in local and state-wide media outlets in
line with an agreed-upon advocacy strategy regarding the City' s desired projects. Copies of
placed physical media will be provided to the Mayor's Office.

•

Grant Identification and Support:
Sunday Creek Horizons will identify and secure existing State and Federal funding opportunities,
and assist the City in pursuing traditional grant funding to support the projects. SCH will generate
a written list of grant opportunities, along with their eligible uses and associated timelines to be
delivered to Matt Schley in the Community Development Office.

Metrics:
Sunday Creek Horizons will generate a monthly report to be delivered to the Mayor's Office, City
Council, and other relevant local stakeholders, outlining SCH' s progress in advocating on behalf of the
City of Zanesville.
The metric tracked in this report will include, but will not be limited to the following:
•

The number of 1-on-l meetings scheduled with state and federal agencies, or political staff, to
discuss funding to clean up the Lear site;

I Sunday Creek
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Events scheduled, such as roundtable discussions and meetings, with key local, state, and federal
stakeholders;
Placement of earned media outside of the Zanesville market to influence state leaders as to the
importance of cleaning up the Leer, and other, superfund sites;
Conversations with agencies with authority of superfund cleanup dollars e.g. Ohio and U.S.
Environmental Protection Agencies;
Submission of relevant grant applications, in conjunction with Matt Schley.

Proposal and Budget:
•

•

A seven-month, relationship-driven strategic communications and advocacy assistance contract to
assist the City of Zanesville in securing additional dollars to support the above projects; to
support the City's efforts to lower the costs to-be-incurred by the City and its residents; to make
rounds of introductions between City of Zanesville leaders as appropriate, among state leaders;
and to conduct outreach and advocacy to relevant Federal agencies on behalf of the City of
Zanesville.
The cost of this engagement would be $38,500 total, billable at $5,500 per month. The contract
could be extended depending on the City' s needs and the status of contract progress.
o Note: Sunday Creek cannot be paid a "success fee " or any percentage offunds secured,

as such arrangements are not legal under Ohio law.
•

This engagement may be cancelled, at any point in time, by either party with written notice.
o Note: Sunday Creek understands that as a public governing body, the City ofZanesville

does not lzave unlimited resources to expend on advocacy and communications efforts. If,
in the.first two months ofthe engagement, Sunday Creek.finds a State or Federal
investment in the City's water and sewer irifrastructure and brownfield clean-up projects
is not likely or viable, Sunday Creek will proactively terminate this engagement and/or
look to lower the cost offurther engagement.
Biographies of Principal Staff
Congressman Zack Space
Congressman Zack Space was born and raised in the small eastern Ohio town of Dover. After
graduating from Kenyon College and The Ohio State University Moritz College of Law, he
returned to Tuscarawas County to practice law. Over the course of 20 years, Zack managed a
private practice, worked as a Public Defender, and served as Law Director for the City of Dover.
In 2006, he was elected to serve as the Congressman from Ohio's 18th District, comprising 16
counties in rural southeastern Ohio.
During his tenure in Congress, Zack was a champion of working-class Ohioans, and was
instrumental in bringing broadband technology, employment opportunities, and infrastructure
improvements to his district. He served on the prestigious Energy and Commerce Committee, as
well as the House Committees on Transportation and Infrastructure, Agriculture, and Veterans'
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Affairs, and was an active member of the Blue Dog Caucus, a centrist, fiscally principled
coalition of moderate Democrats from largely rural districts.
Upon leaving Congress in 2011, Zack joined Vorys Advisors, the government affairs arm of the
prestigious Columbus law firm Vorys, Sater, Seymour, and Pease, where he worked with local
governments, charitable organizations, and the private sector to promote economic development
across Ohio, particularly southeastern Ohio. One initiative Zack oversaw during this time saw
him bring together regional stakeholders to plan a prosperous future for southeastern Ohio, driven
by the Utica Shale Play, in partnership with oil and gas companies Zack brought to the table.

In 2018, he was elected as the Democratic nominee for the office of Ohio Auditor of State,
earning the endorsements of nearly every major Ohio newspaper, and outperformed all other
statewide Democratic candidates in Appalachian Ohio.
Zack currently serves as President of Sunday Creek Horizons. He is a proven ambassador for
Appalachia, trusted by the region's residents, politicians, and investors alike. Zack has two
children, Gina and Nick, who live in Tuscarawas County and are currently studying to become
lawyers.
Representative Jack Cera
State Representative Jack Cera, a native of Bellaire, Ohio in Belmont County. Cera served in the
Ohio House of Representatives, representing House District 96, which includes the citizens of
Monroe County, Jefferson County and parts of Belmont County. He has also represented Noble
County and the northern part of Washington County in the past.
Representative Cera served as a strong voice at the Statehouse, advocating for better jobs,
increased economic opportunity, local community development, and Ohio's working families and
elderly. Jack felt strongly that repairing and maintaining our roads, bridges, and water lines were
important necessities in maximizing our area's economic benefits and encouraging job growth.
That is why he supports investing and rebuilding Ohio's infrastructure.

In the legislature, Cera served as the minority party's fiscal watchdog on the State Controlling
Board - a bipartisan panel that has the final say over state spending. He was also the minorityparty leader on the powerful Finance Committee which oversees the state budget. He also served
on the House Tax Committee, and has served on the Agriculture and Rural Development
Committee.
Jack is a 1974 graduate of Bellaire High School where he excelled in the classroom and on the
football field. He received his Bachelor of Arts in Political Science from Brown in 1978. Cera is
married to his wife of35 years, Becky, a Registered Nurse. They have two daughters, Jaclyn and
Bethany. Jack has never been a fan of fancy titles, but he certainly enjoys his Grandpa moniker.
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Andy Kostival - Project Lead
Andy Kostival is a fourth generation resident of Southeast Ohio, with strong ties to individuals
and communities throughout the region. Born and raised in Athens, Ohio, Andy has a deep-rooted
passion and desire to serve his community and see its people prosper.
Andy graduated from Ohio University in the spring of 2021 with a B.A. in Economics, a B.A. in
Spanish, and Certifications in Latin American Studies and European Studies. Andy's studies have
taken him around the globe and have provided him with many valuable experiences, opportunities
and perspectives that have shaped his intellectual and educational journey.
While studying at Ohio University, Andy plugged into his community both as a student and
citizen. He was a member of multiple on-campus student organizations, led several community
engagement projects and gained experience in political campaigning and issue advocacy.
Andy adds skills in community development, collaboration, leadership, research, writing, and
creativity to the experienced team at Sunday Creek Horizons. During his internship with Sunday
Creek over the summer of 2020 and in his role as Associate throughout his senior year, Andy
gained valuable experience and developed meaningful relationships, while assisting with the daily
operations and execution of a wide array of projects. Upon graduating, Andy chose to continue
working for Sunday Creek Horizons and is eager to continue his work as a Project Manager.
Zach Reizes - Project Support
Zachary Reizes brings grant writing, organizing capacity and community engagement experience
to the Sunday Creek Horizons team. Zach attended Ohio University on a full ride scholarship,
with an academic specialization in international development. While at Ohio University, Zach's
studies dovetailed into a broader focus on regional economic and community development in
Appalachia. He became deeply involved in state and federal campaign work, spending one full
political cycle working with various campaigns in Southeast Ohio to ensure that they engaged on
issues of high importance to the region. Through this work, Zach has built personal friendships
with many local elected officials, community leaders, and regional advocates.
Zach has received awards and recognition around the Athens area for his commitment to
community leadership, including the Rudy Award for Outstanding Community Leadership in
2018. He serves on the boards of two non-profits, acting as vice-treasurer of one and overseeing
long-term financial planning for the entity. Before joining Sunday Creek Horizons, Zach served
as Community Development Specialist at Hocking Athens Perry Community Action. In this role,
Zach built capacity for the local county land bank, helping manage hundreds of thousands of
grant dollars used to eliminate slum and blight in struggling Ohio communities.
While Zach has been out of school for only a short time, he has opted to remain in Southeast Ohio
in order to combat brain drain and jump-start many of the exciting developments in the region.
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He knows how to interact with and bring local stakeholders to the table to build coalitions around
issues that matter.

Malania Birney - Project Support
Malania Birney is a lifelong Appalachian, born and raised in Harrison County. Growing up in
rural Ohio exposed her to the unique issues facing our region, which piqued her interests in
government and advocacy.
Malania graduated Summa Cum Laude from Kent State University, where she received her
Bachelor of Arts in Political Science. Her studies focused on public policy, social welfare, and
community-based organizing. While at Kent State, Malania participated in the Washington
Program in National Issues (WPNI) and worked on multiple political campaigns across the state
of Ohio. She also served as an intern for U.S. Senator Sherrod Brown, where her main role was
connecting Ohioans in need with federal and state resources.
Malania is thrilled to have a hand in the economic and community development of Southeastern
Ohio through Sunday Creek Horizons. She is passionate about breaking down the institutional
barriers that marginalize rural Ohioans.

Will Drabold - Political Outreach Support
Will Drabold's professional life has spanned modem communication, fundraising and capacity
building.
Will reported on Capitol Hill and national elections for a fast-paced digital news operation with a
millennial readership. He won the top investigative journalism award for U.S. college students.
He launched a nonprofit investigative news website via a national crowdfunding campaign, and
raised six figures to grow the organization from individuals and foundations. He raised millions
of dollars for progressive political operations from wealthy individuals and companies, and has
built relationships across the footprint of Appalachian Ohio. He has staffed successful executives,
high-profile national speakers and former state and federal politicians.
Will' s career has put him in the position of driving high stakes one-on-one and one-to-many
communication, with startup ventures and people' s livelihoods on the line. He is adept at project
management, fundraising, strategy development, relationship building and modem mass
communication. Will knows how to use communication of all kinds to help clients achieve their
goals, particularly those in Appalachian Ohio who face unique challenges to making their
message break through. Will lives in Athens, Ohio, where he was born, with his wife and son.

Sunday Creek Horizons, LLC
Sunday Creek Horizons, LLC is a strategic communications, issue advocacy and business
development consulting firm operating across the footprint of Appalachian Ohio. Our firm is
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dedicated to elevating the voice of the region through partnerships, alliances and coalition
building. By facilitating collaboration and communication between Ohio's urban decision makers
and rural areas, Sunday Creek Horizons helps Appalachian communities rise up and advocate for
themselves with a single, loud voice. Our advocacy and expertise is unique in the region, and
positions us as strong partners to advocate for eastern and southern Ohio's communities in
Columbus and Washington D.C.
Our team has decades of collective expertise building coalitions, managing projects of various
sizes and scopes, and working with Appalachian communities. With regards to an effort that is
perhaps the most relevant to this proposal, in February 2020, Sunday Creek Horizons endeavored
to establish a coalition for advocacy on Appalachian Children's Issues, known as the Appalachian
Children Coalition. The ACC has since brought together two fonner governors of the state of
Ohio, former cabinet-level officials, elected representatives and Appalachian public figures to
advocate for a varied agenda under the umbrella of Appalachian Children's wellbeing. The ACC
is simultaneously pursuing, with the help of Sunday Creek Horizons, a state line-item for
operational support.
Sunday Creek Horizons' services clients across Appalachian Ohio, including the Ohio
Association of Community Action Agencies (OACCA); the Appalachian Children Coalition
(ACC), a trans-regional advocacy organization that advances the interests of the Region's
children; and the Scioto Valley Piketon-Area Council of Governments, a COG established to
safely clean-up and re-industrialize the site of a nuclear enrichment facility in Pike County.
Sunday Creek Horizons also has a robust economic development practice, and is working on
local economic development projects in Chillicothe, McConnellsville, Zanesville, and Nelsonville
to revitalize these communities and create jobs in southeast Ohio. In addition, Sunday Creek
Horizons has also worked on behalf of Ohio University's College of Health Science and
Professions, and orchestrated a novel digital advertising program that markedly increased the
Region's participation in the 2020 U.S. Census --which will drive millions of additional federal
dollars into southeast Ohio over the coming decade.

Public Service Committee
Andrew Roberts, Chair

ORDINANCE NO. 2021 -127
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE PROPER CITY OFFICIAL TO
GRANT AN EASEMENT TO COLUMBIA GAS FOR A GAS MAIN ON
CITY PROPERTY EAST OF MAYSVILLE AVENUE.

WHEREAS, Columbia Gas is replacing an eight (8) inch gas main in the vicinity of the railroad
underpass on Maysville Avenue; and
WHEREAS, in order to avoid the underpass and the existing City of Zanesville utilities in this
location the new gas main will cross below the railroad tracks to the south of the underpass; and
WHEREAS, the new gas main will be located on City property that is not a dedicated right of
way as shown on Exhibit A ; and
WHEREAS, said gas main requires Columbia Gas to obtain an easement from the City of
Zanesville as shown in Exhibit B.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the City of Zanesville, State of
Ohio, that:
SECTION ONE: The proper City official is hereby authorized to grant an easement to
Columbia Gas for a gas main as shown in Exhibits A and B.
SECTION TWO: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest
period allowed by law.

PASSED:

- - - - - - - - - -' 2021

ATTEST:
SUSAN CULBERTSON,
Clerk of Council

APPROVED: - - - - - - - - - - ' 2021

DONALD MASON,
Mayor

DANIEL M. VINCENT,
President of Council

THIS LEGISLATION APPROVED
ASTO FORM

LAW DIRECTOR'S OFFICE
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EXHIBIT "A"
EASEMENTS TO COLUMBIA GAS OF OHIO. INC .
ON THE PROPERTY OF
CITY OF ZANESVILLE
IN THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE, MUSKINGUM COUNTY, OHIO
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EXHIBIT "A"
NON-EXCLUSIVE EASEMENT TO COLUMBIA GAS OF OHIO, INC.

The following parcel of land being situated in the City of Zanesville, in Muskingum County, Ohio,
and part of lands conveyed to the City of Zanesville in Deed Book 110 on Page 603 and
described further as follows:
COMMENCING at an iron pin found marking the most westerly corner of Lot 2 and the most
northerly corner of Lot 3 of Buckingham Terrace Fair Oaks Addition recorded in Plat Book 2 on
Page 47, and on the southeasterly line of CSX Transportation Inc. railroad property;
thence on and along the northwesterly line of Lot 3 of Buckingham Terrace Fair Oaks Addition
and the southeasterly line of said railroad property, S 30° 16' 39" W, a distance of 109.82 feet to
an iron pin found at a deflect point;
thence continuing on and along the northwesterly line of said Lot 3 and the southeasterly line of
said railroad property, S 28° 14' 48" W, a distance of 112.35 feet to a point, passing an iron pin
found at 49.47 feet;
thence N 61 ° 08' 55" W, a distance of 63.13 feet to the northeasterly line of said railroad
property and the southeasterly right-of-way line of South Maysville Avenue (60 right-of-way),
and being the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING;

1) thence on and along the southeasterly right-of-way line of South Maysville
Avenue, N 11 ° 40' 27" E, a distance of 143.63 feet to a point at the beginning of a
curve to the right;
2) thence 92.11 feet on and along the southeasterly right-of-way line of South
Maysville Avenue and said curve to the right to a point, said curve having a Delta
of 55° 33' 14", a Radius of 95.00 feet, a Chord Bearing N 39° 27' 04" E, and a
Chord Length of 88.55 feet;
3) thence 136.77 feet on and along the northeasterly line of said railroad property
and along a curve to the right to a point, said curve having a Delta of 3° 58' 04",
a Radius of 1,975.00 feet, a Chord Bearing S 21 ° 25' 21" W, and a Chord Length
136.75 feet;
4) thence on and along the northeasterly line of said railroad property, S 23° 24' 24"
W, a distance of 89.07 feet returning to the TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING;
containing in all 0.090 acres.
Grantor Claims Title by Deed Book 110, Page 603, Muskingum County Records.
The land described above is currently part of Muskingum County Tax Parcel ID 82-2301-01-000.
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The Basis of Bearings for the legal description herein described are based upon an
assumed meridian and should only be used for the purpose of describing horizontal
angular measurement.
I hereby certify the above legal description was prepared October 7, 2021 from a field
survey performed by Poggemeyer Design Group, Inc. during June of 2021 and under my
direct supervision.

/1::_:_ ~~
·. '" Kevin Canavan, Ohio Professional Surveyor No. 7448
POGGEMEYER DESIGN GROUP, INC.
1168 NORTH MAIN STREET
BOWLING GREEN, OHIO 43402
(419) 352-7537

1:\807400\01737 - Zanesville - Woodlawn Leakage - Easements\Easement\Zville Woodlawn Easement.wpd
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NONEXCLUSIVE PIPELINE EASEMENT

City of Zanesville (aka Woodlawn Cemetery), 401 Market Street, Zanesville, Ohio 43701, as Granter,
for valuable consideration paid, receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, grants to
COLUMBIA GAS OF OHIO, INC., with principal offices at 290 West Nationwide Boulevard, Columbus,
Ohio 43215, as Grantee, its successors and assigns, a permanent nonexclusive easement to lay pipelines,
including lateral pipeline connections, together with service connections, over and through the premises
hereinafter described, and to operate and maintain without restriction or limitation, repair, replace, or change
the size of its pipes without interruption to service and remove same, together with valves and other necessary
appurtenances (collectively, the "facilities") over and across the property of the Granter described as said
City of Zanesville, bounded by South Maysville Ave to the West, North, and South, and parcel number 81 21-01-03-900 to the East, being parcel no. 82-23-01-01-000 and being more fully described in the
instrument recorded in Deed Book 110, Page 603, said permanent nonexclusive easement as described on
Exhibit A ("easement area").

The facilities installed by Grantee on or under the easement area shall remain the property of Grantee.
Grantee shall have the right to inspect, rebuild, remove, repair, improve, and make such changes,
alterations, additions to or extensions of its facilities within the boundaries of said easement area as are
consistent with the purpose expressed herein. All construction, maintenance, equipment, and facilities shall
comply with all applicable laws, ordinances, codes, and regulations.
Grantee shall have the right of ingress to and egress from said right-of-way over the lands of Grantor.
Grantee shall exercise such right in such manner as shall not occasion injury and inconvenience to Grantor.
Any disturbance of the premises by the Grantee or its employees, agents, and/or contractors will be restored
by the Grantee as nearly as practicable to its preconstruction condition. This restoration includes paving,
fences, backfilling of trenches, grass, reseeding, replacing or replanting landscaping, and removing trash
and/or debris. Trees, shrubs, and ground cover shall be replaced with immature landscaping. Grantee shall
not disturb any other utility in the easement area.
Grantee shall have the right to trim, cut, and remove trees, shrubbery, or other obstructions which interfere
with or threaten the efficient and safe operation, construction, and maintenance of the Facilities. Grantee
shall remove for disposal all brush, branches, and other debris resulting from any cutting, trimming, or
clearing of the easement area.
Grantor and its successors and assigns may use the easement area for any purpose not inconsistent with the
rights hereby granted, provided such use does not interfere with the safe and efficient construction,
operation, or maintenance of the Facilities, and further provided that such use is not inconsistent with any
laws, ordinances, or codes pertaining to the construction, operation, or maintenance of the Facilities.

The Grantee covenants to maintain the easement area in good repair so that no unreasonable damage will
result from its use to the adjacent land of the Grantor, its successor and assigns.
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In the event that Grantee discontinues use of the pipeline for twelve (12) consecutive months, this easement
will terminate and all right conveyed herein will revert to the current surface owner.
The Grantee shall indemnify and hold Grantor harmless from any and all claims or damages resulting from
Grantee' s activities and operations on the easement area, including costs of defense. Grantor shall not have
any liability to Grantee except for claims or damages arising out of Grantor's own acts or omissions.
The grant and other provisions of this easement shall constitute a covenant running with the land for the
benefit of the Grantee, its successors and assigns.
Executed this_ ___day, of._ _ _ __ __ __ _, 2021
City of Zanesville
By_ __ _ _ __ __ _
Donald L. Mason, Mayor
State of Ohio
County of Muskingum
The foregoing instrument was acknowledged before me this _ _ day of _ __ _ __ __, 2021, by
Donald L. Mason, Mayor of the city of Zanesville.

My Commission Expires

THIS INSTRUMENT PREPARED BY:
COLUMBIA GAS OF OHIO, INC.
JO#: 20-0148576-00 / RG

Notary Public

Judge W. Andrew Joseph
Zanesville Municipal Court
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-128
AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO ENTER INTO AN AGREEMENT
WITH THE MUSKINGUM COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, FOR THE
REIMBURSEMENT OF FEES PAID TO ATTORNEYS WHO REPRESENT INDIGENT
DEFENDANTS IN MUNICIPAL COURT
WHEREAS, the City of Zanesville recognizes its responsibility under the laws of
the State of Ohio and of the United States of America to provide legal counsel to indigent persons
charged with a violation of a misdemeanor offense occurring within the City of Zanesville for
which the penalty or any possible adjudication includes the potential loss ofliberty; and
WHEREAS, Muskingum County has adopted a program whereby individual
attorneys are assigned on a case by case basis for indigent defendants who qualify; and
WHEREAS, Muskingum County shall pay all legal fees and expenses to counsel
duly appointed by the Judge of the Zanesville Municipal Court to represent indigent persons
charged with violations of the Zanesville City Ordinances and misdemeanor violations of the Ohio
Revised Code within the jurisdiction of Zanesville Municipal Court; and
WHEREAS, Muskingum County, pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 120.33,
may enter into a contract with the City of Zanesville under which the City of Zanesville shall
reimburse the County for counsel appointed to represent indigent persons; and
WHEREAS, Muskingum County shall seek reimbursement for such fees from the
Ohio Public Defender and the County shall promptly pay over to the City of Zanesville any
reimbursement received for any amounts expended; and
WHEREAS, any such contract must contain terms in conformance with Ohio
Administrative Code 120-1-09 and the parties must follow the Ohio Public Defender Commission
standards and guidelines and the limits of the County's maximum fee schedule for appointed
counsel in order for the County to obtain reimbursement for indigent defense costs pursuant to
Ohio Revised Code Sections 120.33 and 120.35, and pay the City of Zanesville its appropriate
share.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the City of
Zanesville, State of Ohio, that:
SECTION ONE: The Mayor is hereby authorized to execute an Agreement, in a
form substantially similar to Exhibit A hereto attached and fully incorporated herein, with the
Muskingum County Commissioners to allow for the reimbursement of indigent defense services
in Zanesville Municipal Court.
SECTION TWO: Provided it receives the affirmative vote of six (6) or more
members of City Council, this Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the earliest
period allowed by law.

Ordinance No. 2021-128

PASSED:

- --

- - - -- - ' 2021

ATTEST:

APPROVED:

SUSAN CULBERTSON,
Clerk of Council

DANIEL M. VINCENT,
President of Council

- - - - - -- - - 2021

THIS LEGISLATION APPROVED
AS TO FORM

DONALD MASON
Mayor

LAW DIRECTOR'S OFFICE
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AGREEMENT FOR INDIGENT DEFENSE SERVICES
IN MUNICIPAL COURT
(ASSIGNED COUNSEL)

This Agreement is entered into by and between the Muskingum County Commissioners, with a mailing
address of 401 Main Street, Zanesville, Ohio 43701, (hereinafter referred to as the "COUNTY"), and the
City of Zanesville, with a mailing address of 401 Market Street, Zanesville, Ohio, (hereinafter referred to
as the "CITY").
WHEREAS, the CITY recognizes its responsibility under the laws of the State of Ohio and of the United
States of America to provide legal counsel to indigent persons charged with a violation of a CITY
ordinance for which the penalty or any possible adjudication includes the potential loss of liberty, and
WHEREAS, the COUNTY has adopted a program whereby individual attorneys are assigned on a case
by case basis for indigent defendants who qualify, and
WHEREAS, the COUNTY pursuant to Ohio Revised Code §120.33 may enter into a contract with a
municipal corporation under which the municipal corporation shall reimburse the COUNTY for counsel
appointed to represent indigent persons charged with a violation of an ordinance of the municipal
corporation, and
WHEREAS, these contracts must contain terms in conformance with Ohio Administrative Code 120-1-09
and the parties must follow the Ohio Public Defender Commission standards and guidelines and the limits
of the County Maximum Fee Schedule for Appointed Counsel in order for the COUNTY to obtain
reimbursement for indigent defense costs pursuant to Ohio Revised Code §120.33 and §120.35, and pay
the CITY its appropriate share, and
passed by the
WHEREAS, this Agreement has been authorized by the CITY by Ord.# 2021-128
Zanesville City Council on _ _ _ _ _ _ __, and by Resolution#_ _ _ _ _ _ _~ passed by
the Board of County Commissioners of Muskingum COUNTY on _ _ _ _ _ __
NOW THEREFORE, the parties do mutually agree to bind themselves as follows:

1.

2.

REPRESENTATION
1.1

The CITY and COUNTY agree that the judge of the Municipal Court may assign by journal
entry, recorded on the Court Docket, appointed counsel to represent indigent persons in
Municipal Court on or after the commencement date and during the term of this agreement
in which the defendant is indigent and charged with the commission of an offense or act
which is a violation of a CITY ordinance or a misdemeanor violation of the Ohio Revised
Code committed within the jurisdiction of Zanesville Municipal Court and for which the penalty
or any possible adjudication includes the potential loss of liberty.

1.2

lndigency shall be determined in accordance with the standards of indigency and other rules
and guidelines established by the Ohio Public Defender's Commission and the State Public
Defender, pursuant to Ohio Revised Code §120.03 and Ohio Administrative Code §120-103. In addition to indigency determination, all rules, standards and guidelines issued by the
Office of the Ohio Public Defender and Ohio Public Defender Commission shall be followed.

COMPENSATION

2.1

Pursuant to Ohio Revised Code 120.33 and aforesaid resolutions, the COUNTY shall pay all
legal fees and expenses to counsel duly appointed by the Municipal Court of Zanesville,
Ohio, to represent indigent persons charged with violations of the ordinances of the CITY
and misdemeanor violations of the Ohio Revised Code committed within the jurisdiction of
Zanesville Municipal Court.
Page 1 of 3
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4.

2.2

Payment by the CITY for representation of indigent persons may be by contractual amount
or a fee schedule, however in either event such payment shall not exceed the fee schedule
in effect and adopted by the COUNTY, except in exceptional circumstances.

2.3

CITY agrees to reimburse the COUNTY for all legal fees and expenses which are paid by
the COUNTY according to 2.1 above within thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice for such
fees and expenses.

2.4

The COUNTY shall promptly pay over to the CITY any reimbursement received from the
Office of the Ohio Public Defender Commission pursuant to Chapter 120 of the Ohio Revised
Code for any amounts expended pursuant to this agreement, within thirty (30) days of receipt
of said reimbursement.

3.

DURATION OF CONTRACT and TERMINATION

3.1

The term of this agreement shall be for one year, January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022.

3.2

If the COUNTY or CITY shall fail to fulfill in a reasonable, timely and proper manner its
obligations under this agreement or if either party shall substantially violate any of the
covenants, agreements or stipulations of this agreement, then the aggrieved party shall
hereupon have the right to terminate this agreement by giving written notice to the other party
of such termination and specifying an effective date thereof at least thirty (30) days before
the effective date of said termination. Termination by either party shall not constitute a waiver
of any other right or remedy it may have in law or in equity for breach of this agreement by
the other party.

3.3

Written notice shall be considered furnished when it is sent by Certified Mail; return receipt
requested or is hand delivered.

3.4

This agreement is automatically canceled, without requirement of notice, if any payment
required by Section 2.3 of this agreement is not made within thirty (30) days from the date
on which it is due.

TERMS OF AGREEMENT
4.1

lndigency and client eligibility for representation under this agreement shall be determined in
conformity with the standards of indigency and other rules and standards established by the
Ohio Public Defender Commission and the State Public Defender.

4.2

As soon as is reasonably practical after a case is finally disposed of by the Municipal Court,
the Court shall approve counsel fees in accordance with the COUNTY'S fee schedule of
assigned counsel caps and hourly rates, which fees shall not be taxed as part of the costs of
the case. In only exceptional circumstances shall the court approve attorney's fees in excess
of the schedule established by the COUNTY.

4.3

Recognizing that the requests for reimbursements must be received by the State Public
Defender within ninety (90) days of the end of the calendar month in which a case is finally
disposed of by the Court, the Zanesville Municipal Court Clerk shall promptly notify the
COUNTY of the fees which have been approved.

4.4

After approval, the Muskingum County Auditor shall thereafter, process the fees and
expenses approved by the Municipal Court in accordance with the procedure set forth in Ohio
Revised Code §120.33.

4.5

There shall be no discrimination against any employee who is employed in the work covered
by this agreement or against any application for such employment because of the race, color,
religion, sex, age, handicap or national origin. This provision shall apply to, but not be limited
to employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising, layoff
or termination, raises of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training,
Page2 of 3
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including apprenticeship. The COUNTY shall insert a similar provision in any subcontract for
services covered by this agreement.

4.6

5.

6.

No personnel of the parties or member of the governing body of any locality or other public
official or employee of any such locality in which, or relating to which, the work under this
Agreement is being carried out, and who exercises any functions or responsibilities in
connection with the review or approval of the understanding or carrying out of any such work,
shall, prior to the completion of said work, voluntarily acquire any personal interest, direct or
indirect, which is incompatible or in conflict with the discharge and fulfillment of his or her
functions and responsibilities with respect to the carrying out of said work.

MODIFICATION

5.1

This contract may not be amended orally.

5.2.

This contract may be amended only by written addendum, signed and executed by the parties
named herein, or their successors.

PARTICIPATION IN RECOUPMENT PROGRAM
The Parties agree to participate in a recoupment program for partially indigent defendants' counsel
fees as provided in Ohio Administrative Code 120-1-05 and 120-1-03(J).

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands.

County Commissioner

City

Date

Date

County Commissioner

Date

County Commissioner

Date

Approved by:

Timothy Young
Date
Ohio Public Defender

#220232
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Introduced by Law Director
David J. Tarbert

ORDINANCE NO. 2021-114
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE ALLOWING A MORAL CLAIM
WHEREAS, on August 6, 2021, Jason Dalton ("Dalton") presented a legal claim online
against the City of Zanesville for claim of damage to his 2011 Ford Explorer caused by a Street
Sweeper (Claim 2021-17) on 8-3-2021 at 11:45 a.m.; and
WHEREAS, the City Law Director denied said claim and Mr. Dalton requested the claim
be presented to City Council as a moral claim based, in part, on the attachments hereto;
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, by the Council of the City of Zanesville, Ohio,
that:

SECTION ONE: The proper City Official is hereby authorized to pay $962.54 to Jason
Dalton, upon a valid release being executed, and said monies shall be taken from line item 6045450-53408.
SECTION TWO: This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the
earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED:

_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ 2021

ATTEST:
SUSAN CULBERTSON
Clerk of Council

DANIEL M. VINCENT
President of Council

APPROVED:_ _ _ _ _ _ _ _~2021

This Legislation Approved As To Form:

DONALD MASON
Mayor

Law Director's Office

ex,, ~ ~ ~ ~
i:1J~
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~9-7-~ ~

'ttk--- 0 ~ ~
FOR CITY CLERK'S USE
CLAIMNO. 2021-17
DATE REC. 9-3-2c,,;1-I

STATEMENT OF CLAIM AGAINST THE CITY OF
ZANESVILLE, omo

MAIL COMPLETED CLAIM TO: CLERK OF COUNCIL, 401 MARKET ST.,

ZANESVILLE, OHIO 43701
1. NAME OF CLAIMANT

Jason Dalton
-----"==-==---------

la. NAME OF SPOUSE IF APPLICABLE IN OWNERSHIP OF DAMAGED

PROPERTY

---------------------

2. ADDRESS OF CLAIMANT

903 Bexley Street, Zanesville, OH 43701

3. TELEPHONE NO._ _,_74-'-"0......
-6=24-..:. . .:c.. 50.. .,7.......
8 _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _ _~
4.

INFORMATION CONCERNING THE INCIDENT UPON WIITCH CLAIM IS
BASED:
A. DATE _ ___,8=/2=/2=0=21_ _ __ _ _ B. TIME

11:45 AM

C. WEATHER CONDITIONS - - ~
Good
~----------D. EXACT LOCATION

903 Bexley Street, Zanesville. OH 43701

E. NAMES & ADDRESSES OF WITNESSES: IF NONE, SO STATE
None

F. WAS THE INCIDENT INVESTIGATED BY THE ZANESVILLE POLICE
DEPARTMENTOROTHERCITYDEPARTMENT YES X NO _ __
G. IF ANSWER TO 4-F IS "YES", PLEASE INDICATE DEPARTMENT THAT
INVESTIGATED AND/OR THE NAME OF ANY CITY EMPLOYEE WHO
MAY HAVE INVESTIGATED SAID OCCURRENCE
Curtw
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IN YOUR OWN WORDS, STATE IN DETAIL WHAT HAPPENED AND
HOW IT HAPPENED (CONTINUE ON BACK IF NEEDED)

5.

Street cleaner through rocks and damaged my vehicle

PROPERTY DAMAGE DETAILS

6.

A. AMOUNT OF CLAIM FOR PROPERTY DAMAGE _ __ _ _ __ _
DO YOU HAVE HOMEOWNER'S INSURANCE_ _~Y=es..___ _ __ _

B. IF MOTOR VEHICLE DAMAGE IS CLAIMED, STATE YEAR, MAKE AND
MODEL OF VEHICLE
2011

Ford =Ex=p=lo=re=r_ _ __ __ _ _ _ __ __

OWNERS NAME AND ADDRESS _;.J=as=on=D=alt..,,,o=n_ _ _ _ _ __
STATE WHETIIER OR NOT VEHICLE WAS COVERED BY COLLISION
INSURANCE Yes
IF YES, NAME COMPANY AND AGENT
State Farm
C. ATTACH ESTIMATES OR RECEIPT(S) OF COST IN CONNECTION

WITH THE ABOVE CLAIM (VEHICLE OR PROPERTY). ESTIMATES
OR RECEIPT(S) MUST BE FILED WITH CLAIM OR CLAIM
CANNOT BE PROCESSED.

7. WHERE ARE YOU EMPLOYED ---'R=ur=al=Kin=·=g_ __ _ _ _ _ __
8.

HOW LONG EMPLOYED ABOVE ---"'5-'Y"""e=ar"""s_ _ _ _ _ _ __
IF CLAIM IS FOR BODILY INJURY, STATE THE FOLLOWING:
A. NATURE OF INJURY _ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ __ _ __ __
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No _ _ IF SO,
B. WERE YOU HOSPITALIZED__.a.-=-.
WHERE

AND FOR HOW LONG

----------

C. WERE YOU ATTENDED BY A PHYSICIAN ( IF YES) WHO_ _ _ __

PHYSICIAN ADDRESS

----------------

D. AMOUNT CLAIMED FOR BODILY INJURY DAMAGES - - - - - 9. DO YOU KNOW WHETHER OR NOT THE CITY HAD BEEN NOTIFIED
OF THE CONDITIONS OR CIRCUMSTANCES CONCERNING ANY STREET
OR SIDEWALK DEFECT WHICH MAY HAVE BEEN INVOLVED IN THE
INCIDENT WHICH GAVE RISE TO YOUR CLAIM PRIOR TO THE TIME OF
OCCURRENCE OF SAID INCIDENT, IF YES GIVE DETAILS:

THE UNDERSIGNED - - - - - - - - ~ B E I N G FIRST DULY
CAUTIONED AND SWORN DEPOSES AND SAYS THAT HE OR SHE HAS
READ THE INFORMATION CONTAINED IN THE FOREGOING
STATEMENT OF CLAIM AND THAT THE SAME I87RUE.

//

/.:2:

--=.======--

·IGNATURE

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED B

~

ORE ME THIS

7 fA.

DAYOF

,2021.

~£;~
NOTARY PUBLIC

This document and any items submitted with it become a public record per the
Public Records Act under Revised Code 149.43.
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ZANESVILLE
POLICE DEPARTMENT

Investigating Officer
Unit _ _ __ _ _ __

Badge _ _ _ _ __

Emergency Telephone

Business Telephone

911

740-455-0700

CITIZEN INFORMATION FORM
If you come upon or think of any new facts that would
help us investigate the crime below, CALL: 740-455-0700.

Tell the person answering that you have information on
case No.:

I~

1 .,

b , %1

Crime i) Pr l"'~<.s~ --n:> CA-IL
T.oc:\tion

9D

]

fli {.

<f L-~

s s· I

Date _ __ _

't
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DUTRO FORD BODY SHOP
131 SOUTH 5TH ST, Zanesville, OH 43701
Phone: (740) 455-4400, Fax: (740) 455-4412

Image Report
Owner:

DALTON, JASON

Make:
Model:

Estimator:

DENNY JAMESON

Vehicle out:

Claim Number:

RO Number:
Year:

I nsurance:

2011

Color:

SILV

License Plate:

FMM2409

Production Date:

FORD

Body Style:

4D U1V

State:

OH

Mileage In:

192,437

Engine:

6-3.SL Gasoline S... VIN:

1FMHK8D83BGA30918

Condition:

Good

Explorer XLT 4WD

8/17/2021 E01
comments:

8/17/2021 E01
Comments:

8/17/2021 EOl
Comments:

8/17/2021 E01
Comments:

8/17/2021 E01
comments:

8/17/2021 E01
Comments:

B/17/202112:44:54 PM

3/2011
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DUTRO FORD BODY SHOP
131 SOUTH 5TH ST, zanesville, OH 43701
Phone: (740) 455-4400, Fax: (740) 455-4412

Image Report
Insurance:

DALTON, JASON

Owner:

Estimator:

DENNY JAMESON

Vehicle Out:

License Plate:

FMM2409

Production Date:

3/2011

OH

Mileage In:

192,437

1FMHK8D83BGA30918

Condition:

Good

Claim Number:

RO Number:
Make:

FORD

Body Style:

SILV
4D UTV

Model:

Explorer XLT 4WD

Engine:

6-3.SL Gasoline S... VIN:

Year:

Color:

2011

B/17/2021 E0l
Comments:

8/17/2021 E0l
Comments:

-

~

State:

-

-·

- . - --

..:am

"'IHW,

•

-

~1

-----

--

-

•••

.

8/17/2021 E0l
comments:

8/17/2021 E0l
Comments:

8/17/2021 E0l
Comments:

8/17/2021 E01
comments:

8/17/2021 12:44:54 PM
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DUTRO FORD BODY SHOP
131 SOUTH 5TH ST, Zanesville, OH 43701
Phone: (740) 455-4400, Fax: (740) 455-4412

Image Report
Owner:

DALTON, JASON

DENNY JAMESON

VehideOut :

SILV

License Plate:

FMM2409

Production Date:

State:

OH

Mileage In;

192,437

1FMHK8D83BGA30918

Condition:

Good

Oaim Number:

RO Number:
Year:

Estimator:

I nsurance:

2011

Color:

Make:

FORD

Body Style:

4DUTV

Model:

Explorer XLT 4WD

Engine:

6-3.SL Gasolines... VIN:

8/17/2021 EOl
Comments:

8/17/2021 E01
Comments:

8/17/2021 EOl
comments:

8/17/2021 E01
Comments:

8/17/2021 E01
Comments:

8/17/2021 E01
Comments:

8/17/202112:44:54 PM

3/2011
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DUTRO FORD BODY SHOP

Workfile ID:
PartsShare:

18e6236b
6p8C7W

131 SOlITH 5TH ST, Zanesville, OH 43701
Phone: (740) 455-4400
FAX: (740) 455-4412

Federal ID:
State ID;

#310887309
#483178

Body
Shop

Preliminary Estimate
Customer: DALTON, JASON
Written By: DENNY JAMESON
DALTON, JASON

Insured:
Type of Loss:

Policy#:

Claim#:

Date of Loss:

Days to Repair:

0

Point of Impact: 06 Rear

Owner:

Inspection Location:

DALTON, JASON

DUTRO FORD BODY SHOP

903 BEXLEY ST

131 SOUTH STH ST

ZANESVILLE, OH 43701

Zanesville, OH 43701

(740) 624-5078 Cell

Repair Facility

Insurance company:

(740) 455-4400 Business

VEHICLE
2011 FORD Explorer Xl.T 4WD 4D UTV 6-3.SL Gasoline SMPI SILV
1FMHK8O838GA30918

VIN:

Interior Color:

Mileage In:

License:

FMM2409

Exterior Color:

SILV

Mileage Out:

State:

OH

Production Date:

3/2011

Condition:

TRANSMISSION

CONVENIENCE

Stereo

192,437

Vehicle Out:

Good

Job#:

Luggage/Roof Rack

Automatic Transmission

Air Conditioning

Search/Seek

SEATS

Overdrive

Intermittent Wipers

CD Player

Cloth Seats

4 Wheel Drive

Tilt Wheel

Auxiliary Audio Connection

Bucket Seats

POWER

Qulse Control

satellite Radio

Reclining/Lounge Seats

Power Steering

Rear Defogger

SAFETY

3rd Row Seat

Power Brakes

Keyless Entry

Drivers Side Air Bag

WHEELS

Power Windows

Alarm

Passenger Air Bag

Aluminum/Alloy Wheels

Steering Wheel Touch Controls

Anti-Lock Brakes (4)

PAINT

Power Locks
Power Mirrors

Rear Window Wiper

4 Wheel Disc Brakes

Clear Coat Paint

Heated Mirrors

Telescopic Wheel

Traction Control

OTHER

Power Driver Seat

Climate Control

Stability control

Fog Lamps

DECOR

Dual Air Condition

Front Side Impact Air Bags

Rear Spoiler

Dual Mirrors

Parking Sensors

Head/Curtain Air Bags

Signal Integrated Mirrors

Privacy Glass

RADIO

Hands Free Device

TRUCK

Console/Storage

AM Radio

Blind Spot Detection

Rear Step Bumper

FM Radio

ROOF

Overhead console

Get live updates at www.carwise.com/e/44WHAJ
8/17/202112:44:03 PM

060279
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Attachment to Ordinance No. 2021-114
Preliminary Estimate
Customer: DALTON, JASON
2011 FORD Explorer XLT 4WD 40 lffV 6-3.SL Gasoline SMPI SILV

Line
1

Oper

Description

Part Number

Qty

Extended
Price$

1

51.67

Labor

LIFT GATE

2

Repl

Emblem

3

Rpr

Lift gate

*

AT4Z9942528B

0.2

6...0.

s

Rep!

Nameplate "XLr•

BBSZ9942528E

1

16.30

6

Rep!

Nameplate "4WD"

FB5Z99425280

1

16.30

0.2
0.2

R&I

Rear molding w/o Police
Interceptor w/o SPORT, w/o
camera, chrome

0.3

8

R&l

Handle

0.3

9

Bind

Handle

Repl

URETHANE KIT

11

R&I

Lower trim panel w/o power lift
gate charcoal

12

R&I

Upper bim panel charcoal

7

#

13

#

14

#

15

#

16
17

#

#

2.3
0.9

Add for aear Coat

4

10

Paint

0.3
25.00 T

1

0.4
Incl.
0.2

DISARM AIRBAGS

1

SUbl

HAZARDOUS WASTE

1

Rep!

COVER CAR

1

5.00 T

Repl

CORROSION PROTECTION

1

15.00 T

TINT

1

3.00 T
0.3
0.5

132.27

SUBTOTALS

8.1

4 .0

ESTIMATE TOTALS
Basis

Category

Rate

Cost$

$ 52.00 /hr
$ 52.00 /hr
$ 34.00 /hr

421.20

84.27

Parts
Body Labor

8.1 hrs

@

Paint Labor

4.0 hrs

@

Paint Supplies

4.0 hrs

@

208.00
136.00
48.00

Miscellaneous

897.47

SUbtotal
$ 897.47

Sales Tax

@

7.2500 o/o

65.07

962.54

Grand Total

0.00

Deductible

o.oo

CUSTOMER PAY

962.54

INSURANCE PAY

MyPricelink Estimate ID / Quote ID:

856936463483281408 / 91221801

8/17/202112:44:03 PM
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Attachment to Ordinance No. 2021-114
Preliminary Estimate
Customer: DALTON, JASON
2011 FORD Explorer XLT 4WD 4D lJTV 6-3.SL Gasoline SMPI SILV
\.

THIS ESTIMATE HAS BEEN PREPARED BASED UPON THE USE OF ONE OR MORE
AFTERMARKET CRASH PARTS SUPPUED BY A SOURCE OTHER THAN THE MANUFACTURER OF YOUR MOTOR
VEHICLE. WARRANTIES APPLICABLE TO THESE AFTERMARKET CRASH PARTS ARE PROVIDED BY THE PARTS
MANUFACTURER OR DISTRIBUTOR RATHER THAN BY YOUR OWN MOTOR VEHICLE MANUFACTURER.
BY MY SIGNATURE BELOW, I ACKNOWLEDGE RECEIPT AND APPROVAL OF THIS ESTIMATE.
SIGNATURE: _ __ __ _ _ _ _ _ _ __ _ SIGNATURE DATE: _ _ __
Any person who, with intent to defraud or knowing that he is facilitating a fraud against an insurer, submits an
application or files a claim containing a false or deceptive statement is guilty of insurance fraud.

8/17/202112:44:03 PM

060279
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Department of Public Safety
Douglas Merry, Director
ORDINANCE NO. 2021 -121
INTRODUCED BYCOUNCIL

AN ORDINANCE AUTHORIZING THE PROPER CITY OFFICIAL TO
DISPOSE OF CITY PROPERTY
WHEREAS, the City of Zanesville purchased an Apple 64 GB cell iPad Pro for
Timothy J Smith use during his tenure, which will end on 10/07/2021; and
WHEREAS, Timothy J. Smith has requested to purchase the City issued device;
and
WHEREAS, the City Auditor feels the valuations attached are an appropriate
amount to charge for the device.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of
Zanesville, Ohio, that:
SECTION ONE: The proper City Official is hereby authorized to dispose of the
Apple 64 GB cell iPad Pro
SECTION TWO: The disposal method shall be by selling the property for the
amount of$150.00 as quoted in Exhibit A attached hereto.
SECTION THREE: This ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and
after the earliest period allowed by law.

PASSED:

__________, 2021

ATTEST:

--------Susan Culbertson,
Clerk of Council

Daniel Vincent,
President of Council

APPROVED: _ _ _ _ _ __ __, 2021

This legislation approved as to form:

Donald Mason,
Mayor

Law Director's Office

Attachment to Ordinance No. 2021-121
Tim Smith
Grace Hackney
Wednesday, October 06, 2021 9:15 AM

From:

Sent:
To:
Subject:

Tim Smith
Tim Smith-iPad Pro 64GB
Tim Smith-iPad Pro 64GB.docx

Attachments:

Tim,
Here is the offer from the buyback company that we use. This can be attached to the Ordinance.

Thanks,
Gracie Hackney
Public Service Auditor

City of Zanesville
40 l Market St. - Room 128
Zanesville, OH 43701
Phone: (740) 6 17-4896
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Attachment to Ordinance No. 2021-121

Apple iPad Pro 2nd Gen 12.9" 64GB WiFi

Lers determine the condition
Does the device power on?

Fair Condition
Is the device fully functional and all parts of the screen light up correctly?

m ·.
Are the front and back free of cracks?

m ·.
What's the overall cosmetic condition?
Scratches. scuff$, dents. oc,~,.-:; :.·:

.-

Get Paid

•I.I
~

,.:.;... f'I:::.. J,, •• do 1GI ;;-~•, fG : ....
'l:t'I.~ tN l reportea ro-:.t )i" s·. ::"

:i.

-•

Community Development Committee
Mark Baker, Chair
ORDINANCE NO. 2021-110
INTRODUCED BY COUNCIL
AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND AND REVISE THE ZONING MAP AND

MAKE PERMANENT ZONING IN THE CITY OF ZANESVILLE, OHIO
AS HEREIN PROVIDED
WHEREAS, an app lication has been duly made requesting a zone change from RS-5 High Density SingleFamily to RM-2 High Density Multi-Family Residential; and
WHEREAS, proper notification of the intent of this Council to consider this request to rezone the below
described property was given to abutters within 200 feet of the requested rezoning and in a newspaper of general
circulation; and
WHEREAS, after testimony and discussion the Zanesville Planning Com.mission recommended to City
Council that the zone change request further identified on Exhibit "A", be approved.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of Zanesville, State of Ohio; that
SECTION ONE: The application for a zoning map amendment with respect to the real property hereinafter
described and shown in Exhibit "A" is hereby approved and the zoning with respect to said property is so changed.
SECTION TWO: The Zoning Map of the City of Zanesville, Ohio, and the same is hereby amended and
revised by changing the zoning as follows:
From RS-5 High Density Single-Family to RM-2 High Density Multi-Family Residential, situated in the City
of Zanesville, County of Muskingum, and State of Ohio, and bounded and described as follows:
Auditors Parcel #81-71-02-18-000 recorded in Deed Volume 2944 Page 692, with said Deed Volume being
located in the Muskingum County Recorder's Office.
SECTION THREE: This Ordinance shall take effect upon the approval of the Mayor and
from and after the earliest period allowed by law
PASSED: _ _ _ _ _ __ _ _ _ ___, 2021.

ATTEST:
DANIEL M . VINCENT
PRESIDENT OF COUNCIL

SUSAN CULBERTSON
CLERK OF COUNCIL

APPROVED:-----

-

- - -- -~

DONALD MASON
MAYOR

2021.

THIS LEGISLATION
APPROVED AS TO FORM

LAW DIRECTOR'S OFFICE

Attachment to ORD. 2021-110-Exhibit A
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Map ~ 2011:i City of Zanesville/ O$/P /1/ lf{lag~y /. .g, Mapbox .C,. Openstreet/.fap / Prmled on 9/22120,21

City of Zanesville.
Departmeh~ of Public Se,:vice
Division .of Engineering

COZ:WebMap Export

·E )( A;b1'.f- .A-

f11ap Disclaimer
City of Zanesville tfo.es .not gui/raqfee the
acc.u racy of this: data. This ITJBP is subject to ·all
ter.m.s a,nd conditions o'f the. disclafrner. posted 11t
maps. coz.org/disdafm~r.

Prepared by
Douglas J. Merry
Director of Public Safety

OFFICE OF PUBLIC SAFETY
CITY OF ZANESVILLE, OHIO
DIVISION OF TRAFFIC ENGINEERING

Traffic Order 2021 -09

November 8, 2021

SECTION ONE:

Central Alley is hereby closed from Graham Street 250' east toward East AIJey.

SECTION TWO:

The appropriate signs shall be installed in accordance with O.R.C. 4511.09.

DOUGLAS J. MERRY,
Director of Public Safety

Date Filed With Clerk:
November 3, 2021

SUSAN CULBERTSON,
Clerk of Council

Date Work Completed

(signed)

TO:

Traffic File
Service Department/Street Division
Municipal Court
Police Department

